Prospectus Supplement to Prospectus dated September 19, 2011.



\$3,000,000,000

The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.

4.000% Notes due 2024

The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. will pay interest on the notes at a rate of 4.000% per annum on March 3 and September 3, of each year. The first such payment will be made on September 3, 2014. The notes will mature on the stated maturity date, March 3, 2024. If The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. becomes obligated to pay additional amounts to non-U.S. investors due to changes in U.S. withholding tax requirements, The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. may redeem the notes before their stated maturity at a price equal to 100% of the principal amount redeemed *plus* accrued interest to the redemption date.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any other regulatory body has approved or disapproved of these securities or passed upon the accuracy or adequacy of this prospectus supplement or the accompanying prospectus. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

The notes have been registered under the Securities Act of 1933 solely for the purpose of sales in the United States; they have not been and will not be registered for the purpose of any sales outside the United States.

The notes are not bank deposits and are not insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or any other governmental agency, nor are they obligations of, or guaranteed by, a bank.

	Per Note	Total
Initial price to public	99.698%	\$2,990,940,000
Underwriting discount	0.450%	\$ 13,500,000
Proceeds, before expenses, to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	99.248%	\$2,977,440,000

The initial price to public set forth above does not include accrued interest, if any. Interest on the notes will accrue from March 3, 2014 and must be paid by the purchaser if the notes are delivered after March 3, 2014.

The underwriters expect to deliver the notes through the facilities of The Depository Trust Company against payment in New York, New York on March 3, 2014.

The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. may use this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus in the initial sale of the notes. In addition, Goldman, Sachs & Co. or any other affiliate of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. may use this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus in a market-making transaction in the notes after their initial sale, and unless they inform the purchaser otherwise in the confirmation of sale, this prospectus supplement and accompanying prospectus are being used by them in a market-making transaction.

Goldman, Sachs & Co.

ABN AMRO
Banca IMI
BMO Capital Markets
Citigroup
Fifth Third Securities
Mizuho Securities USA Inc.
RBC Capital Markets
SMBC Nikko
SunTrust Robinson Humphrey
Drexel Hamilton

ANZ Investment Bank
BB&T Capital Markets
BNY Mellon Capital Markets, LLC
Credit Agricole Securities (USA) Inc.
Lloyds Securities Inc.
PNC Capital Markets LLC
Santander
Standard Chartered Bank
US Bancorp
Mischler Financial Group, Inc.

_			_	_	
ഗം	mir	0.7	v.	7.0	Inc.
Ŋα		E 4	œ	CU.	 IIIC.

The Wil	liams	Capital	Group,	L.P
---------	-------	---------	--------	-----

Prospectus Supplement dated February 26, 2014.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Prospectus Supplement

	Page
Specific Terms of the Notes	S-2
Employee Retirement Income Security Act	S-5
Validity of the Notes	S-6
<u>Experts</u>	S-6
Review of Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements by Independent Registered Public	
Accounting Firm	S-6
<u>Underwriting</u>	S-7
Prospectus dated September 19, 2011	
Available Information	2
Prospectus Summary	4
Use of Proceeds	8
Description of Debt Securities We May Offer	9
Description of Warrants We May Offer	33
Description of Purchase Contracts We May Offer	48
Description of Units We May Offer	53
Description of Preferred Stock We May Offer	58
The Issuer Trusts	65
Description of Capital Securities and Related Instruments	67
Description of Capital Stock of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	88
Legal Ownership and Book-Entry Issuance	92
Considerations Relating to Floating Rate Debt Securities	97
Considerations Relating to Securities Issued in Bearer Form	98
Considerations Relating to Indexed Securities	102
Considerations Relating to Securities Denominated or Payable in or Linked to a Non-U.S. Dollar Currency	105
Considerations Relating to Capital Securities	108
United States Taxation	112
Plan of Distribution	135
Conflicts of Interest	137
Employee Retirement Income Security Act	138
Validity of the Securities	139
Experts	139
Review of Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements by Independent Registered Public	
Accounting Firm	139
Cautionary Statement Pursuant to the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995	140

We have not authorized anyone to provide any information or to make any representations other than those contained or incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus or in any free writing prospectuses we have prepared. We take no responsibility for, and can provide no assurance as to the reliability of, any other information that others may provide. This prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus is an offer to sell only the notes offered hereby, but only under circumstances and in jurisdictions where it is lawful to do so. The information contained in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus is current only as of the respective dates of such documents.

SPECIFIC TERMS OF THE NOTES

Please note that throughout this prospectus supplement, references to "The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.", "we", "our" and "us" mean only The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and do not include its consolidated subsidiaries. Also, references to "holders" mean The Depository Trust Company ("DTC") or its nominee and not indirect owners who own beneficial interests in notes through participants in DTC. Please review the special considerations that apply to indirect owners in the accompanying prospectus, under "Legal Ownership and Book-Entry Issuance".

The notes will be a series of senior debt securities issued under our senior debt indenture dated as of July 16, 2008 between us and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee. This prospectus supplement summarizes specific financial and other terms that will apply to the notes; terms that apply generally to all of our debt securities are described in "Description of Debt Securities We May Offer" in the accompanying prospectus dated September 19, 2011. The terms described here supplement those described in the accompanying prospectus and, if the terms described here are inconsistent with those described there, the terms described here are controlling.

Terms of the Notes

The specific terms of this series of notes we are offering will be as follows:

- Title of the notes: 4.000% Notes due 2024
- Issuer of the notes: The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.
- Total principal amount being issued: \$3,000,000,000
- Initial price to public: 99.698% of the principal amount
- Underwriting discount: 0.450% of the principal amount
- Issue date: March 3, 2014
- Stated maturity: March 3, 2024
- Interest rate: 4.000% per annum
- Date interest starts accruing: March 3, 2014
- Due dates for interest: Every March 3 and September 3
- First due date for interest: September 3, 2014
- Regular record dates for interest: For interest due on an interest payment date, the day immediately prior to the day
 on which the payment is to be made (as such payment day may be adjusted under the applicable business day
 convention specified below)
- Day count convention: 30/360 (ISDA)
- Denomination: \$2,000 and integral multiples of \$1,000 thereafter, subject to a minimum denomination of \$2,000
- Business day: New York
- Business day convention: Following unadjusted, as described in the accompanying prospectus under "Description of Debt Securities We May Offer Payment Mechanics for Debt Securities Business Day Conventions"
- Defeasance: The notes are not subject to defeasance or covenant defeasance by us
- Additional amounts: We intend to pay principal and interest without deducting U.S. withholding taxes. If we are
 required to deduct U.S. withholding taxes from payment to non-U.S. investors, however, we will pay additional amounts
 on those payments, but only to the extent described in the accompanying prospectus under "Description of Debt
 Securities We May Offer Payment of Additional Amounts".

- Tax Redemption: We will have the option to redeem the notes before they mature (at par plus accrued interest) if we become obligated to pay additional amounts because of changes in U.S. withholding tax requirements as described in the accompanying prospectus under "Description of Debt Securities We May Offer Redemption and Repayment". For purposes of the seventh paragraph under "Description of Debt Securities We May Offer Redemption and Repayment", the specified date (on or after which any such changes that may occur will give rise to our redemption right) is February 26, 2014.
- No other redemption: We will not be permitted to redeem the notes before their stated maturity, except as described above. The notes will not be entitled to the benefit of any sinking fund that is, we will not deposit money on a regular basis into any separate custodial account to repay your note.

· Repayment at option of holder: None

CUSIP No.: 38141GVM3ISIN No.: US38141GVM31

• **FDIC:** The notes are not bank deposits and are not insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or any other governmental agency, nor are they obligations of, or guaranteed by, a bank.

Additional Information About the Notes

Book-Entry System

We will issue the notes as global notes registered in the name of DTC, or its nominee. The sale of the notes will settle in immediately available funds through DTC. You will not be permitted to withdraw the notes from DTC except in the limited situations described in the accompanying prospectus under "Legal Ownership and Book-Entry Issuance — What Is a Global Security? — Holder's Option to Obtain a Non-Global Security; Special Situations When a Global Security Will Be Terminated".

Investors may hold interests in a global note through organizations that participate, directly or indirectly, in the DTC system. See "Legal Ownership and Book-Entry Issuance" in the accompanying prospectus for additional information about indirect ownership of interests in the notes.

Trustee Conflict of Interest

BNY Mellon Capital Markets, LLC, an affiliate of the trustee, is an underwriter for this offering. Therefore, if a default occurs with respect to the notes within one year after this offering (or any other offering of our securities in which an affiliate of the trustee participates as an underwriter), the trustee would likely be considered to have a conflicting interest for purposes of the Trust Indenture Act of 1939. In that event, except in very limited circumstances, the trustee would be required to resign as trustee under the senior debt indenture under which the notes are being issued and we would be required to appoint a successor trustee, unless the default is cured or waived within 90 days. If the trustee resigns following a default, it may be difficult to identify and appoint a qualified successor trustee. The trustee will remain the trustee under the indenture until a successor is appointed. During the period of time until a successor is appointed, the trustee will have both (a) duties to noteholders under the indenture and (b) a conflicting interest under the indenture for purposes of the Trust Indenture Act.

United States Federal Income Tax Consequences

Please see the discussion under "United States Taxation" in the accompanying prospectus.

Treasury regulations and administrative guidance provide that Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act ("FATCA") withholding (as described in "United States Taxation — Taxation of Debt Securities — Foreign Account Tax Compliance" in the accompanying prospectus) will generally not apply to obligations that are issued prior to July 1, 2014, unless the obligations are "significantly modified" (as defined in the applicable Treasury regulations) after July 1, 2014; therefore, absent such a significant modification, the notes will not be subject to FATCA withholding.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT INCOME SECURITY ACT

This section is only relevant to you if you are an insurance company or the fiduciary of a pension plan or an employee benefit plan (including a governmental plan, an IRA or a Keogh Plan) proposing to invest in the notes.

The U.S. Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended ("ERISA"), and the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), prohibit certain transactions ("prohibited transactions") involving the assets of an employee benefit plan that is subject to the fiduciary responsibility provisions of ERISA or Section 4975 of the Code (including individual retirement accounts, Keogh plans and other plans described in Section 4975(e)(1) of the Code) (a "Plan") and certain persons who are "parties in interest" (within the meaning of ERISA) or "disqualified persons" (within the meaning of the Code) with respect to the Plan; governmental plans may be subject to similar prohibitions unless an exemption applies to the transaction. The assets of a Plan may include assets held in the general account of an insurance company that are deemed "plan assets" under ERISA or assets of certain investment vehicles in which the Plan invests. Each of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and certain of its affiliates may be considered a "party in interest" or a "disqualified person" with respect to many Plans, and, accordingly, prohibited transactions may arise if the notes are acquired by or on behalf of a Plan unless those notes are acquired and held pursuant to an available exemption. In general, available exemptions are: transactions effected on behalf of that Plan by a "qualified professional asset manager" (prohibited transaction exemption 84-14) or an "in-house asset manager" (prohibited transaction exemption 96-23), transactions involving insurance company general accounts (prohibited transaction exemption 95-60), transactions involving insurance company pooled separate accounts (prohibited transaction exemption 90-1), transactions involving bank collective investment funds (prohibited transaction exemption 91-38) and transactions with service providers under Section 408(b)(17) of ERISA and Section 4975(d)(20) of the Code where the Plan receives no less and pays no more than "adequate consideration" (within the meaning of Section 408(b)(17) of ERISA and Section 4975(f)(10) of the Code). The person making the decision on behalf of a Plan or a governmental plan shall be deemed, on behalf of itself and the plan, by purchasing and holding the notes, or exercising any rights related thereto, to represent that (a) the plan will receive no less and pay no more than "adequate consideration" (within the meaning of Section 408(b)(17) of ERISA and Section 4975(f) (10) of the Code) in connection with the purchase and holding of the notes. (b) none of the purchase, holding or disposition of the notes or the exercise of any rights related to the notes will result in a non-exempt prohibited transaction under ERISA or the Code (or, with respect to a governmental plan, under any similar applicable law or regulation), and (c) neither The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. nor any of its affiliates is a "fiduciary" (within the meaning of Section 3(21) of ERISA (or any regulations thereunder) or, with respect to a governmental plan, under any similar applicable law or regulation) with respect to the purchaser or holder in connection with such person's acquisition, disposition or holding of the notes, or as a result of any exercise by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. or any of its affiliates of any rights in connection with the notes, and no advice provided by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. or any of its affiliates has formed a primary basis for any investment decision by or on behalf of such purchaser or holder in connection with the notes and the transactions contemplated with respect to the notes.

If you are an insurance company or the fiduciary of a pension plan or an employee benefit plan (including a governmental plan, an IRA or a Keogh plan) and propose to invest in the notes described in this prospectus supplement and accompanying prospectus, you should consult your legal counsel.

VALIDITY OF THE NOTES

The validity of the notes will be passed upon for the underwriters by Sullivan & Cromwell LLP, New York, New York. Sullivan & Cromwell LLP has in the past represented and continues to represent The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. on a regular basis and in a variety of matters, including offerings of our common stock, preferred stock and debt securities. Sullivan & Cromwell LLP also performed services for The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. in connection with the offering of the notes described in this prospectus supplement.

EXPERTS

The financial statements of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. incorporated herein by reference to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012 have been so incorporated in reliance on the report of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, given on the authority of said firm as experts in auditing and accounting.

The historical income statement, balance sheet and common share data set forth in "Selected Financial Data" as of and for the years ended December 31, 2012, December 31, 2011, December 31, 2010, December 31, 2009 and November 28, 2008 and for the month ended December 26, 2008 incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement have been so incorporated in reliance on the report of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, given on the authority of said firm as experts in auditing and accounting.

REVIEW OF UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BY INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

With respect to the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. as of and for the three months ended March 31, 2013 and March 31, 2012, incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement, the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. as of and for the three and six months ended June 30, 2013 and June 30, 2012 incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement, and the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. as of and for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013 and September 30, 2012 incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP reported that they have applied limited procedures in accordance with professional standards for a review of such information. However, their separate reports dated May 8, 2013, August 7, 2013 and November 6, 2013 incorporated by reference herein state that they did not audit and they do not express an opinion on the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, the degree of reliance on their reports on such unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements should be restricted in light of the limited nature of the review procedures applied. PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP is not subject to the liability provisions of Section 11 of the Securities Act of 1933 for their reports on the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements because the reports are not "reports" or a "part" of the registration statement prepared or certified by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP within the meaning of Sections 7 and 11 of the Securities Act of 1933.

UNDERWRITING

We and the underwriters named below have entered into an underwriting agreement with respect to the notes. Subject to certain conditions, each underwriter named below has severally agreed to purchase the principal amount of notes indicated in the following table:

<u>Underwriters</u>	P:	rincipal Amount of Notes
Goldman, Sachs & Co.	\$	2,400,000,000
ABN AMRO Securities (USA) LLC	\$	30,000,000
ANZ Investment Bank	\$	30,000,000
Banca IMI S.p.A.	\$	30,000,000
BB&T Capital Markets, a division of BB&T Securities, LLC	\$	30,000,000
BMO Capital Markets Corp.	\$	30,000,000
BNY Mellon Capital Markets, LLC	\$	30,000,000
Citigroup Global Markets Inc.	\$	30,000,000
Credit Agricole Securities (USA) Inc.	\$	30,000,000
Fifth Third Securities, Inc.	\$	30,000,000
Lloyds Securities Inc.	\$	30,000,000
Mizuho Securities USA Inc.	\$	30,000,000
PNC Capital Markets LLC	\$	30,000,000
RBC Capital Markets, LLC	\$	30,000,000
Santander Investment Securities Inc.	\$	30,000,000
SMBC Nikko Securities America, Inc.	\$	30,000,000
Standard Chartered Bank	\$	30,000,000
SunTrust Robinson Humphrey, Inc.	\$	30,000,000
U.S. Bancorp Investments, Inc.	\$	30,000,000
Drexel Hamilton, LLC	\$	15,000,000
Mischler Financial Group, Inc.	\$	15,000,000
Samuel A. Ramirez & Company, Inc.	\$	15,000,000
The Williams Capital Group, L.P.	\$	15,000,000
Total	\$	3,000,000,000

The underwriters are committed to take and pay for all of the notes being offered, if any are taken.

The following table shows the per note and total underwriting discounts and commissions to be paid to the underwriters by us.

Per \$1,000 note	\$ 4.50
Total	\$13,500,000

The notes sold by the underwriters to the public will initially be offered at the initial price to public set forth on the cover of this prospectus supplement. Any notes sold by the underwriters to securities dealers may be sold at a discount from the initial price to public of up to 0.200% of the principal amount of the notes. Any such securities dealers may resell any notes purchased from the underwriters to certain other brokers or dealers at a discount from the initial price to public of up to 0.150% of the principal amount of the notes. If all the notes are not sold at the initial price to public, the underwriters may change the initial price to public and the other selling terms. The offering of the notes by the underwriters is subject to their receipt and acceptance of the notes and subject to their right to reject any order in whole or in part.

The underwriters intend to offer the notes for sale in the United States either directly or through affiliates or other dealers acting as selling agents. The underwriters may also offer the notes for sale outside the United States either directly or through affiliates or other dealers acting as selling agents. This prospectus supplement may be used by the underwriters and other dealers in connection with

offers and sales of notes made in the United States, including offers and sales in the United States of notes initially sold outside the United States. The notes have not been, and will not be, registered under the Securities Act of 1933 for the purpose of offers or sales outside the United States.

The notes are a new issue of securities with no established trading market. We have been advised by Goldman, Sachs & Co. and Goldman Sachs International that they intend to make a market in the notes. Other affiliates of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. may also do so. Neither Goldman, Sachs & Co. or Goldman Sachs International nor any other affiliate, however, is obligated to do so and any of them may discontinue market-making at any time without notice. No assurance can be given as to the liquidity or the trading market for the notes.

Please note that the information about the original issue date, original price to public and net proceeds to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. on the front cover page relates only to the initial sale of the notes. If you have purchased a note in a market-making transaction after the initial sale, information about the price and date of sale to you will be provided in a separate confirmation of sale.

Each underwriter has represented and agreed that it will not offer or sell the notes in the United States or to United States persons except if such offers or sales are made by or through Financial Industry Regulatory Authority, Inc. member broker-dealers.

Each underwriter has represented and agreed that:

- it has only communicated or caused to be communicated and will only communicate or cause to be communicated an invitation or inducement to engage in investment activity (within the meaning of Section 21 of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 (as amended) (the "FSMA")) received by it in connection with the issue or sale of the notes in circumstances in which Section 21(1) of the FSMA does not apply to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.; and
- it has complied and will comply with all applicable provisions of the FSMA with respect to anything done by it in relation to the notes in, from or otherwise involving the United Kingdom.

In relation to each Member State of the European Economic Area which has implemented the Prospectus Directive (each, a "Relevant Member State") with effect from and including the date on which the Prospectus Directive is implemented in that Relevant Member State (the "Relevant Implementation Date") an offer of notes which are the subject of the offering contemplated by this prospectus supplement in relation thereto may not be made to the public in that Relevant Member State except that, with effect from and including the Relevant Implementation Date, an offer of such notes may be made to the public in that Relevant Member State:

- a) at any time to any legal entity which is a qualified investor as defined in the Prospectus Directive;
- b) at any time to fewer than 100 or, if the Relevant Member State has implemented the relevant provision of the 2010 PD Amending Directive, 150, natural or legal persons (other than qualified investors as defined in the Prospectus Directive), subject to obtaining the prior consent of the relevant Dealer or Dealers nominated by the Issuer for any such offer; or
- c) at any time in any other circumstances falling within Article 3(2) of the Prospectus Directive,

provided that no such offer of notes referred to above shall require the Issuer or any Dealer to publish a prospectus pursuant to Article 3 of the Prospectus Directive, or supplement a prospectus pursuant to Article 16 of the Prospectus Directive.

For the purposes of this provision, the expression "an offer of notes to the public" in relation to any notes in any Relevant Member State means the communication in any form and by any means of sufficient information on the terms of the offer and the notes to be offered so as to enable an investor to decide to purchase or subscribe the notes, as the same may be varied in that Member State by any measure implementing the Prospectus Directive in that Member State, the expression "Prospectus Directive" means Directive 2003/71/EC (and amendments thereto, including the 2010 PD Amending

Directive, to the extent implemented in the Relevant Member State), and includes any relevant implementing measure in the Relevant Member State and the expression "2010 PD Amending Directive" means Directive 2010/73/EU.

The notes may not be offered or sold by means of any document other than (i) in circumstances which do not constitute an offer to the public within the meaning of the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32, Laws of Hong Kong), or (ii) to "professional investors" within the meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571, Laws of Hong Kong) and any rules made thereunder, or (iii) in other circumstances which do not result in the document being a "prospectus" within the meaning of the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32, Laws of Hong Kong), and no advertisement, invitation or document relating to the notes may be issued or may be in the possession of any person for the purpose of issue (in each case whether in Hong Kong or elsewhere), which is directed at, or the contents of which are likely to be accessed or read by, the public in Hong Kong (except if permitted to do so under the laws of Hong Kong) other than with respect to notes which are or are intended to be disposed of only to persons outside Hong Kong or only to "professional investors" within the meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571, Laws of Hong Kong) and any rules made thereunder.

This prospectus supplement has not been registered as a prospectus with the Monetary Authority of Singapore. Accordingly, this prospectus supplement and any other document or material in connection with the offer or sale, or invitation for subscription or purchase, of the notes may not be circulated or distributed, nor may the notes be offered or sold, or be made the subject of an invitation for subscription or purchase, whether directly or indirectly, to persons in Singapore other than (i) to an institutional investor under Section 274 of the Securities and Futures Act, Chapter 289 of Singapore (the "SFA"), (ii) to a relevant person pursuant to Section 275(1) of the SFA, or any person pursuant to Section 275(1A), and in accordance with the conditions specified in Section 275, of the SFA or (iii) otherwise pursuant to, and in accordance with the conditions of, any other applicable provision of the SFA. Where the notes are subscribed or purchased under Section 275 of the SFA by a relevant person which is: (a) a corporation (which is not an accredited investor (as defined in Section 4A of the SFA)) the sole business of which is to hold investments and the entire share capital of which is owned by one or more individuals, each of whom is an accredited investor; or (b) a trust (where the trustee is not an accredited investor) whose sole purpose is to hold investments and each beneficiary of the trust is an individual who is an accredited investor, shares, debentures and units of shares and debentures of that corporation or the beneficiaries' rights and interest (howsoever described) in that trust shall not be transferred within six months after that corporation or that trust has acquired the notes pursuant to an offer made under Section 275 of the SFA except: (1) to an institutional investor for corporations, under Section 274 of the SFA or to a relevant person defined in Section 275(2) of the SFA, or to any person pursuant to Section 275(1A) or an offer that is made on terms that such shares, debentures and units of shares and debentures of that corporation or such rights and interest in that trust are acquired at a consideration of not less than S\$200,000 (or its equivalent in a foreign currency) for each transaction, whether such amount is to be paid for in cash or by exchange of securities or other assets, in accordance with the conditions specified in Section 275 of the SFA; (2) where no consideration is or will be given for the transfer; (3) where the transfer is by operation of law; or (4) pursuant to Section 276(7) of the SFA.

The securities have not been and will not be registered under the Financial Instruments and Exchange Law of Japan (the Law No. 25 of 1948, as amended the "FIEL") and each underwriter has agreed that it will not offer or sell any securities, directly or indirectly, in Japan or to, or for the benefit of, any resident of Japan (which term as used herein means any person resident in Japan, including any corporation or other entity organized under the laws of Japan), or to others for re-offering or resale, directly or indirectly, in Japan or to a resident of Japan, except pursuant to an exemption from the registration requirements of, and otherwise in compliance with, the FIEL and any other applicable laws, regulations and ministerial guidelines of Japan.

The notes are not offered, sold or advertised, directly or indirectly, in, into or from Switzerland on the basis of a public offering and will not be listed on the SIX Swiss Exchange or any other offering or regulated trading facility in Switzerland. Accordingly, neither this prospectus supplement nor any accompanying prospectus or other marketing material constitute a prospectus as defined in article 652a or article 1156 of the Swiss Code of Obligations or a listing prospectus as defined in article 32 of the Listing Rules of the SIX Swiss Exchange or any other regulated trading facility in Switzerland. Any resales of the notes by the underwriters thereof may only be undertaken on a private basis to selected individual investors in compliance with Swiss law. This prospectus supplement and accompanying prospectus may not be copied, reproduced, distributed or passed on to others or otherwise made available in Switzerland without our prior written consent. By accepting this prospectus supplement and accompanying prospectus or by subscribing to the notes, investors are deemed to have acknowledged and agreed to abide by these restrictions. Investors are advised to consult with their financial, legal or tax advisers before investing in the notes.

The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. estimates that its share of the total offering expenses, excluding underwriting discounts and commissions, will be approximately \$455,000.

The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. has agreed to indemnify the underwriter against certain liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act of 1933.

The underwriters and their respective affiliates are full service financial institutions engaged in various activities, which may include securities trading, commercial and investment banking, financial advisory, investment management, investment research, principal investment, hedging, financing and brokerage activities. Certain of the underwriters and their respective affiliates have, from time to time, performed, and may in the future perform, various financial advisory and investment banking services for The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. or its affiliates, for which they received or will receive customary fees and expenses. Goldman, Sachs & Co., the lead underwriter, is an affiliate of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. Please see "Plan of Distribution — Conflicts of Interest" on page 137 of the accompanying prospectus.

In the ordinary course of their various business activities, the underwriters and their respective affiliates may make or hold a broad array of investments and actively trade debt and equity securities (or related derivative securities) and financial instruments (including bank loans) for their own account and for the accounts of their customers and such investment and securities activities may involve securities and/or instruments of the issuer. The underwriters and their respective affiliates may also make investment recommendations and/or publish or express independent research views in respect of such securities or instruments and may at any time hold, or recommend to clients that they acquire, long and/or short positions in such securities and instruments. Such investment and securities activities may involve securities and instruments of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.

\$3,000,000,000

The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.

4.000% Notes due 2024



Goldman, Sachs & Co.

ABN AMRO ANZ Investment Bank Banca IMI BB&T Capital Markets BMO Capital Markets BNY Mellon Capital Markets, LLC Citigroup Credit Agricole Securities (USA) Inc. **Fifth Third Securities** Lloyds Securities Inc. Mizuho Securities USA Inc. **PNC Capital Markets LLC RBC Capital Markets** Santander **SMBC Nikko Standard Chartered Bank SunTrust Robinson Humphrey US Bancorp Drexel Hamilton** Mischler Financial Group, Inc.

Ramirez & Co., Inc. The Williams Capital Group, L.P.

As filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on September 19, 2011

Registration Statement No. 333-

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM S-3

REGISTRATION STATEMENT UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933

THE GOLDMAN SACHS GROUP, INC.

(Exact name of Registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware

(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization) 13-4019460

(I.R.S. Employer Identification Number)

200 West Street New York, NY 10282 (212) 902-1000

(Address, including zip code, and telephone number, including area code, of Registrant's principal executive offices)

GOLDMAN SACHS CAPITAL I
GOLDMAN SACHS CAPITAL II
GOLDMAN SACHS CAPITAL III
GOLDMAN SACHS CAPITAL IV
GOLDMAN SACHS CAPITAL V
GOLDMAN SACHS CAPITAL VI
GS FINANCE CORP.

(Exact name of each Registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware

(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization) 20-6109925, 20-6109939, 20-6109956, 20-6109972, 34-2036412, 34-2036414, 26-0785112 (I.R.S. Employer Identification Number)

c/o The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. 200 West Street New York, NY 10282 (212) 902-1000

(Address, including zip code, and telephone number, including area code, of each Registrant's principal executive offices)

Kenneth L. Josselyn The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. 200 West Street New York, New York 10282 (212) 902-1000

(Name, address, including zip code, and telephone number, including area code, of agent for service)

Copies to:
David B. Harms
Andrew D. Soussloff
Sullivan & Cromwell LLP
125 Broad Street
New York, New York 10004
(212) 558-4000

Copies to:
William R. Massey
Norman D. Slonaker
Sidley Austin LLP
787 Seventh Avenue
New York, New York 10019
(212) 839-5300

Approximate date of commencement of proposed sale to the public: From time to time after the effective date of this registration statement.

Table of Contents If the only securities being registered on this form are being offered pursuant to dividend or interest reinvestment plans, please check the following If any of the securities being registered on this form are to be offered on a delayed or continuous basis pursuant to Rule 415 under the Securities Act of 1933, other than securities offered only in connection with dividend or interest reinvestment plans, check the following box. If this Form is filed to register additional securities for an offering pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act, please check the following box and list the Securities Act registration statement number of the earlier effective registration statement for the same offering. □ If this Form is a post-effective amendment filed pursuant to Rule 462(c) under the Securities Act, check the following box and list the Securities Act registration statement number of the earlier effective registration statement for the same offering. If this Form is a registration statement pursuant to General Instruction I.D. or a post-effective amendment thereto that shall become effective upon filing If this Form is a post-effective amendment to a registration statement filed pursuant to General Instruction I.D. filed to register additional securities or additional classes of securities pursuant to Rule 413(b) under the Securities Act, check the following box. □ Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting company. See the definitions of "large accelerated filer," "accelerated filer" and "smaller reporting company" in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. Large accelerated filer Accelerated filer □

Smaller reporting company □

Non-accelerated filer

(Do not check if a smaller reporting company)

CALCULATION OF REGISTRATION FEE

	A	
	Amount to be registered/ Proposed maximum offering	
Title of each class of	price per unit/	Amount of
securities to be registered	Proposed maximum offering price	registration fee
Debt Securities of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	1 Topocou maximum onormy prioc	registration rec
Warrants of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.		
Purchase Contracts of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.		
Prepaid Purchase Contracts of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.		
issued under the Senior Debt Indenture dated as of July 16, 2008		
Units of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.(4)		
Preferred Stock of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.		
Depositary Shares of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.(5)		
Capital Securities of		
Goldman Sachs Capital I,		
Goldman Sachs Capital II,		
Goldman Sachs Capital III,		
Goldman Sachs Capital IV,		
Goldman Sachs Capital V and		
Goldman Sachs Capital VI	(1)(2)	\$2,789,481(1)(2)(3)
(collectively, the "Issuer Trusts")		
Debt Securities of GS Finance Corp.		
Warrants of GS Finance Corp.		
Units of GS Finance Corp.(6)		
The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. Guarantees with respect to Capital		
Securities or securities of other issuers(7)		
The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. Guarantees with respect to deposit		
obligations of Goldman Sachs Bank USA or its successor or any		
other banking subsidiary of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.(8)		
The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. Guarantees with respect to notes		
and deposit notes of Goldman Sachs Bank USA or its successor		
or any other banking subsidiary of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. (9)		
Common Stock of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., par value \$0.01		
per share		

- (1) An unspecified aggregate initial offering price or number of the securities of each identified class is being registered and may from time to time be offered at unspecified prices. Separate consideration may or may not be received for securities that are issuable on exercise, conversion or exchange of other securities or that are issued in units or represented by depositary shares.
- (2) This Registration Statement also includes an indeterminate amount of securities of the classes specified in the table above that may be reoffered and resold on an ongoing basis after their initial sale in market-making transactions by affiliates of the Registrants. These securities consist of an indeterminate amount of such securities that are initially being registered, and will initially be offered and sold, under this Registration Statement and an indeterminate amount of such securities that were initially registered, and were initially offered and sold, under registration statements previously filed by the Registrants. All such market-making reoffers and resales of these securities that are made pursuant to a registration statement after the effectiveness of this Registration Statement are being made solely pursuant to this Registration Statement. Pursuant to Rule 457(q) under the Securities Act, no separate registration fee will be paid with respect to any of such securities that may be reoffered or resold after their initial sale in market-making transactions.
- (3) Pursuant to Rules 456(b) and 457(r) under the Securities Act, The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. is deferring payment of the filing fees relating to the securities that are registered and available for sale under this Registration Statement, except for \$2,789,481 of filing fees previously paid with respect to \$24,026,539,000 in aggregate initial offering price of securities that were registered on a previously filed registration statement but not sold and are being carried forward to this Registration Statement as described in the Note below. The filing fees specified above have been paid in advance of any future offerings of \$24,026,539,000 in aggregate initial offering price of securities registered under this Registration Statement.

- (4) Each unit of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. will be issued under a unit agreement or indenture and will represent an interest in one or more debt securities, warrants, purchase contracts, shares of preferred stock, depositary shares or common stock of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and capital securities of the Issuer Trusts, as well as debt or equity securities of third parties, in any combination, which may or may not be separable from one another.
- (5) Each depositary share of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. will be issued under a deposit agreement, will represent an interest in a fractional share or multiple shares of preferred stock of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and will be evidenced by a depositary receipt.
- (6) Each unit of GS Finance Corp. will be issued under a unit agreement or indenture and will represent an interest in (i) one or more debt securities and warrants of GS Finance Corp. or (ii) any of the foregoing and debt or equity securities of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., which may or may not be separable from one another.
- (7) The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. is also registering the guarantees and other obligations that it may have with respect to capital securities to be issued by any of the Issuer Trusts, or with respect to securities to be issued by GS Finance Corp. or similar securities that may be issued by similar entities formed in the future. Pursuant to Rule 457(n) under the Securities Act, no separate registration fee will be paid in respect of any such guarantees or any other obligations.
- (8) The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. is also registering guarantees and other obligations that it may have with respect to certificates of deposit issued or to be issued at any time and from time to time in the past or the future by Goldman Sachs Bank USA, a New York State-chartered bank and a banking subsidiary of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. ("GS Bank"), or by any successor to GS Bank or by any other banking subsidiary of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., in each case whether now or hereafter formed. No separate registration fee will be paid in respect of any such guarantees or other obligations.
- (9) The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. is also registering guarantees and other obligations that it may have with respect to notes and deposit notes to be issued at any time and from time to time by GS Bank, or by any successor to GS Bank or by any other banking subsidiary of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., in each case whether now or hereafter formed. No separate registration fee will be paid in respect of any such guarantee or other obligations.

Note: Pursuant to Rule 415(a)(6) under the Securities Act, the Registrants are carrying forward to this Registration Statement \$24,026,539,000 aggregate initial offering price of securities that were previously registered on Registration Statement No. 333-154173 of the Registrants and filing fees of \$2,789,481 that were previously paid in connection with those securities.

Explanatory Note

The four prospectuses contained herein relate to the following:

- with respect to the first prospectus, the initial offering of debt securities, warrants, purchase contracts, units, preferred stock and depositary shares (or securities convertible into common stock) of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and capital securities of the Issuer Trusts (including guarantees with respect thereto by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.) on a continuous or delayed basis, at unspecified aggregate initial public offering prices;
- with respect to the second prospectus, the initial offering of debt securities, warrants and units of GS Finance Corp. (including guarantees thereof by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.) on a continuous or delayed basis, at unspecified aggregate initial public offering prices;
- with respect to the third prospectus, the initial offering of guarantees by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. of certificates of deposit issued or to be
 issued at any time and from time to time in the past or in the future by Goldman Sachs Bank USA, or by any successor to Goldman Sachs Bank
 USA or by any other banking subsidiary of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., in each case whether now or hereafter formed, on a continuous or
 delayed basis, at unspecified aggregate initial public offering prices of the certificates of deposit covered by such guarantees;
- with respect to the fourth prospectus, the initial offering of guarantees by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. of notes and deposit notes issued or
 to be issued at any time and from time to time in the past or in the future by Goldman Sachs Bank USA, or by any successor to Goldman
 Sachs Bank USA or by any other banking subsidiary of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., in each case whether now or hereafter formed, on a
 continuous or delayed basis, at unspecified aggregate initial public offering prices of the notes or deposit notes covered by such guarantees;
 and
- with respect to all four prospectuses, market-making transactions that may occur on a continuous or delayed basis in (1) the securities described above after they are initially offered and sold and (2) in securities of one or more of the same classes that were initially registered under registration statements previously filed by the Registrants and were initially offered and sold prior to the date of the four prospectuses (but are now registered hereunder with respect to ongoing market-making transactions).

When the applicable prospectus is delivered to an investor or otherwise applies with respect to an initial offering described above, the investor will be informed of that fact in the confirmation of sale. If the investor is not so informed in the confirmation of sale, then the applicable prospectus is being delivered or otherwise applies with respect to a market-making transaction.



The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.

Debt Securities
Warrants
Purchase Contracts
Units
Preferred Stock
Depositary Shares
of
The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.

Capital Securities of
Goldman Sachs Capital I
Goldman Sachs Capital II
Goldman Sachs Capital III
Goldman Sachs Capital IV
Goldman Sachs Capital V
Goldman Sachs Capital V
Fully and unconditionally
guaranteed as described herein by
The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.

The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. from time to time may offer to sell debt securities, warrants, purchase contracts and preferred stock, either separately or represented by depositary shares, as well as units comprised of these securities or securities of third parties. The debt securities, warrants, purchase contracts and preferred stock may be convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for common or preferred stock or other securities of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. or debt or equity securities of one or more other entities. The common stock of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. is listed on the New York Stock Exchange and trades under the ticker symbol "GS".

Goldman Sachs Capital I, Goldman Sachs Capital II, Goldman Sachs Capital III, Goldman Sachs Capital IV, Goldman Sachs Capital V and Goldman Sachs Capital VI (each trust is referred to as an "Issuer Trust" and together as the "Issuer Trusts") may offer and sell capital securities, in one or more offerings. Capital securities are preferred securities representing preferred beneficial interests in the applicable Issuer Trust.

The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. may offer and sell these securities to or through one or more underwriters, dealers and agents, including the firm named below, or directly to purchasers, on a continuous or delayed basis.

This prospectus describes some of the general terms that may apply to these securities and the general manner in which they may be offered. The specific terms of any securities to be offered, and the specific manner in which they may be offered, will be described in the applicable prospectus supplement to this prospectus.

These securities are not bank deposits and are not insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or any other governmental agency, nor are they obligations of, or guaranteed by, a bank.

Neither the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission nor any other regulatory body has approved or disapproved of these securities or passed upon the accuracy or adequacy of this prospectus. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

Goldman Sachs may use this prospectus in the initial sale of these securities. In addition, Goldman, Sachs & Co. or any other affiliate of Goldman Sachs may use this prospectus in a market-making transaction in any of these or similar securities after its initial sale. *Unless Goldman Sachs or its* agent informs the purchaser otherwise in the confirmation of sale, this prospectus is being used in a market-making transaction.

Goldman, Sachs & Co.

Prospectus dated September 19, 2011.

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. is required to file annual, quarterly and current reports, proxy statements and other information with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC"). You may read and copy any documents filed by us at the SEC's public reference room at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further information on the public reference room. Our filings with the SEC are also available to the public through the SEC's Internet site at http://www.sec.gov and through the New York Stock Exchange, 20 Broad Street, New York, New York 10005, on which our common stock is listed.

We have filed a registration statement on Form S-3 with the SEC relating to the securities covered by this prospectus. This prospectus is a part of the registration statement and does not contain all of the information in the registration statement. Whenever a reference is made in this prospectus to a contract or other document of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., please be aware that the reference is only a summary and that you should refer to the exhibits that are a part of the registration statement for a copy of the applicable contract or other document. You may review a copy of the registration statement at the SEC's public reference room in Washington, D.C., as well as through the SEC's Internet site.

The SEC's rules allow us to "incorporate by reference" information into this prospectus. This means that we can disclose important information to you by referring you to any of the SEC filings referenced in the list below. Any information referred to in this way in this prospectus or the applicable prospectus supplement is considered part of this prospectus from the date we file that document. Any reports filed by us with the SEC after the date of this prospectus and before the date that the offering of securities by means of this prospectus is terminated will automatically update and, where applicable, supersede any information contained in this prospectus or incorporated by reference in this prospectus.

The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. incorporates by reference into this prospectus the following documents or information filed with the SEC (other than, in each case, documents or information deemed to have been furnished and not filed in accordance with SEC rules):

- (1) Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010 (File No. 001-14965);
- (2) Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2011 (File No. 001-14965);
- (3) Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2011 (File No. 001-14965);
- (4) Current Reports on Form 8-K, dated and filed on January 11, 2011 and January 19, 2011 (Item 8.01 only) (File No. 001-14965);
- (5) Current Report on Form 8-K, dated January 26, 2011 and filed January 28, 2011 (File No. 001-14965);
- (6) Current Report on Form 8-K, dated March 16, 2011 and filed March 18, 2011 (File No. 001-14965);
- (7) Current Reports on Form 8-K dated and filed on March 18, 2011, March 21, 2011, March 22, 2011, March 23, 2011, March 24, 2011, March 25, 2011, March 28, 2011, March 30, 2011, March 31, 2011, April 1, 2011, April 6, 2011, April 8, 2011, April 11, 2011, April 12, 2011, April 13, 2011, April 14, 2011, April 15, 2011, April 19, 2011 (Item 8.01 only), April 26, 2011, April 27, 2011, April 28, 2011, April 29, 2011, May 2, 2011, May 3, 2011, May 4, 2011 and May 5, 2011 (File No. 001-14965);
- (8) Current Report on Form 8-K, dated May 6, 2011 and filed on May 10, 2011 (File No. 001-14965);
- (9) Current Reports on Form 8-K dated and filed on May 9, 2011, May 11, 2011, May 12, 2011, May 16, 2011, May 17, 2011, May 18, 2011, May 19, 2011, May 20, 2011, May 23, 2011, May 25, 2011, May 26, 2011, May 27, 2011, May 31, 2011, June 3, 2011, June 6, 2011,

June 7, 2011, June 8, 2011, June 9, 2011, June 10, 2011, June 13, 2011, June 14, 2011, June 15, 2011 and June 16, 2011 (File No. 001-14965);

- (10) Current Report on Form 8-K, dated June 16, 2011 and filed on June 17, 2011 (File No. 001-14965);
- (11) Current Reports on Form 8-K dated and filed on June 17, 2011, June 21, 2011, June 22, 2011, June 23, 2011, June 28, 2011, June 29, 2011, June 30, 2011, July 1, 2011, July 5, 2011, July 7, 2011, July 8, 2011, July 12, 2011, July 18, 2011, July 19, 2011 (Acc-no: 0001193125-11-191470), July 19, 2011 (Acc-no: 0000950123-11-066365) (Item 8.01 only), July 20, 2011, July 21, 2011, July 25, 2011, July 27, 2011, July 28, 2011, July 29, 2011, August 4, 2001, August 5, 2011, August 8, 2011, August 10, 2011, August 11, 2011, August 15, 2011, August 16, 2011, August 17, 2011, August 18, 2011, August 22, 2011, August 24, 2011, August 25, 2011, August 26, 2011, August 29, 2011, August 31, 2011, September 1, 2011, September 19, 2011, September 14, 2011, September 15, 2011 and September 16, 2011 (File No. 001-14965):
- (12) All documents filed by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. under Section 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Exchange Act") on or after the date of this prospectus and before the termination of the offering of securities under this prospectus; and
- (13) Solely with regard to the securities covered by this prospectus that were initially offered and sold under previously filed registration statements of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. (and, if applicable, the Issuer Trusts) and that from time to time may be reoffered and resold in market-making transactions under this prospectus, the information in the prospectus supplements relating to those securities that were previously filed by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. (and, if applicable, the Issuer Trusts) in connection with their initial offer and sale (except to the extent that any such information has been modified or superseded by other information included or incorporated by reference in this prospectus).

We will provide without charge to each person, including any beneficial owner, to whom this prospectus is delivered, upon his or her written or oral request, a copy of any or all documents referred to above which have been or may be incorporated by reference into this prospectus excluding exhibits to those documents unless they are specifically incorporated by reference into those documents. You can request those documents from Investor Relations, 200 West Street, New York, New York 10282, telephone (212) 902-0300.

No separate financial statements of any Issuer Trust are included in this prospectus. The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and the Issuer Trusts do not consider that such financial statements would be material to holders of the capital securities because each Issuer Trust is a special purpose entity, has no operating history or independent operations and is not engaged in and does not propose to engage in any activity other than holding as trust assets the corresponding subordinated debt securities (as defined under the heading "The Issuer Trusts") of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and issuing the trust securities. Furthermore, taken together, The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s obligations under each series of corresponding subordinated debt securities, the subordinated debt indenture under which the corresponding subordinated debt securities will be issued, the related trust agreement, the related expense agreement and the related guarantee provide, in the aggregate, a full, irrevocable and unconditional guarantee of payments of distributions and other amounts due on the related capital securities of an Issuer Trust. For a more detailed discussion, see "The Issuer Trusts", "Description of Capital Securities and Related Instruments — Corresponding Subordinated Debt Securities" and "Description of Capital Securities and Related Instruments" below. In addition, The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. does not expect any of the Issuer Trusts to file reports under the Exchange Act with the SEC.

When we refer to "Goldman Sachs" or the "Firm" in this prospectus, we mean The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., together with its consolidated subsidiaries and affiliates. References to "The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.", "we", "our" or "us" refer only to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and not to its consolidated subsidiaries.

PROSPECTUS SUMMARY

This summary highlights information contained elsewhere in this prospectus or incorporated by reference into this prospectus as further described above under "Available Information". This summary does not contain all the information that you should consider before investing in the securities being offered by this prospectus. You should carefully read the entire prospectus, the documents incorporated by reference into this prospectus, the applicable prospectus supplement, if applicable, and the prospectus supplement relating to the securities that you propose to buy, especially any description of investment risks that we may include in the applicable prospectus supplement.

The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.

The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. is a leading global financial services firm providing investment banking, securities and investment management services to a substantial and diversified client base that includes corporations, financial institutions, governments and high-net-worth individuals. Founded in 1869, the firm is headquartered in New York and maintains offices in all major financial centers around the world. Our headquarters are located at 200 West Street, New York, New York 10282, telephone (212) 902-1000. The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. is a bank holding company and a financial holding company regulated by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System (the "Federal Reserve Board"). Our U.S. depository institution subsidiary, Goldman Sachs Bank USA, is a New York State-chartered bank.

The Issuer Trusts

Each Issuer Trust is a Delaware statutory business trust created solely for the purpose of issuing capital securities to investors and trust common securities to us and investing the proceeds in an equivalent amount of our subordinated debt securities. The corresponding subordinated debt securities will be the sole assets of each Issuer Trust.

The Securities We Are Offering

We may offer any of the following securities from time to time:

- · debt securities:
- · warrants:
- · purchase contracts;
- units, comprised of one or more debt securities, warrants, purchase contracts, shares of preferred stock, depositary shares and capital
 securities described in this prospectus, as well as debt or equity securities of third parties, in any combination; and
- · preferred stock, either directly or represented by depositary shares.

In addition, the Issuer Trusts may offer capital securities, and we may offer our guarantees with respect to such capital securities, from time to time.

When we use the term "security" or "securities" in this prospectus, we mean any of the securities we or the Issuer Trusts may offer with this prospectus, unless we say otherwise. This prospectus, including the following summary, describes the general terms that may apply to the securities; the specific terms of any particular securities that we or the Issuer Trusts may offer will be described in the applicable prospectus supplement to this prospectus and may differ from the general terms described herein.

Debt Securities

The debt securities may be senior or subordinated in right of payment. For any particular debt securities we offer, the applicable prospectus supplement will describe the title and series of the debt securities, the aggregate principal amount and the original issue price; the ranking, whether senior or subordinated; the stated maturity; the redemption terms, if any; the rate or manner of calculating the rate and the payment dates for interest, if any; the amount or manner of calculating the amount payable at maturity and whether that amount may be paid by delivering cash, securities or other

property; the terms on which the debt securities may be convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for common stock or other securities of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. or any other entity, if any; and any other specific terms. We will issue the senior and subordinated debt securities under separate debt indentures (as described in "Description of Debt Securities We May Offer — The Senior Debt Indentures and the Subordinated Debt Indenture"), each between us and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee.

Warrants

We may offer two types of warrants:

- · warrants to purchase our debt securities; and
- warrants to purchase or sell, or whose cash value is determined by reference to the performance, level or value of, one or more of the following:
 - securities of one or more issuers, including our common or preferred stock or other securities described in this prospectus or debt or equity securities of third parties;
 - one or more currencies;
 - one or more commodities;
 - any other financial, economic or other measure or instrument, including the occurrence or non-occurrence of any event or circumstance;
 - one or more indices; and/or
 - one or more baskets of the items described above.

For any particular warrants we offer, the applicable prospectus supplement will describe the underlying property; the expiration date; the exercise price or the manner of determining the exercise price; the amount and kind, or the manner of determining the amount and kind, of property to be delivered by you or us upon exercise; and any other specific terms. We may issue the warrants under the warrant indenture between us and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee, or under warrant agreements between us and one or more warrant agents.

Purchase Contracts

We may offer purchase contracts for the purchase or sale of, or whose cash value is determined by reference to the performance, level or value of, one or more of the following:

- securities of one or more issuers, including our common or preferred stock or other securities described in this prospectus and debt or
 equity securities of third parties;
- · one or more currencies;
- · one or more commodities;
- any other financial, economic or other measure or instrument, including the occurrence or non-occurrence of any event or circumstance;
- · one or more indices; and/or
- · one or more baskets of the items described above.

For any particular purchase contracts we offer, the applicable prospectus supplement will describe the underlying property; the settlement date; the purchase price or manner of determining the purchase price and whether it must be paid when the purchase contract is issued or at a later date; the amount and kind, or the manner of determining the amount and kind, of property to be delivered at settlement; whether the holder will pledge property to secure the performance of any obligations the holder may have under the purchase contract; and any other specific terms. We may issue purchase contracts under a debt indenture described above or a unit agreement described below.

Units

We may offer units, comprised of one or more debt securities, warrants, purchase contracts, shares of preferred stock, depositary shares and capital securities described in this prospectus, as well as debt or equity securities of third parties, in any combination. For any particular units we offer, the applicable prospectus supplement will describe the particular securities comprising each unit; the terms on which those securities will be separable, if any; whether the holder will pledge property to secure the performance of any obligations the holder may have under the unit; and any other specific terms of the units. We may issue the units under unit agreements between us and one or more unit agents.

Preferred Stock and Depositary Shares

We may offer our preferred stock, par value \$0.01 per share, in one or more series. For any particular series we offer, the applicable prospectus supplement will describe the specific designation; the aggregate number of shares offered; the rate and periods, or manner of calculating the rate and periods, for dividends, if any; the stated value and liquidation preference amount, if any; the voting rights, if any; the terms on which the series will be convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for our common stock, preferred stock of another series or other securities described in this prospectus, debt or equity securities of third parties or property, if any; the redemption terms, if any, and any other specific terms. We may also offer depositary shares, each of which would represent an interest in a fractional share or multiple shares of our preferred stock. We may issue the depositary shares under deposit agreements between us and one or more depositaries.

Capital Securities

The Issuer Trusts may offer and sell capital securities, in one or more offerings. Capital securities represent preferred beneficial interests in the Issuer Trust that issues them. Each Issuer Trust will issue its capital securities under a trust agreement between it and The Bank of New York Mellon and others as Issuer Trust trustees.

Form of Securities

We will issue the securities in book-entry form through one or more depositaries, such as The Depository Trust Company, Euroclear or Clearstream, named in the applicable prospectus supplement. Each sale of a security in book-entry form will settle in immediately available funds through the applicable depositary, unless otherwise stated. We will issue the securities only in registered form, without coupons, although we may issue the securities in bearer form if so specified in the applicable prospectus supplement.

Payment Currencies

Amounts payable in respect of the securities, including the original issue price, will be payable in U.S. dollars, unless the applicable prospectus supplement says otherwise.

Listing

If any securities are to be listed or quoted on a securities exchange or quotation system, the applicable prospectus supplement will say so.

Use of Proceeds

We intend to use the net proceeds from the sales of the securities to provide additional funds for our operations and for other general corporate purposes.

Each Issuer Trust will use the proceeds from any offering of capital securities to purchase the corresponding subordinated debt securities issued by us. We expect to use the net proceeds from the sale of the subordinated debt securities to the Issuer Trusts to provide additional funds for our operations and for other general corporate purposes.

Manner of Offering

The securities will be offered in connection with their initial issuance or in market-making transactions by our affiliates after initial issuance. Those offered in market-making transactions may be securities that we or the Issuer Trusts, as applicable, will not issue until after the date of this prospectus as well as securities that we have previously issued.

When we or the Issuer Trusts, as applicable, issue new securities, we or the Issuer Trusts may offer them for sale to or through underwriters, dealers and agents, including our affiliates, or directly to purchasers. The applicable prospectus supplement will include any required information about the firms we or the Issuer Trusts use and the discounts or commissions we may pay them for their services.

Our affiliates that we refer to above may include, among others, Goldman, Sachs & Co., for offers and sales in the United States, and Goldman Sachs International, Goldman Sachs (Asia) L.L.C. and Goldman Sachs (Singapore) Pte. for offers and sales outside the United States.

Conflicts of Interest

Goldman, Sachs & Co. is an affiliate of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and, as such, will have a "conflict of interest" in any offering of the securities within the meaning of Financial Industry Regulatory Authority, Inc. (FINRA) Rule 5121. Consequently, any offering of the securities will be conducted in compliance with the provisions of Rule 5121. Goldman, Sachs & Co. will not be permitted to sell securities in any offering to an account over which it exercises discretionary authority without the prior specific written approval of the account holder.

Considerations Relating to the Securities

There are a number of considerations that you should take into account prior to investing in the securities. Please read "Considerations Relating to Floating Rate Debt Securities", "Considerations Relating to Securities Issued in Bearer Form", "Considerations Relating to Indexed Securities", "Considerations Relating to Securities Denominated or Payable in or Linked to a Non-U.S. Dollar Currency" and "Considerations Relating to Capital Securities" for more information.

For a discussion of important business and financial risks relating to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., please see "Risk Factors" in Part I, Item 1A of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010, which is incorporated in this prospectus by reference (and in any of our annual or quarterly reports for a subsequent fiscal period that are so incorporated).

USE OF PROCEEDS

We intend to use the net proceeds from the sales of the securities to provide additional funds for our operations and for other general corporate purposes.

Each Issuer Trust will use the proceeds from any offering of capital securities to purchase corresponding subordinated debt securities issued by us. We expect to use the net proceeds from the sale of the subordinated debt securities to the Issuer Trusts to provide additional funds for our operations and for other general corporate purposes.

DESCRIPTION OF DEBT SECURITIES WE MAY OFFER

Please note that in this section entitled "Description of Debt Securities We May Offer", references to "The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.", "we", "our" and "us" refer only to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and not to its consolidated subsidiaries. Also, in this section, references to "holders" mean those who own debt securities registered in their own names, on the books that we or the trustee maintain for this purpose, and not those who own beneficial interests in debt securities registered in street name or in debt securities issued in book-entry form through one or more depositaries. Owners of beneficial interests in the debt securities should read the section below entitled "Legal Ownership and Book-Entry Issuance".

Debt Securities May Be Senior or Subordinated

We may issue senior or subordinated debt securities. Neither the senior debt securities nor the subordinated debt securities will be secured by any property or assets of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. or its subsidiaries. Thus, by owning a debt security, you are one of our unsecured creditors.

The senior debt securities and, in the case of senior debt securities in bearer form, any related interest coupons, will constitute part of our senior debt, will be issued under one of our senior debt indentures (as described in "— The Senior Debt Indentures and the Subordinated Debt Indenture" below) and will rank equally with all of our other unsecured and unsubordinated debt.

The subordinated debt securities and, in the case of subordinated debt securities in bearer form, any related interest coupons, will constitute part of our subordinated debt, will be issued under our subordinated debt indenture described below and will be subordinate in right of payment to all of our "senior indebtedness", as defined in the subordinated debt indenture. The prospectus supplement for any series of subordinated debt securities or the information incorporated in this prospectus by reference will indicate the approximate amount of senior indebtedness outstanding as of the end of our most recent fiscal quarter.

None of the indentures limit our ability to incur additional senior indebtedness.

When we refer to "debt securities" in this prospectus, we mean both the senior debt securities and the subordinated debt securities.

The Senior Debt Indentures and the Subordinated Debt Indenture

The senior debt securities are governed by documents called the "senior debt indentures" (the Indenture dated as of May 19, 1999 between us and The Bank of New York Mellon (formerly known as The Bank of New York), as trustee, which we refer to as the "1999 indenture", and the Senior Debt Indenture dated as of July 16, 2008 between us and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee, which we refer to as the "2008 indenture"), and the subordinated debt securities are governed by the "subordinated debt indenture" (the Subordinated Debt Indenture dated as of February 20, 2004 between us and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee, and together with the senior debt indentures, the "debt indentures"). The debt indentures are substantially identical, except for our covenant described below under "— Restriction on Liens", which is included only in the two senior debt indentures, the provisions relating to subordination, which are included only in the subordinated debt indenture, and certain provisions described below under "Modification of the Debt Indentures and Waiver of Covenants", which vary substantially between the two senior debt indentures.

The trustee under each debt indenture has two main roles:

- First, the trustee can enforce your rights against us if we default. There are some limitations on the extent to which the trustee acts on your behalf, which we describe below under "— Default, Remedies and Waiver of Default".
- · Second, the trustee performs administrative duties for us, such as sending you interest payments and notices.

See "— Our Relationship With the Trustee" below for more information about the trustee.

When we refer to the "indenture", the "debt indenture" or the "trustee" with respect to any debt securities, we mean the debt indenture under which those debt securities are issued and the trustee under that debt indenture.

We May Issue Many Debt Securities or Series of Debt Securities

We may issue many distinct debt securities or series of debt securities under any of our three debt indentures. This section summarizes terms of the debt securities that apply generally to all debt securities and series of debt securities. The provisions of each debt indenture allow us not only to issue debt securities with terms different from those of debt securities previously issued under that debt indenture, but also to "reopen" previously issued debt securities and issue additional debt securities as the same series, with the same CUSIP number, stated maturity, interest payment dates, if any, and other terms, except for the date of issuance and issue price. We will describe the specific terms of your debt securities in the applicable prospectus supplement accompanying this prospectus. Those terms may vary from the terms described here.

As you read this section, please remember that the specific terms of your debt security as described in your prospectus supplement will supplement and, if applicable, may modify or replace the general terms described in this section. If there are any differences between your prospectus supplement and this prospectus, your prospectus supplement will control. Thus, the statements we make in this section may not apply to your debt security.

When we refer to "debt securities" or a "series of debt securities", we mean, respectively, debt securities or a series of debt securities issued under the applicable debt indenture. When we refer to your prospectus supplement, we mean the prospectus supplement describing the specific terms of the debt security you purchase. The terms used in your prospectus supplement will have the meanings described in this prospectus, unless otherwise specified.

Amounts That We May Issue

None of the debt indentures limits the aggregate amount of debt securities that we may issue or the number of series or the aggregate amount of any particular series of debt securities. We may issue debt securities and other securities at any time without your consent and without notifying you.

The debt indentures and the debt securities do not limit our ability to incur other indebtedness or to issue other securities. Also, we are not subject to financial or similar restrictions by the terms of the debt securities, except as described below under "— Restriction on Liens".

Principal Amount, Stated Maturity and Maturity

Unless otherwise stated, the principal amount of a debt security means the principal amount payable at its stated maturity, unless such amount is not determinable, in which case the principal amount of a debt security is its face amount. Any debt securities owned by us or any of our affiliates are not deemed to be outstanding.

The term "stated maturity" with respect to any debt security means the day on which the principal amount of your debt security is scheduled to become due. The principal of your debt security may become due sooner, by reason of redemption or acceleration after a default or otherwise in accordance with the terms of your debt security. The day on which the principal of your debt security actually becomes due, whether at the stated maturity or otherwise, is called the "maturity" of the principal.

We also use the terms "stated maturity" and "maturity" to refer to the days when other payments become due. For example, we may refer to a regular interest payment date when an installment of interest is scheduled to become due as the "stated maturity" of that installment. When we refer to the

"stated maturity" or the "maturity" of a debt security without specifying a particular payment, we mean the stated maturity or maturity, as the case may be, of the principal.

We Are a Holding Company

Because our assets consist principally of interests in the subsidiaries through which we conduct our businesses, our right to participate as an equity holder in any distribution of assets of any of our subsidiaries upon the subsidiary's liquidation or otherwise, and thus the ability of our security holders to benefit from the distribution, is junior to creditors of the subsidiary, except to the extent that any claims we may have as a creditor of the subsidiary are recognized. Many of our subsidiaries, including our broker-dealer, bank and insurance subsidiaries, are subject to laws that restrict dividend payments or authorize regulatory bodies to block or reduce the flow of funds from those subsidiaries to us. Restrictions or regulatory action of that kind could impede access to funds that we need to make payments on our obligations, including debt obligations. Because some of our subsidiaries, including Goldman, Sachs & Co., are partnerships in which we are a general partner or the sole limited partner, we may be liable for their obligations. We also guarantee many of the obligations of our subsidiaries. Any liability we may have for our subsidiaries' obligations could reduce our assets that are available to satisfy our direct creditors, including investors in our securities.

This Section Is Only a Summary

The debt indentures and their associated documents contain the full legal text of the matters described in this section and in your prospectus supplement. We have filed copies of the debt indentures with the SEC as exhibits to our registration statement, of which this prospectus is a part. See "Available Information" above for information on how to obtain copies of them.

This section and your prospectus supplement summarize all the material terms of the debt indentures, where applicable, and your debt security. They do not, however, describe every aspect of the debt indentures and your debt security. For example, in this section and your prospectus supplement, we use terms that have been given special meaning in the debt indentures, but we describe the meaning for only the more important of those terms. Your prospectus supplement will have a more detailed description of the specific terms of your debt security.

Governing Law

The debt indentures are, and the debt securities will be, governed by New York law.

Currency of Debt Securities

Amounts that become due and payable on your debt security in cash will be payable in a currency, composite currency, basket of currencies or currency unit or units specified in your prospectus supplement. We refer to this currency, composite currency, basket of currencies or currency unit or units as a "specified currency". The specified currency for your debt security will be U.S. dollars, unless your prospectus supplement states otherwise. Some debt securities may have different specified currencies for principal and interest. You will have to pay for your debt securities by delivering the requisite amount of the specified currency for the principal to Goldman, Sachs & Co. or another firm that we name in your prospectus supplement, unless other arrangements have been made between you and us or you and Goldman, Sachs & Co. We will make payments on your debt securities in the specified currency, except as described below in "— Payment Mechanics for Debt Securities". See "Considerations Relating to Securities Denominated or Payable in or Linked to a Non-U.S. Dollar Currency" below for more information about risks of investing in debt securities of this kind.

Form of Debt Securities

We will issue each debt security in global — *i.e.*, book-entry — form only, unless we specify otherwise in the applicable prospectus supplement. Debt securities in book-entry form will be represented by a global security registered in the name of a depositary, which will be the holder of all

the debt securities represented by the global security. Those who own beneficial interests in a global debt security will do so through participants in the depositary's securities clearing system, and the rights of these indirect owners will be governed solely by the applicable procedures of the depositary and its participants. We describe book-entry securities below under "Legal Ownership and Book-Entry Issuance".

In addition, we will generally issue each debt security in registered form, without coupons, unless we specify otherwise in the applicable prospectus supplement. If we issue a debt security in bearer form, the provisions described below under "Considerations Relating to Securities Issued in Bearer Form" would apply to that security. As we note in that section, some of the features of the debt securities that we describe in this prospectus may not apply to bearer debt securities.

Types of Debt Securities

We may issue any of the three types of senior debt securities or subordinated debt securities described below. A debt security may have elements of each of the three types of debt securities described below. For example, a debt security may bear interest at a fixed rate for some periods and at a floating rate in others. Similarly, a debt security may provide for a payment of principal at maturity linked to an index and also bear interest at a fixed or floating rate.

Fixed Rate Debt Securities

A debt security of this type will bear interest at a fixed rate described in the applicable prospectus supplement. This type includes zero coupon debt securities, which bear no interest and are instead issued at a price lower than the principal amount. See "— Original Issue Discount Debt Securities" below for more information about zero coupon and other original issue discount debt securities.

Each fixed rate debt security, except any zero coupon debt security, will bear interest from its original issue date or from the most recent date to which interest on the debt security has been paid or made available for payment. Interest will accrue on the principal of a fixed rate debt security at the fixed rate per annum stated in the applicable prospectus supplement, until the principal is paid or made available for payment or the debt security is converted or exchanged. Each payment of interest due on an interest payment date or the date of maturity will include interest accrued from and including the last date to which interest has been paid, or made available for payment, or from the issue date if none has been paid or made available for payment, to but excluding the next interest payment date or the maturity. We will compute interest on fixed rate debt securities on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months (30/360 (ISDA) day count convention), unless your prospectus supplement provides that we will compute interest on a different basis. We will pay interest on each interest payment date and at maturity as described below under "— Payment Mechanics for Debt Securities".

If your debt security is a zero coupon debt security, the applicable prospectus supplement may specify the original issue discount and the information necessary to determine the accreted value. The accreted value will be (1) as of any date prior to the stated maturity, an amount equal to the sum of (A) the original issue price of your debt security and (B) the portion of the excess of the principal amount of your debt security over the original issue price that shall have been accreted from the original issue price on a daily basis and compounded annually on a date specified in the applicable prospectus supplement, up to and including the stated maturity, at a rate that will be specified in the applicable prospectus supplement from the original issue date, computed on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day calendar months; and (2) as of any date on or after the stated maturity, the principal amount of your debt security.

Floating Rate Debt Securities

A debt security of this type will bear interest at rates that are determined by reference to an interest rate formula. In some cases, the rates may also be adjusted by adding or subtracting a spread or multiplying by a spread multiplier and may be subject to a minimum rate or a maximum rate. If your debt security is a floating rate debt security, the formula and any adjustments that apply to the interest rate will be specified in your prospectus supplement.

Each floating rate debt security will bear interest from its original issue date or from the most recent date to which interest on the debt security has been paid or made available for payment. Interest will accrue on the principal of a floating rate debt security at a rate per annum determined according to the interest rate formula stated in the applicable prospectus supplement, until the principal is paid or made available for payment. We will pay interest on each interest payment date and at maturity as described below under "— Payment Mechanics for Debt Securities".

Calculation Agent. Calculations relating to floating rate debt securities will be made by the calculation agent, an institution that we appoint as our agent for this purpose. That institution may include any affiliate of ours, such as Goldman, Sachs & Co. The prospectus supplement for a particular floating rate debt security will name the institution that we have appointed to act as the calculation agent for that debt security as of its original issue date. Unless otherwise specified in the applicable prospectus supplement, we have initially appointed The Bank of New York Mellon as calculation agent for all the floating rate debt securities. We may appoint a different institution to serve as calculation agent from time to time after the original issue date of the debt security without your consent and without notifying you of the change. Absent manifest error, all determinations of the calculation agent will be final and binding on you and us, without any liability on the part of the calculation agent.

Calculation of Interest. For each floating rate debt security, the calculation agent will determine, on the corresponding interest calculation or interest determination date, as described in the applicable prospectus supplement, the interest rate that takes effect on each interest reset date. In addition, the calculation agent will calculate the amount of interest that has accrued during each interest period — *i.e.*, the period from and including an interest payment date (or, with respect to the initial interest period, the original issue date) to but excluding the next succeeding interest payment date. For each interest period, the calculation agent will calculate the amount of accrued interest by multiplying the face or other specified amount of the floating rate debt security by an accrued interest factor for the interest period. Unless we specify otherwise in the applicable prospectus supplement, this factor will be equal to the number of days in the applicable interest period divided by 360 (Actual/360 (ISDA) day count convention).

Upon the request of the holder of any floating rate debt security, the calculation agent will provide for that debt security the interest rate then in effect — and, if determined, the interest rate that will become effective on the next interest reset date. The calculation agent's determination of any interest rate, and its calculation of the amount of interest for any interest period, will be final and binding in the absence of manifest error.

All percentages resulting from any calculation relating to any debt security will be rounded upward or downward, as appropriate, to the next higher or lower one hundred-thousandth of a percentage point, e.g., 9.876541% (or .09876541) being rounded down to 9.87654% (or .0987654) and 9.876545% (or .09876545) being rounded up to 9.87655% (or .0987655). All amounts used in or resulting from any calculation relating to a floating rate debt security will be rounded upward or downward, as appropriate, to the nearest cent, in the case of U.S. dollars, or to the nearest corresponding hundredth of a unit, in the case of a currency other than U.S. dollars, with one-half cent or one-half of a corresponding hundredth of a unit or more being rounded upward.

In determining the base rate that applies to a floating rate debt security during a particular interest period, the calculation agent may obtain rate quotes from various banks or dealers active in the relevant market, as described in the applicable prospectus supplement. Those reference banks and dealers may include the calculation agent itself and its affiliates, as well as any underwriter, dealer or agent participating in the distribution of the relevant floating rate debt securities and its affiliates, and they may include affiliates of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.

Indexed Debt Securities

A debt security of this type provides that the principal amount payable at its maturity, and/or the amount of interest payable on an interest payment date, will be determined by reference to:

- · securities of one or more issuers;
- one or more currencies;

- · one or more commodities;
- any other financial, economic or other measure or instrument, including the occurrence or non-occurrence of any event or circumstance;
- one or more indices: and/or
- · one or more baskets of the items described above.

An indexed debt security may provide either for cash settlement or for physical settlement by delivery of the underlying security or another property of the type listed above. An indexed debt security may also provide that the form of settlement may be determined at our option or at the holder's option. Some indexed debt securities may be convertible, exercisable or exchangeable, at our option or the holder's option, into or for securities of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. or an issuer other than The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.

An indexed debt security may bear interest at a fixed or floating rate, if specified in your prospectus supplement. Unless otherwise indicated in your prospectus supplement, indexed debt securities that bear interest at a fixed rate will bear interest as described above under "— Fixed Rate Debt Securities" and indexed debt securities that bear interest at a floating rate will bear interest as described above under "— Floating Rate Debt Securities".

If you purchase an indexed debt security, your prospectus supplement will include information about the relevant index or indices, about how amounts that are to become payable will be determined by reference to the price or value of that index or indices and about the terms on which the security may be settled physically or in cash. Your prospectus supplement will also identify the calculation agent that will calculate the amounts payable with respect to the indexed debt security and will have sole discretion in doing so. The calculation agent may be Goldman, Sachs & Co. or another of our affiliates. See "Considerations Relating to Indexed Securities" for more information about risks of investing in debt securities of this type.

Original Issue Discount Debt Securities

A fixed rate debt security, a floating rate debt security or an indexed debt security may be an original issue discount debt security. A debt security of this type is issued at a price lower than its principal amount and may provide that, upon redemption or acceleration of its maturity, an amount less than its principal amount may be payable. An original issue discount debt security may be a zero coupon debt security. A debt security issued at a discount to its principal may, for U.S. federal income tax purposes, be considered an original issue discount debt security, regardless of the amount payable upon redemption or acceleration of maturity. See "United States Taxation — Taxation of Debt Securities — United States Holders — Original Issue Discount" below for a brief description of the U.S. federal income tax consequences of owning an original issue discount debt security.

Information in Your Prospectus Supplement

Your prospectus supplement will describe the specific terms of your debt security, which will include some or all of the following:

- whether it is a senior debt security or a subordinated debt security and, if it is a senior debt security, under which senior debt indenture it will be issued:
- the aggregate principal amount of your debt security or the debt securities of the same series, as applicable;
- the stated maturity;
- the specified currency or currencies for principal and interest and, if the specified currency is not U.S. dollars, certain other terms relating to your debt security;

- · the issue price at which we originally issue your debt security, expressed as a percentage of the principal amount, and the original issue date;
- · whether your debt security is a fixed rate debt security, a floating rate debt security or an indexed debt security or any combination thereof;
- if your debt security is a fixed rate debt security, a rate per annum at which your debt security will bear interest, if any, and the interest payment dates:
- if your debt security is a floating rate debt security, the interest rate basis; any applicable index currency or index maturity, spread or spread multiplier or initial base rate, maximum rate or minimum rate; the interest reset, determination, calculation and payment dates; the day count convention used to calculate interest payments for any period; the business day convention; and the calculation agent;
- if your debt security is an indexed debt security, the principal amount, if any, we will pay you at maturity, the amount of interest, if any, we will pay you on an interest payment date or the formula we will use to calculate these amounts, if any, and the terms on which your debt security will be exchangeable for or payable in cash, securities or other property;
- if your debt security may be converted into or exercised or exchanged for common stock or preferred stock or other securities of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. or debt or equity securities of one or more third parties, the terms on which conversion, exercise or exchange may occur, including whether conversion, exercise or exchange is mandatory, at the option of the holder or at our option, the period during which conversion, exercise or exchange may occur, the initial conversion, exercise or exchange price or rate and the circumstances or manner in which the amount of common stock or preferred stock or other securities issuable upon conversion, exercise or exchange may be adjusted;
- · if your debt security is also an original issue discount debt security, the yield to maturity;
- if applicable, the circumstances under which your debt security may be redeemed at our option or repaid at the holder's option before the stated maturity, including any redemption commencement date, repayment date(s), redemption price(s) and redemption period(s);
- · the authorized denominations, if other than \$1,000 and integral multiples of \$1,000 in excess thereof;
- the depositary for your debt security, if other than DTC, and any circumstances under which the holder may request securities in non-global form, if we choose not to issue your debt security in book-entry form only;
- if your debt security will be issued in bearer form, any special provisions relating to bearer securities that are not addressed in this prospectus;
- if applicable, the circumstances under which we will pay additional amounts on any debt securities held by a person who is not a United States person for tax purposes and under which we can redeem the debt securities if we have to pay additional amounts;
- the names and duties of any co-trustees, depositaries, authenticating agents, paying agents, transfer agents or registrars for your debt security, as applicable; and
- · any other terms of your debt security, which could be different from those described in this prospectus.

Market-Making Transactions. If you purchase your debt security — or any of our other securities we describe in this prospectus — in a market-making transaction, you will receive information about the issue price you pay and your trade and settlement dates in a separate confirmation of sale. A market-making transaction is one in which Goldman, Sachs & Co. or another of our affiliates resells a security that it has previously acquired from another holder. A market-making transaction in a particular security occurs after the original issuance and sale of the security. See "Plan of Distribution" below.

Redemption and Repayment

Unless otherwise indicated in your prospectus supplement, your debt security will not be entitled to the benefit of any sinking fund — that is, we will not deposit money on a regular basis into any separate custodial account to repay your debt securities. In addition, we will not be entitled to redeem your debt security before its stated maturity unless your prospectus supplement specifies a redemption commencement date. You will not be entitled to require us to buy your debt security from you, before its stated maturity, unless your prospectus supplement specifies one or more repayment dates.

If your prospectus supplement specifies a redemption commencement date or a repayment date, it will also specify one or more redemption prices or repayment prices, which may be expressed as a percentage of the principal amount of your debt security. It may also specify one or more redemption periods during which the redemption prices relating to a redemption of debt securities during those periods will apply.

If your prospectus supplement specifies a redemption commencement date, your debt security will be redeemable at our option at any time on or after that date or at a specified time or times. If we redeem your debt security, we will do so at the specified redemption price, together with interest accrued to but excluding the redemption date. If different prices are specified for different redemption periods, the price we pay will be the price that applies to the redemption period during which your debt security is redeemed.

If your prospectus supplement specifies a repayment date, your debt security will be repayable at the holder's option on the specified repayment date at the specified repayment price, together with interest accrued to but excluding the repayment date.

If we exercise an option to redeem any debt security, we will give to the holder written notice of the principal amount of the debt security to be redeemed, not less than 30 days nor more than 60 days before the applicable redemption date. We will give the notice in the manner described below in "— Notices".

If a debt security represented by a global debt security is subject to repayment at the holder's option, the depositary or its nominee, as the holder, will be the only person that can exercise the right to repayment. Any indirect owners who own beneficial interests in the global debt security and wish to exercise a repayment right must give proper and timely instructions to their banks or brokers through which they hold their interests, requesting that they notify the depositary to exercise the repayment right on their behalf. Different firms have different deadlines for accepting instructions from their customers, and you should take care to act promptly enough to ensure that your request is given effect by the depositary before the applicable deadline for exercise.

Tax redemption. If your prospectus supplement specifies that we will pay additional amounts with respect to your debt securities, as described below under "— Payment of Additional Amounts", we will be entitled, at our option, to redeem the outstanding debt securities in whole and not in part if at any time we become obligated to pay additional amounts on your debt securities on the next date on which payments are made, but only if our obligation results from a change in the laws or regulations of any U.S. taxing authority (as defined below in "— Payment of Additional Amounts"), or from a change in any official interpretation or application of those laws or regulations, that becomes effective or is announced on or after the date of your prospectus supplement, unless another date is specified.

If we redeem your debt securities because we have become obligated to pay additional amounts, we will do so at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the debt securities redeemed *plus* accrued interest to the redemption date.

If we become entitled to redeem your debt securities because we have become obligated to pay additional amounts, we may do so at any time on a redemption date of our choice. However, we must give the holders of the debt securities being redeemed notice of the redemption not less than 30 days or more than 60 days before the redemption date and not more than 90 days before the next date on which we would be obligated to pay additional amounts. In addition, our obligation to pay additional amounts must remain in effect when we give the notice of redemption. We will give the notice in the manner described below under "— Notices".

Street name and other indirect owners should contact their banks or brokers for information about how to exercise a repayment right in a timely manner.

We or our affiliates may purchase debt securities from investors who are willing to sell from time to time, either in the open market at prevailing prices or in private transactions at negotiated prices. Debt securities that we or they purchase may, at our discretion, be held, resold or canceled.

Mergers and Similar Transactions

We are generally permitted to merge or consolidate with another corporation or other entity. We are also permitted to sell our assets substantially as an entirety to another corporation or other entity. With regard to any series of debt securities, however, we may not take any of these actions unless all the following conditions are met:

- If the successor entity in the transaction is not The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., the successor entity must be organized as a corporation, partnership or trust and must expressly assume our obligations under the debt securities of that series and the underlying debt indenture with respect to that series. The successor entity may be organized under the laws of any jurisdiction, whether in the United States or elsewhere.
- Immediately after the transaction, no default under the debt securities of that series has occurred and is continuing. For this purpose, "default under the debt securities of that series" means an event of default with respect to that series or any event that would be an event of default with respect to that series if the requirements for giving us default notice and for our default having to continue for a specific period of time were disregarded. We describe these matters below under "— Default, Remedies and Waiver of Default".

If the conditions described above are satisfied with respect to the debt securities of any series, we will not need to obtain the approval of the holders of those debt securities in order to merge or consolidate or to sell our assets. Also, these conditions will apply only if we wish to merge or consolidate with another entity or sell our assets substantially as an entirety to another entity. We will not need to satisfy these conditions if we enter into other types of transactions, including any transaction in which we acquire the stock or assets of another entity, any transaction that involves a change of control of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. but in which we do not merge or consolidate and any transaction in which we sell less than substantially all our assets.

Also, if we merge, consolidate or sell our assets substantially as an entirety and the successor is a non-U.S. entity, neither we nor any successor would have any obligation to compensate you for any resulting adverse tax consequences relating to your debt securities.

Subordination Provisions

Holders of subordinated debt securities should recognize that contractual provisions in the subordinated debt indenture may prohibit us from making payments on those securities. Subordinated debt securities are subordinate and junior in right of payment, to the extent and in the manner stated in the subordinated debt indenture, to all of our senior indebtedness, as defined in the subordinated debt indenture, including all debt securities we have issued and will issue under either of the senior debt indentures and all warrants we will issue under the warrant indenture.

The subordinated debt indenture defines "senior indebtedness" as all indebtedness and obligations of, or guaranteed or assumed by, The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. for borrowed money or evidenced by bonds, debentures, notes or other similar instruments, whether existing now or in the future, and all amendments, renewals, extensions, modifications and refundings of any indebtedness or obligations of that kind. Senior debt excludes the subordinated debt securities and any other indebtedness or obligations specifically designated as being subordinate, or not superior, in right of payment to the subordinated debt securities.

We may modify the subordination provisions, including the definition of senior indebtedness, with respect to one or more series of subordinated debt securities, such as series sold to the Issuer Trusts in connection with their issuance of capital securities. For a description of these modifications in the case of capital securities, see "Description of Capital Securities and Related Instruments — Corresponding Subordinated Debt Securities". With regard to modifications in other cases, see the applicable prospectus supplement.

The subordinated debt indenture provides that, unless all principal of and any premium or interest on the senior indebtedness has been paid in full, no payment or other distribution may be made in respect of any subordinated debt securities in the following circumstances:

- in the event of any insolvency or bankruptcy proceedings, or any receivership, liquidation, reorganization, assignment for creditors or other similar proceedings or events involving us or our assets;
- (a) in the event and during the continuation of any default in the payment of principal, premium or interest on any senior indebtedness beyond any applicable grace period or (b) in the event that any event of default with respect to any senior indebtedness has occurred and is continuing, permitting the holders of that senior indebtedness (or a trustee) to accelerate the maturity of that senior indebtedness, whether or not the maturity is in fact accelerated (unless, in the case of (a) or (b), the payment default or event of default has been cured or waived or ceased to exist and any related acceleration has been rescinded) or (c) in the event that any judicial proceeding is pending with respect to a payment default or event of default described in (a) or (b); or
- · in the event that any subordinated debt securities have been declared due and payable before their stated maturity.

If the trustee under the subordinated debt indenture or any holders of the subordinated debt securities receive any payment or distribution that is prohibited under the subordination provisions, then the trustee or the holders will have to repay that money to the holders of the senior indebtedness.

Even if the subordination provisions prevent us from making any payment when due on the subordinated debt securities of any series we will be in default on our obligations under that series if we do not make the payment when due. This means that the trustee under the subordinated debt indenture and the holders of that series can take action against us, but they will not receive any money until the claims of the holders of senior indebtedness have been fully satisfied.

The subordinated debt indenture allows the holders of senior indebtedness to obtain a court order requiring us and any holder of subordinated debt securities to comply with the subordination provisions.

Restriction on Liens

In each of the senior debt indentures, we promise, with respect to each series of senior debt securities, not to create, assume, incur or guarantee any debt for borrowed money that is secured by a lien on the voting or profit participating equity ownership interests that we or any of our subsidiaries own in Goldman, Sachs & Co., or in any subsidiary that beneficially owns or holds, directly or indirectly, those interests in Goldman, Sachs & Co., unless we also secure the senior debt securities of that series on an equal or priority basis with the other secured debt. Our promise, however, is subject to an important exception: we may secure debt for borrowed money with liens on those interests without securing the senior debt securities of any series if our board of directors determines that the liens do not materially detract from or interfere with the value or control of those interests, as of the date of the determination.

The subordinated debt indenture does not include the promise described in the preceding paragraph.

Except as noted above, none of the indentures restrict our ability to put liens on our interests in our subsidiaries other than Goldman, Sachs & Co., nor do the indentures restrict our ability to sell or otherwise dispose of our interests in any of our subsidiaries, including Goldman, Sachs & Co. In addition, the restriction on liens in each of the senior debt indentures applies only to liens that secure debt for borrowed money. For example, liens imposed by operation of law, such as liens to secure statutory obligations for taxes or workers' compensation benefits, or liens we create to secure obligations to pay legal judgments or surety bonds, would not be covered by this restriction.

Defeasance and Covenant Defeasance

Unless we say otherwise in the applicable prospectus supplement, the provisions for full defeasance and covenant defeasance described below apply to each senior and subordinated debt security. In general, we expect these provisions to apply to each debt security that has a specified currency of U.S. dollars and is not a floating rate or indexed debt security.

Full Defeasance. If there is a change in U.S. federal tax law, as described below, we can legally release ourselves from all payment and other obligations on any debt securities. This is called full defeasance. For us to do so, each of the following must occur:

- We must deposit in trust for the benefit of all holders of those debt securities money or a combination of money and U.S. government or U.S. government agency notes or bonds that will generate enough cash to make interest, principal and any other payments on those debt securities on their various due dates:
- There must be a change in current U.S. federal tax law or an Internal Revenue Service ruling that lets us make the above deposit without causing the holders to be taxed on those debt securities any differently than if we did not make the deposit and just repaid those debt securities ourselves. Under current federal tax law, the deposit and our legal release from your debt security would be treated as though we took back your debt security and gave you your share of the cash and notes or bonds deposited in trust. In that event, you could recognize gain or loss on your debt security;
- · We must deliver to the trustee a legal opinion of our counsel confirming the tax law change described above; and
- In the case of the subordinated debt securities, the following requirements must also be met:
 - No event or condition may exist that, under the provisions described under "— Subordination Provisions" above, would prevent us from
 making payments of principal, premium or interest on those subordinated debt securities on the date of the deposit referred to above or
 during the 90 days after that date; and
 - We must deliver to the trustee an opinion of counsel to the effect that (a) the trust funds will not be subject to any rights of holders of senior indebtedness and (b) after the 90-day period referred to above, the trust funds will not be subject to any applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or similar laws affecting creditors' rights generally, except that if a court were to rule under any of those laws in any case or proceeding that the trust funds remained our property, then the relevant trustee and the holders of the subordinated debt securities would be entitled to some enumerated rights as secured creditors in the trust funds.

If we ever fully defeased your debt security, you would have to rely solely on the trust deposit for payments on your debt security. You would not be able to look to us for payment in the event of any shortfall.

Covenant Defeasance. Under current U.S. federal tax law, we can make the same type of deposit described above and be released from the restriction on liens described under "— Restriction on Liens" above and any other restrictive covenants relating to your debt security that may be described in your prospectus supplement. This is called covenant defeasance. In that event, you would lose the protection of those restrictive covenants. In order to achieve covenant defeasance for any debt securities, we must do both of the following:

We must deposit in trust for the benefit of the holders of those debt securities money or a combination of money and U.S. government or U.S. government agency notes or bonds that will generate enough cash to make interest, principal and any other payments on those debt securities on their various due dates; and

We must deliver to the trustee a legal opinion of our counsel confirming that under current U.S. federal income tax law we may make the above
deposit without causing the holders to be taxed on those debt securities any differently than if we did not make the deposit and just repaid those
debt securities ourselves.

In addition, in order to achieve covenant defeasance for any subordinated debt securities that have the benefit of any restrictive covenants, both conditions described in the last bullet point under "— Full Defeasance" above must be satisfied. Subordinated debt securities will not have the benefit of any restrictive covenants unless the applicable prospectus supplement specifically provides that they do.

If we accomplish covenant defeasance with regard to your debt security, the following provisions of the applicable debt indenture and your debt security would no longer apply:

- If your debt security is a senior debt security, our promise not to create liens on our voting or profit participating equity ownership interests in Goldman, Sachs & Co. described above under "— Restriction on Liens";
- · Any additional covenants that your prospectus supplement may state are applicable to your debt security; and
- The events of default resulting from a breach of covenants, described below in the fourth bullet point under "— Default, Remedies and Waiver of Default Events of Default".

Any right we have to redeem will survive covenant defeasance with regard to those debt securities.

If we accomplish covenant defeasance on your debt security, you can still look to us for repayment of your debt security in the event of any shortfall in the trust deposit. You should note, however, that if one of the remaining events of default occurred, such as our bankruptcy, and your debt security became immediately due and payable, there may be a shortfall. Depending on the event causing the default, you may not be able to obtain payment of the shortfall.

Default, Remedies and Waiver of Default

You will have special rights if an event of default with respect to your series of debt securities occurs and is continuing, as described in this subsection.

Events of Default

Unless your prospectus supplement says otherwise, when we refer to an event of default with respect to any series of debt securities, we mean any of the following:

- · We do not pay the principal or any premium on any debt security of that series on the due date;
- We do not pay interest on any debt security of that series within 30 days after the due date;
- We do not deposit a sinking fund payment with regard to any debt security of that series on the due date, but only if the payment is required
 under provisions described in the applicable prospectus supplement;
- We remain in breach of our covenant described above under "— Restriction on Liens" or any other covenant we make in the debt indenture for
 the benefit of the relevant series, for 60 days after we receive a notice of default stating that we are in breach and requiring us to remedy the
 breach. The notice must be sent by the trustee or the holders of at least 10% in principal amount of the relevant series of debt securities then
 outstanding;
- We file for bankruptcy or other events of bankruptcy, insolvency or reorganization relating to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. occur. Those
 events must arise under U.S. federal or state law, unless we merge, consolidate or sell our assets as described above and the successor firm is
 a non-U.S. entity. If that happens, then those events must arise under U.S. federal or state law or the law of the jurisdiction in which the
 successor firm is legally organized; or

• If the applicable prospectus supplement states that any additional event of default applies to the series, that event of default occurs.

We may change, eliminate, or add to the events of default with respect to any particular series or any particular debt security or debt securities within a series, as indicated in the applicable prospectus supplement.

Remedies If an Event of Default Occurs

If you are the holder of a subordinated debt security, all the remedies available upon the occurrence of an event of default under the subordinated debt indenture will be subject to the restrictions on the subordinated debt securities described above under "— Subordination Provisions".

Except as otherwise specified in the applicable prospectus supplement, if an event of default has occurred with respect to any series of debt securities and has not been cured or waived, the trustee or the holders of not less than 25% in principal amount of all debt securities of that series then outstanding may declare the entire principal amount of the debt securities of that series to be due immediately. Except as otherwise specified in the applicable prospectus supplement, if the event of default occurs because of events in bankruptcy, insolvency or reorganization relating to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., the entire principal amount of the debt securities of that series will be automatically accelerated, without any action by the trustee or any holder.

Each of the situations described above is called an acceleration of the stated maturity of the affected series of debt securities. Except as otherwise specified in the applicable prospectus supplement, if the stated maturity of any series is accelerated and a judgment for payment has not yet been obtained, the holders of a majority in principal amount of the debt securities of that series may cancel the acceleration for the entire series.

If an event of default occurs, the trustee will have special duties. In that situation, the trustee will be obligated to use those of its rights and powers under the relevant debt indenture, and to use the same degree of care and skill in doing so, that a prudent person would use in that situation in conducting his or her own affairs.

Except as described in the prior paragraph, the trustee is not required to take any action under the relevant debt indenture at the request of any holders unless the holders offer the trustee reasonable protection from expenses and liability. This is called an indemnity. If the trustee is provided with an indemnity reasonably satisfactory to it, the holders of a majority in principal amount of all debt securities of the relevant series may direct the time, method and place of conducting any lawsuit or other formal legal action seeking any remedy available to the trustee with respect to that series. These majority holders may also direct the trustee in performing any other action under the applicable debt indenture with respect to the debt securities of that series.

Before you bypass the trustee and bring your own lawsuit or other formal legal action or take other steps to enforce your rights or protect your interests relating to any debt security, all of the following must occur:

- The holder of your debt security must give the trustee written notice that an event of default has occurred, and the event of default must not
 have been cured or waived;
- The holders of not less than 25% in principal amount of all debt securities of your series must make a written request that the trustee take action because of the default, and they or other holders must offer to the trustee indemnity reasonably satisfactory to the trustee against the cost and other liabilities of taking that action;
- · The trustee must not have taken action for 60 days after the above steps have been taken; and

 During those 60 days, the holders of a majority in principal amount of the debt securities of your series must not have given the trustee directions that are inconsistent with the written request of the holders of not less than 25% in principal amount of the debt securities of your series

You are entitled at any time, however, to bring a lawsuit for the payment of money due on your debt security on or after its stated maturity (or, if your debt security is redeemable, on or after its redemption date).

Waiver of Default

The holders of not less than a majority in principal amount of the debt securities of any series may waive a default for all debt securities of that series. If this happens, the default will be treated as if it has not occurred. No one can waive a payment default on your debt security, however, without the approval of the particular holder of that debt security.

We Will Give the Trustee Information About Defaults Annually

We will furnish to each trustee every year a written statement of two of our officers certifying that to their knowledge we are in compliance with the applicable debt indenture and the debt securities issued under it, or else specifying any default under the relevant debt indenture.

Book-entry and other indirect owners should consult their banks or brokers for information on how to give notice or direction to or make a request of the trustee and how to declare or cancel an acceleration of the stated maturity of a series of debt securities. Book-entry and other indirect owners are described below under "Legal Ownership and Book-Entry Issuance".

Modification of the Debt Indentures and Waiver of Covenants

There are four types of changes we can make to our debt indentures and the debt securities or series of debt securities issued under a particular debt indenture.

Changes Requiring Each Holder's Approval

First, there are changes that cannot be made without the approval of the holder of each debt security affected by the change under the applicable debt indenture. Here is a list of those types of changes:

- · change the stated maturity for any principal or interest payment on a debt security;
- reduce the principal amount, the amount payable on acceleration of the stated maturity after a default, the interest rate or the redemption price for a debt security;
- · permit redemption of a debt security if not previously permitted;
- · impair any right a holder may have to require repayment of its debt security;
- · impair any right that a holder of an indexed or any other debt security may have to convert the debt security for or into securities;
- · change the currency of any payment on a debt security;
- · change the place of payment on a debt security;
- impair a holder's right to sue for payment of any amount due on its debt security;
- reduce the percentage in principal amount of the debt securities of any one or more affected series, taken separately or together, as applicable, and whether comprising the same or different series or less than all of the debt securities of a series, the approval of whose holders is needed to change the debt indenture or those debt securities;

- reduce the percentage in principal amount of the debt securities of any one or more affected series, taken separately or together, as applicable, and whether comprising the same or different series or less than all of the debt securities of a series, the consent of whose holders is needed to waive our compliance with the applicable debt indenture or to waive defaults; and
- change the provisions of the applicable debt indenture dealing with modification and waiver in any other respect, except to increase any required
 percentage referred to above or to add to the provisions that cannot be changed or waived without approval of the holder of each affected debt
 security.

Changes Not Requiring Approval

The second type of change does not require any approval by holders of the debt securities affected. These changes are limited to clarifications and changes that would not adversely affect any debt securities of any series in any material respect. Nor do we need any approval to make changes that affect only debt securities to be issued under the applicable debt indenture after the changes take effect.

We may also make changes or obtain waivers that do not adversely affect a particular debt security, even if they affect other debt securities. In those cases, we do not need to obtain the approval of the holder of the unaffected debt security; we need only obtain any required approvals from the holders of the affected debt securities.

Modification of Subordination Provisions

We may not amend the subordinated debt indenture to alter the subordination of any outstanding subordinated debt securities without the written consent of each holder of senior indebtedness then outstanding who would be adversely affected. In addition, we may not modify the subordination provisions of the subordinated debt indenture in a manner that would adversely affect the subordinated debt securities of any one or more series then outstanding in any material respect, without the consent of the holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of all affected series then outstanding, voting together as one class (and also of any affected series that by its terms is entitled to vote separately as a series as described below).

Changes Requiring Majority Approval

Any other change to the 1999 indenture or the subordinated debt indenture and the debt securities issued under either such debt indenture would require the following approval:

- If the change affects only the debt securities of a particular series it must be approved by the holders of a majority in principal amount of the debt securities of that series.
- If the change affects the debt securities of more than one series of debt securities issued under the same debt indenture, it must be approved by the holders of a majority in principal amount of all such series affected by the change, with the debt securities of all the affected series voting together as one class for this purpose (and of any affected series that by its terms is entitled to vote separately as a class as described below).

On the other hand, any other change to the 2008 indenture and the debt securities issued under that debt indenture would require the following approval:

- If the change affects only particular debt securities within a series, it must be approved by the holders of a majority in principal amount of such particular debt securities.
- If the change affects multiple debt securities of one or more series, it must be approved by the holders of a majority in principal amount of all debt securities affected by the change, with all such affected debt securities voting together as one class for this purpose (and by the holders of a majority in principal amount of any affected debt securities that by their terms are entitled to vote separately as described below).

In each case, the required approval must be given by written consent.

This would mean that modification of terms with respect to certain securities of a series issued under the 2008 indenture could be effectuated without obtaining the consent of the holders of a majority in principal amount of other securities of such series that are not affected by such modification.

The same majority approval would be required for us to obtain a waiver of any of our covenants in any debt indenture. Our covenants include the promises we make about merging and putting liens on our interests in Goldman, Sachs & Co., which we describe above under "— Mergers and Similar Transactions" and "— Restriction on Liens", and which, in the latter case, are only for the benefit of the holders of our senior debt securities. If the holders approve a waiver of a covenant, we will not have to comply with it. The holders, however, cannot approve a waiver of any provision in a particular debt security, or in the applicable debt indenture as it affects that debt security, that we cannot change without the approval of the holder of that debt security as described above in "— Changes Requiring Each Holder's Approval", unless that holder approves the waiver.

Book-entry and other indirect owners should consult their banks or brokers for information on how approval may be granted or denied if we seek to change a debt indenture or any debt securities or request a waiver.

Special Rules for Action by Holders

When holders take any action under any of our debt indentures, such as giving a notice of default, declaring an acceleration, approving any change or waiver or giving the trustee an instruction, we will apply the following rules.

Only Outstanding Debt Securities Are Eligible

Only holders of outstanding debt securities or the outstanding debt securities of the applicable series, as applicable, will be eligible to participate in any action by holders of such debt securities or the debt securities of that series. Also, we will count only outstanding debt securities in determining whether the various percentage requirements for taking action have been met. For these purposes, a debt security will not be "outstanding" if:

- · it has been surrendered for cancellation;
- · we have deposited or set aside, in trust for its holder, money for its payment or redemption;
- · we have fully defeased it as described above under "- Defeasance and Covenant Defeasance Full Defeasance"; or
- we or one of our affiliates, such as Goldman, Sachs & Co., is the owner.

Special Class Voting Rights

We may issue particular debt securities or a particular series of debt securities, as applicable, that are entitled, by their terms, to vote separately on matters (for example, modification or waiver of provisions in the applicable debt indenture) that would otherwise require a vote of all affected debt securities or all affected series voting together as a single class. Any such debt securities or series of debt securities would be entitled to vote together with all other affected debt securities or affected series voting together as one class, and would also be entitled to vote separately as a class only. In some cases, other parties may be entitled to exercise these special voting rights on behalf of the holders of the relevant debt securities or the relevant series. Subordinated debt securities issued to the Issuer Trusts in connection with capital securities have special rights of this kind, as described below under "Description of Capital Securities and Related Instruments — Corresponding Subordinated Debt Securities — Modification of the Subordinated Debt Indenture". For other debt securities or series of debt securities that have these rights, the rights will be described in the applicable prospectus supplement. For debt securities or series of debt securities that do not have these special rights, voting will occur as described in the preceding section, but subject to any separate voting rights of any other debt securities or series of debt securities having special rights.

We may issue series having these or other special voting rights without obtaining the consent of or giving notice to holders of outstanding debt securities or series.

Eligible Principal Amount of Some Debt Securities

In some situations, we may follow special rules in calculating the principal amount of debt securities that are to be treated as outstanding for the purposes described above. This may happen, for example, if the principal amount is payable in a non-U.S. dollar currency, increases over time or is not to be fixed until maturity.

For any debt security of the kind described below, we will decide how much principal amount to attribute to the debt security as follows:

- For an original issue discount debt security, we will use the principal amount that would be due and payable on the action date if the maturity of the debt security were accelerated to that date because of a default;
- For a debt security whose principal amount is not known, we will use any amount that we indicate in the prospectus supplement for that debt security. The principal amount of a debt security may not be known, for example, because it is based on an index that changes from time to time and the principal amount is not to be determined until a later date; or
- For debt securities with a principal amount denominated in one or more non-U.S. dollar currencies or currency units, we will use the U.S. dollar equivalent, which we will determine.

Determining Record Dates for Action by Holders

We will generally be entitled to set any day as a record date for the purpose of determining the holders that are entitled to take action under a particular debt indenture. In certain limited circumstances, only the trustee will be entitled to set a record date for action by holders. If we or the trustee set a record date for an approval or other action to be taken by holders, that vote or action may be taken only by persons or entities who are holders on the record date and must be taken during the period that we specify for this purpose, or that the trustee specifies if it sets the record date. We or the trustee, as applicable, may shorten or lengthen this period from time to time. This period, however, may not extend beyond the 180th day after the record date for the action. In addition, record dates for any global debt security may be set in accordance with procedures established by the depositary from time to time. Accordingly, record dates for global debt securities may differ from those for other debt securities.

Form, Exchange and Transfer of Debt Securities

If any debt securities cease to be issued in registered global form, they will be issued:

- · only in fully registered form;
- without interest coupons; and
- unless we indicate otherwise in your prospectus supplement, in denominations of \$1,000 and integral multiples of \$1,000 in excess thereof.

Holders may exchange their debt securities for debt securities of smaller denominations or combined into fewer debt securities of larger denominations, as long as the total principal amount is not changed. You may not exchange your debt securities for securities of a different series or having different terms, unless your prospectus supplement says you may.

Holders may exchange or transfer their debt securities at the office of the trustee. They may also replace lost, stolen, destroyed or mutilated debt securities at that office. We have appointed the trustee to act as our agent for registering debt securities in the names of holders and transferring and replacing debt securities. We may appoint another entity to perform these functions or perform them ourselves.

Holders will not be required to pay a service charge to transfer or exchange their debt securities, but they may be required to pay for any tax or other governmental charge associated with the exchange or transfer. The transfer or exchange, and any replacement, will be made only if our transfer

agent is satisfied with the holder's proof of legal ownership. The transfer agent may require an indemnity before replacing any debt securities.

If we have designated additional transfer agents for your debt security, they will be named in your prospectus supplement. We may appoint additional transfer agents or cancel the appointment of any particular transfer agent. We may also approve a change in the office through which any transfer agent acts.

If the debt securities of any series are redeemable and we redeem less than all those debt securities, we may block the transfer or exchange of those debt securities during the period beginning 15 calendar days before the day we mail the notice of redemption and ending on the day of that mailing, in order to freeze the list of holders to prepare the mailing. We may also refuse to register transfers of or exchange any debt security selected for redemption, except that we will continue to permit transfers and exchanges of the unredeemed portion of any debt security being partially redeemed.

If a debt security is issued as a global debt security, only the depositary — e.g., DTC, Euroclear or Clearstream — will be entitled to transfer and exchange the debt security as described in this subsection, since the depositary will be the sole holder of the debt security.

The rules for exchange described above apply to exchange of debt securities for other debt securities of the same series and kind. If a debt security is convertible, exercisable or exchangeable into or for a different kind of security, such as one that we have not issued, or for other property, the rules governing that type of conversion, exercise or exchange will be described in the applicable prospectus supplement.

Payment of Additional Amounts

We intend to make all payments on the debt securities without deducting U.S. withholding taxes unless the law requires us to deduct withholding taxes. The remainder of this subsection does not apply unless the relevant prospectus supplement specifies that this subsection entitled "— Payment of Additional Amounts" is applicable to your debt securities.

If we are required by law to deduct U.S. withholding taxes on payments to non-U.S. investors and if so specified in your prospectus supplement, we will pay additional amounts on those payments to the extent described in this subsection.

We will pay additional amounts on a debt security only if the beneficial owner of the debt security is a United States alien. The term "United States alien" means any person who, for U.S. federal income tax purposes, is:

- · a nonresident alien individual;
- · a foreign corporation;
- a foreign partnership one or more of the members of which is, for U.S. federal income tax purposes, a foreign corporation, a nonresident alien individual or a nonresident alien fiduciary of a foreign estate or trust; or
- a nonresident alien fiduciary of an estate or trust that is not subject to U.S. federal income tax on a net income basis on income or gain from a debt security.

If the beneficial owner of a debt security is a United States alien, we will pay all additional amounts that may be necessary so that every net payment of interest or principal on that debt security will not be less than the amount provided for in that debt security. By net payment, we mean the amount we or our paying agent pays after deducting or withholding an amount for or on account of any present or future tax, assessment or other governmental charge imposed with respect to that payment by a U.S. taxing authority.

Our obligation to pay additional amounts is subject to several important exceptions, however. We will **not** pay additional amounts for or on account of any of the following:

- any tax, assessment or other governmental charge imposed solely because at any time there is or was a connection between the beneficial
 owner or between a fiduciary, settlor, beneficiary, shareholder or member of the beneficial owner, if the beneficial owner is an estate, trust,
 partnership or corporation and the United States (other than the mere receipt of a payment or the ownership or holding of a debt security),
 including because the beneficial owner or the fiduciary, settlor, beneficiary, shareholder or member at any time, for U.S. federal income tax
 purposes:
 - is or was a citizen or resident or is or was treated as a resident of the United States;
 - · is or was present in the United States;
 - · is or was engaged in a trade or business in the United States;
 - · has or had a permanent establishment in the United States;
 - is or was a personal holding company, a passive foreign investment company or a controlled foreign corporation;
 - · is or was a corporation that accumulates earnings to avoid U.S. federal income tax; or
 - is or was a "ten percent shareholder" of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.;
- any tax, assessment or other governmental charge imposed solely because of a change in applicable law or regulation, or in any official
 interpretation or application of applicable law or regulation, that becomes effective more than 15 days after the day on which the payment
 becomes due or is duly provided for, whichever occurs later;
- any estate, inheritance, gift, sales, excise, transfer, wealth or personal property tax, or any similar tax, assessment or other governmental charge;
- any tax, assessment or other governmental charge imposed solely because the beneficial holder or any other person fails to comply with any
 certification, identification or other reporting requirement concerning the nationality, residence, identity or connection with the United States of
 the holder or any beneficial owner of the debt security, if compliance is required by statute or by regulation of the U.S. Treasury department or by
 an applicable income tax treaty to which the United States is a party, as a precondition to exemption from such tax, assessment or other
 governmental charge;
- any tax, assessment or other governmental charge that can be paid other than by deduction or withholding from a payment on the debt securities:
- any tax, assessment or other governmental charge imposed solely because the payment is to be made by a particular paying agent (including The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.) and would not be imposed if made by another paying agent;
- any tax, assessment or other governmental charge imposed solely because the holder (1) is a bank purchasing the debt security in the ordinary course of its lending business or (2) is a bank that is neither (A) buying the debt security for investment purposes only nor (B) buying the debt security for resale to a third party that either is not a bank or holding the debt security for investment purposes only;
- any tax, assessment or other governmental charge imposed solely because the holder or any beneficial owner of a debt security has failed to
 perfect an exemption from any withholding taxes imposed under Sections 1471 through 1474 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
 amended, and any regulations or official interpretations thereof; or
- · any combination of the taxes, assessments or other governmental charges described above.

In addition, we will not pay additional amounts with respect to any payment of principal, or interest to any United States alien who is a fiduciary or a partnership, or who is not the sole beneficial owner of the payment, to the extent that we would not have to pay additional amounts to any beneficiary or settlor of the fiduciary or any member of the partnership, or to any beneficial owner of the payment, if that person or entity were treated as the beneficial owner of the debt security for these purposes.

When we refer to a "U.S. taxing authority" in this subsection and "— Redemption and Repayment" above, we mean the United States of America or any state, other jurisdiction or taxing authority in the United States. When we refer to the "United States", we mean the United States of America, including the states and the District of Columbia, together with the territories, possessions and all those areas subject to the jurisdiction of the United States of America.

When we refer to any payment of interest or principal on a debt security in this subsection, this includes any additional amount that may be payable as described above in respect of that payment.

Payment Mechanics for Debt Securities

Who Receives Payment?

If interest is due on a debt security on an interest payment date, we will pay the interest to the person in whose name the debt security is registered at the close of business on the regular record date relating to the interest payment date as described below under "— Payment and Record Dates for Interest". If interest is due at maturity but on a day that is not an interest payment date, we will pay the interest to the person entitled to receive the principal of the debt security. If principal or another amount besides interest is due on a debt security at maturity, we will pay the amount to the holder of the debt security against surrender of the debt security at a proper place of payment or, in the case of a global debt security, in accordance with the applicable policies of the depositary, DTC, Euroclear or Clearstream, as applicable.

Payment and Record Dates for Interest

The dates on which interest will be payable will be specified in your prospectus supplement. Unless we specify otherwise in the applicable prospectus supplement, the regular record date relating to an interest payment date for any fixed rate debt security or floating rate debt security will be the 15th calendar day before that interest payment date. These record dates will apply regardless of whether a particular record date is a "business day", as defined below. For the purpose of determining the holder at the close of business on a regular record date when business is not being conducted, the close of business will mean 5:00 P.M., New York City time, on that day.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, and unless specified otherwise in your prospectus supplement, the regular record date relating to an interest payment date for any debt security in book-entry or global form will be the day immediately prior to the day on which the interest payment is to be made (as such payment day may be adjusted under the applicable business day convention). This prior day will be the record date whether or not it is a business day.

Unless we specify otherwise in this prospectus or in the applicable prospectus supplement, the term "days" refers to calendar days.

Business Davs

One or more of the following business day definitions shall apply to any debt security:

"Euro business day" means each Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday and Friday on which the Trans-European Automated Real-Time Gross Settlement Express Transfer (TARGET) System, or any successor system, is open for business.

"London business day" means each Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday and Friday that is not a day on which banking institutions in London generally are authorized or obligated by law, regulation or executive order to close and, in the case of a debt security for which LIBOR is an interest rate basis, is also a day on which dealings in the applicable index currency are transacted in the London interbank market.

"New York business day" means each Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday and Friday that is not a day on which banking institutions in New York City generally are authorized or obligated by law, regulation or executive order to close.

Additional business days not defined above may apply to any debt security and will be described in the applicable prospectus supplement.

Business Day Conventions

As specified in the applicable prospectus supplement, one of the following business day conventions may apply to any debt security with regard to any relevant date other than one that falls on the maturity:

"Following business day convention" means, for any interest payment date, other than the maturity, if such date would otherwise fall on a day that is not a business day, then such date will be postponed to the next day that is a business day.

"Modified following business day convention" means, for any interest payment date, other than the maturity, if such date would otherwise fall on a day that is not a business day, then such date will be postponed to the next day that is a business day, except that, if the next business day falls in the next calendar month, then such date will be advanced to the immediately preceding day that is a business day.

"Following unadjusted business day convention" means, for any interest payment date, other than the maturity, that falls on a day that is not a business day, any payment due on such interest payment date will be postponed to the next day that is a business day; provided that interest due with respect to such interest payment date shall not accrue from and including such interest payment date to and including the date of payment of such interest as so postponed.

"Modified following unadjusted business day convention" means, for any interest payment date, other than the maturity, that falls on a day that is not a business day, any payment due on such interest payment date will be postponed to the next day that is a business day; provided that interest due with respect to such interest payment date shall not accrue from and including such interest payment date to and including the date of payment of such interest as so postponed, and provided further that, if such day would fall in the succeeding calendar month, the date of payment with respect to such interest payment date will be advanced to the business day immediately preceding such interest payment date.

In all cases, if the stated maturity or any earlier redemption date or repayment date with respect to a debt security falls on a day that is not a business day, any payment of principal, premium, if any, and interest otherwise due on such day will be made on the next succeeding business day, and no interest on such payment shall accrue for the period from and after such stated maturity, redemption date or repayment date, as the case may be.

How We Will Make Payments Due in U.S. Dollars

We will follow the practice described in this subsection when paying amounts due in U.S. dollars. Payments of amounts due in other currencies will be made as described in the next subsection.

Payments on Global Debt Securities. We will make payments on a global debt security in accordance with the applicable policies of the depositary as in effect from time to time. Under those policies, we will pay directly to the depositary, or its nominee, and not to any indirect owners who own beneficial interests in the global debt security. An indirect owner's right to receive those payments will be governed by the rules and practices of the depositary and its participants, as described below in the section entitled "Legal Ownership and Book-Entry Issuance — What Is a Global Security?".

Payments on Non-Global Debt Securities. We will make payments on a debt security in non-global, registered form as follows. We will pay interest that is due on an interest payment date by check mailed on the interest payment date to the holder at his or her address shown on the trustee's records as of the close of business on the relevant regular record date. We will make all other payments by check or via wire transfer at the paying agent described below, against surrender of the debt security. All payments by check will be made in next-day funds — *i.e.*, funds that become available on the day after the check is cashed or wire transfer is completed.

Alternatively, if a non-global debt security has a principal amount of at least \$1,000,000 (or the equivalent in another currency) and the holder asks us to do so, we will pay any amount that becomes due on the debt security by wire transfer of immediately available funds to an account at a bank in New York City, on the due date. To request wire payment, the holder must give the paying agent appropriate wire transfer instructions at least five business days before the requested wire payment is due. In the case of any interest payment due on an interest payment date, the instructions must be given by the person or entity who is the holder on the relevant regular record date. In the case of any other payment, payment will be made only after the debt security is surrendered to the paying agent. Any wire instructions, once properly given, will remain in effect unless and until new instructions are given in the manner described above.

Book-entry and other indirect owners should consult their banks or brokers for information on how they will receive payments on their debt securities.

How We Will Make Payments Due in Other Currencies

We will follow the practice described in this subsection when paying amounts that are due in a specified currency other than U.S. dollars.

Payments on Global Debt Securities. We will make payments on a global debt security in the applicable specified currency in accordance with the applicable policies as in effect from time to time of the depositary, which will be DTC, Euroclear or Clearstream. Unless we specify otherwise in the applicable prospectus supplement, The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York, known as DTC, will be the depositary for all debt securities in global form.

Indirect owners of a global debt security denominated in a currency other than U.S. dollars should consult their banks or brokers for information on how to request payment in the specified currency in cases where holders have a right to do so.

Payments on Non-Global Debt Securities. Except as described in the last paragraph under this heading, we will make payments on debt securities in non-global form in the applicable specified currency. We will make these payments by wire transfer of immediately available funds to any account that is maintained in the applicable specified currency at a bank designated by the holder and is acceptable to us and the trustee. To designate an account for wire payment, the holder must give the paying agent appropriate wire instructions at least five business days before the requested wire payment is due. In the case of any interest payment due on an interest payment date, the instructions must be given by the person or entity who is the holder on the relevant regular record date. In the case of any other payment, the payment will be made only after the debt security is surrendered to the paying agent. Any instructions, once properly given, will remain in effect unless and until new instructions are properly given in the manner described above.

If a holder fails to give instructions as described above, we will notify the holder at the address in the trustee's records and will make the payment within five business days after the holder provides appropriate instructions. Any late payment made in these circumstances will be treated under the applicable debt indenture as if made on the due date, and no interest will accrue on the late payment from the due date to the date paid.

Although a payment on a debt security in non-global form may be due in a specified currency other than U.S. dollars, we will make the payment in U.S. dollars if your prospectus supplement specifies that holders may ask us to do so and you make such a request. To request U.S. dollar payment in these circumstances, the holder must provide appropriate written notice to the trustee at least five business days before the next due date for which payment in U.S. dollars is requested. In the case of any interest payment due on an interest payment date, the request must be made by the person or entity who is the

holder on the relevant regular record date. Any request, once properly made, will remain in effect unless and until revoked by notice properly given in the manner described above.

Book-entry and other indirect owners of a debt security with a specified currency other than U.S. dollars should contact their banks or brokers for information about how to receive payments in the specified currency or in U.S. dollars.

Conversion to U.S. Dollars. Unless otherwise indicated in your prospectus supplement, holders are not entitled to receive payments in U.S. dollars of an amount due in another currency, either on a global debt security or a non-global debt security.

If your prospectus supplement specifies that holders may request that we make payments in U.S. dollars of an amount due in another currency, the exchange rate agent described below will calculate the U.S. dollar amount the holder receives in the exchange rate agent's discretion. A holder that requests payment in U.S. dollars will bear all associated foreign currency exchange costs, which will be deducted from the payment.

When the Specified Currency Is Not Available. If we are obligated to make any payment in a specified currency other than U.S. dollars, and the specified currency or any successor currency is not available to us due to circumstances beyond our control — such as the imposition of exchange controls or a disruption in the currency markets — we will be entitled to satisfy our obligation to make the payment in that specified currency by making the payment in U.S. dollars, on the basis of the exchange rate determined by the exchange rate agent described below, in its discretion.

The foregoing will apply to any debt security, whether in global or non-global form, and to any payment, including a payment at maturity. Any payment made under the circumstances and in a manner described above will not result in a default under any debt security or the applicable debt indenture.

Exchange Rate Agent. If we issue a debt security in a specified currency other than U.S. dollars, we will appoint a financial institution to act as the exchange rate agent and will name the institution initially appointed when the debt security is originally issued in the applicable prospectus supplement. We may select Goldman, Sachs & Co. or another of our affiliates to perform this role. We may change the exchange rate agent from time to time after the original issue date of the debt security without your consent and without notifying you of the change.

All determinations made by the exchange rate agent will be in its sole discretion unless we state in the applicable prospectus supplement that any determination requires our approval. In the absence of manifest error, those determinations will be conclusive for all purposes and binding on you and us, without any liability on the part of the exchange rate agent.

Payment When Offices Are Closed

Unless specified otherwise in the applicable prospectus supplement, if any payment is due on a debt security on a day that is not a business day, we will make the payment on the next business day. Payments postponed to the next business day in this situation will be treated under the applicable debt indenture as if they were made on the original due date. Postponement of this kind will not result in a default under any debt security or the applicable debt indenture, and, unless otherwise specified on the applicable prospectus supplement, no interest will accrue on the postponed amount from the original due date to the next business day. The term business day has a special meaning, which we describe above under "— Business Days".

Paying Agent

We may appoint one or more financial institutions to act as our paying agents, at whose designated offices debt securities in non-global entry form may be surrendered for payment at their maturity. We call each of those offices a paying agent. We may add, replace or terminate paying agents from time to time. We may also choose to act as our own paying agent. Initially, we have appointed the trustee, at its corporate trust office in New York City, as the paying agent. We must notify the trustee of changes in the paying agents.

Unclaimed Payments

Regardless of who acts as paying agent, all money paid by us to a paying agent that remains unclaimed at the end of two years after the amount is due to a holder will be repaid to us. After that two-year period, the holder may look only to us for payment and not to the trustee, any other paying agent or anyone else.

Notices

Notices to be given to holders of a global debt security will be given only to the depositary, in accordance with its applicable policies as in effect from time to time. Notices to be given to holders of debt securities not in global form will be sent by mail to the respective addresses of the holders as they appear in the trustee's records, and will be deemed given when mailed. Neither the failure to give any notice to a particular holder, nor any defect in a notice given to a particular holder, will affect the sufficiency of any notice given to another holder.

Book-entry and other indirect owners should consult their banks or brokers for information on how they will receive notices.

Our Relationship With the Trustee

The Bank of New York Mellon has provided commercial banking and other services for us and our affiliates in the past and may do so in the future. Among other things, The Bank of New York Mellon provides us with a line of credit, holds debt securities issued by us and serves as trustee or agent with regard to other debt obligations and warrants of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. or its subsidiaries.

The Bank of New York Mellon is initially serving as the trustee for the senior debt securities and subordinated debt securities and the warrants issued under our warrant indenture. Consequently, if an actual or potential event of default occurs with respect to any of these securities, the trustee may be considered to have a conflicting interest for purposes of the Trust Indenture Act of 1939. In that case, the trustee may be required to resign under one or more of the indentures, and we would be required to appoint a successor trustee. For this purpose, a "potential" event of default means an event that would be an event of default if the requirements for giving us default notice or for the default having to exist for a specific period of time were disregarded.

Under the indentures, we are required to file with the trustee any information, documents and other reports, or summaries thereof, as may be required under the Trust Indenture Act, at the times and in the manner provided under the Trust Indenture Act. However, in case of documents filed with the SEC pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act, any such filing with the trustee need not be made until 15th day after such filing is actually made with the SEC.

DESCRIPTION OF WARRANTS WE MAY OFFER

Please note that in this section entitled "Description of Warrants We May Offer", references to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., "we", "our" and "us" refer only to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and not to its consolidated subsidiaries. Also, in this section, references to "holders" mean those who own warrants registered in their own names, on the books that we or the applicable trustee or warrant agent maintain for this purpose, and not those who own beneficial interests in warrants registered in street name or in warrants issued in book-entry form through one or more depositaries. Owners of beneficial interests in the warrants should read the section below entitled "Legal Ownership and Book-Entry Issuance".

We May Issue Many Series of Warrants

We may issue warrants that are debt warrants or universal warrants. We may offer warrants separately or together with our debt securities. We may also offer warrants together with other warrants, purchase contracts and debt securities in the form of units, as summarized below in "Description of Units We May Offer".

We have no restrictions on the number of warrants or number of distinct series of warrants we may issue. We will issue each series of warrants under either a warrant indenture or a warrant agreement. This section summarizes terms to be included in the warrant indenture and warrant agreements and terms of the warrants that apply generally to the warrants. We will describe the specific terms of your warrant in the applicable prospectus supplement. Those terms may vary from the terms described here.

As you read this section, please remember that the specific terms of your warrant as described in your prospectus supplement will supplement and, if applicable, may modify or replace the general terms described in this section. If there are differences between your prospectus supplement and this prospectus, your prospectus supplement will control. Thus, the statements we make in this section may not apply to your warrant.

When we refer to a series of warrants, we mean all warrants issued as part of the same series under the applicable indenture or warrant agreement. When we refer to your prospectus supplement, we mean the prospectus supplement describing the specific terms of the warrant you purchase. The terms used in your prospectus supplement will have the meanings described in this prospectus, unless otherwise specified.

Debt Warrants

We may issue warrants for the purchase of our debt securities on terms to be determined at the time of sale. We refer to this type of warrant as a "debt warrant".

Universal Warrants

We may also issue warrants, on terms to be determined at the time of sale, for the purchase or sale of, or whose cash value is determined by reference to the performance, level or value of, one or more of the following:

- securities of one or more issuers, including our common stock or preferred stock or other securities described in this prospectus or debt or
 equity securities of third parties;
- · one or more currencies;
- · one or more commodities;
- any other financial, economic or other measure or instrument, including the occurrence or non-occurrence of any event or circumstance;

- · one or more indices; and/or
- · one or more baskets of the items described above.

We refer to this type of warrant as a "universal warrant". We refer to each property described above as a "warrant property".

We may satisfy our obligations, if any, and the holder of a universal warrant may satisfy its obligations, if any, with respect to any universal warrants by delivering:

- · the warrant property;
- · the cash value of the warrant property; or
- · the cash value of the warrants determined by reference to the performance, level or value of the warrant property.

The applicable prospectus supplement will describe what we may deliver to satisfy our obligations, if any, and what the holder of a universal warrant may deliver to satisfy its obligations, if any, with respect to any universal warrants.

General Terms of Warrants

Your prospectus supplement may contain, where applicable, the following information about your warrants:

- the title and series of, the aggregate number of, and the original issue price of, the warrants;
- · the currency with which the warrants may be purchased;
- · the indenture or warrant agreement under which we will issue the warrants;
- the date on which the right to exercise the warrants will begin and the date on which that right will expire or, if you may not continuously exercise the warrants throughout that period, the specific date or dates on which you may exercise the warrants;
- whether the warrants will be issued in fully registered form or bearer form, in global or non-global form or in any combination of these forms, although, in any case, the form of a warrant included in a unit will correspond to the form of the unit and of any debt security or purchase contract included in that unit;
- the identities of the trustee or warrant agent, any depositaries and any paying, transfer, calculation or other agents for the warrants;
- any securities exchange or quotation system on which the warrants or any securities deliverable upon exercise of the warrants may be listed;
- · whether the warrants are to be sold separately or with other securities, as part of units or otherwise; and
- · any other terms of the warrants.

If we issue warrants as part of a unit, the applicable prospectus supplement will specify whether the warrants will be separable from the other securities in the unit before the warrants' expiration date. A warrant issued in a unit in the United States may not be so separated before the 91st day after the unit is issued.

No holder of a warrant will have any rights of a holder of the warrant property deliverable under the warrant.

An investment in a warrant may involve special risks, including risks associated with indexed securities and currency-related risks if the warrant or the warrant property is linked to an index or is payable in or otherwise linked to a non-U.S. dollar currency. We describe some of these risks below

under "Considerations Relating to Indexed Securities" and "Considerations Relating to Securities Denominated or Payable in or Linked to a Non-U.S. Dollar Currency".

Because we are a holding company, our ability to perform our obligations on the warrants will depend in part on our ability to participate in distributions of assets from our subsidiaries. We discuss these matters above under "Description of Debt Securities We May Offer — We Are a Holding Company".

Our affiliates may resell warrants in market-making transactions after their initial issuance. We discuss these transactions above under "Description of Debt Securities We May Offer — Information in Your Prospectus Supplement — Market-Making Transactions".

Additional Terms of Warrants

Debt Warrants

If you purchase debt warrants, your prospectus supplement may contain, where applicable, the following additional information about your warrants:

- the designation, aggregate principal amount, currency and terms of the debt securities that may be purchased upon exercise of the debt warrants:
- the exercise price and whether the exercise price may be paid in cash, by the exchange of any debt warrants or other securities or both and the method of exercising the debt warrants; and
- the designation, terms and amount of debt securities, if any, to be issued together with each of the debt warrants and the date, if any, after which the debt warrants and debt securities will be separately transferable.

Universal Warrants

If you purchase universal warrants, your prospectus supplement may contain, where applicable, the following additional information about your warrants:

- whether the universal warrants are put warrants or call warrants, including in either case warrants that may be settled by means of net cash settlement or cashless exercise, or any other type of warrants;
- the money or warrant property, and the amount or method of determining the amount of money or warrant property, payable or deliverable upon
 exercise of each universal warrant;
- the price at which and the currency with which the warrant property may be purchased or sold by or on behalf of the holder of each universal warrant upon the exercise of that warrant, or the method of determining that price;
- whether the exercise price may be paid in cash, by the exchange of any universal warrants or other securities or both, and the method of
 exercising the universal warrants; and
- whether the exercise of the universal warrants is to be settled in cash or by delivery of the warrant property or both and whether settlement will
 occur on a net basis or a gross basis.

General Provisions of Warrant Indenture

We may issue universal warrants under the warrant indenture. Warrants of this kind will not be secured by any property or assets of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. or its subsidiaries. Thus, by owning a warrant issued under the indenture, you hold one of our unsecured obligations.

The warrants issued under the indenture will be contractual obligations of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and will rank equally with all of our other unsecured contractual obligations and unsecured and unsubordinated debt. The indenture does not limit our ability to incur additional contractual obligations or debt.

The indenture is a contract between us and The Bank of New York Mellon, which will initially act as trustee. The trustee has two main roles:

- First, the trustee can enforce your rights against us if we default. There are some limitations on the extent to which the trustee acts on your behalf, which we describe below under "— Default, Remedies and Waiver of Default".
- · Second, the trustee performs administrative duties for us, such as sending you payments and notices.

See "- Our Relationship With the Trustee" below for more information about the trustee.

We May Issue Many Series of Warrants Under the Indenture

We do not have any restrictions on the number of distinct series of warrants that we may issue under the warrant indenture. This section summarizes terms of the warrants that apply generally to all series. The provisions of the indenture allow us not only to issue warrants with terms different from those of warrants previously issued under the indenture, but also to "reopen" a previously issued series of warrants and issue additional warrants of that series

Amounts That We May Issue

The warrant indenture does not limit the aggregate number of warrants that we may issue or the number of series or the aggregate amount of any particular series. We may issue warrants and other securities at any time without your consent and without notifying you.

The indenture and the warrants do not limit our ability to incur other contractual obligations or indebtedness or to issue other securities. Also, the terms of the warrants do not impose financial or similar restrictions on us except as described below under "— Restriction on Liens".

Expiration Date and Payment or Settlement Date

The term "expiration date" with respect to any warrant means the date on which the right to exercise the warrant expires. The term "payment or settlement date" with respect to any warrant means the date when any money or warrant property with respect to that warrant becomes payable or deliverable upon exercise or redemption of that warrant in accordance with its terms.

This Section Is Only a Summary

The warrant indenture and its associated documents, including your warrant, contain the full legal text of the matters described in this section and your prospectus supplement. We have filed a copy of the indenture with the SEC as an exhibit to our registration statement. See "Available Information" above for information on how to obtain a copy of it.

This section and your prospectus supplement summarize all the material terms of the indenture and your warrant. They do not, however, describe every aspect of the indenture and your warrant. For example, in this section and your prospectus supplement, we use terms that have been given special meaning in the indenture, but we describe the meaning for only the more important of those terms.

Governing Law

The warrant indenture and the warrants will be governed by New York law.

Currency of Warrants

Amounts that become due and payable on your warrant may be payable in a currency, composite currency, basket of currencies or currency unit or units specified in your prospectus supplement. We refer to this currency, composite currency, basket of currencies or currency unit or units as a "specified currency". The specified currency for your warrant will be U.S. dollars, unless your prospectus supplement states otherwise. You will have to pay for your warrant by delivering the requisite amount of the specified currency to Goldman, Sachs & Co. or another firm that we name in your prospectus

supplement, unless other arrangements have been made between you and us or you and that firm. We will make payments on your warrants in the specified currency, except as described below in "— Payment Mechanics for Warrants". See "Considerations Relating to Securities Denominated or Payable in or Linked to a Non-U.S. Dollar Currency" below for more information about risks of investing in warrants of this kind.

Mergers and Similar Transactions

We are generally permitted to merge or consolidate with another corporation or other entity. We are also permitted to sell our assets substantially as an entirety to another corporation or other entity. With regard to any warrant, however, we may not take any of these actions unless all the following conditions are met:

- If the successor entity in the transaction is not The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., the successor entity must be organized as a corporation, partnership or trust and must expressly assume our obligations under that warrant and the indenture. The successor entity may be organized under the laws of any jurisdiction, whether in the United States or elsewhere.
- Immediately after the transaction, no default under the warrant has occurred and is continuing. For this purpose, "default under the warrant"
 means an event of default with respect to that warrant or any event that would be an event of default with respect to that warrant if the
 requirements for giving us default notice and for our default having to continue for a specific period of time were disregarded. We describe these
 matters below under "— Default, Remedies and Waiver of Default".

If the conditions described above are satisfied with respect to any warrant, we will not need to obtain the approval of the holder of that warrant in order to merge or consolidate or to sell our assets. Also, these conditions will apply only if we wish to merge or consolidate with another entity or sell our assets substantially as an entirety to another entity. We will not need to satisfy these conditions if we enter into other types of transactions, including any transaction in which we acquire the stock or assets of another entity, any transaction that involves a change of control of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. but in which we do not merge or consolidate and any transaction in which we sell less than substantially all our assets.

Also, if we merge, consolidate or sell our assets substantially as an entirety and the successor is a non-U.S. entity, neither we nor any successor would have any obligation to compensate you for any resulting adverse tax consequences relating to your warrants.

Restriction on Liens

In the warrant indenture, we promise, with respect to each series of warrants, not to create or guarantee any debt for borrowed money that is secured by a lien on the voting or profit participating equity ownership interests that we or any of our subsidiaries own in Goldman, Sachs & Co., or in any subsidiary that beneficially owns or holds, directly or indirectly, those interests in Goldman, Sachs & Co., unless we also secure the warrants of that series on an equal or priority basis with the secured debt. Our promise, however, is subject to an important exception: we may secure debt for borrowed money with liens on those interests without securing the warrants of any series if our board of directors determines that the liens do not materially detract from or interfere with the value or control of those interests as of the date of the determination.

Except as noted above, the indenture does not restrict our ability to put liens on our interests in our subsidiaries other than Goldman, Sachs & Co., nor does the indenture restrict our ability to sell or otherwise dispose of our interests in any of our subsidiaries, including Goldman, Sachs & Co. In addition, the restriction on liens in the indenture applies only to liens that secure debt for borrowed money. For example, liens imposed by operation of law, such as liens to secure statutory obligations for taxes or workers' compensation benefits, or liens we create to secure obligations to pay legal judgments or surety bonds, would not be covered by this restriction.

Default, Remedies and Waiver of Default

You will have special rights if an event of default with respect to your warrant occurs and is continuing, as described in this subsection.

Events of Default. Unless your prospectus supplement says otherwise, when we refer to an event of default with respect to any warrant, we mean that, upon satisfaction by the holder of the warrant of all conditions precedent to our relevant obligation or covenant to be satisfied by the holder, any of the following occurs:

- We do not pay any money or deliver any warrant property with respect to that warrant on the payment or settlement date in accordance with the terms of that warrant:
- We remain in breach of our covenant described above under "— Restriction on Liens", or any other covenant we make in the indenture for the benefit of the holder of that warrant for 60 days after we receive a notice of default stating that we are in breach and requiring us to remedy the breach. The notice must be sent by the trustee or the holders of at least 10% in number of the relevant series of warrants;
- We file for bankruptcy or other events of bankruptcy, insolvency or reorganization relating to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. occur. Those
 events must arise under U.S. federal or state law, unless we merge, consolidate or sell our assets as described above and the successor firm is
 a non-U.S. entity. If that happens, then those events must arise under U.S. federal or state law or the law of the jurisdiction in which the
 successor firm is legally organized; or
- If the applicable prospectus supplement states that any additional event of default applies to the series, that event of default occurs.

If we do not pay any money or deliver any warrant property when due with respect to a particular warrant of a series, as described in the first bullet point above, that failure to make a payment or delivery will not constitute an event of default with respect to any other warrant of the same series or any other series

Remedies If an Event of Default Occurs. If an event of default occurs, the trustee will have special duties. In that situation, the trustee will be obligated to use those of its rights and powers under the indenture, and to use the same degree of care and skill in doing so, that a prudent person would use in that situation in conducting his or her own affairs.

Except as described in the prior paragraph, the trustee is not required to take any action under the indenture at the request of any holders unless the holders offer the trustee reasonable protection from expenses and liability. This is called an indemnity. If the trustee is provided with an indemnity reasonably satisfactory to it, the holders of a majority in number of all warrants of the relevant series may direct the time, method and place of conducting any lawsuit or other formal legal action seeking any remedy available to the trustee with respect to that series. These majority holders may also direct the trustee in performing any other action under the indenture with respect to the warrants of that series.

Before you bypass the trustee and bring your own lawsuit or other formal legal action or take other steps to enforce your rights or protect your interests relating to any warrant, all of the following must occur:

- The holder of your warrant must give the trustee written notice that an event of default has occurred, and the event of default must not have been cured or waived:
- The holders of not less than 25% in number of all warrants of your series must make a written request that the trustee take action because of the default, and they or other holders must offer to the trustee indemnity reasonably satisfactory to the trustee against the cost and other liabilities of taking that action;
- The trustee must not have taken action for 60 days after the above steps have been taken; and
- During those 60 days, the holders of a majority in number of the warrants of your series must not have given the trustee directions that are inconsistent with the written request of the holders of not less than 25% in number of the warrants of your series.

You are entitled at any time to bring a lawsuit for the payment of any money or delivery of any warrant property due on your warrant on or after its payment or settlement date.

Waiver of Default. The holders of not less than a majority in number of the warrants of any series may waive a default for all warrants of that series. If this happens, the default will be treated as if it has not occurred. No one can waive a default in payment of any money or delivery of any warrant property due on any warrant, however, without the approval of the particular holder of that warrant.

We Will Give the Trustee Information About Defaults Annually. We will furnish to the trustee every year a written statement of two of our officers certifying that to their knowledge we are in compliance with the indenture and the warrants issued under it, or else specifying any default under the indenture.

Book-entry and other indirect owners should consult their banks or brokers for information on how to give notice or direction to or make a request of the trustee. Book-entry and other indirect owners are described below under "Legal Ownership and Book-Entry Issuance".

Modification of the Warrant Indenture and Waiver of Covenants

There are three types of changes we can make to the warrant indenture and the warrants of any series issued under that indenture.

Changes Requiring Each Holder's Approval. First, there are changes that cannot be made without the approval of each holder of a warrant affected by the change. Here is a list of those types of changes:

- · change the exercise price of the warrant;
- · change the terms of any warrant with respect to the payment or settlement date of the warrant;
- reduce the amount of money payable or reduce the amount or change the kind of warrant property deliverable upon the exercise of the warrant
 or any premium payable upon redemption of the warrant;
- · change the currency of any payment on a warrant;
- · change the place of payment on a warrant;
- · permit redemption of a warrant if not previously permitted;
- impair a holder's right to exercise its warrant, or sue for payment of any money payable or delivery of any warrant property deliverable with respect to its warrant on or after the payment or settlement date or, in the case of redemption, the redemption date;
- if any warrant provides that the holder may require us to repurchase the warrant, impair the holder's right to require repurchase of the warrant;
- reduce the percentage in number of the warrants of any one or more affected series, taken separately or together, as applicable, the approval of whose holders is needed to change the indenture or those warrants;
- reduce the percentage in number of the warrants of any one or more affected series, taken separately or together, as applicable, the consent of whose holders is needed to waive our compliance with the indenture or to waive defaults; and
- change the provisions of the indenture dealing with modification and waiver in any other respect, except to increase any required percentage
 referred to above or to add to the provisions that cannot be changed or waived without approval of the holder of each affected warrant.

Changes Not Requiring Approval. The second type of change does not require any approval by holders of the warrants of an affected series. These changes are limited to clarifications and changes that would not adversely affect the warrants of that series in any material respect. Nor do we need any approval to make changes that affect only warrants to be issued under the indenture after the changes take effect.

We may also make changes or obtain waivers that do not adversely affect a particular warrant, even if they affect other warrants. In those cases, we do not need to obtain the approval of the holder of that warrant; we need only obtain any required approvals from the holders of the affected warrants.

Changes Requiring Majority Approval. Any other change to the indenture and the warrants issued under the indenture would require the following approval:

- If the change affects only the warrants of a particular series, it must be approved by the holders of a majority in number of the warrants of that series.
- If the change affects the warrants of more than one series issued under the indenture, it must be approved by the holders of a majority in number of all series affected by the change, with the warrants of all the affected series voting together as one class for this purpose.

In each case, the required approval must be given by written consent.

The same majority approval would be required for us to obtain a waiver of any of our covenants in the indenture. Our covenants include the promises we make about merging and putting liens on our interests in Goldman, Sachs & Co., which we describe above under "— Mergers and Similar Transactions" and "— Restriction on Liens". If the holders approve a waiver of a covenant, we will not have to comply with it. The holders, however, cannot approve a waiver of any provision in a particular warrant, or in the indenture as it affects that warrant, that we cannot change without the approval of the holder of that warrant as described above in "— Changes Requiring Each Holder's Approval", unless that holder approves the waiver.

Book-entry and other indirect owners should consult their banks or brokers for information on how approval may be granted or denied if we seek to change the warrant indenture or any warrants or request a waiver.

Special Rules for Action by Holders

When holders take any action under the warrant indenture, such as giving a notice of default, approving any change or waiver or giving the trustee an instruction, we will apply the following rules.

Only Outstanding Warrants Are Eligible. Only holders of outstanding warrants of the applicable series will be eligible to participate in any action by holders of warrants of that series. Also, we will count only outstanding warrants in determining whether the various percentage requirements for taking action have been met. For these purposes, a warrant will not be "outstanding" if:

- · it has been surrendered for cancellation;
- · it has been called for redemption;
- · we have deposited or set aside, in trust for its holder, money or warrant property for its payment or settlement; or
- · we or one of our affiliates, such as Goldman, Sachs & Co., is the owner.

Determining Record Dates for Action by Holders. We will generally be entitled to set any day as a record date for the purpose of determining the holders that are entitled to take action under the indenture. In certain limited circumstances, only the trustee will be entitled to set a record date for action by holders. If we or the trustee set a record date for an approval or other action to be taken by holders, that vote or action may be taken only by persons or entities who are holders on the record date and must be taken during the period that we specify for this purpose, or that the trustee specifies if it sets the record date. We or the trustee, as applicable, may shorten or lengthen this period from time to time. This period, however, may not extend beyond the 180th day after the record date for the action. In addition, record dates for any global warrant may be set in accordance with procedures established by the depositary from time to time. Accordingly, record dates for global warrants may differ from those for other warrants.

Redemption

We will not be entitled to redeem your warrant before its expiration date unless your prospectus supplement specifies a redemption

If your prospectus supplement specifies a redemption commencement date, it will also specify one or more redemption prices. It may also specify one or more redemption periods during which the redemption prices relating to a redemption of warrants during those periods will apply.

If your prospectus supplement specifies a redemption commencement date, your warrant will be redeemable at our option at any time on or after that date or at a specified time or times. If we redeem your warrant, we will do so at the specified redemption price. If different prices are specified for different redemption periods, the price we pay will be the price that applies to the redemption period during which your warrant is redeemed.

If we exercise an option to redeem any warrant, we will give to the holder written notice of the redemption price of the warrant to be redeemed, not less than 30 days nor more than 60 days before the applicable redemption date or within any other period before the applicable redemption date specified in the applicable prospectus supplement. We will give the notice in the manner described below in "— Notices".

We or our affiliates may purchase warrants from investors who are willing to sell from time to time, either in the open market at prevailing prices or in private transactions at negotiated prices. Warrants that we or they purchase may, at our discretion, be held, resold or canceled.

Form, Exchange and Transfer of Warrants

We will issue each warrant in global — *i.e.*, book-entry — form only, unless we say otherwise in the applicable prospectus supplement. Warrants in book-entry form will be represented by a global security registered in the name of a depositary, which will be the holder of all the warrants represented by the global security. Those who own beneficial interests in a global warrant will do so through participants in the depositary's system, and the rights of these indirect owners will be governed solely by the applicable procedures of the depositary and its participants. We describe book-entry securities below under "Legal Ownership and Book-Entry Issuance".

If a warrant is issued as a registered global warrant, only the depositary — e.g., DTC, Euroclear and Clearstream — will be entitled to transfer and exchange the warrant as described in this subsection, since the depositary will be the sole holder of the warrant.

If any warrants cease to be issued in registered global form, they will be issued:

- · only in fully registered form; and
- · only in the denominations specified in your prospectus supplement.

Holders may exchange their warrants for warrants of smaller denominations or combined into fewer warrants of larger denominations, as long as the total number of warrants is not changed.

Holders may exchange or transfer their warrants at the office of the trustee. They may also replace lost, stolen, destroyed or mutilated warrants at that office. We have appointed the trustee to act as our agent for registering warrants in the names of holders and transferring and replacing warrants. We may, without your approval, appoint another entity to perform these functions or perform them ourselves.

Holders will not be required to pay a service charge to transfer or exchange their warrants, but they may be required to pay for any tax or other governmental charge associated with the transfer or exchange. The transfer or exchange, and any replacement, will be made only if our transfer agent is satisfied with the holder's proof of legal ownership. The transfer agent may require an indemnity before replacing any warrants.

If we have the right to redeem, accelerate or settle any warrants before their expiration, and we exercise our right as to less than all those warrants, we may block the transfer or exchange of those warrants during the period beginning 15 days before the day we mail the notice of exercise and ending on the day of that mailing or during any other period specified in the applicable prospectus supplement,

in order to freeze the list of holders to prepare the mailing. We may also refuse to register transfers of or exchange any warrant selected for early settlement, except that we will continue to permit transfers and exchanges of the unsettled portion of any warrant being partially settled.

If we have designated additional transfer agents for your warrant, they will be named in your prospectus supplement. We may, without your approval, appoint additional transfer agents or cancel the appointment of any particular transfer agent. We may also approve a change in the office through which any transfer agent acts.

The rules for exchange described above apply to exchange of warrants for other warrants of the same series and kind. If a warrant is exercisable for a different kind of security, such as one that we have not issued, or for other property, the rules governing that type of exercise will be described in the applicable prospectus supplement.

Payment Mechanics for Warrants

Who Receives Payment? If money is due on a warrant at its payment or settlement date, we will pay the amount to the holder of the warrant against surrender of the warrant at a proper place of payment or, in the case of a global warrant, in accordance with the applicable policies of the depositary. Euroclear and Clearstream, as applicable.

How We Will Make Payments Due in U.S. Dollars. We will follow the practice described in this subsection when paying amounts due in U.S. dollars. Payments of amounts due in other currencies will be made as described in the next subsection.

- Payments on Global Warrants. We will make payments on a global warrant in accordance with the applicable policies of the depositary as in effect from time to time. Under those policies, we will pay directly to the depositary, or its nominee, and not to any indirect owners who own beneficial interests in the global warrant. An indirect owner's right to receive those payments will be governed by the rules and practices of the depositary and its participants, as described in the section entitled "Legal Ownership and Book-Entry Issuance What Is a Global Security?".
- **Payments on Non-Global Warrants.** We will make payments on a warrant in non-global, registered form as follows. We will make all payments by check at the paying agent described below, against surrender of the warrant. All payments by check will be made in next-day funds *i.e.*, funds that become available on the day after the check is cashed.

Alternatively, if a non-global warrant has an original issue price of at least \$1,000,000 (or the equivalent in another currency) and the holder asks us to do so, we will pay any amount that becomes due on the warrant by wire transfer of immediately available funds to an account at a bank in New York City, on the payment or settlement date. To request wire payment, the holder must give the paying agent appropriate wire transfer instructions at least five business days before the requested wire payment is due. Payment will be made only after the warrant is surrendered to the paying agent.

Book-entry and other indirect owners should consult their banks or brokers for information on how they will receive payments on their warrants.

How We Will Make Payments Due in Other Currencies. We will follow the practice described in this subsection when paying amounts that are due in a specified currency other than U.S. dollars.

Payments on Global Warrants. We will make payments on a global warrant in the applicable specified currency in accordance with the applicable policies as in effect from time to time of the depositary, which may be DTC, Euroclear or Clearstream. Unless we specify otherwise in the applicable prospectus supplement, The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York, known as DTC, will be the depositary for all warrants in global form.

Indirect owners of a global warrant denominated in a currency other than U.S. dollars should consult their banks or brokers for information on how to request payment in the specified currency in cases where holders have a right to do so.

Payments on Non-Global Warrants. Except as described in the last paragraph under this heading, we will make payments on warrants in non-global form in the applicable specified currency. We will make these payments by wire transfer of immediately available funds to any account that is maintained in the applicable specified currency at a bank designated by the holder and is acceptable to us and the trustee. To designate an account for wire payment, the holder must give the paying agent appropriate wire instructions at least five business days before the requested wire payment is due. The payment will be made only after the warrant is surrendered to the paying agent.

If a holder fails to give instructions as described above, we will notify the holder at the address in the trustee's records and will make the payment within five business days after the holder provides appropriate instructions. Any late payment made in these circumstances will be treated under the indenture as if made on the payment or settlement date, and no interest will accrue on the late payment from the payment or settlement date to the date paid.

Although a payment on a warrant in non-global form may be due in a specified currency other than U.S. dollars, we will make the payment in U.S. dollars if your prospectus supplement specifies that holders may ask us to do so and you make such a request. To request U.S. dollar payment in these circumstances, the holder must provide appropriate written notice to the trustee at least five business days before the payment or settlement date for which payment in U.S. dollars is requested.

Book-entry and other indirect owners of a warrant with a specified currency other than U.S. dollars should contact their banks or brokers for information about how to receive payments in the specified currency or in U.S. dollars.

Conversion to U.S. Dollars. Unless otherwise indicated in your prospectus supplement, holders are not entitled to receive payments in U.S. dollars of an amount due in another currency, either on a global warrant or a non-global warrant.

If your prospectus supplement specifies that holders may request that we make payments in U.S. dollars of an amount due in another currency, the exchange rate agent described below will calculate the U.S. dollar amount the holder receives in the exchange rate agent's discretion. A holder that requests payment in U.S. dollars will bear all associated currency exchange costs, which will be deducted from the payment.

When the Specified Currency Is Not Available. If we are obligated to make any payment in a specified currency other than U.S. dollars, and the specified currency or any successor currency is not available to us due to circumstances beyond our control — such as the imposition of exchange controls or a disruption in the currency markets — we will be entitled to satisfy our obligation to make the payment in that specified currency by making the payment in U.S. dollars, on the basis of the exchange rate determined by the exchange rate agent described below, in its discretion.

The foregoing will apply to any warrant, whether in global or non-global form, and to any payment, including a payment at the payment or settlement date. Any payment made under the circumstances and in a manner described above will not result in a default under any warrant or the indenture.

Exchange Rate Agent. If we issue a warrant in a specified currency other than U.S. dollars, we will appoint a financial institution to act as the exchange rate agent and will name the institution initially appointed when the warrant is originally issued in the applicable prospectus supplement. We may select Goldman, Sachs & Co. or another of our affiliates to perform this role. We may change the exchange rate agent from time to time after the original issue date of the warrant without your consent and without notifying you of the change.

All determinations made by the exchange rate agent will be in its sole discretion unless we state in the applicable prospectus supplement that any determination requires our approval. In the absence of manifest error, those determinations will be conclusive for all purposes and binding on you and us, without any liability on the part of the exchange rate agent.

Payment When Offices Are Closed. Unless otherwise specified in the applicable prospectus supplement, any payment or delivery of warrant property is due on a warrant on a day that is not a business day, we will make the payment or delivery on the next day that is a business day. Payments or deliveries postponed to the next business day in this situation will be treated under the indenture as if they were made on the original payment or settlement date. Postponement of this kind will not result in a default under any warrant or the indenture, and, unless otherwise specified in the applicable prospectus supplement, no interest will accrue on the postponed amount from the original payment or settlement date to the next day that is a business day.

The term "business day" means, for any warrant, a day that meets all the following applicable requirements:

- for all warrants, is a Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday or Friday that is not a day on which banking institutions in New York City are
 authorized or obligated by law or executive order to close and that satisfies any other criteria specified in your prospectus supplement; and
- if the warrant has a specified currency other than U.S. dollars or euros, is also a day on which banking institutions are not authorized or
 obligated by law, regulation or executive order to close in the principal financial center of the country issuing the specified currency.

Paying Agent. We may appoint one or more financial institutions to act as our paying agents, at whose designated offices warrants in non-global form may be surrendered for payment at their payment or settlement date. We call each of those offices a paying agent. We may add, replace or terminate paying agents from time to time. We may also choose to act as our own paying agent. Initially, we have appointed the trustee, at its corporate trust office in New York City, as the paying agent. We must notify the trustee of changes in the paying agents.

Unclaimed Payments. Regardless of who acts as paying agent, all money paid or warrant property delivered by us to a paying agent that remains unclaimed at the end of two years after the amount is due to a holder will be repaid or redelivered to us. After that two-year period, the holder may look only to us for payment of any money or delivery of any warrant property, and not to the trustee, any other paying agent or anyone else.

Notices

Notices to be given to holders of a global warrant will be given only to the depositary, in accordance with its applicable policies as in effect from time to time. Notices to be given to holders of warrants not in global form will be sent by mail to the respective addresses of the holders as they appear in the trustee's records, and will be deemed given when mailed. Neither the failure to give any notice to a particular holder, nor any defect in a notice given to a particular holder, will affect the sufficiency of any notice given to another holder.

Book-entry and other indirect owners should consult their banks or brokers for information on how they will receive notices.

Our Relationship With the Trustee

The Bank of New York Mellon has provided commercial banking and other services for us and our affiliates in the past and may do so in the future. Among other things, The Bank of New York Mellon provides us with a line of credit, holds debt securities issued by us and serves as trustee or agent with regard to other warrants and debt obligations of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. or its subsidiaries.

The Bank of New York Mellon is initially serving as the trustee for the warrants issued under the warrant indenture and for the senior debt securities and subordinated debt securities. Consequently, if an actual or potential event of default occurs with respect to any of these securities, the trustee may be considered to have a conflicting interest for purposes of the Trust Indenture Act of 1939. In that case, the trustee may be required to resign under one or more of the indentures, and we would be required

to appoint a successor trustee. For this purpose, a "potential" event of default means an event that would be an event of default if the requirements for giving us default notice or for the default having to exist for a specific period of time were disregarded.

General Provisions of Warrant Agreements

We may issue debt warrants and some universal warrants in one or more series under one or more warrant agreements, each to be entered into between us and a bank, trust company or other financial institution as warrant agent. We may add, replace or terminate warrant agents from time to time. We may also choose to act as our own warrant agent. We will describe the warrant agreement under which we issue any warrants in the applicable prospectus supplement, and we will file that agreement with the SEC, either as an exhibit to an amendment to the registration statement of which this prospectus is a part or as an exhibit to a current report on Form 8-K. See "Available Information" above for information on how to obtain a copy of a warrant agreement when it is filed.

We may also issue universal warrants under the warrant indenture. For these warrants, the applicable provisions of the warrant indenture described above would apply instead of the provisions described in this section.

Enforcement of Rights

The warrant agent under a warrant agreement will act solely as our agent in connection with the warrants issued under that agreement. The warrant agent will not assume any obligation or relationship of agency or trust for or with any holders of those warrants. Any holder of warrants may, without the consent of any other person, enforce by appropriate legal action, on its own behalf, its right to exercise those warrants in accordance with their terms. No holder of any warrant will be entitled to any rights of a holder of the debt securities or warrant property purchasable upon exercise of the warrant, including any right to receive payments on those debt securities or warrant property or to enforce any covenants or rights in the relevant indenture or any other agreement.

Modifications Without Consent of Holders

We and the applicable warrant agent may amend any warrant or warrant agreement without the consent of any holder:

- · to cure any ambiguity;
- to cure, correct or supplement any defective or inconsistent provision; or
- to make any other change that we believe is necessary or desirable and will not adversely affect the interests of the affected holders in any
 material respect.

We do not need any approval to make changes that affect only warrants to be issued after the changes take effect. We may also make changes that do not adversely affect a particular warrant in any material respect, even if they adversely affect other warrants in a material respect. In those cases, we do not need to obtain the approval of the holder of the unaffected warrant; we need only obtain any required approvals from the holders of the affected warrants.

Modifications with Consent of Holders

We may not amend any particular warrant or a warrant agreement with respect to any particular warrant unless we obtain the consent of the holder of that warrant. if the amendment would:

- · change the exercise price of the warrant;
- change the kind or reduce the amount of the warrant property or other consideration receivable upon exercise, cancellation or expiration of the warrant;

- shorten, advance or defer the period of time during which the holder may exercise the warrant or otherwise impair the holder's right to exercise
 the warrant; or
- reduce the percentage of outstanding, unexpired warrants of any series or class the consent of whose holders is required to amend the series or class, or the applicable warrant agreement with regard to that series or class, as described below.

Any other change to a particular warrant agreement and the warrants issued under that agreement would require the following approval:

- If the change affects only the warrants of a particular series issued under that agreement, the change must be approved by the holders of a majority of the outstanding, unexpired warrants of that series.
- If the change affects the warrants of more than one series issued under that agreement, the change must be approved by the holders of a
 majority of all outstanding, unexpired warrants of all series affected by the change, with the warrants of all the affected series voting together as
 one class for this purpose.

In each case, the required approval must be given in writing.

Warrant Agreement Will Not Be Qualified Under Trust Indenture Act

No warrant agreement will be qualified as an indenture, and no warrant agent will be required to qualify as a trustee, under the Trust Indenture Act. Therefore, holders of warrants issued under a warrant agreement will not have the protection of the Trust Indenture Act with respect to their warrants.

Mergers and Similar Transactions Permitted; No Restrictive Covenants or Events of Default

The warrant agreements and any warrants issued under the warrant agreements will not restrict our ability to merge or consolidate with, or sell our assets to, another corporation or other entity or to engage in any other transactions. If at any time we merge or consolidate with, or sell our assets substantially as an entirety to, another corporation or other entity, the successor entity will succeed to and assume our obligations under the warrants and warrant agreements. We will then be relieved of any further obligation under the warrants and warrant agreements.

The warrant agreements and any warrants issued under the warrant agreements will not include any restrictions on our ability to put liens on our assets, including our interests in our subsidiaries, nor will they restrict our ability to sell our assets. The warrant agreements and any warrants issued under the warrant agreements also will not provide for any events of default or remedies upon the occurrence of any events of default.

Governing Law

Each warrant agreement and any warrants issued under the warrant agreements will be governed by New York law.

Form, Exchange and Transfer

We will issue each warrant in global — *i.e.*, book-entry — form only, unless we specify otherwise in the applicable prospectus supplement. Warrants in book-entry form will be represented by a global security registered in the name of a depositary, which will be the holder of all the warrants represented by the global security. Those who own beneficial interests in a global warrant will do so through participants in the depositary's system, and the rights of these indirect owners will be governed solely by the applicable procedures of the depositary and its participants. We describe book-entry securities below under "Legal Ownership and Book-Entry Issuance".

In addition, we will issue each warrant in registered form, unless we say otherwise in the applicable prospectus supplement. Bearer securities would be subject to special provisions, as we describe below under "Considerations Relating to Securities Issued in Bearer Form".

If any warrants are issued in non-global form, the following will apply to them:

The warrants will be issued in fully registered form in denominations stated in the applicable prospectus supplement. Holders may exchange their warrants for warrants of smaller denominations or combined into fewer warrants of larger denominations, as long as the total number of warrants is not changed.

Holders may exchange or transfer their warrants at the office of the warrant agent. They may also replace lost, stolen, destroyed or mutilated warrants at that office. We may appoint another entity to perform these functions or perform them ourselves.

Holders will not be required to pay a service charge to transfer or exchange their warrants, but they may be required to pay any tax or other governmental charge associated with the transfer or exchange. The transfer or exchange, and any replacement, will be made only if our transfer agent is satisfied with the holder's proof of legal ownership. The transfer agent may also require an indemnity before replacing any warrants.

If we have the right to redeem, accelerate or settle any warrants before their expiration, and we exercise our right as to less than all those warrants, we may block the transfer or exchange of those warrants during the period beginning 15 days before the day we mail the notice of exercise and ending on the day of that mailing, in order to freeze the list of holders to prepare the mailing. We may also refuse to register transfers of or exchange any warrant selected for early settlement, except that we will continue to permit transfers and exchanges of the unsettled portion of any warrant being partially settled.

Only the depositary will be entitled to transfer or exchange a warrant in global form, since it will be the sole holder of the warrant.

Payments and Notices

In making payments and giving notices with respect to our warrants issued under warrant agreements, we will follow the procedures we plan to use with respect to our warrants issued under the warrant indenture, where applicable. We describe these procedures above under "— General Provisions of Warrant Indenture — Payment Mechanics for Warrants" and "— Notices".

Calculation Agent

Calculations relating to warrants will be made by the calculation agent, an institution that we appoint as our agent for this purpose. That institution may include any affiliate of ours, such as Goldman, Sachs & Co. The prospectus supplement for a particular warrant will name the institution that we have appointed to act as the calculation agent for that warrant as of its original issue date. We may appoint a different institution to serve as calculation agent from time to time after the original issue date of the warrant without your consent and without notifying you of the change.

The calculation agent's determination of any amount of money payable or warrant property deliverable with respect to a warrant will be final and binding in the absence of manifest error.

All percentages resulting from any calculation relating to a warrant will be rounded upward or downward, as appropriate, to the next higher or lower one hundred-thousandth of a percentage point, e.g., 9.876541% (or .09876541) being rounded down to 9.87654% (or .0987654) and 9.876545% (or .09876545) being rounded up to 9.87655% (or .0987655). All amounts used in or resulting from any calculation relating to a warrant will be rounded upward or downward, as appropriate, to the nearest cent, in the case of U.S. dollars, or to the nearest corresponding hundredth of a unit, in the case of a currency other than U.S. dollars, with one-half cent or one-half of a corresponding hundredth of a unit or more being rounded upward.

DESCRIPTION OF PURCHASE CONTRACTS WE MAY OFFER

Please note that in this section entitled "Description of Purchase Contracts We May Offer", references to "The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc"., "we", "our" and "us" refer only to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and not to its consolidated subsidiaries. Also, in this section, references to "holders" mean those who own purchase contracts registered in their own names, on the books that we or our agent maintain for this purpose, and not those who own beneficial interests in purchase contracts registered in street name or in purchase contracts issued in book-entry form through one or more depositaries. Owners of beneficial interests in the purchase contracts should read the section below entitled "Legal Ownership and Book-Entry Issuance".

Purchase Contract Property

We may issue purchase contracts for the purchase or sale of, or whose cash value is determined by reference or linked to the performance, level or value of, one or more of the following:

- securities of one or more issuers, including our common or preferred stock or other securities described in this prospectus or debt or equity securities of third parties;
- · one or more currencies;
- · one or more commodities;
- any other financial, economic or other measure or instrument, including the occurrence or non-occurrence of any event or circumstance;
- · one or more indices: and/or
- · one or more baskets of the items described above.

We refer to each property described above as a "purchase contract property". Each purchase contract will obligate:

- the holder to purchase or sell, and obligate us to sell or purchase, on specified dates, one or more purchase contract properties at a specified price or prices; or
- the holder or us to settle the purchase contract by reference to the value, performance or level of one or more purchase contract properties, on specified dates and at a specified price or prices.

Some purchase contracts may include multiple obligations to purchase or sell different purchase contract properties, and both we and the holder may be sellers or buyers under the same purchase contract. No holder of a purchase contract will have any rights of a holder of the purchase contract property purchasable under the contract, including any right to receive payments on that property.

An investment in purchase contracts may involve special risks, including risks associated with indexed securities and currency-related risks if the purchase contract or purchase contract property is linked to an index or is payable in or otherwise linked to a non-U.S. dollar currency. We describe some of these risks below under "Considerations Relating to Indexed Securities" and "Considerations Relating to Securities Denominated or Payable in or Linked to a Non-U.S. Dollar Currency".

Because we are a holding company, our ability to perform our obligations on the purchase contracts will depend in part on our ability to participate in distributions of assets from our subsidiaries. We discuss these matters above under "Description of Debt Securities We May Offer — We Are a Holding Company".

Our affiliates may resell purchase contracts after their initial issuance in market-making transactions. We describe these transactions above under "Description of Debt Securities We May Offer — Information in Your Prospectus Supplement — Market-Making Transactions".

We May Issue Many Series of Purchase Contracts

We have no restrictions on the number of purchase contracts or number of distinct series of purchase contracts we may issue. We may also "reopen" a previously issued series of purchase contracts and issue additional purchase contracts of that series. In addition, we may issue a purchase contract separately or as part of a unit, as described below under "Description of Units We May Offer".

This section summarizes terms of the purchase contracts that apply generally to all purchase contracts. We describe the specific terms of your purchase contract in the prospectus supplement accompanying this prospectus. Those terms may vary from the terms described here.

As you read this section, please remember that the specific terms of your purchase contract as described in your prospectus supplement will supplement and, if applicable, may modify or replace the general terms described in this section. If there are differences between your prospectus supplement and this prospectus, your prospectus supplement will control. Thus, the statements we make in this section may not apply to your purchase contract.

When we refer to a series of purchase contracts, we mean all the purchase contracts issued as part of the same series under the applicable governing instrument. When we refer to your prospectus supplement, we mean the prospectus supplement describing the specific terms of the purchase contract you purchase. The terms used in your prospectus supplement will have the meanings described in this prospectus, unless otherwise specified.

Prepaid Purchase Contracts; Applicability of Debt Indentures

Some purchase contracts may require the holders to satisfy their obligations under the contracts at the time the contracts are issued. We refer to those contracts as "prepaid purchase contracts". Our obligation to settle a prepaid purchase contract on the relevant settlement date will be one of our senior debt securities or subordinated debt securities, which are described above under "Description of Debt Securities We May Offer". Prepaid purchase contracts will be issued under the applicable debt indenture, and the provisions of that debt indenture will govern those contracts.

Non-Prepaid Purchase Contracts; No Trust Indenture Act Protection

Some purchase contracts do not require the holders to satisfy their obligations under the contracts until settlement. We refer to those contracts as "non-prepaid purchase contracts". The holder of a non-prepaid purchase contract may remain obligated to perform under the contract for a substantial period of time.

Non-prepaid purchase contracts will be issued under a unit agreement, if they are issued in units, or under some other document, if they are not. We describe unit agreements generally under "Description of Units We May Offer" below. We will describe the particular governing document that applies to your non-prepaid purchase contracts in the applicable prospectus supplement.

Non-prepaid purchase contracts will not be senior debt securities or subordinated debt securities and will not be issued under one of our indentures. Consequently, no governing documents for non-prepaid purchase contracts will be qualified as indentures, and no third party will be required to qualify as a trustee with regard to those contracts, under the Trust Indenture Act. Holders of non-prepaid purchase contracts will not have the protection of the Trust Indenture Act with respect to those contracts.

General Terms of Purchase Contracts

Your prospectus supplement may contain, where applicable, the following information about your purchase contract:

- whether the purchase contract obligates the holder to purchase or sell, or both purchase and sell, one or more purchase contract properties and the nature and amount of each of those properties, or the method of determining those amounts;
- · whether the purchase contract is to be prepaid or not and the governing document for the contract;
- whether the purchase contract is to be settled by delivery, or by reference or linkage to the value, performance or level of, the purchase contract properties;
- · any acceleration, cancellation, termination or other provisions relating to the settlement of the purchase contract;
- whether the purchase contract will be issued as part of a unit and, if so, the other securities comprising the unit and whether any unit securities will be subject to a security interest in our favor as described below; and
- · whether the purchase contract will be issued in fully registered or bearer form and in global or non-global form.

If we issue a purchase contract as part of a unit, the accompanying prospectus supplement will state whether the contract will be separable from the other securities in the unit before the contract settlement date. A purchase contract issued in a unit in the United States may not be so separated before the 91st day after the unit is issued.

Additional Terms of Non-Prepaid Purchase Contracts

In addition to the general terms described above, a non-prepaid purchase contract may include the following additional terms.

Pledge by Holders to Secure Performance

If we say so in the applicable prospectus supplement, the holder's obligations under the purchase contract and governing document will be secured by collateral. In that case, the holder, acting through the unit agent as its attorney-in-fact, if applicable, will pledge the items described below to a collateral agent named in the prospectus supplement, which will hold them, for our benefit, as collateral to secure the holder's obligations. We refer to this as the "pledge" and all the items described below as the "pledged items". The pledge will create a security interest in the holder's entire interest in and to:

- any other securities included in the unit, if the purchase contract is part of a unit, and/or any other property specified in the applicable prospectus supplement;
- all additions to and substitutions for the pledged items;
- all income, proceeds and collections received in respect of the pledged items; and
- · all powers and rights owned or acquired later with respect to the pledged items.

The collateral agent will forward all payments and proceeds from the pledged items to us, unless the payments and proceeds have been released from the pledge in accordance with the purchase contract and the governing document. We will use the payments and proceeds from the pledged items to satisfy the holder's obligations under the purchase contract.

Settlement of Purchase Contracts That Are Part of Units

The following will apply to a non-prepaid purchase contract that is issued together with any of our debt securities as part of a unit. If the holder fails to satisfy its obligations under the purchase contract, the unit agent may apply the principal payments on the debt securities to satisfy those obligations as provided in the governing document. If the holder is permitted to settle its obligations by cash payment, the holder may be permitted to do so by delivering the debt securities in the unit to the unit agent as provided in the governing document.

Book-entry and other indirect owners should consult their banks or brokers for information on how to settle their purchase contracts.

Failure of Holder to Perform Obligations

If the holder fails to settle its obligations under a non-prepaid purchase contract as required, the holder will not receive the purchase contract property or other consideration to be delivered at settlement. Holders that fail to make timely settlement may also be obligated to pay interest or other amounts.

Assumption of Obligations by Transferee

When the holder of a non-prepaid purchase contract transfers the purchase contract to a new holder, the new holder will assume the obligations of the prior holder with respect to the purchase contract, and the prior holder will be released from those obligations. Under the non-prepaid purchase contract, we will consent to the transfer of the purchase contract, to the assumption of those obligations by the new holder and to the release of the prior holder, if the transfer is made in accordance with the provisions of the purchase contract.

Mergers and Similar Transactions Permitted; No Restrictive Covenants or Events of Default

Purchase contracts that are not prepaid will not restrict our ability to merge or consolidate with, or sell our assets to, another corporation or other entity or to engage in any other transactions. If at any time we merge or consolidate with, or sell our assets substantially as an entirety to, another corporation or other entity, the successor entity will succeed to and assume our obligations under these purchase contracts. We will then be relieved of any further obligation under these purchase contracts.

Purchase contracts that are not prepaid will not include any restrictions on our ability to put liens on our assets, including our interests in our subsidiaries, nor will they restrict our ability to sell our assets. These purchase contracts also will not provide for any events of default or remedies upon the occurrence of any events of default.

Governing Law

The purchase contracts and any governing documents will be governed by New York law.

Form, Exchange and Transfer

We will issue each purchase contract in global — *i.e.*, book-entry — form only, unless we specify otherwise in the applicable prospectus supplement. Purchase contracts in book-entry form will be represented by a global security registered in the name of a depositary, which will be the holder of all the purchase contracts represented by the global security. Those who own beneficial interests in a purchase contract will do so through participants in the depositary's clearing system, and the rights of these indirect owners will be governed solely by the applicable procedures of the depositary and its participants. We describe book-entry securities below under "Legal Ownership and Book-Entry Issuance".

In addition, we will issue each purchase contract in registered form, unless we say otherwise in the applicable prospectus supplement. Bearer securities would be subject to special provisions, as we describe below under "Considerations Relating to Securities Issued in Bearer Form".

If any purchase contracts are issued in non-global form, the following will apply to them:

- The purchase contracts will be issued in fully registered form in denominations stated in the applicable prospectus supplement. Holders may exchange their purchase contracts for contracts of smaller denominations or combined into fewer contracts of larger denominations, as long as the total amount is not changed.
- Holders may exchange or transfer their purchase contracts at the office of the trustee, unit agent or other agent we name in the applicable
 prospectus supplement. Holders may also replace lost, stolen, destroyed or mutilated purchase contracts at that office. We may appoint another
 entity to perform these functions or perform them ourselves.

- Holders will not be required to pay a service charge to transfer or exchange their purchase contracts, but they may be required to pay for any tax
 or other governmental charge associated with the transfer or exchange. The transfer or exchange, and any replacement, will be made only if our
 transfer agent is satisfied with the holder's proof of legal ownership. The transfer agent may also require an indemnity before replacing any
 purchase contracts.
- If we have the right to redeem, accelerate or settle any purchase contracts before their maturity, and we exercise our right as to less than all those purchase contracts, we may block the transfer or exchange of those purchase contracts during the period beginning 15 days before the day we mail the notice of exercise and ending on the day of that mailing, in order to freeze the list of holders to prepare the mailing. We may also refuse to register transfers of or exchange any purchase contract selected for early settlement, except that we will continue to permit transfers and exchanges of the unsettled portion of any purchase contract being partially settled.

Only the depositary will be entitled to transfer or exchange a purchase contract in global form, since it will be the sole holder of the purchase contract.

Payments and Notices

In making payments and giving notices with respect to purchase contracts, we will follow the procedures we plan to use with respect to our debt securities, when applicable. We describe these procedures above under "Description of Debt Securities We May Offer — Payment Mechanics for Debt Securities" and "Description of Debt Securities We May Offer — Notices".

DESCRIPTION OF UNITS WE MAY OFFER

Please note that in this section entitled "Description of Units We May Offer", references to "The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.", "we", "our" and "us" refer only to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and not to its consolidated subsidiaries. Also, in this section, references to "holders" mean those who own units registered in their own names, on the books that we or our agent maintain for this purpose, and not those who own beneficial interests in units registered in street name or in units issued in book-entry form through one or more depositaries. Owners of beneficial interests in the units should read the section below entitled "Legal Ownership and Book-Entry Issuance".

We may issue units comprised of one or more debt securities, warrants, purchase contracts, shares of preferred stock, depositary shares and capital securities, as well as debt or equity securities of third parties, in any combination. Each unit will be issued so that the holder of the unit is also the holder of each security included in the unit. Thus, the holder of a unit will have the rights and obligations of a holder of each included security. The unit agreement under which a unit is issued may provide that the securities included in the unit may not be held or transferred separately, at any time or at any time before a specified date.

The applicable prospectus supplement may describe:

- the designation and terms of the units and of the securities comprising the units, including whether and under what circumstances those securities may be held or transferred separately;
- · any provisions of the governing unit agreement that differ from those described below; and
- · any provisions for the issuance, payment, settlement, transfer or exchange of the units or of the securities comprising the units.

The provisions described in this section, as well as those described under "Description of Debt Securities We May Offer", "Description of Warrants We May Offer", "Description of Purchase Contracts We May Offer", "Description of Preferred Stock We May Offer", and "Description of Capital Securities and Related Instruments", will apply to the securities included in each unit, to the extent relevant.

An investment in units may involve special risks, including risks associated with indexed securities and currency-related risks if the securities comprising the units are linked to an index or are payable in or otherwise linked to a non-U.S. dollar currency. We describe some of these risks below under "Considerations Relating to Indexed Securities" and "Considerations Relating to Securities Denominated or Payable in or Linked to a Non-U.S. Dollar Currency".

Our affiliates may resell units after their initial issuance in market-making transactions. We discuss these transactions above under "Description of Debt Securities We May Offer — Information in Your Prospectus Supplement — Market-Making Transactions".

We May Issue Many Series of Units

We may issue units in such amounts and in as many distinct series as we wish. We may also "reopen" a previously issued series of units and issue additional units of that series. This section summarizes terms of the units that apply generally to all series. We describe most of the financial and other specific terms of your series in the applicable prospectus supplement accompanying this prospectus. Those terms may vary from the terms described here.

As you read this section, please remember that the specific terms of your unit as described in your prospectus supplement will supplement and, if applicable, may modify or replace the general terms described in this section. If there are differences between your prospectus supplement and this prospectus, your prospectus supplement will control. Thus, the statements we make in this section may not apply to your unit.

When we refer to a series of units, we mean all units issued as part of the same series under the applicable unit agreement. We will identify the series of which your units are a part in your prospectus supplement. When we refer to your prospectus supplement, we mean the prospectus supplement describing the specific terms of the units you purchase. The terms used in your prospectus supplement will have the meanings described in this prospectus, unless otherwise specified.

Unit Agreements: Prepaid, Non-Prepaid and Other

We will issue the units under one or more unit agreements to be entered into between us and a bank or other financial institution, as unit agent. We may add, replace or terminate unit agents from time to time. We may also choose to act as our own unit agent, and we may select Goldman, Sachs & Co. or another of our affiliates to perform this role. We will identify the unit agreement under which your units will be issued and the unit agent under that agreement in your prospectus supplement.

If a unit includes one or more purchase contracts and all those purchase contracts are prepaid purchase contracts, we will issue the unit under a "prepaid unit agreement". Prepaid unit agreements will reflect the fact that the holders of the related units have no further obligations under the purchase contracts included in their units. If a unit includes one or more non-prepaid purchase contracts, we will issue the unit under a "non-prepaid unit agreement". Non-prepaid unit agreements will reflect the fact that the holders have payment or other obligations under one or more of the purchase contracts comprising their units. We may also issue units under other kinds of unit agreements, which we will describe in the applicable prospectus supplement. In some cases, we may issue units under one of our indentures.

A unit agreement may also serve as the governing document for a security included in a unit. For example, a non-prepaid purchase contract that is part of a unit may be issued under and governed by the relevant unit agreement.

In this prospectus, we refer to prepaid unit agreements, non-prepaid unit agreements and other unit agreements, generally, as "unit agreements". We will file the unit agreement under which we issue your units with the SEC, either as an exhibit to an amendment to the registration statement of which this prospectus is a part or as an exhibit to a current report on Form 8-K. See "Available Information" above for information on how to obtain a copy of a unit agreement when it is filed.

General Provisions of a Unit Agreement

The following provisions will generally apply to all unit agreements unless otherwise stated in the applicable prospectus supplement.

Enforcement of Rights

The unit agent under a unit agreement will act solely as our agent in connection with the units issued under that agreement. The unit agent will not assume any obligation or relationship of agency or trust for or with any holders of those units or of the securities comprising those units. The unit agent will not be obligated to take any action on behalf of those holders to enforce or protect their rights under the units or the included securities.

Except as described in the next paragraph, a holder of a unit may, without the consent of the unit agent or any other holder, enforce its rights as holder under any security included in the unit, in accordance with the terms of that security and the indenture, warrant agreement, unit agreement or trust agreement under which that security is issued. Those terms are described elsewhere in this prospectus under the sections relating to debt securities, warrants, purchase contracts and capital securities.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, a unit agreement may limit or otherwise affect the ability of a holder of units issued under that agreement to enforce its rights, including any right to bring a legal action, with respect to those units or any securities, other than debt securities, prepaid purchase contracts, warrants issued under the warrant indenture and capital securities, that are included in those units. Limitations of this kind will be described in the applicable prospectus supplement.

Modification Without Consent of Holders

We and the applicable unit agent may amend any unit or unit agreement without the consent of any holder:

- · to cure any ambiguity;
- · to correct or supplement any defective or inconsistent provision; or
- to make any other change that we believe is necessary or desirable and will not adversely affect the interests of the affected holders in any
 material respect.

We do not need any approval to make changes that affect only units to be issued after the changes take effect. We may also make changes that do not adversely affect a particular unit in any material respect, even if they adversely affect other units in a material respect. In those cases, we do not need to obtain the approval of the holder of the unaffected unit; we need only obtain any required approvals from the holders of the affected units.

The foregoing applies also to any security issued under a unit agreement, as the governing document.

Modification With Consent of Holders

We may not amend any particular unit or a unit agreement with respect to any particular unit unless we obtain the consent of the holder of that unit, if the amendment would:

- impair any right of the holder to exercise or enforce any right under a security included in the unit if the terms of that security require the consent of the holder to any changes that would impair the exercise or enforcement of that right;
- impair the right of the holder to purchase or sell, as the case may be, the purchase contract property under any non-prepaid purchase contract issued under the unit agreement, or to require delivery of or payment for that property when due; or
- reduce the percentage of outstanding units of any series or class the consent of whose holders is required to amend that series or class, or the applicable unit agreement with respect to that series or class, as described below.

Any other change to a particular unit agreement and the units issued under that agreement would require the following approval:

- If the change affects only the units of a particular series issued under that agreement, the change must be approved by the holders of a majority
 of the outstanding units of that series.
- If the change affects the units of more than one series issued under that agreement, it must be approved by the holders of a majority of all
 outstanding units of all series affected by the change, with the units of all the affected series voting together as one class for this purpose.

These provisions regarding changes with majority approval also apply to changes affecting any securities issued under a unit agreement, as the governing document

In each case, the required approval must be given by written consent.

Unit Agreements Will Not Be Qualified Under Trust Indenture Act

No unit agreement will be qualified as an indenture, and no unit agent will be required to qualify as a trustee, under the Trust Indenture Act. Therefore, holders of units issued under unit agreements will not have the protections of the Trust Indenture Act with respect to their units.

Additional Provisions of a Non-Prepaid Unit Agreement

In addition to the provisions described above, a non-prepaid unit agreement will include the following provisions.

Obligations of Unit Holder

Each holder of units issued under a non-prepaid unit agreement will:

- be bound by the terms of each non-prepaid purchase contract included in the holder's units and by the terms of the unit agreement with respect
 to those contracts; and
- appoint the unit agent as its authorized agent to execute, deliver and perform on the holder's behalf each non-prepaid purchase contract included in the holder's units.

The unit agreement for a unit that includes a non-prepaid purchase contract will also include provisions regarding the holder's pledge of collateral and special settlement provisions. These are described above under "Description of Purchase Contracts We May Offer — Additional Terms of Non-Prepaid Purchase Contracts".

Failure of Holder to Perform Obligations

If the holder fails to settle its obligations under a non-prepaid purchase contract included in a unit as required, the holder will not receive the purchase contract property or other consideration to be delivered at settlement of the purchase contract. Holders that fail to make timely settlement may also be obligated to pay interest or other amounts.

Assumption of Obligations by Transferee

When the holder of a unit issued under a non-prepaid unit agreement transfers the unit to a new holder, the new holder will assume the obligations of the prior holder with respect to each non-prepaid purchase contract included in the unit, and the prior holder will be released from those obligations. Under the non-prepaid unit agreement, we will consent to the transfer of the unit, to the assumption of those obligations by the new holder and to the release of the prior holder, if the transfer is made in accordance with the provisions of that agreement.

Mergers and Similar Transactions Permitted; No Restrictive Covenants or Events of Default

The unit agreements will not restrict our ability to merge or consolidate with, or sell our assets to, another corporation or other entity or to engage in any other transactions. If at any time we merge or consolidate with, or sell our assets substantially as an entirety to, another corporation or other entity, the successor entity will succeed to and assume our obligations under the unit agreements. We will then be relieved of any further obligation under these agreements.

The unit agreements will not include any restrictions on our ability to put liens on our assets, including our interests in our subsidiaries, nor will they restrict our ability to sell our assets. The unit agreements also will not provide for any events of default or remedies upon the occurrence of any events of default.

Governing Law

The unit agreements and the units will be governed by New York law.

Form, Exchange and Transfer

We will issue each unit in global — *i.e.*, book-entry — form only. Units in book-entry form will be represented by a global security registered in the name of a depositary, which will be the holder of all the units represented by the global security. Those who own beneficial interests in a unit will do so through participants in the depositary's system, and the rights of these indirect owners will be governed solely by the applicable procedures of the depositary and its participants. We describe book-entry securities below under "Legal Ownership and Book-Entry Issuance".

In addition, we will issue each unit in registered form, unless we say otherwise in the applicable prospectus supplement. Bearer securities would be subject to special provisions, as we describe below under "Considerations Relating to Securities Issued in Bearer Form".

Each unit and all securities comprising the unit will be issued in the same form.

If we issue any units in registered, non-global form, the following will apply to them.

The units will be issued in the denominations stated in the applicable prospectus supplement. Holders may exchange their units for units of smaller denominations or combined into fewer units of larger denominations, as long as the total amount is not changed.

- Holders may exchange or transfer their units at the office of the unit agent. Holders may also replace lost, stolen, destroyed or mutilated units at that office. We may appoint another entity to perform these functions or perform them ourselves.
- Holders will not be required to pay a service charge to transfer or exchange their units, but they may be required to pay for any tax or other
 governmental charge associated with the transfer or exchange. The transfer or exchange, and any replacement, will be made only if our transfer
 agent is satisfied with the holder's proof of legal ownership. The transfer agent may also require an indemnity before replacing any units.
- If we have the right to redeem, accelerate or settle any units before their maturity, and we exercise our right as to less than all those units or other securities, we may block the exchange or transfer of those units during the period beginning 15 days before the day we mail the notice of exercise and ending on the day of that mailing, in order to freeze the list of holders to prepare the mailing. We may also refuse to register transfers of or exchange any unit selected for early settlement, except that we will continue to permit transfers and exchanges of the unsettled portion of any unit being partially settled. We may also block the transfer or exchange of any unit in this manner if the unit includes securities that are or may be selected for early settlement.

Only the depositary will be entitled to transfer or exchange a unit in global form, since it will be the sole holder of the unit.

Payments and Notices

In making payments and giving notices with respect to our units, we will follow the procedures we plan to use with respect to our debt securities, where applicable. We describe those procedures above under "Description of Debt Securities We May Offer — Payment Mechanics for Debt Securities" and "Description of Debt Securities We May Offer — Notices".

DESCRIPTION OF PREFERRED STOCK WE MAY OFFER

Please note that in this section entitled "Description of Preferred Stock We May Offer", references to "The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.", "we", "our" and "us" refer only to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and not to its consolidated subsidiaries. Also, in this section, references to "holders" mean those who own shares of preferred stock or depositary shares, as the case may be, registered in their own names, on the books that the registrar or we maintain for this purpose, and not those who own beneficial interests in shares registered in street name or in shares issued in book-entry form through one or more depositaries. Owners of beneficial interests in shares of preferred stock or depositary shares should read the section below entitled "Legal Ownership and Book-Entry Issuance".

We may issue our preferred stock in one or more series, as described below. We may also "reopen" a previously issued series of preferred stock and issue additional preferred stock of that series. This section summarizes terms of the preferred stock that apply generally to all series. We describe most of the financial and other specific terms of your series in the applicable prospectus supplement accompanying this prospectus. Those terms may vary from the terms described here.

As you read this section, please remember that the specific terms of your series of preferred stock and any related depositary shares as described in your prospectus supplement will supplement and, if applicable, may modify or replace the general terms described in this section. If there are differences between your prospectus supplement and this prospectus, your prospectus supplement will control. Thus, the statements we make in this section may not apply to your series of preferred stock or any related depositary shares.

When we refer to a series of preferred stock, we mean all of the shares of preferred stock issued as part of the same series under a certificate of designations filed as part of our restated certificate of incorporation. When we refer to your prospectus supplement, we mean the prospectus supplement describing the specific terms of the preferred stock and any related depositary shares you purchase. The terms used in your prospectus supplement will have the meanings described in this prospectus, unless otherwise specified.

Our affiliates may resell preferred stock and depositary shares after their initial issuance in market-making transactions. We describe these transactions above under "Description of Debt Securities We May Offer — Information in Your Prospectus Supplement — Market-Making Transactions".

Our Authorized Preferred Stock

Our authorized capital stock includes 150,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par value \$0.01 per share. We have 124,000 shares of non-cumulative perpetual preferred stock (designated as four separate series), \$25,000 liquidation preference per share, issued as of the date of this prospectus. The prospectus supplement with respect to any offered preferred stock will describe any preferred stock that may be issued and outstanding as of the date of the applicable prospectus supplement.

Preferred Stock Issued in Separate Series

Our board of directors is authorized to divide the preferred stock into series and, with respect to each series, to determine the designations, the powers, preferences and rights and the qualifications, limitations and restrictions of the series, including:

- dividend rights (which may be cumulative or non-cumulative);
- · conversion or exchange rights;
- · voting rights;
- · redemption rights and terms;
- · liquidation preferences;

- sinking fund provisions;
- · the serial designation of the series; and
- · the number of shares constituting the series.

Subject to the rights of the holders of any series of preferred stock, the number of authorized shares of any series of preferred stock may be increased or decreased, but not below the number of shares of that series then outstanding, by resolution adopted by our board of directors and approved by the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the voting power of all outstanding shares of capital stock entitled to vote on the matter, voting together as a single class. No separate vote of the holders of any series of preferred stock is required for an increase or decrease in the number of authorized shares of that series.

Before we issue any series of preferred stock, our board of directors, or a committee of our board authorized to do so by our board, will adopt resolutions creating and designating the series and will file a certificate of designations stating the terms of the series with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware. None of our stockholders will need to approve that amendment.

In addition, as described below under "— Fractional or Multiple Shares of Preferred Stock Issued as Depositary Shares", we may, at our option, instead of offering whole individual shares of any series of preferred stock, offer depositary shares evidenced by depositary receipts, each representing a fraction of a share or some multiple of shares of the particular series of preferred stock issued and deposited with a depositary. The fraction of a share or multiple of shares of preferred stock which each depositary share represents will be stated in the prospectus supplement relating to any series of preferred stock offered through depositary shares.

The rights of holders of preferred stock may be adversely affected by the rights of holders of preferred stock that may be issued in the future. Our board of directors may cause shares of preferred stock to be issued in public or private transactions for any proper corporate purpose. Examples of proper corporate purposes include issuances to obtain additional financing for acquisitions and issuances to officers, directors and employees under their respective benefit plans. Shares of preferred stock we issue may have the effect of discouraging or making more difficult an acquisition of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. We may choose to issue preferred stock, together with our other securities described in this prospectus, in units.

Under existing interpretations of the Federal Reserve Board, if the holders of the preferred stock become entitled to vote for the election of directors because dividends on the preferred stock are in arrears, the preferred stock may then be deemed a "class of voting securities" and a holder of 25% or more of the preferred stock or a holder of 5% or more of the preferred stock that is otherwise a bank holding company may then be regulated as a "bank holding company" with respect to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. in accordance with the U.S. Bank Holding Company Act of 1956 (the "Bank Holding Company Act"). In addition, at such time:

- any bank holding company or foreign bank with a U.S. presence generally would be required to obtain the approval of the Federal Reserve Board under the Bank Holding Company Act to acquire or retain 5% or more of the preferred stock; and
- any person other than a bank holding company may be required to obtain the approval of the Federal Reserve Board under the U.S. Change in Bank Control Act of 1978 to acquire or retain 10% or more of the preferred stock.

Before exercising its option to redeem any shares of preferred stock, The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. will obtain the approval of the Federal Reserve Board if then required by applicable law.

Preferred stock will be fully paid and non-assessable when issued, which means that its holders will have paid their purchase price in full and that we may not ask them to surrender additional funds. Holders of preferred stock will not have preemptive or subscription rights to acquire more stock of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.

The transfer agent, registrar, dividend disbursing agent and redemption agent for shares of each series of preferred stock will be named in the prospectus supplement relating to that series.

Rank

Shares of each series of preferred stock will rank equally with each other series of preferred stock and senior to our common stock with respect to dividends and distributions of assets. In addition, we will generally be able to pay dividends and distributions of assets to holders of our preferred stock only if we have satisfied our obligations on our indebtedness then due and payable.

Dividends

Holders of each series of preferred stock will be entitled to receive cash dividends when, as and if declared by our board of directors, from funds legally available for the payment of dividends. The rates and dates of payment of dividends for each series of preferred stock will be stated in the applicable prospectus supplement. Dividends will be payable to holders of record of preferred stock as they appear on our books on the record dates fixed by our board of directors. Dividends on any series of preferred stock may be cumulative or noncumulative, as set forth in the applicable prospectus supplement.

Redemption

If specified in an applicable prospectus supplement, a series of preferred stock may be redeemable at any time, in whole or in part, at our option or the holder's, and may be redeemed mandatorily.

Any restriction on the repurchase or redemption by us of our preferred stock, including while there is an arrearage in the payment of dividends, will be described in the applicable prospectus supplement.

Any partial redemptions of our preferred stock will be made in a way that our board of directors decides is equitable.

Unless we default in the payment of the redemption price, dividends will cease to accrue after the redemption date on shares of our preferred stock called for redemption and all rights of holders of these shares will terminate except for the right to receive the redemption price.

Conversion or Exchange Rights

The prospectus supplement relating to any series of preferred stock that is convertible, exercisable or exchangeable will state the terms on which shares of that series are convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for shares of common stock, another series of preferred stock or other securities of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. or debt or equity securities of third parties.

Liquidation Preference

Upon any voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., holders of each series of preferred stock will be entitled to receive distributions upon liquidation in the amount described in the applicable prospectus supplement, plus an amount equal to any accrued and unpaid dividends. These distributions will be made before any distribution is made on any securities ranking junior to the preferred stock with respect to liquidation, including our common stock. If the liquidation amounts payable relating to the preferred stock of any series and any other securities ranking on a parity regarding liquidation rights are not paid in full, the holders of the preferred stock of that series and the other securities will share in any distribution of our available assets on a ratable basis in proportion to the full liquidation preferences (which includes declared and unpaid dividends in the case of non-cumulative stock and unpaid, accrued, cumulative dividends, whether or not declared, in the case of cumulative stock) of each security. Holders of our preferred stock will not be entitled to any other amounts from us after they have received their full liquidation preference.

Voting Rights

The holders of preferred stock of each series will have no voting rights, except:

- · as stated in the applicable prospectus supplement and in the certificate of designations establishing the series; or
- · as required by applicable law.

Mergers and Similar Transactions Permitted; No Restrictive Covenants

The terms of the preferred stock will not include any restrictions on our ability to merge or consolidate with, or sell our assets to, another corporation or other entity or to engage in any other transactions. The terms of the preferred stock also will not include any restrictions on our ability to put liens on our assets, including our interests in our subsidiaries.

Because we are a holding company, our ability to make payments on the preferred stock will depend in part on our ability to participate in distributions of assets from our subsidiaries. We discuss these matters above under "Description of Debt Securities We May Offer — We Are a Holding Company".

Governing Law

The preferred stock will be governed by Delaware law.

Fractional or Multiple Shares of Preferred Stock Issued as Depositary Shares

We may choose to offer fractional shares or some multiple of shares of our preferred stock, rather than whole individual shares. If we decide to do so, we will issue the preferred stock in the form of depositary shares. Each depositary share would represent a fraction or multiple of a share of the preferred stock and would be evidenced by a depositary receipt. We will issue depositary shares under a deposit agreement between a depositary, which we will appoint in our discretion, and us.

Deposit Agreement

We will deposit the shares of preferred stock to be represented by depositary shares under a deposit agreement. The parties to the deposit agreement will be:

- · The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.;
- a bank or other financial institution selected by us and named in the applicable prospectus supplement, as preferred stock depositary; and
- the holders from time to time of depositary receipts issued under that depositary agreement.

Each holder of a depositary share will be entitled to all the rights and preferences of the underlying preferred stock, including, where applicable, dividend, voting, redemption, conversion and liquidation rights, in proportion to the applicable fraction or multiple of a share of preferred stock represented by the depositary share. The depositary shares will be evidenced by depositary receipts issued under the deposit agreement. The depositary receipts will be distributed to those persons purchasing the fractional or multiple shares of preferred stock. A depositary receipt may evidence any number of whole depositary shares.

We have filed a deposit agreement, including the form of depositary receipt, with the SEC as an exhibit to a registration statement on Form 8-A, and in the future we may file additional deposit agreements, including the form of depository receipt, with the SEC, either as an exhibit to an amendment to the registration statement of which this prospectus forms a part or as an exhibit to a registration statement on Form 8-A. See "Available Information" above for information on how to obtain copies of documents filed by us with the SEC.

Dividends and Other Distributions

The preferred stock depositary will distribute any cash dividends or other cash distributions received in respect of the deposited preferred stock to the record holders of depositary shares relating to the underlying preferred stock in proportion to the number of depositary shares owned by the holders. The preferred stock depositary will distribute any property received by it other than cash to the

record holders of depositary shares entitled to those distributions, unless it determines that the distribution cannot be made proportionally among those holders or that it is not feasible to make a distribution. In that event, the preferred stock depositary may, with our approval, sell the property and distribute the net proceeds from the sale to the holders of the depositary shares in proportion to the number of depositary shares they own.

The amounts distributed to holders of depositary shares will be reduced by any amounts required to be withheld by the preferred stock depositary or by us on account of taxes or other governmental charges.

Redemption of Preferred Stock

If we redeem preferred stock represented by depositary shares, the preferred stock depositary will redeem the depositary shares from the proceeds it receives from the redemption, in whole or in part, of the preferred stock. The preferred stock depositary will redeem the depositary shares at a price per share equal to the applicable fraction or multiple of the redemption price per share of preferred stock. Whenever we redeem shares of preferred stock held by the preferred stock depositary, the preferred stock depositary will redeem as of the same date the number of depositary shares representing the redeemed shares of preferred stock. If fewer than all the depositary shares are to be redeemed, the preferred stock depositary will select the depositary shares to be redeemed by lot or ratably or by any other equitable method it chooses.

After the date fixed for redemption, the depositary shares called for redemption will no longer be deemed to be outstanding, and all rights of the holders of those shares will cease, except the right to receive the amount payable and any other property to which the holders were entitled upon the redemption. To receive this amount or other property, the holders must surrender the depositary receipts evidencing their depositary shares to the preferred stock depositary. Any funds that we deposit with the preferred stock depositary shares that the holders fail to redeem will be returned to us after a period of two years from the date we deposit the funds.

Withdrawal of Preferred Stock

Unless the related depositary shares have previously been called for redemption, any holder of depositary shares may receive the number of whole shares of the related series of preferred stock and any money or other property represented by those depositary receipts after surrendering the depositary receipts at the corporate trust office of the preferred stock depositary, paying any taxes, charges and fees provided for in the deposit agreement and complying with any other requirement of the deposit agreement. Holders of depositary shares making these withdrawals will be entitled to receive whole shares of preferred stock, but holders of whole shares of preferred stock will not be entitled to deposit that preferred stock under the deposit agreement or to receive depositary receipts for that preferred stock after withdrawal. If the depositary shares surrendered by the holder in connection with withdrawal exceed the number of depositary shares that represent the number of whole shares of preferred stock to be withdrawn, the preferred stock depositary will deliver to that holder at the same time a new depositary receipt evidencing the excess number of depositary shares.

Voting Deposited Preferred Stock

When the preferred stock depositary receives notice of any meeting at which the holders of any series of deposited preferred stock are entitled to vote, the preferred stock depositary will mail the information contained in the notice to the record holders of the depositary shares relating to the applicable series of preferred stock. Each record holder of the depositary shares on the record date, which will be the same date as the record date for the preferred stock, may instruct the preferred stock depositary to vote the amount of the preferred stock represented by the holder's depositary shares. To the extent possible, the preferred stock depositary will vote the amount of the series of preferred stock represented by depositary shares in accordance with the instructions it receives. We will agree to take all reasonable actions that the preferred stock depositary determines are necessary to enable the preferred stock depositary to vote as instructed. If the preferred stock depositary does not receive specific instructions from the holders of any depositary shares representing a series of preferred stock, it will vote all shares of that series held by it proportionately with instructions received.

Conversion of Preferred Stock

If the prospectus supplement relating to the depositary shares says that the deposited preferred stock is convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for common stock, preferred stock of another series or other securities of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. or debt or equity securities of one or more third parties, the following will apply. The depositary shares, as such, will not be convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for any securities of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. or any third party. Rather, any holder of the depositary shares may surrender the related depositary receipts to the preferred stock depositary with written instructions to instruct us to cause conversion, exercise or exchange of the preferred stock represented by the depositary shares into or for whole shares of common stock, shares of another series of preferred stock or other securities of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. or debt or equity securities of the relevant third party, as applicable. Upon receipt of those instructions and any amounts payable by the holder in connection with the conversion, exercise or exchange, we will cause the conversion, exercise or exchange using the same procedures as those provided for conversion, exercise or exchange of the deposited preferred stock. If only some of the depositary shares are to be converted, exercised or exchanged, a new depositary receipt or receipts will be issued for any depositary shares not to be converted, exercised or exchanged.

Amendment and Termination of the Deposit Agreement

We may amend the form of depositary receipt evidencing the depositary shares and any provision of the deposit agreement at any time and from time to time by agreement with the preferred stock depositary. However, any amendment that imposes additional charges or materially and adversely alters any substantial existing right of the holders of depositary shares will not be effective unless the holders of at least a majority of the affected depositary shares then outstanding approve the amendment. We will make no amendment that impairs the right of any holder of depositary shares, as described above under "— Withdrawal of Preferred Stock", to receive shares of the related series of preferred stock and any money or other property represented by those depositary shares, except in order to comply with mandatory provisions of applicable law. Holders who retain or acquire their depositary receipts after an amendment becomes effective will be deemed to have agreed to the amendment and will be bound by the amended deposit agreement.

The deposit agreement will automatically terminate if:

- all outstanding depositary shares have been redeemed or converted or exchanged for any other securities into which they or the underlying
 preferred stock are convertible or exchangeable; or
- a final distribution in respect of the preferred stock has been made to the holders of depositary shares in connection with any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.

We may terminate the deposit agreement at any time, and the preferred stock depositary will give notice of that termination to the recordholders of all outstanding depositary receipts not less than 30 days before the termination date. In that event, the preferred stock depositary will deliver or make available for delivery to holders of depositary shares, upon surrender of the depositary receipts evidencing the depositary shares, the number of whole or fractional shares of the related series of preferred stock as are represented by those depositary shares.

Charges of Preferred Stock Depositary; Taxes and Other Governmental Charges

We will pay the fees, charges and expenses of the preferred stock depositary provided in the deposit agreement to be payable by us. Holders of depositary receipts will pay any taxes and governmental charges and any charges provided in the deposit agreement to be payable by them, including a fee for the withdrawal of shares of preferred stock upon surrender of depositary receipts. If the preferred stock depositary incurs fees, charges or expenses for which it is not otherwise liable at the election of a holder of a depositary receipt or other person, that holder or other person will be liable for those fees, charges and expenses.

Resignation and Removal of Depositary

The preferred stock depositary may resign at any time by giving us notice, and we may remove or replace the preferred stock depositary at any time.

Reports to Holders

We will deliver all required reports and communications to holders of the preferred stock to the preferred stock depositary. It will forward those reports and communications to the holders of depositary shares.

Limitation on Liability of the Preferred Stock Depositary

The preferred stock depositary will not be liable if it is prevented or delayed by law or any circumstances beyond its control in performing its obligations under the deposit agreement. The obligations of the preferred stock depositary under the deposit agreement will be limited to performance in good faith of its duties under the agreement, and it will not be obligated to prosecute or defend any legal proceeding in respect of any depositary shares, depositary receipts or shares of preferred stock unless satisfactory and reasonable protection from expenses and liability is furnished. This is called an indemnity. The preferred stock depositary may rely upon written advice of counsel or accountants, upon information provided by holders of depositary receipts or other persons believed to be competent and upon documents believed to be genuine.

Form of Preferred Stock and Depositary Shares

We may issue preferred stock in book-entry form. Preferred stock in book-entry form will be represented by a global security registered in the name of a depositary, which will be the holder of all the shares of preferred stock represented by the global security. Those who own beneficial interests in shares of preferred stock will do so through participants in the depositary's system, and the rights of these indirect owners will be governed solely by the applicable procedures of the depositary and its participants. However, beneficial owners of any preferred stock in book-entry form will have the right to obtain their shares in non-global form. We describe book-entry securities below under "Legal Ownership and Book-Entry Issuance". All preferred stock will be issued in registered form.

We will issue depositary shares in book-entry form, to the same extent as we describe above for preferred stock. Depositary shares will be issued in registered form.

THE ISSUER TRUSTS

Please note that in this section entitled "The Issuer Trusts", references to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., "we", "our" and "us" refer only to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and not to its consolidated subsidiaries.

The following description summarizes the formation, purposes and material terms of each Issuer Trust. This description is followed by descriptions of:

- · the capital securities to be issued by each Issuer Trust;
- the subordinated debt securities to be issued by us to each Issuer Trust, and the subordinated debt indenture under which they will be issued;
- · our guarantees for the benefit of the holders of the capital securities; and
- · the relationship among the capital securities, the corresponding subordinated debt securities, the expense agreements and the guarantees.

Each Issuer Trust is a statutory business trust created under Delaware law pursuant to:

- · a trust agreement executed by us, as depositor of the Issuer Trust, and the Delaware trustee of such Issuer Trust; and
- · a certificate of trust filed with the Delaware Secretary of State.

Before trust securities are issued, the trust agreement for the relevant Issuer Trust will be amended and restated in its entirety substantially in the form filed (or to be filed) with our SEC registration statement. The trust agreements will be qualified as indentures under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939.

Each Issuer Trust may offer to the public, from time to time, preferred securities representing preferred beneficial interests in the applicable Issuer Trust, which we call "capital securities". In addition to capital securities offered to the public, each Issuer Trust will sell common securities representing common beneficial interests in such Issuer Trust to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., and we call these securities "trust common securities". All of the trust common securities of each Issuer Trust will be owned by us. The trust common securities and the capital securities are also referred to together as the "trust securities".

Each Issuer Trust exists for the exclusive purposes of:

- · issuing and selling its trust securities;
- · using the proceeds from the sale of these trust securities to acquire corresponding subordinated debt securities from us; and
- engaging in only those other activities necessary or incidental to these purposes (for example, registering the transfer of the trust securities).

When any Issuer Trust sells trust securities, it will use the money it receives to buy a series of our subordinated debt securities, which we call the "corresponding subordinated debt securities" for those trust securities. The payment terms of the corresponding subordinated debt securities will be substantially the same as the terms of that Issuer Trust's capital securities, which we call the "related capital securities".

Each Issuer Trust will own only the applicable series of corresponding subordinated debt securities. The only source of funds for each Issuer Trust will be the payments it receives from us on the corresponding subordinated debt securities. Each Issuer Trust will use these funds to make any cash payments due to holders of its capital securities.

Each Issuer Trust will also be a party to an expense agreement with The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. Under the terms of the expense agreement, the Issuer Trust will have the right to be reimbursed by us for certain expenses.

The trust common securities of an Issuer Trust will rank equally, and payments on them will be made pro rata, with the capital securities of that Issuer Trust, except that upon the occurrence and continuance of an event of default under a trust agreement of such Issuer Trust resulting from an event of default under the subordinated debt indenture, our rights, as holder of the trust common securities, to payment in respect of distributions and payments upon liquidation or redemption will be subordinated to the rights of the holders of the capital securities of that Issuer Trust. See "Description of Capital Securities and Related Instruments — Subordination of Trust Common Securities". We will acquire trust common securities in an aggregate liquidation amount greater than or equal to 3% of the total capital of each Issuer Trust. The prospectus supplement relating to any capital securities will contain the details of the cash distributions to be made periodically.

Under certain circumstances, we may redeem the corresponding subordinated debt securities that we sold to an Issuer Trust. If this happens, the Issuer Trust will redeem a like amount of the capital securities that it sold to the public and the trust common securities that it sold to us.

Under certain circumstances, we may dissolve an Issuer Trust and cause the corresponding subordinated debt securities to be distributed to the holders of the related capital securities. If this happens, owners of the related capital securities will no longer have any interest in such Issuer Trust and will own only the corresponding subordinated debt securities we issued to the Issuer Trust.

Unless otherwise specified in the applicable prospectus supplement:

- each Issuer Trust will have a term of approximately 31 years from the date it issues its trust securities, but may terminate earlier as provided in the applicable trust agreement;
- · each Issuer Trust's business and affairs will be conducted by its trustees;
- the trustees will be appointed by us as holder of the trust common securities;
- the trustees for each Issuer Trust will be The Bank of New York Mellon, as property trustee, and BNY Mellon Trust of Delaware, as Delaware trustee, and two individual administrative trustees who are employees or officers of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. or an affiliate of ours. These trustees are also referred to as the "Issuer Trust trustees". The Bank of New York Mellon, as property trustee, will act as sole indenture trustee under each trust agreement for purposes of compliance with the Trust Indenture Act. The Bank of New York Mellon will also act as trustee under the guarantees and the subordinated debt indenture. See "Description of Capital Securities and Related Instruments Guarantees and Expense Agreements" and "Description of Capital Securities and Related Instruments Corresponding Subordinated Debt Securities" below:
- if an event of default under the trust agreement for an Issuer Trust has occurred and is continuing, the holders of a majority in liquidation amount of the related capital securities will be entitled to appoint, remove or replace the property trustee and/or the Delaware trustee for such Issuer Trust:
- under all circumstances, only the holder of the trust common securities has the right to vote to appoint, remove or replace the administrative trustees:
- · the duties and obligations of each Issuer Trust trustee are governed by the applicable trust agreement; and
- we will pay all fees and expenses related to each Issuer Trust and the offering of the capital securities and will pay, directly or indirectly, all
 ongoing costs, expenses and liabilities of each Issuer Trust.

The principal executive office of each Issuer Trust is 200 West Street, New York, NY 10282, and the telephone number for each is (212) 902-1000.

DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL SECURITIES AND RELATED INSTRUMENTS

Please note that in this section entitled "Description of Capital Securities and Related Instruments", references to "The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.", "we", "our" and "us" refer only to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and not to its consolidated subsidiaries. Also, in this section, references to "holders" mean those who own capital securities registered in their own names, on the books that the Issuer Trust or property trustee maintains for this purpose, and not those who own beneficial interests in capital securities registered in street name or in capital securities issued in book-entry form through one or more depositaries. Owners of beneficial interest in the capital securities should read the section below entitled "Legal Ownership and Book-Entry Issuance".

General

Pursuant to the terms of the trust agreement for each Issuer Trust, each Issuer Trust will sell capital securities to the public and trust common securities to us. The capital securities represent preferred beneficial interests in the Issuer Trust that sold them. Holders of the capital securities will be entitled to receive distributions and amounts payable on redemption or liquidation ahead of holders of the trust common securities. A more complete discussion appears below under the heading "— Subordination of Trust Common Securities". Holders of the capital securities will also be entitled to other benefits as described in the corresponding trust agreement.

Each of the Issuer Trusts is a legally separate entity and the assets of one are not available to satisfy the obligations of any of the others.

The capital securities of an Issuer Trust will rank on a parity, and payments on them will be made pro rata, with the trust common securities of that Issuer Trust except as described under "— Subordination of Trust Common Securities". Legal title to the corresponding subordinated debt securities will be held and administered by the property trustee in trust for the benefit of the holders of the related capital securities and trust common securities.

The trustees for each Issuer Trust will be The Bank of New York Mellon, as property trustee, and The Bank of New York Mellon (Delaware), as Delaware trustee, and two individual administrative trustees who are employees or officers of us or our affiliates.

Each guarantee agreement executed by us for the benefit of the holders of an Issuer Trust's capital securities will be a guarantee on a subordinated basis with respect to the related capital securities but will not guarantee payment of distributions or amounts payable on redemption or liquidation of such capital securities when the related Issuer Trust does not have funds on hand available to make such payments. See "— Guarantees and Expense Agreements" below.

Each Issuer Trust May Issue Series of Capital Securities With Different Terms

Each Issuer Trust may issue one distinct series of capital securities. This section summarizes terms of the securities that apply generally to all series of capital securities. The provisions of the trust agreements allow the Issuer Trusts to issue series of capital securities with terms different from one another. We describe most of the financial and other specific terms of your series in the prospectus supplement accompanying this prospectus. Those terms may vary from the terms described here.

As you read this section, please remember that the specific terms of your capital security as described in your prospectus supplement will supplement and, if applicable, may modify or replace the general terms described in this section. If there are any differences between your prospectus supplement and this prospectus, your prospectus supplement will control. Thus, the statements we make in this section may not apply to your capital security.

When we refer to a series of capital securities, we mean a series issued under the applicable trust agreement. When we refer to your prospectus supplement, we mean the prospectus supplement

describing the specific terms of the capital security you purchase. The terms used in your prospectus supplement will have the meanings described in this prospectus, unless otherwise specified.

Amounts That We May Issue

The trust agreements do not limit the aggregate amount of capital securities that may be issued or the aggregate amount of any particular series. We and the Issuer Trusts may issue capital securities and other securities at any time without your consent and without notifying you.

The trust agreements and the capital securities do not limit our ability to incur indebtedness or to issue other securities. Also, we are not subject to financial or similar restrictions by the terms of the capital securities.

In the future, we may form additional trusts or other entities similar to the Issuer Trusts, and those other entities could issue securities similar to the trust securities described in this section. In that event, we may issue subordinated debt securities under the subordinated debt indenture to those other issuer entities and guarantees under a guarantee agreement with respect to the securities they issue. We may also enter into expense agreements with those other issuers. The subordinated debt securities and guarantees we issue (and expense agreements we enter into) in those cases would be similar to those described in this prospectus, with such modifications as may be described in the applicable prospectus supplement.

Distributions

Distributions on the capital securities will be cumulative, will accumulate from the original issue date (unless otherwise specified in your prospectus supplement) and will be payable on the dates specified in your prospectus supplement. In the event that any date on which distributions on the capital securities are payable is not a business day, payment of that distribution will be made on the next business day (and without any interest or other payment in connection with this delay) except that, if the next business day falls in the next calendar year, payment of the distribution will be made on the immediately preceding business day, in either case with the same force and effect as if made on the original distribution date. Each date on which distributions are payable in accordance with the previous sentence is referred to as a "distribution date". The term "business day" means, for any capital security, any Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday or Friday that is not a day on which banking institutions in New York City generally are authorized or obligated by law or executive order to close and that satisfies any other criteria specified in your prospectus supplement.

Each Issuer Trust's capital securities represent preferred beneficial interests in the applicable Issuer Trust, and the distributions on each capital security will be payable at a rate specified in your prospectus supplement. The amount of distributions payable for any period will be computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months unless your prospectus supplement provides that the amount of distributions payable for any period will be computed on a different basis. Distributions to which holders of capital securities are entitled will accumulate additional distributions at the rate per annum if and as specified in your prospectus supplement. The term "distributions" as used in this summary includes these additional distributions unless otherwise stated.

If an extension period occurs with respect to the corresponding subordinated debt securities, distributions on the related capital securities will be correspondingly deferred (but would continue to accumulate additional distributions at the rate per annum set forth in the prospectus supplement for the capital securities). See "— Corresponding Subordinated Debt Securities — Option to Defer Interest Payments" below.

The revenue of each Issuer Trust available for distribution to holders of its capital securities will be limited to payments under the corresponding subordinated debt securities which the Issuer Trust will acquire with the proceeds from the issuance and sale of its trust securities. See "— Corresponding Subordinated Debt Securities". If we do not make interest payments on the corresponding subordinated debt securities, the property trustee will not have funds available to pay distributions on the related capital securities. The payment of distributions (if and to the extent the Issuer Trust has funds legally available for the payment of distributions and cash sufficient to make payments) is guaranteed by us as described below under the heading "— Guarantees and Expense Agreements".

Distributions on the capital securities will be payable to the holders of capital securities as they appear on the register of the Issuer Trust at the close of business on the relevant record dates, which, as long as the capital securities remain in book-entry form, will be one business day prior to the relevant distribution date. Subject to any applicable laws and regulations and the provisions of the applicable trust agreement, each such payment will be made as described under the heading "Legal Ownership and Book-Entry Issuance". In the event any capital securities are not in book-entry form, the relevant record date for such capital securities will be the date 15 days prior to the relevant distribution date (whether or not a business day).

Redemption or Exchange

Mandatory Redemption

Upon the repayment or redemption, in whole or in part, of any corresponding subordinated debt securities, whether at their stated maturity or before their stated maturity as provided in the subordinated debt indenture, the proceeds from the repayment or redemption will be applied by the property trustee to redeem a like amount (as defined below) of the capital securities, upon not less than 30 nor more than 60 days' notice before the applicable redemption date, at the redemption price specified in your prospectus supplement. If less than all of any series of corresponding subordinated debt securities are to be repaid or redeemed on a redemption date, then the proceeds from the repayment or redemption will be allocated pro rata to the redemption of the related capital securities and the trust common securities based upon the relative liquidation amounts of these classes. The amount of premium, if any, paid by us upon the redemption of all or any part of any series of any corresponding subordinated debt securities to be repaid or redeemed on a redemption date will be allocated to the redemption pro rata of the related capital securities and the trust common securities. The redemption price will be payable on each redemption date only to the extent that the Issuer Trust has funds then on hand and available in the payment account for the payment of the redemption price.

We will have the right to redeem any series of corresponding subordinated debt securities:

- on or after such date as may be specified in the applicable prospectus supplement, in whole at any time or in part from time to time;
- · at any time, in whole (but not in part), upon the occurrence of a tax event or an investment company event (as defined below); or
- · as may be otherwise specified in the applicable prospectus supplement.

Tax Event. A "tax event" means the receipt by the Issuer Trust of an opinion of counsel to the effect that, as a result of any tax change, there is more than an insubstantial risk that any of the following will occur:

- the Issuer Trust is, or will be within 90 days after the date of the opinion of counsel, subject to U.S. federal income tax on income received or accrued on the corresponding subordinated debt securities;
- interest payable by us on the corresponding subordinated debt securities is not, or within 90 days after the opinion of counsel will not be, deductible by us, in whole or in part, for U.S. federal income tax purposes; or
- the Issuer Trust is, or will be within 90 days after the date of the opinion of counsel, subject to more than a de minimis amount of other taxes, duties or other governmental charges.

As used above, the term "tax change" means any of the following:

• any amendment to or change (including any announced prospective change) in the laws or any regulations under the laws of the United States or of any political subdivision or taxing authority

of or in the United States, if the amendment or change is effective on or after the date the capital securities are issued; or

any official administrative pronouncement, including any private letter ruling, technical advice memorandum, field service advice, regulatory
procedure, notice or announcement (including any notice or announcement of intent to adopt any procedures or regulations) or action or any
judicial decision interpreting or applying such laws or regulations, whether or not the pronouncement, action or decision is issued to or in
connection with a proceeding involving us or the Issuer Trust or is subject to review or appeal, if the pronouncement, action or decision is
announced or occurs on or after the date of the issuance of the capital securities.

Investment Company Event. An "investment company event" means the receipt by the Issuer Trust of an opinion of counsel experienced in such matters to the effect that, as a result of any amendment to, or change (including any announced prospective change) in, the laws or any regulations under the laws of the United States or of any political subdivision or governmental agency or regulatory authority of or in the United States, or as a result of any official administrative pronouncement, including any interpretation, release, no-action letter, regulatory procedure, notice or announcement (including any notice or announcement of an intent to adopt any interpretation, procedures or regulations) or action or any judicial decision interpreting or applying such laws or regulations, whether or not the pronouncement, action or decision is issued to or in connection with a proceeding involving us or the Issuer Trust or is subject to review or appeal, which amendment or change is effective, or which pronouncement, action or decision is announced or occurs, on or after the date of the issuance of the capital securities, there is more than an insubstantial risk that the Issuer Trust is or will be considered an "investment company" that is required to be registered under the Investment Company Act.

Like Amount and Liquidation Amount. "Like amount" means, with respect to a redemption of any series of trust securities, trust securities of that series having a liquidation amount equal to the principal amount of corresponding subordinated debt securities to be contemporaneously redeemed in accordance with the subordinated debt indenture, the proceeds of which will be used to pay the redemption price of the trust securities. "Liquidation amount" means the stated amount per trust security as set forth in the applicable prospectus supplement.

Tax Event or Investment Company Event Redemption

If a tax event or investment company event (or any other event specified in your prospectus supplement) in respect of a series of capital securities and trust common securities has occurred and is continuing, we have the right to redeem the corresponding subordinated debt securities in whole (but not in part) and thereby cause a mandatory redemption of the capital securities and trust common securities in whole (but not in part) at the redemption price within 90 days following the occurrence of the tax event or investment company event (or other specified event). If a tax event or investment company event (or other specified event) has occurred and is continuing in respect of a series of capital securities and trust common securities and we do not elect to redeem the corresponding subordinated debt securities and thereby cause a mandatory redemption of the capital securities or to dissolve and liquidate the related Issuer Trust and cause the corresponding subordinated debt securities to be distributed to holders of the capital securities and trust common securities in liquidation of the Issuer Trust as described below, such capital securities will remain outstanding and additional sums (as defined below) may be payable on the corresponding subordinated debt securities.

The term "additional sums" means the additional amounts as may be necessary in order that the amount of distributions then due and payable by an Issuer Trust on the outstanding capital securities and trust common securities of the Issuer Trust will not be reduced as a result of any additional taxes, duties and other governmental charges to which the Issuer Trust has become subject as a result of a tax event.

After the liquidation date fixed for any distribution of corresponding subordinated debt securities for any series of related capital securities:

· the series of related capital securities will no longer be deemed to be outstanding;

- the depositary or its nominee, as the record holder of the related capital securities, will receive a registered global certificate or certificates representing the corresponding subordinated debt securities to be delivered upon the distribution; and
- any certificates representing the related capital securities not held by the depositary or its nominee will be deemed to represent the
 corresponding subordinated debt securities having a principal amount equal to the stated liquidation amount of the related capital securities, and
 bearing accrued and unpaid interest in an amount equal to the accrued and unpaid distributions on the related capital securities until the
 certificates are presented to the administrative trustees or their agent for transfer or reassurance.

Any distribution of corresponding subordinated debt securities to holders of related capital securities will be made to the applicable recordholders as they appear on the register for the related capital securities on the relevant record date, which will be one business day prior to the liquidation date. In the event that any related capital securities are not in book-entry form, the relevant record date will be a date 15 days prior to the liquidation date (whether or not a business day), as specified in the applicable prospectus supplement.

There can be no assurance as to the market prices for the related capital securities or the corresponding subordinated debt securities that may be distributed in exchange for related capital securities if a dissolution and liquidation of an Issuer Trust were to occur. Accordingly, the related capital securities that an investor may purchase, or the corresponding subordinated debt securities that the investor may receive on dissolution and liquidation of an Issuer Trust, may trade at a discount to the price that the investor paid to purchase the related capital securities being offered in connection with this prospectus.

Redemption Procedures

Capital securities redeemed on each redemption date will be redeemed at the redemption price with the applicable proceeds from the contemporaneous redemption of the corresponding subordinated debt securities. Redemptions of the capital securities will be made and the redemption price will be payable on each redemption date only to the extent that the related Issuer Trust has funds on hand available for the payment of the redemption price. See also "— Subordination of Trust Common Securities" below.

If the property trustee gives a notice of redemption in respect of any capital securities, then, while such capital securities are in book-entry form, by 12:00 noon, New York City time, on the redemption date, to the extent funds are available, the property trustee will deposit irrevocably with the depositary funds sufficient to pay the applicable redemption price and will give the depositary irrevocable instructions and authority to pay the redemption price to the holders of the capital securities. See "Legal Ownership and Book-Entry Issuance" below. If the capital securities are no longer in book-entry form, the property trustee, to the extent funds are available, will irrevocably deposit with the paying agent for the capital securities funds sufficient to pay the applicable redemption price and will give the paying agent irrevocable instructions and authority to pay the redemption price to the holders upon surrender of their certificates evidencing the capital securities. Notwithstanding the above, distributions payable on or prior to the redemption date for any capital securities called for redemption will be payable to the holders of the capital securities on the relevant record dates for the related distribution dates. If notice of redemption has been given and funds deposited as required, then upon the date of the deposit, all rights of the holders of the capital securities so called for redemption will cease, except the right of the holders of the capital securities to receive the redemption price and any distribution payable in respect of the capital securities on or prior to the redemption date, but without interest on the redemption price, and the capital securities will cease to be outstanding. In the event that any date fixed for redemption of capital securities is not a business day, then payment of the redemption price will be made on the next business day (and without any interest or other payment in connection with this delay) except that, if the next business day falls in the next calendar year, payment of the redemption price will be made on the immediately preceding business day, in either case with the same force and effect as if made on the original date. In the event that payment of the redemption price in respect of capital securities called for redemption is improperly withheld or refused and not paid either by an Issuer Trust or by us pursuant to the related guarantee as described below under "— Guarantees and Expense Agreements", distributions on the capital securities will continue to

accumulate at the then applicable rate from the redemption date originally established by the Issuer Trust for the capital securities to the date the redemption price is actually paid, in which case the date the redemption price is actually paid will be the date fixed for redemption for purposes of calculating the redemption price.

We or our affiliates may at any time and from time to time purchase outstanding capital securities by tender, in the open market or by private agreement.

Payment of the redemption price on the capital securities and any distribution of corresponding subordinated debt securities to holders of capital securities will be made to the applicable record holders as they appear on the register for the capital securities on the relevant record date, which, as long as the capital securities remain in book-entry form, will be the business day prior to the relevant redemption date or liquidation date, as applicable; provided, however, that in the event that the capital securities are not in book-entry form, the relevant record date for the capital securities will be a date at least 15 calendar days prior to the redemption date or liquidation date, as applicable, as specified in the applicable prospectus supplement.

If less than all of the capital securities and trust common securities issued by an Issuer Trust are to be redeemed on a redemption date, then the aggregate liquidation amount of the capital securities and trust common securities to be redeemed will be allocated pro rata to the capital securities and the trust common securities based upon the relative liquidation amounts of these classes. The particular capital securities to be redeemed will be selected on a pro rata basis not more than 60 days prior to the applicable redemption date by the property trustee from the outstanding capital securities not previously called for redemption, by a customary method that the property trustee deems fair and appropriate and which may provide for the selection for redemption of portions (equal to \$1,000 or an integral multiple of \$1,000 in excess thereof, unless a different amount is specified in the applicable prospectus supplement) of the liquidation amount of capital securities of a denomination larger than \$1,000 (or another denomination as specified in the applicable prospectus supplement). The property trustee will promptly notify the securities registrar in writing of the capital securities selected for redemption and, in the case of any capital securities selected for partial redemption, the liquidation amount to be redeemed. For all purposes of each trust agreement, unless the context otherwise requires, all provisions relating to the redemption of capital securities will relate, in the case of any capital securities redeemed or to be redeemed only in part, to the portion of the aggregate liquidation amount of capital securities which has been or is to be redeemed.

If we exercise an option to redeem any capital securities, the property trustee will give to the holders written notice of the aggregate liquidation amount of capital securities to be redeemed, not less than 30 nor more than 60 days before the applicable redemption date. The property trustee will give the notice in the manner described below in "— Notices".

Unless we default in payment of the redemption price on the corresponding subordinated debt securities interest will cease to accrue on the subordinated debt securities or portions thereof (and distributions will cease to accrue on the related capital securities or portions thereof) called for redemption on and after the redemption date.

Distribution of Corresponding Subordinated Debt Securities

We have the right at any time to dissolve any Issuer Trust and, after satisfaction of the liabilities of creditors of the Issuer Trust as provided by applicable law, cause to be distributed in respect of each series of capital securities and trust common securities issued by the Issuer Trust, to the holders of such trust securities, a like amount of the corresponding subordinated debt securities in liquidation of the Issuer Trust.

The term "like amount" means, with respect to a distribution of corresponding subordinated debt securities to holders of any series of trust securities in connection with a dissolution or liquidation of the related Issuer Trust, corresponding subordinated debt securities having a principal amount equal to the liquidation amount of the trust securities in respect of which the distribution is made.

If we or any of our affiliates acquire capital securities, we may exchange them for a like amount of corresponding subordinated debt securities at any time

Subordination of Trust Common Securities

Payment of distributions on, and the redemption price of, each Issuer Trust's capital securities and trust common securities, as applicable, will be made pro rata based on the liquidation amount of the capital securities and trust common securities; provided, however, that if on any distribution date, redemption date or liquidation date an event of default under the subordinated debt indenture has occurred and is continuing as a result of any failure by us to pay any amounts in respect of the subordinated debt securities when due, no payment of any distribution on, or redemption price of, or liquidation distribution in respect of, any of the Issuer Trust's trust common securities, and no other payment on account of the redemption, liquidation or other acquisition of the trust common securities, will be made unless payment in full in cash of all accumulated and unpaid distributions on all of the Issuer Trust's outstanding capital securities for all distribution price the full amount of the redemption price on all of the Issuer Trust's outstanding capital securities, has been made or provided for, and all funds available to the property trustee must first be applied to the payment in full in cash of all distributions on, or the redemption price of, the Issuer Trust's outstanding capital securities then due and payable.

In the case of any event of default under the applicable trust agreement resulting from an event of default under the subordinated debt indenture, we as holder of the Issuer Trust's trust common securities will have no right to act with respect to the event of default until the effect of all events of default with respect to such Issuer Trust's capital securities have been cured, waived or otherwise eliminated. Until any events of default under the applicable trust agreement with respect to the applicable capital securities have been cured, waived or otherwise eliminated, the property trustee will act solely on behalf of the holders of these capital securities and not on behalf of us as holder of the Issuer Trust's trust common securities, and only these holders of the capital securities will have the right to direct the property trustee to act on their behalf.

Liquidation Distribution Upon Dissolution

Pursuant to the relevant trust agreement, each Issuer Trust will dissolve on the first to occur of:

- the expiration of its term;
- · certain events of bankruptcy, dissolution or liquidation of the holder of its trust common securities;
- the distribution of a like amount of the corresponding subordinated debt securities to the holders of its trust securities, if we have given written direction to the property trustee to terminate the Issuer Trust. Such written direction by us is optional and solely within our discretion;
- redemption of all of such Issuer Trust's capital securities as described above under "— Redemption or Exchange Mandatory Redemption";
- the entry of an order for the dissolution of such Issuer Trust by a court of competent jurisdiction.

If an early termination occurs as described in the first, second, third and fifth bullet points above, the relevant Issuer Trust will be liquidated by the related Issuer Trust trustees as expeditiously as the Issuer Trust trustees determine to be possible by distributing, after satisfaction of liabilities to creditors of the Issuer Trust as provided by applicable law, to the holders of the trust securities a like amount of the corresponding subordinated debt securities in exchange for their trust securities, unless the distribution is determined by the property trustee not to be practical, in which event the holders will be entitled to receive out of the assets of the Issuer Trust available for distribution to holders, after satisfaction of liabilities to creditors of such Issuer Trust as provided by applicable law, an amount equal to, in the case of holders of capital securities, the aggregate of the liquidation amount plus accrued and unpaid distributions to the date of payment (an amount referred to as the "liquidation distribution"). If the liquidation distribution can be paid only in part because the Issuer Trust has insufficient assets available to pay in full the aggregate liquidation distribution, then the amounts payable directly by the Issuer Trust on its capital securities will be paid on a pro rata basis. The holder of the Issuer Trust's trust common securities will be entitled to receive distributions upon any liquidation

pro rata with the holders of its capital securities, except that if an event of default under the subordinated debt indenture has occurred and is continuing as a result of any failure by us to pay any amounts in respect of the corresponding subordinated debt securities when due, the related capital securities will have a priority over the related trust common securities.

Events of Default; Notice

The following events will be "events of default" with respect to each series of capital securities issued under a trust agreement by an Issuer Trust:

- any event of default under the subordinated debt indenture with respect to the corresponding subordinated debt securities has occurred and is
 continuing (see "Description of Debt Securities We May Offer Default, Remedies and Waiver of Default Events of Default" above);
- default for 30 days by the Issuer Trust in the payment of any distribution on any capital security of such series or any common trust security of the Issuer Trust;
- default by the Issuer Trust in the payment of the redemption price of any capital security of such series or any common trust security of such Issuer Trust;
- failure by the Issuer Trust trustees to perform any other covenant or warranty in the trust agreement for 60 days after the holders of at least 25% in aggregate liquidation amount of the outstanding capital securities of such series give written notice to us and the Issuer Trust trustees; or
- bankruptcy, insolvency or reorganization of the property trustee and the failure by us to appoint a successor property trustee within 90 days.

Within five business days after the occurrence of any event of default with respect to a series of capital securities actually known to the property trustee, the property trustee will transmit notice of the event of default to the holders of such capital securities, the administrative trustees and us, as depositor, unless the event of default has been cured or waived.

We, as depositor, and the administrative trustees are required to file annually with the property trustee a certificate as to whether or not they are in compliance with all the conditions and covenants applicable to them under the relevant trust agreement.

If an event of default under the subordinated debt indenture has occurred and is continuing with respect to a series of corresponding subordinated debt securities, the series of related capital securities will have a preference over the related trust common securities of the relevant Issuer Trust as described above. See "— Liquidation Distribution Upon Dissolution" above. The existence of an event of default does not entitle the holders of capital securities to accelerate the maturity of the capital securities.

Whenever we refer to an event of default under the subordinated debt indenture in connection with any series of capital securities, we mean such an event of default with respect to the corresponding subordinated debt securities.

Removal of Issuer Trust Trustees

Unless an event of default under the subordinated debt indenture has occurred and is continuing, any Issuer Trust trustee may be removed at any time by the holder of the Issuer Trust's trust common securities. If an event of default under the subordinated debt indenture has occurred and is continuing with respect to a series of capital securities, the property trustee and the Delaware trustee may be removed under the applicable trust agreement by the holders of a majority in liquidation amount of the outstanding capital securities of such series. In no event will the holders of the capital securities have the right to vote to appoint, remove or replace the administrative trustees. Such voting rights are vested exclusively in us as the holder of the trust common securities. No resignation or removal of an Issuer Trust trustee and no appointment of a successor trustee will be effective until the acceptance of appointment by the successor trustee in accordance with the provisions of the applicable trust agreement.

Co-Trustees and Separate Property Trustee

Unless an event of default under the subordinated debt indenture has occurred and is continuing, at any time or from time to time, for the purpose of meeting the legal requirements of the Trust Indenture Act or of any jurisdiction in which any part of the trust property may at the time be located, we, as the holder of the trust common securities, and the administrative trustees will have power to appoint one or more persons either to act as a co-trustee, jointly with the property trustee, of all or any part of the trust property, or to act as separate trustee of any trust property, in either case with the powers specified in the instrument of appointment, and to vest in the person or persons in this capacity any property, title, right or power deemed necessary or desirable, subject to the provisions of the applicable trust agreement. In case an event of default under the subordinated debt indenture has occurred and is continuing, the property trustee alone will have power to make this appointment.

Merger or Consolidation of Issuer Trust Trustees

Any person into which the property trustee, the Delaware trustee or any administrative trustee that is not a natural person may be merged or converted or with which it may be consolidated, or any person resulting from any merger, conversion or consolidation to which the trustee will be a party, or any person succeeding to all or substantially all the corporate trust business of the trustee, will automatically become the successor of the trustee under each trust agreement, provided the person is otherwise qualified and eligible.

Mergers, Consolidations, Amalgamations or Replacements of the Issuer Trusts

An Issuer Trust may not merge, consolidate or amalgamate with or into or be replaced by or convey, transfer or lease its properties and assets substantially as an entirety to any corporation or other person, except as described below or as described above under "— Liquidation Distribution Upon Dissolution". An Issuer Trust may, at our request, with the consent of the holders of a majority in liquidation amount of the outstanding capital securities issued by the Issuer Trust (voting together as a single class), merge, consolidate or amalgamate with or into, be replaced by or convey, transfer or lease its properties and assets substantially as an entirety to a trust organized under the laws of any state, provided that:

- · the successor entity either:
 - · expressly assumes all of the obligations of the Issuer Trust with respect to its outstanding capital securities; or
 - substitutes for the outstanding capital securities of the Issuer Trust other securities having substantially the same terms as the capital
 securities (referred to as the "successor securities") so long as the successor securities rank the same as the capital securities in priority
 with respect to distributions and payments upon liquidation, redemption and otherwise;
- we expressly appoint a trustee of the successor entity possessing the same powers and duties as property trustee as the holder of the corresponding subordinated debt securities;
- the merger, consolidation, amalgamation, replacement, conveyance, transfer or lease does not cause the outstanding capital securities of the Issuer Trust to be downgraded by any nationally recognized statistical rating organization which assigns ratings to the capital securities;
- the merger, consolidation, amalgamation, replacement, conveyance, transfer or lease does not adversely affect the rights, preferences and
 privileges of the holders of the outstanding capital securities of the Issuer Trust (including any successor securities) in any material respect
 (other than in connection with any distribution of the holders' interests in the successor entity).
- the successor entity has a purpose substantially identical to that of the Issuer Trust;

- prior to the merger, consolidation, amalgamation, replacement, conveyance, transfer or lease, we have received an opinion from counsel to the lessuer Trust to the effect that:
 - the merger, consolidation, amalgamation, replacement, conveyance, transfer or lease does not adversely affect the rights, preferences
 and privileges of the holders of the outstanding capital securities of the Issuer Trust (including any successor securities) in any material
 respect; and
 - following the merger, consolidation, amalgamation, replacement, conveyance, transfer or lease, neither the Issuer Trust nor the successor entity will be required to register as an investment company under the Investment Company Act of 1940; and
- we or any permitted successor or assignee owns all of the trust common securities of the successor entity and guarantees the obligations of the successor entity under the successor securities at least to the extent provided by the related guarantee.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, an Issuer Trust will not, except with the consent of holders of 100% in liquidation amount of the related capital securities (voting together as a single class), merge, consolidate or amalgamate with or into, be replaced by or convey, transfer or lease its properties and assets substantially as an entirety to any other entity, or permit any other entity to consolidate, amalgamate or merge with or into or replace it, if such merger, consolidation, amalgamation, replacement, conveyance, transfer or lease would cause the Issuer Trust or the successor entity to be classified as an association taxable as a corporation or as other than a grantor trust for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

There are no provisions that afford holders of any capital securities protection in the event of a sudden and dramatic decline in our credit quality resulting from any highly leveraged transaction, takeover, merger, recapitalization or similar restructuring or change in control of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., nor are there any provisions that require the repurchase of any capital securities upon a change in control of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.

The subordinated debt indenture does not restrict The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s ability to participate in a merger or other business combination or any other transaction, except to the limited extent described above under "Description of Debt Securities We May Offer — Mergers and Similar Transactions".

Voting Rights; Amendment of Each Trust Agreement

Except as provided below and under "— Guarantees and Expense Agreements — Amendments and Assignment" below and as otherwise required by law and the applicable trust agreement, the holders of the capital securities will have no voting rights or the right to in any manner otherwise control the administration, operation or management of the relevant Issuer Trust.

Each trust agreement may be amended from time to time by us, without the consent of the holders of the capital securities:

- to cure any ambiguity, correct or supplement any provisions in the trust agreement that may be inconsistent with any other provision, or to make
 any other provisions with respect to matters or questions arising under the trust agreement, which will not be inconsistent with the other
 provisions of the trust agreement; or
- · to modify, eliminate or add to any provisions of the trust agreement as necessary to ensure that the relevant Issuer Trust:
- will be classified for U.S. federal income tax purposes as a grantor trust or as other than an association taxable as a corporation at all times that any trust securities are outstanding;
- · will not be required to register as an "investment company" under the Investment Company Act; or
- · for any other particular reason that may be specified in the applicable prospectus supplement;

provided that:

- no such amendment will adversely affect in any material respect the rights of the holders of the outstanding capital securities issued under the trust agreement: and
- any such amendment will become effective when notice of the amendment is given to the holders of trust securities issued under the trust
 agreement.

Each trust agreement may be amended by us with:

- the consent of holders representing at least a majority (based upon liquidation amounts) of the outstanding capital securities issued under the trust agreement (voting together as a single class); and
- receipt by the Issuer Trust trustees of an opinion of counsel to the effect that the amendment or the exercise of any power granted to the Issuer
 Trust trustees in accordance with the amendment will not cause the Issuer Trust to be taxable as a corporation or affect the Issuer Trust's status
 as a grantor trust for U.S. federal income tax purposes or the Issuer Trust's exemption from status as an "investment company" under the
 Investment Company Act,

provided that, without the consent of the holder of each affected capital security issued under the trust agreement, the trust agreement may not be amended to:

- · reduce the amount or change the timing of any distribution on the capital security required to be made as of a specified due date; or
- restrict the right of the holder of the capital security to institute suit for the enforcement of any such payment on or after such date.

So long as any corresponding subordinated debt securities are held by the Issuer Trust, the property trustee will not:

- direct the time, method and place of conducting any proceeding for any remedy available to the subordinated debt trustee, or executing any trust or power conferred on the property trustee with respect to the corresponding subordinated debt securities;
- · waive any past default with respect to the corresponding subordinated debt securities that is waivable under the subordinated debt indenture;
- exercise any right to rescind or annul a declaration that the principal of all the corresponding subordinated debt securities will be due and payable; or
- consent to any modification or termination of the corresponding subordinated debt securities or the subordinated debt indenture with respect to those debt securities, where this consent is required, without, in each case, obtaining the prior approval of the holders of a majority in aggregate liquidation amount of all outstanding capital securities of the Issuer Trust (voting together as a single class);

provided, however, that where a consent under the subordinated debt indenture would require the consent of each holder of corresponding subordinated debt securities affected, no such consent will be given by the property trustee without the prior consent of the holder of each related capital security affected. The Issuer Trust trustees will not revoke any action previously authorized or approved by a vote of the holders of the relevant capital securities except by subsequent vote of the holders of those capital securities. The property trustee will notify each holder of capital securities of any notice of default with respect to the corresponding subordinated debt securities. In addition to obtaining the foregoing approvals of the holders of the capital securities, prior to taking any of the foregoing actions, the Issuer Trust trustees will obtain an opinion of counsel to the effect that:

the Issuer Trust will not be classified as an association taxable as a corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes on account of the action;

the action would not cause the Issuer Trust to be classified as other than a grantor trust for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

Any required approval of holders of capital securities may be given at a meeting of holders of capital securities convened for that purpose or pursuant to written consent. The administrative trustees or, at the written request of the administrative trustees, the property trustee will cause a notice of any meeting at which holders of capital securities are entitled to vote, to be given to each holder of record of capital securities in the manner set forth in each trust agreement.

No vote or consent of the holders of capital securities will be required for an Issuer Trust to redeem and cancel its capital securities in accordance with the applicable trust agreement.

Notwithstanding that holders of capital securities are entitled to vote or consent under any of the circumstances described above, any of the capital securities that are owned by us, the Issuer Trust trustees or any affiliate of us or any Issuer Trust trustees, will, for purposes of that vote or consent, be treated as if they were not outstanding.

Global Capital Securities

Unless otherwise set forth in the applicable prospectus supplement, any capital securities will be represented by fully registered global certificates issued as global capital securities that will be deposited with, or on behalf of, a depositary with respect to that series instead of paper certificates issued to each individual holder. The depositary arrangements that will apply, including the manner in which principal of and premium, if any, and interest on capital securities and other payments will be payable are discussed in more detail below under the heading "Legal Ownership and Book-Entry Issuance".

Payment and Paying Agency

Payments in respect of capital securities will be made in accordance with the applicable policies of DTC as described under "Legal Ownership and Book-Entry Issuance". If any capital securities are not represented by global certificates, payments will be made by check mailed to the holder entitled to them at his or her address shown on the property trustee's records as of the close of business on the regular record date. Unless otherwise specified in the applicable prospectus supplement, the paying agent will initially be the property trustee and any co-paying agent chosen by the property trustee and reasonably acceptable to the administrative trustees and us. The paying agent will be permitted to resign as paying agent upon 30 days' written notice to the property trustee and us. In the event that the property trustee is no longer the paying agent, the administrative trustees will appoint a successor (which will be a bank or trust company acceptable to the administrative trustees and us) to act as paying agent.

Registrar and Transfer Agent

Unless otherwise specified in the applicable prospectus supplement, the property trustee will act as registrar and transfer agent for the capital securities.

Registration of transfers of capital securities will be effected without charge by or on behalf of each Issuer Trust, but upon payment of any tax or other governmental charges that may be imposed in connection with any transfer or exchange. The Issuer Trusts will not be required to register or cause to be registered the transfer of their capital securities after the capital securities have been called for redemption.

Information Concerning the Property Trustee

The property trustee, other than during the occurrence and continuance of an event of default, undertakes to perform only those duties specifically set forth in each trust agreement and, after an event of default, must exercise the same degree of care and skill as a prudent person would exercise or use in the conduct of his or her own affairs. Subject to this provision, the property trustee is under no obligation to exercise any of the powers vested in it by the applicable trust agreement at the request of any holder of capital securities unless it is offered reasonable indemnity against the costs, expenses

and liabilities that might be incurred as a result. If no event of default has occurred and is continuing and the property trustee is required to decide between alternative causes of action, construe ambiguous provisions in the applicable trust agreement or is unsure of the application of any provision of the applicable trust agreement, and the matter is not one on which holders of capital securities are entitled under the trust agreement to vote, then the property trustee will take such action as is directed by us and if not so directed, will take such action as it deems advisable and in the best interests of the holders of the trust securities and will have no liability except for its own bad faith, negligence or willful misconduct.

Miscellaneous

The administrative trustees are authorized and directed to conduct the affairs of and to operate the Issuer Trusts in such a way that no Issuer Trust will be (1) deemed to be an "investment company" required to be registered under the Investment Company Act or (2) classified as an association taxable as a corporation or as other than a grantor trust for U.S. federal income tax purposes and so that the corresponding subordinated debt securities will be treated as indebtedness of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. for U.S. federal income tax purposes. In addition, we and the administrative trustees are authorized to take any action not inconsistent with applicable law, the certificate of trust of each Issuer Trust or each trust agreement, that we and the administrative trustees determine in their discretion to be necessary or desirable for such purposes as long as such action does not materially adversely affect the interests of the holders of the related capital securities.

Holders of the capital securities have no preemptive or similar rights.

No Issuer Trust may borrow money or issue debt or mortgage or pledge any of its assets.

Corresponding Subordinated Debt Securities

The corresponding subordinated debt securities may be issued in one or more series under the subordinated debt indenture, as it may be supplemented or amended by a supplemental debt indenture. Each series will be a series of subordinated debt securities having the terms described under "Description of Debt Securities We May Offer" above, but with such modifications as are described below or in the applicable prospectus supplement. To the extent provisions regarding the corresponding subordinated debt securities in this section are inconsistent with those described above in "Description of Debt Securities We May Offer", the provisions in this section control.

Concurrently with the issuance of each Issuer Trust's capital securities, the Issuer Trust will invest the proceeds thereof and the consideration paid by us for the trust common securities of the Issuer Trust in the series of corresponding subordinated debt securities issued by us to the Issuer Trust. Each series of corresponding subordinated debt securities will be in the principal amount equal to the aggregate stated liquidation amount of the related capital securities and the trust common securities of the Issuer Trust and will rank on a parity with all other series of corresponding subordinated debt securities (but junior to most of our other debt) unless otherwise provided in the applicable prospectus supplement. See "— Subordination" below. Holders of the related capital securities for a series of corresponding subordinated debt securities will have the rights in connection with modifications of the subordinated debt indenture or upon the occurrence of events of default under the subordinated debt indenture, as described under "— Modification of the Subordinated Debt Indenture" below, unless provided otherwise in the prospectus supplement for such related capital securities.

We have agreed in the subordinated debt indenture, as to each series of corresponding subordinated debt securities, that if and so long as:

- the Issuer Trust of the related series of trust securities is the holder of all the corresponding subordinated debt securities;
- · a tax event in respect of such Issuer Trust has occurred and is continuing;
- · no event of default under the subordinated debt indenture has occurred and is continuing; and

· we do not elect to redeem the related capital securities;

we will pay to the Issuer Trust additional sums (as defined under "— Redemption or Exchange"). We also have agreed, as to each series of corresponding subordinated debt securities:

- to maintain directly or indirectly 100% ownership of the trust common securities of the Issuer Trust to which the corresponding subordinated
 debt securities have been issued, provided that certain successors which are permitted under the subordinated debt indenture may succeed to
 our ownership of the trust common securities;
- not to voluntarily terminate, wind up or liquidate any Issuer Trust, except:
 - in connection with a distribution of corresponding subordinated debt securities to the holders of the capital securities in exchange for their capital securities upon liquidation of the Issuer Trust (which we may effect in our discretion); or
 - · in connection with certain mergers, consolidations or amalgamations permitted by the related trust agreement; and
 - to use our reasonable efforts, consistent with the terms and provisions of the related trust agreement, to cause the Issuer Trust to be classified as a grantor trust and not as an association taxable as a corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

The corresponding subordinated debt securities will have the terms described above under "Description of Debt Securities We May Offer", including the subordination provisions, events of default and payment mechanics described in that section. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the corresponding subordinated debt securities will have the additional or superseding terms and conditions described below.

Each series of corresponding debt securities will be issued to and initially held by the relevant Issuer Trust (or property trustee on its behalf), in non-global (i.e., non-book entry) form. Unless and until the corresponding subordinated debt securities are distributed to the holders of the related capital securities in exchange for the latter, the relevant Issuer Trust (or property trustee) will be the sole holder of those debt securities for all purposes of the subordinated debt indenture, and the holders of the related capital securities will not have any ownership right, direct or indirect, with respect to those debt securities.

When you read the section entitled "Description of Debt Securities We May Offer", please remember that references in that section to the holders of debt securities will mean, in the case of corresponding subordinated debt securities, the relevant Issuer Trust (or property trustee) and that those debt securities will not be held in book-entry form unless and until they are distributed to holders of the related capital securities in exchange for the latter. Upon a distribution of this kind, the sole holder of those debt securities will be the relevant depositary, if the debt securities are distributed in book-entry form, or the former holders of the related capital securities who receive them in the distribution, if the debt securities are not distributed in book-entry form. See also "Legal Ownership and Book-Entry Issuance" below.

Option to Defer Interest Payments

If provided in the applicable prospectus supplement, so long as no event of default under the subordinated debt indenture has occurred and is continuing, we will have the right at any time and from time to time during the term of any series of subordinated debt securities to defer payment of interest for up to the number of consecutive interest payment periods that is specified in the applicable prospectus supplement, referred to as an "extension period", subject to the terms, conditions and covenants, if any, specified in the prospectus supplement, provided that the extension period may not extend beyond the stated maturity of the applicable series of subordinated debt securities. Prior to the termination of any applicable extension period, we may further defer the payment of interest (subject to the terms, conditions and covenants, if any, specified in the prospectus supplement), but not beyond the specified number of interest payment periods or the stated maturity of the corresponding subordinated debt securities.

As a consequence of any such deferral, distributions on the capital securities would be deferred and would not result in any default (but would continue to accumulate additional distributions at the rate per annum described in the prospectus supplement for the capital securities) by the Issuer Trust of the capital securities during the extension period. During any applicable extension period, we may not, and may not permit any subsidiary to:

- declare or pay any dividends or distributions on, or redeem, purchase, acquire or make a liquidation payment with respect to, any of our capital stock: or
- make any payment of principal of or interest or premium, if any, on or repay, repurchase or redeem any of our debt securities that rank on a parity in all respects with or junior in interest in all respects to the corresponding subordinated debt securities;
- make any guarantee payments with respect to any guarantee by us of debt securities of any of our subsidiaries that rank on a parity in all
 respects with or junior in interest in all respects to the corresponding subordinated debt securities;

in each case, other than:

- repurchases, redemptions or other acquisitions of shares of our capital stock in connection with any employment contract, benefit plan or other similar arrangement with or for the benefit of one or more employees, officers, directors or consultants, in connection with a dividend reinvestment or stockholder stock purchase plan or in connection with the issuance of our capital stock (or securities convertible into or exercisable for our capital stock) as consideration in an acquisition transaction entered into prior to the applicable extension period;
- as a result of any exchange or conversion of any class or series of our capital stock (or any capital stock of a subsidiary of ours) for any class or series of our capital stock or of any class or series of our indebtedness for any class or series of our capital stock;
- the purchase of fractional interests in shares of our capital stock in accordance with the conversion or exchange provisions of such capital stock or the security being converted or exchanged:
- any declaration of a dividend in connection with any stockholders' rights plan, or the issuance of rights, stock or other property under any stockholders' rights plan, or the redemption or repurchase of rights in accordance with any stockholders' rights plan;
- any dividend in the form of stock, warrants, options or other rights where the dividend stock or the stock issuable upon exercise of the warrants,
 options or other rights is the same stock as that on which the dividend is being paid or ranks on a parity with or junior to such stock; or
- · any payments under any guarantees relating to any capital securities.

Subordination

The corresponding subordinated debt securities will be subject to the subordination provisions described above under "Description of Debt Securities We May Offer — Subordination Provisions", except that the definition of "senior indebtedness" will be modified as provided in the applicable prospectus supplement. As a result of this modified definition of senior indebtedness, the corresponding subordinated debt securities may be subordinated and junior in right of payment to most of our indebtedness, including our senior debt, our subordinated debt securities that are not issued to the Issuer Trusts and most of our other subordinated debt. The subordinated debt indenture does not limit our ability to incur additional indebtedness of any kind, including additional senior indebtedness. We expect from time to time to incur additional indebtedness constituting senior indebtedness.

Modification of the Subordinated Debt Indenture

We may modify or amend the subordinated debt indenture with the consent of the subordinated debt trustee, in some cases without obtaining the consent of security holders, as described above under "Description of Debt Securities We May Offer — Modification of the Debt Indentures and Waiver

of Covenants". However, in the case of any series of corresponding subordinated debt securities, so long as any of the related series of capital securities remain outstanding.

- no modification may be made that adversely affects the holders of such series of capital securities in any material respect, and no termination of
 the subordinated debt indenture may occur, and no waiver of any event of default under the subordinated debt indenture with respect to such
 series of capital securities may be effective, without the prior consent of the holders of at least a majority of the aggregate liquidation amount of
 all outstanding capital securities of such series affected, unless and until the principal of the corresponding subordinated debt securities and all
 accrued and unpaid interest have been paid in full and certain other conditions have been satisfied, and
- where a consent under the subordinated debt indenture would require the consent of each holder of a series of corresponding subordinated debt securities, no such consent will be given by the property trustee without the prior consent of each holder of capital securities of the related series affected.

Enforcement of Certain Rights by Holders of Capital Securities

If an event of default with respect to a series of corresponding subordinated debt securities has occurred and is continuing and the event is attributable to our failure to pay interest or principal on the corresponding subordinated debt securities on the date the interest or principal is due and payable (and after a 30-day grace period for interest defaults), a holder of the related capital securities may institute a legal proceeding directly against us for enforcement of payment to that holder of the principal of or interest on corresponding subordinated debt securities having a principal amount equal to the aggregate liquidation amount of the related capital securities of that holder (a "direct action"). We may not amend the subordinated debt indenture to remove this right to bring a direct action without the prior written consent of the holders of all of the related capital securities outstanding and affected. We will have the right under the subordinated debt indenture to set-off any payment made to a holder of the related capital securities by us in connection with a direct action.

The holders of at least 25% in aggregate liquidation amount of any series of outstanding capital securities may, by giving notice in writing to us and the subordinated debt trustee, accelerate the corresponding subordinated debt securities with respect to such series upon the occurrence and during the continuance of an event of default under the subordinated debt indenture with respect to such subordinated debt securities (other than an event of default arising from our filing for bankruptcy or the occurrence of other events of bankruptcy, insolvency or reorganization relating to us), if the holders of the corresponding subordinated debt securities or the subordinated debt trustee have not done so. See "Description of Debt Securities We May Offer — Default, Remedies and Waiver of Default — Events of Default" above for a description of the events of default under the subordinated debt indenture.

The holders of a majority in liquidation amount of all outstanding capital securities of a series may, on behalf of all holders of that series, waive any past default under the subordinated debt indenture with respect to the corresponding subordinated debt securities, except any default in the payment of principal, premium or interest with respect to those debt securities or a non-payment default with respect to a provision of that subordinated debt indenture that cannot be modified without the consent of the holder of each of those debt securities affected.

The holders of related capital securities will not be able to exercise directly any remedies or take any action available to the holders of the corresponding subordinated debt securities other than those set forth in the three preceding paragraphs.

Interest Payment Dates and Record Dates

The provisions relating to interest payment dates and record dates in respect of the corresponding subordinated debt securities will be amended to be consistent with corresponding provisions relating to the capital securities, as set forth in the applicable prospectus supplement.

Guarantees and Expense Agreements

The following description summarizes the material provisions of the guarantees and the agreements as to expenses and liabilities. This description is not complete and is subject to, and is qualified in its entirety by reference to, all of the provisions of each guarantee and each expense agreement, including the definitions therein, and the Trust Indenture Act. The form of the guarantee and the expense agreement have been filed as an exhibit to our registration statement. Reference in this summary to capital securities means the capital securities issued by the related Issuer Trust to which a guarantee or expense agreement relates. Whenever particular defined terms of the guarantees or expense agreements are referred to in this prospectus or in a prospectus supplement, those defined terms are incorporated in this prospectus or the prospectus supplement by reference.

The Guarantees

A guarantee will be executed and delivered by us at the same time each Issuer Trust issues its capital securities. Each guarantee is for the benefit of the holders from time to time of the capital securities. The Bank of New York Mellon will act as indenture trustee (referred to below as the "guarantee trustee") under each guarantee for the purposes of compliance with the Trust Indenture Act and each guarantee will be qualified as an indenture under the Trust Indenture Act. The guarantee trustee will hold each guarantee for the benefit of the holders of the related Issuer Trust's capital securities.

We will irrevocably and unconditionally agree to pay in full on a subordinated basis, to the extent described below, the guarantee payments (as defined below) to the holders of the capital securities, as and when due, regardless of any defense that the Issuer Trust may have or assert other than the defense of payment. The following payments or distributions with respect to the capital securities, to the extent not paid by or on behalf of the related Issuer Trust (referred to as the "guarantee payments"), will be subject to the related guarantee:

- any accumulated and unpaid distributions required to be paid on the capital securities, to the extent that the Issuer Trust has funds legally and immediately available to pay them;
- any redemption price required to be paid on the capital securities, to the extent that the Issuer Trust has funds legally and immediately available
 to pay it; and
- upon a voluntary or involuntary termination, winding up or liquidation of the Issuer Trust (unless the corresponding subordinated debt securities are distributed to holders of such capital securities in exchange for their capital securities), the lesser of:
 - · the liquidation distribution for the capital securities; and
 - the amount of assets of the Issuer Trust remaining available for distribution to holders of capital securities after satisfaction of liabilities to creditors of the Issuer Trust as required by applicable law.

Our obligation to make a guarantee payment may be satisfied by direct payment of the required amounts by us to the holders of the applicable capital securities or by causing the Issuer Trust to pay these amounts to the holders.

Each guarantee will be an irrevocable and unconditional guarantee on a subordinated basis of the related Issuer Trust's obligations under the capital securities, but will apply only to the extent that the related Issuer Trust has funds sufficient to make such payments, and is not a guarantee of collection. See "— Status of the Guarantees" below.

If and to the extent we do not make payments on the corresponding subordinated debt securities held by the Issuer Trust, the Issuer Trust will not be able to make payments on the capital securities and will not have funds available to do so. Each guarantee constitutes an unsecured obligation of ours and will rank subordinate and junior in right of payment to all of our senior indebtedness. See "— Status of the Guarantees" below. Because we are a holding company, our right to participate in any distribution of assets of any subsidiary upon such subsidiary's liquidation or reorganization or otherwise is subject to the prior claims of creditors of that subsidiary, except to the extent we may ourselves be recognized as a creditor of that subsidiary. Accordingly, our obligations under the guarantees will be effectively subordinated to all existing and future liabilities of our subsidiaries, and claimants should

look only to our assets for payments. Except as otherwise provided in the applicable prospectus supplement, the guarantees do not limit the incurrence or issuance of other secured or unsecured debt of ours, including senior indebtedness, whether under the subordinated debt indenture, any other existing debt indenture or any other indenture that we may enter into in the future or otherwise.

We have, through the applicable guarantee, the applicable trust agreement, the applicable series of corresponding subordinated debt securities, the subordinated debt indenture and the applicable expense agreement, taken together, fully, irrevocably and unconditionally guaranteed all of the Issuer Trust's obligations under the related capital securities. No single document standing alone or operating in conjunction with fewer than all of the other documents constitutes a guarantee. It is only the combined operation of these documents that has the effect of providing a full, irrevocable and unconditional guarantee of an Issuer Trust's obligations under its capital securities. See "Relationship Among the Capital Securities and the Related Instruments" below

Status of the Guarantees

Each guarantee will constitute an unsecured obligation of ours and will be subordinated in right of payment to all of our senior indebtedness in the same manner as the corresponding subordinated debt securities. See "Corresponding Subordinated Debt Securities — Subordination" above.

Each guarantee will constitute a guarantee of payment and not of collection (*i.e.*, the guaranteed party may institute a legal proceeding directly against us to enforce its rights under the guarantee without first instituting a legal proceeding against any other person or entity). Each guarantee will be held for the benefit of the holders of the related capital securities. Each guarantee will not be discharged except by payment of the guarantee payments in full to the extent not paid by the Issuer Trust or upon distribution to the holders of the capital securities of the corresponding subordinated debt securities. None of the guarantees places a limitation on the amount of additional senior indebtedness that may be incurred by us. We expect from time to incur additional indebtedness constituting senior indebtedness.

Amendments and Assignment

Except with respect to any changes which do not materially adversely affect the material rights of holders of the related capital securities (in which case no vote of the holders will be required), no guarantee may be amended without the prior approval of the holders of a majority of the related outstanding capital securities. The manner of obtaining any such approval will be as described above under "— Voting Rights; Amendment of Each Trust Agreement". All guarantees and agreements contained in each guarantee will bind our successors, assigns, receivers, trustees and representatives and will inure to the benefit of the holders of the related capital securities then outstanding. We may not assign our obligations under the guarantees except in connection with a consolidation, merger or amalgamation, or sale of all or substantially all our assets, involving us that is permitted under the terms of the subordinated debt indenture.

Events of Default

An event of default under each guarantee will occur upon our failure to perform any of our payment obligations under the guarantee or to perform any non-payment obligations if this non-payment default remains unremedied for 30 days. The holders of a majority of the related capital securities then outstanding have the right to direct the time, method and place of conducting any proceeding for any remedy available to the guarantee trustee in respect of the guarantee or to direct the exercise of any trust or power conferred upon the guarantee trustee under the guarantee.

We, as guarantor, are required to file annually with the guarantee trustee a certificate as to whether or not we are in compliance with all the conditions and covenants applicable to us under the guarantee.

Information Concerning the Guarantee Trustee

The guarantee trustee, other than during the occurrence and continuance of a default by us in performance of any guarantee, undertakes to perform only those duties specifically set forth in each

guarantee and, after default with respect to any guarantee, must exercise the same degree of care and skill as a prudent person would exercise or use in the conduct of his or her own affairs. Subject to this provision, the guarantee trustee is under no obligation to exercise any of the powers vested in it by any guarantee at the request of any holder of any capital securities unless it is offered reasonable indemnity against the costs, expenses and liabilities that might be incurred as a result.

Termination of the Guarantees

Each guarantee will terminate and be of no further force and effect upon:

- · the guarantee payments having been paid in full by us, the trust or both; or
- the distribution of corresponding subordinated debt securities to the holders of the related capital securities in exchange for their capital securities.

Each guarantee will continue to be effective or will be reinstated, as the case may be, if at any time any holder of the related capital securities must restore payment of any sums paid under the capital securities or the guarantee in connection with a bankruptcy, insolvency, or similar proceeding involving the Issuer Trust.

Governing Law

Each guarantee will be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of New York.

The Expense Agreements

Pursuant to the expense agreement that will be entered into by us under each trust agreement, we will irrevocably and unconditionally guarantee to each person or entity to whom the Issuer Trust becomes indebted or liable the full payment of any costs, expenses or liabilities of the Issuer Trust, other than obligations of the Issuer Trust to pay to the holders of any capital securities or other similar interests in the Issuer Trust the amounts owed to holders pursuant to the terms of the capital securities or other similar interests, as the case may be. The expense agreement will be enforceable by third parties.

Our obligations under each expense agreement will be subordinated in right of payment to the same extent as each guarantee. Our obligations under each expense agreement will be subject to provisions regarding amendment, termination, assignment, succession and governing law similar to those applicable to each guarantee.

Relationship Among the Capital Securities and the Related Instruments

The following description of the relationship among the capital securities, the corresponding subordinated debt securities, the relevant expense agreement and the relevant guarantee is not complete and is subject to, and is qualified in its entirety by reference to, each trust agreement, the subordinated debt indenture and the form of guarantee, each of which is incorporated as an exhibit to our SEC registration statement, and the Trust Indenture Act.

Full and Unconditional Guarantee

Payments of distributions and other amounts due on the capital securities (to the extent the related Issuer Trust has funds available for the payment of such distributions) are irrevocably guaranteed by us as described above under "— Guarantees and Expense Agreements — The Guarantees". Taken together, our obligations under each series of corresponding subordinated debt securities, the subordinated debt indenture, the related trust agreement, the related expense agreement, and the related guarantee provide, in the aggregate, a full, irrevocable and unconditional guarantee of payments of distributions and other amounts due on the related capital securities. No single document standing alone or operating in conjunction with fewer than all of the other documents constitutes a guarantee. It is only the combined operation of these documents that has the effect of providing a full, irrevocable and unconditional guarantee of the Issuer Trust's obligations under the related capital securities. If and to the extent that we do not make payments on any series of

corresponding subordinated debt securities, the Issuer Trust will not pay distributions or other amounts due on its related capital securities. The guarantees do not cover payment of any amounts when the related Issuer Trust does not have sufficient funds to pay such amounts. In such an event, the remedy of a holder of any capital securities is to institute a legal proceeding directly against us pursuant to the terms of the subordinated debt indenture for enforcement of our obligations under the corresponding subordinated debt securities. Our obligations under each guarantee are subordinate and junior in right of payment to all of our senior indebtedness.

If we make payment on the corresponding subordinated debt securities and the relevant Issuer Trust has funds available to make payments on its related capital securities but fails to do so, a holder of such capital securities may begin a legal proceeding against us to enforce our obligations under the related guarantee to make these payments or to cause the Issuer Trust to make these payments. In the event an Issuer Trust receives payments on the corresponding subordinated debt securities, but these funds are available for payment on the related capital securities only after claims made by creditors of the trust are paid, we would be obligated under the related expense agreement to pay those claims.

Sufficiency of Payments

As long as payments of interest and other payments are made when due on each series of corresponding subordinated debt securities, such payments will be sufficient to cover distributions and other payments due on the related capital securities, primarily because:

- the aggregate principal amount of each series of corresponding subordinated debt securities will be equal to the sum of the aggregate stated liquidation amount of the related capital securities and related trust common securities;
- the interest rate and interest and other payment dates on each series of corresponding subordinated debt securities will match the distribution rate and distribution and other payment dates for the related capital securities;
- we will pay, under the related expense agreement, for all and any costs, expenses and liabilities of the Issuer Trust except the Issuer Trust's
 obligations to holders of its capital securities under the capital securities; and
- each trust agreement provides that the Issuer Trust will not engage in any activity that is inconsistent with the limited purposes of such Issuer Trust.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the subordinated debt indenture, we have the right to set-off any payment we are otherwise required to make under the subordinated debt indenture with a payment we make under the related guarantee.

Enforcement Rights of Holders of Capital Securities

A holder of any related capital security may, to the extent permissible under applicable law, institute a legal proceeding directly against us to enforce its rights under the subordinated debt indenture or the related guarantee without first instituting a legal proceeding against the guarantee trustee, the related Issuer Trust or any other person or entity.

A default or event of default under any of our senior indebtedness would not constitute a default or event of default with respect to any series of capital securities or the corresponding subordinated debt securities. In the event of payment defaults under, or acceleration of, or defaults that permit acceleration of, our senior indebtedness, or acceleration of the corresponding subordinated debt securities, the subordination provisions of the subordinated debt indenture provide that no payments may be made in respect of the corresponding subordinated debt securities until the senior indebtedness has been paid in full or any payment default has been cured or waived.

Limited Purpose of Issuer Trusts

Each Issuer Trust's capital securities evidence a preferred and undivided beneficial interest in the Issuer Trust, and each Issuer Trust exists for the sole purpose of issuing its capital securities and trust

common securities and investing the proceeds thereof in corresponding subordinated debt securities and engaging in only those other activities necessary or incidental thereto. A principal difference between the rights of a holder of a capital security and a holder of the corresponding subordinated debt security is that a holder of a corresponding subordinated debt security is entitled to receive from us the principal amount of and interest accrued on corresponding subordinated debt securities held, while a holder of capital securities is entitled to receive distributions from the Issuer Trust (or from us under the applicable guarantee) if and to the extent the Issuer Trust has funds available for the payment of such distributions.

Rights Upon Dissolution

Upon any voluntary or involuntary dissolution of any Issuer Trust (except in connection with the redemption of all capital securities), the holders of the related capital securities will be entitled to receive a like amount of corresponding subordinated debt securities in exchange for their capital securities, subject to prior satisfaction of liabilities to creditors of the trust. If the property trustee determines that a distribution of subordinated debt securities is not practical, the holders of capital securities will be entitled to receive a liquidation distribution out of the assets held by the trust after satisfaction of those liabilities. See "— Liquidation Distribution Upon Dissolution" above. Upon any voluntary or involuntary liquidation or bankruptcy of ours, the property trustee, as holder of the corresponding subordinated debt securities, would be a subordinated creditor of ours, subordinated in right of payment to all senior indebtedness as set forth in the subordinated debt indenture, but entitled to receive payment in full of principal and interest, before any stockholders of ours receive payments or distributions. Since we are the guarantor under each guarantee and have agreed, under the related expense agreement, to pay for all costs, expenses and liabilities of each Issuer Trust (other than the Issuer Trust's obligations to the holders of its capital securities), the positions of a holder of such capital securities and a holder of such corresponding subordinated debt securities relative to other creditors and to our stockholders in the event of our liquidation or bankruptcy are expected to be substantially the same.

Notices

Notices to be given to holders of a global capital security will be given only to the depositary, in accordance with its applicable policies as in effect from time to time. Notices to be given to holders of any capital securities not in global form will be sent by mail to the respective addresses of the holders as they appear in the trustee's records, and will be deemed given when mailed. Neither the failure to give any notice to a particular holder, nor any defect in a notice given to a particular holder, will affect the sufficiency of any notice given to another holder.

Book-entry and other indirect owners should consult their banks or brokers for information on how they will receive notices.

DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STOCK OF THE GOLDMAN SACHS GROUP, INC.

Pursuant to our restated certificate of incorporation, our authorized capital stock consists of 4,350,000,000 shares, each with a par value of \$0.01 per share, of which:

- · 150,000,000 shares are designated as preferred stock,
 - 30,000 shares of which (designated as Floating Rate Non-Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series A) are issued, 29,999 of which are outstanding, as of the date of this prospectus with a \$25,000 liquidation preference per share,
 - 32,000 shares of which (designated as 6.20% Non-Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series B) are issued and outstanding as of the date of this prospectus with a \$25,000 liquidation preference per share,
 - 8,000 shares of which (designated as Floating Rate Non-Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series C) are issued and outstanding as of the date of this prospectus with a \$25,000 liquidation preference per share,
 - 54,000 shares of which (designated as Floating Rate Non-Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series D) are issued, 53,999 of which are outstanding, as of the date of this prospectus with a \$25,000 liquidation preference per share;
- 4,000,000,000 shares are designated as common stock, 496,346,676 shares of which were outstanding as of August 31, 2011; and
- 200,000,000 shares are designated as nonvoting common stock, none of which are outstanding.

All outstanding shares of common stock are validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable.

Information regarding the shareholders' agreement containing provisions relating to the voting and disposition of certain shares of common stock held by our participating managing directors is incorporated by reference into Part III, Item 12 of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010, which is incorporated by reference into this prospectus.

Preferred Stock

Our authorized capital stock includes 150,000,000 shares of preferred stock. Our board of directors is authorized to divide the preferred stock into series and, with respect to each series, to determine the designations and the powers, preferences and rights, and the qualifications, limitations and restrictions thereof, including the dividend rights, conversion or exchange rights, voting rights, redemption rights and terms, liquidation preferences, sinking fund provisions and the number of shares constituting the series. Our board of directors could, without shareholder approval, issue preferred stock with voting and other rights that could adversely affect the voting power of the holders of common stock and which could have certain anti-takeover effects.

Common Stock

Each holder of common stock is entitled to one vote for each share owned of record on all matters submitted to a vote of shareholders. There are no cumulative voting rights. Accordingly, the holders of a plurality of the shares of common stock voting in a contested election of directors can elect all the directors if they choose to do so, subject to any voting rights of holders of preferred stock to elect directors. In an uncontested director election, a director must receive a majority of the votes cast for or against the director to be elected.

Subject to the preferential rights of any holders of any outstanding series of preferred stock, the holders of common stock, together with the holders of the nonvoting common stock, are entitled to

such dividends and distributions, whether payable in cash or otherwise, as may be declared from time to time by our board of directors from legally available funds. Subject to the preferential rights of holders of any outstanding series of preferred stock, upon our liquidation, dissolution or winding-up and after payment of all prior claims, the holders of common stock, with the shares of the common stock and the nonvoting common stock being considered as a single class for this purpose, will be entitled to receive pro rata all our assets. Holders of common stock have no redemption or conversion rights or preemptive rights to purchase or subscribe for securities of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.

Nonvoting Common Stock

The nonvoting common stock has the same rights and privileges as, ranks equally and shares proportionately with, and is identical in all respects as to all matters to, the common stock, except that the nonvoting common stock has no voting rights other than those voting rights required by law.

Limitation of Liability and Indemnification Matters

Our charter provides that a director of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. will not be liable to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. or its shareholders for monetary damages for breach of fiduciary duty as a director, except in certain cases where liability is mandated by the Delaware General Corporation Law. Our by-laws provide for indemnification, to the fullest extent permitted by law, of any person made or threatened to be made a party to any action, suit or proceeding by reason of the fact that such person is or was a director or officer of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., or is or was a director of a subsidiary of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., or is or was a member of the shareholders' committee acting under the shareholders' agreement or, at the request of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., serves or served as a director or officer of or in any other capacity for, or in relation to, any other enterprise, against all expenses, liabilities, losses and claims actually incurred or suffered by such person in connection with the action, suit or proceeding. Our by-laws also provide that, to the extent authorized from time to time by our board of directors, The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. may provide to any one or more employees and other agents of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. or any subsidiary or other enterprise, rights of indemnification and to receive payment or reimbursement of expenses, including attorneys' fees, that are similar to the rights conferred by the by-laws on directors and officers of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. or any subsidiary or other enterprise.

Charter Provisions Approving Certain Actions

Our charter provides that our board of directors may determine to take the following actions, in its sole discretion, and The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and each shareholder of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. will, to the fullest extent permitted by law, be deemed to have approved and ratified, and waived any claim relating to, the taking of any of these actions:

- causing The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. to register with the SEC for resale shares of common stock held by our directors, employees and
 former directors and employees and our subsidiaries and affiliates and former partners and employees of The Goldman Sachs Group, L.P. and
 its subsidiaries and affiliates; and
- making payments to, and other arrangements with, certain former limited partners of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., including managing directors who were profit participating limited partners, in order to compensate them for, or to prevent, significantly disproportionate adverse tax or other consequences arising out of our incorporation.

Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law

The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. is subject to the provisions of Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law. In general, Section 203 prohibits a publicly held Delaware corporation from

engaging in a "business combination" with an "interested stockholder" for a period of three years after the date of the transaction in which the person became an interested stockholder, unless the business combination is approved in a prescribed manner. A "business combination" includes a merger, asset sale or a transaction resulting in a financial benefit to the interested stockholder. An "interested stockholder" is a person who, together with affiliates and associates, owns (or, in certain cases, within the preceding three years, did own) 15% or more of the corporation's outstanding voting stock. Under Section 203, a business combination between The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and an interested stockholder is prohibited unless it satisfies one of the following conditions:

- prior to the stockholder becoming an interested stockholder, the board of directors of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. must have previously approved either the business combination or the transaction that resulted in the stockholder becoming an interested stockholder;
- on consummation of the transaction that resulted in the stockholder becoming an interested stockholder, the interested stockholder owned at least 85% of the voting stock of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. outstanding at the time the transaction commenced, excluding, for purposes of determining the number of shares outstanding, shares owned by persons who are directors and officers; or
- the business combination is approved by the board of directors of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and authorized at an annual or special
 meeting of the stockholders by the affirmative vote of at least 66 2/3% of the outstanding voting stock which is not owned by the interested
 stockholder.

Our board of directors has adopted a resolution providing that the shareholders' agreement will not create an "interested stockholder".

Certain Anti-Takeover Matters

Our charter and by-laws include a number of provisions that may have the effect of encouraging persons considering unsolicited tender offers or other unilateral takeover proposals to negotiate with our board of directors rather than pursue non-negotiated takeover attempts. These provisions include:

Constituency Provision

In accordance with our charter, a director of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. may (but is not required to) in taking any action (including an action that may involve or relate to a change or potential change in control of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.), consider, among other things, the effects that The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s actions may have on other interests or persons (including its employees, former partners of The Goldman Sachs Group, L.P. and the community) in addition to our shareholders.

Advance Notice Requirements

Our by-laws establish advance notice procedures with regard to shareholder proposals relating to the nomination of candidates for election as directors or new business to be brought before meetings of shareholders of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. These procedures provide that notice of such shareholder proposals must be timely given in writing to the Secretary of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. prior to the meeting at which the action is to be taken. Generally, to be timely, notice must be received at the principal executive offices of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. not less than 90 days nor more than 120 days prior to the anniversary date of the annual meeting for the preceding year. The notice must contain certain information specified in the bylaws.

Limitation on Ability of Shareholders to Call Special Meetings

Our charter and by-laws provide procedures pursuant to which holders of record of not less than 25% of the voting power of outstanding shares of our common stock may call a special meeting of shareholders. Our by-laws impose certain procedural requirements on shareholders requesting such a meeting (including the provision of the same information required for shareholder proposals at annual meetings under our advance notice by-law provisions described above), as well as qualifications designed to prevent duplicative and unnecessary meetings.

No Written Consent of Shareholders

Our charter requires all shareholder actions to be taken by a vote of the shareholders at an annual or special meeting, and does not permit our shareholders to act by written consent without a meeting.

Blank Check Preferred Stock

Our charter provides for 150,000,000 authorized shares of preferred stock. The existence of authorized but unissued shares of preferred stock may enable the board of directors to render more difficult or to discourage an attempt to obtain control of Goldman Sachs by means of a merger, tender offer, proxy contest or otherwise. For example, if in the due exercise of its fiduciary obligations, the board of directors were to determine that a takeover proposal is not in the best interests of Goldman Sachs, the board of directors could cause shares of preferred stock to be issued without shareholder approval in one or more private offerings or other transactions that might dilute the voting or other rights of the proposed acquiror or insurgent shareholder group. In this regard, the charter grants our board of directors broad power to establish the rights and preferences of authorized and unissued shares of preferred stock. The issuance of shares of preferred stock could decrease the amount of earnings and assets available for distribution to holders of shares of common stock. The issuance may also adversely affect the rights and powers, including voting rights, of such holders and may have the effect of delaying, deterring or preventing a change in control of Goldman Sachs.

Listing

The common stock of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. is listed on the NYSE under the ticker symbol "GS".

Transfer Agent

The transfer agent for the common stock is Mellon Investor Services LLC.

LEGAL OWNERSHIP AND BOOK-ENTRY ISSUANCE

In this section, we describe special considerations that will apply to registered securities issued in global — *i.e.*, book-entry — form. First we describe the difference between legal ownership and indirect ownership of registered securities. Then we describe special provisions that apply to global securities.

Who Is the Legal Owner of a Registered Security?

Each debt security, warrant, purchase contract, unit, share of preferred stock and depositary share in registered form will be represented either by a certificate issued in definitive form to a particular investor or by one or more global securities representing the entire issuance of securities. We refer to those who have securities registered in their own names, on the books that we or the trustee, warrant agent or other agent maintain for this purpose, as the "holders" of those securities. These persons are the legal holders of the securities. We refer to those who, indirectly through others, own beneficial interests in securities that are not registered in their own names as indirect owners of those securities. As we discuss below, indirect owners are not legal holders, and investors in securities issued in book-entry form or in street name will be indirect owners.

Book-Entry Owners

We or the Issuer Trusts, as applicable, will issue each security in book-entry form only. This means securities will be represented by one or more global securities registered in the name of a financial institution that holds them as depositary on behalf of other financial institutions that participate in the depositary's book-entry system. These participating institutions, in turn, hold beneficial interests in the securities on behalf of themselves or their customers

Under each indenture, only the person in whose name a security is registered is recognized as the holder of that security. Consequently, for securities issued in global form, we or the Issuer Trusts will recognize only the depositary as the holder of the securities and we or the Issuer Trusts will make all payments on the securities, including deliveries of any property other than cash, to the depositary. The depositary passes along the payments it receives to its participants, which in turn pass the payments along to their customers who are the beneficial owners. The depositary and its participants do so under agreements they have made with one another or with their customers; they are not obligated to do so under the terms of the securities.

As a result, investors will not own securities directly. Instead, they will own beneficial interests in a global security, through a bank, broker or other financial institution that participates in the depositary's book-entry system or holds an interest through a participant. As long as the securities are issued in global form, investors will be indirect owners, and not holders, of the securities.

Street Name Owners

In the future we or the Issuer Trusts, as applicable, may terminate a global security or issue securities initially in non-global form. In these cases, investors may choose to hold their securities in their own names or in street name. Securities held by an investor in street name would be registered in the name of a bank, broker or other financial institution that the investor chooses, and the investor would hold only a beneficial interest in those securities through an account he or she maintains at that institution.

For securities held in street name, we or the Issuer Trusts will recognize only the intermediary banks, brokers and other financial institutions in whose names the securities are registered as the holders of those securities and we or the Issuer Trusts will make all payments on those securities, including deliveries of any property other than cash, to them. These institutions pass along the payments they receive to their customers who are the beneficial owners, but only because they agree to do so in their customer agreements or because they are legally required to do so. Investors who hold securities in street name will be indirect owners, not holders, of those securities.

Legal Holders

Our obligations, the obligations of the Issuer Trusts, as well as the obligations of the trustee under any indenture and the obligations, if any, of any warrant agents and unit agents and any other third parties employed by us, the trustee or any of those agents, run only to the holders of the securities. Neither we nor the Issuer Trusts have obligations to investors who hold beneficial interests in global securities, in street name or by any other indirect means. This will be the case whether an investor chooses to be an indirect owner of a security or has no choice because we or the Issuer Trusts, as applicable, are issuing the securities only in global form.

For example, once we or the Issuer Trusts, as applicable, make a payment or give a notice to the holder, we or the Issuer Trusts, as applicable, have no further responsibility for that payment or notice even if that holder is required, under agreements with depositary participants or customers or by law, to pass it along to the indirect owners but does not do so. Similarly, if we or the Issuer Trusts want to obtain the approval of the holders for any purpose — e.g., to amend the indenture for a series of debt securities or warrants or the warrant agreement for a series of warrants or to relieve us of the consequences of a default or of our obligation to comply with a particular provision of an indenture — we or the Issuer Trusts would seek the approval only from the holders, and not the indirect owners, of the relevant securities. Whether and how the holders contact the indirect owners is up to the holders.

When we refer to "you" in this prospectus, we mean those who invest in the securities being offered by this prospectus, whether they are the holders or only indirect owners of those securities. When we refer to "your securities" in this prospectus, we mean the securities in which you will hold a direct or indirect interest.

Special Considerations for Indirect Owners

If you hold securities through a bank, broker or other financial institution, either in book-entry form or in street name, you should check with your own institution to find out:

- · how it handles securities payments and notices;
- · whether it imposes fees or charges;
- whether and how you can instruct it to exercise any rights to purchase or sell warrant property under a warrant or purchase contract property under a purchase contract or to exchange or convert a security for or into other property;
- · how it would handle a request for the holders' consent, if ever required;
- whether and how you can instruct it to send you securities registered in your own name so you can be a holder, if that is permitted in the future;
- how it would exercise rights under the securities if there were a default or other event triggering the need for holders to act to protect their interests; and
- if the securities are in book-entry form, how the depositary's rules and procedures will affect these matters.

What Is a Global Security?

We or the Issuer Trusts, as applicable, will issue each security in book-entry form only. Each security issued in book-entry form will be represented by a global security that we or the Issuer Trusts deposit with and register in the name of one or more financial institutions or clearing systems, or their nominees, which we select. A financial institution or clearing system that we or the Issuer Trusts select for any security for this purpose is called the "depositary" for that security. A security will usually have only one depositary but it may have more.

Each series of securities will have one or more of the following as the depositaries:

The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York, which is known as "DTC";

- a financial institution holding the securities on behalf of Euroclear Bank SA/NV, which is known as "Euroclear";
- a financial institution holding the securities on behalf of Clearstream Banking, société anonyme, which is known as "Clearstream"; and
- · any other clearing system or financial institution named in the applicable prospectus supplement.

The depositaries named above may also be participants in one another's clearing systems. Thus, for example, if DTC is the depositary for a global security, investors may hold beneficial interests in that security through Euroclear or Clearstream, as DTC participants. The depositary or depositaries for your securities will be named in your prospectus supplement; if none is named, the depositary will be DTC.

A global security may represent one or any other number of individual securities. Generally, all securities represented by the same global security will have the same terms. We or the Issuer Trusts may, however, issue a global security that represents multiple securities of the same kind, such as debt securities, that have different terms and are issued at different times. We call this kind of global security a master global security. Your prospectus supplement will not indicate whether your securities are represented by a master global security.

A global security may not be transferred to or registered in the name of anyone other than the depositary or its nominee, unless special termination situations arise. We describe those situations below under "— Holder's Option to Obtain a Non-Global Security; Special Situations When a Global Security Will Be Terminated". If termination occurs, we or the Issuer Trusts may issue the securities through another book-entry clearing system or decide that the securities may no longer be held through any book-entry clearing system.

The depositary, or its nominee, will be the sole registered owner and holder of all securities represented by a global security, and investors will be permitted to own only indirect interests in a global security. Indirect interests must be held by means of an account with a broker, bank or other financial institution that in turn has an account with the depositary or with another institution that does. Thus, an investor whose security is represented by a global security will not be a holder of the security, but only an indirect owner of an interest in the global security.

Special Considerations for Global Securities

As an indirect owner, an investor's rights relating to a global security will be governed by the account rules of the depositary and those of the investor's financial institution or other intermediary through which it holds its interest (e.g., Euroclear or Clearstream, if DTC is the depositary), as well as general laws relating to securities transfers. We or the Issuer Trusts, as applicable, do not recognize this type of investor or any intermediary as a holder of securities and instead deal only with the depositary that holds the global security.

If securities are issued only in the form of a global security, an investor should be aware of the following:

- An investor cannot cause the securities to be registered in his or her own name, and cannot obtain non-global certificates for his or her interest
 in the securities, except in the special situations we describe below;
- An investor will be an indirect holder and must look to his or her own bank or broker for payments on the securities and protection of his or her legal rights relating to the securities, as we describe above under "— Who Is the Legal Owner of a Registered Security?";
- An investor may not be able to sell interests in the securities to some insurance companies and other institutions that are required by law to own their securities in non-book-entry form;
- An investor may not be able to pledge his or her interest in a global security in circumstances where certificates representing the securities must be delivered to the lender or other beneficiary of the pledge in order for the pledge to be effective;

- The depositary's policies will govern payments, deliveries, transfers, exchanges, notices and other matters relating to an investor's interest in a
 global security, and those policies may change from time to time. We, the Issuer Trusts, the trustee and any warrant agents and unit agents will
 have no responsibility for any aspect of the depositary's policies, actions or records of ownership interests in a global security. We, the Issuer
 Trusts, the trustee and any warrant agents and unit agents also do not supervise the depositary in any way;
- The depositary will require that those who purchase and sell interests in a global security within its book-entry system use immediately available funds and your broker or bank may require you to do so as well; and
- Financial institutions that participate in the depositary's book-entry system and through which an investor holds its interest in the global securities, directly or indirectly, may also have their own policies affecting payments, deliveries, transfers, exchanges, notices and other matters relating to the securities, and those policies may change from time to time. For example, if you hold an interest in a global security through Euroclear or Clearstream, when DTC is the depositary, Euroclear or Clearstream, as applicable, will require those who purchase and sell interests in that security through them to use immediately available funds and comply with other policies and procedures, including deadlines for giving instructions as to transactions that are to be effected on a particular day. There may be more than one financial intermediary in the chain of ownership for an investor. We or the Issuer Trusts, as applicable, do not monitor and are not responsible for the policies or actions or records of ownership interests of any of those intermediaries.

Holder's Option to Obtain a Non-Global Security; Special Situations When a Global Security Will Be Terminated

If we or the Issuer Trusts, as applicable, issue any series of securities in book-entry form but we choose to give the beneficial owners of that series the right to obtain non-global securities, any beneficial owner entitled to obtain non-global securities may do so by following the applicable procedures of the depositary, any transfer agent or registrar for that series and that owner's bank, broker or other financial institution through which that owner holds its beneficial interest in the securities. For example, in the case of a global security representing preferred stock or depositary shares, a beneficial owner will be entitled to obtain a non-global security representing its interest by making a written request to the transfer agent or other agent designated by us or the Issuer Trusts. If you are entitled to request a non-global certificate and wish to do so, you will need to allow sufficient lead time to enable us, the Issuer Trusts or our agent to prepare the requested certificate.

In addition, in a few special situations described below, a global security will be terminated and interests in it will be exchanged for certificates in non-global form representing the securities it represented. After that exchange, the choice of whether to hold the securities directly or in street name will be up to the investor. Investors must consult their own banks or brokers to find out how to have their interests in a global security transferred on termination to their own names, so that they will be holders. We have described the rights of holders and street name investors above under "— Who Is the Legal Owner of a Registered Security?".

The special situations for termination of a global security are as follows:

- if the depositary notifies us or the Issuer Trust that it is unwilling, unable or no longer qualified to continue as depositary for that global security and we do not appoint another institution to act as depositary within 60 days;
- if we or the Issuer Trust notify the trustee, warrant agent or unit agent, as applicable, that we or the Issuer Trust wish to terminate that global security; or
- in the case of a global security representing debt securities or warrants issued under an indenture, if an event of default has occurred with regard to these debt securities and has not been cured or waived.

DTC's current rules provide that it would notify its participants of a request by us or the Issuer Trust to terminate a global security, but will only withdraw beneficial interests from the global security at the request of each DTC participant.

If a global security is terminated, only the depositary, and not we, any Issuer Trust, the trustee for any debt securities, the warrant agent for any warrants or the unit agent for any units, is responsible for deciding the names of the institutions in whose names the securities represented by the global security will be registered and, therefore, who will be the holders of those securities.

Considerations Relating to Euroclear and Clearstream

Euroclear and Clearstream are securities clearing systems in Europe. Both systems clear and settle securities transactions between their participants through electronic, book-entry delivery of securities against payment.

Euroclear and Clearstream may be depositaries for a global security. In addition, if DTC is the depositary for a global security, Euroclear and Clearstream may hold interests in the global security as participants in DTC.

As long as any global security is held by Euroclear or Clearstream, as depositary, you may hold an interest in the global security only through an organization that participates, directly or indirectly, in Euroclear or Clearstream. If Euroclear or Clearstream is the depositary for a global security and there is no depositary in the United States, you will not be able to hold interests in that global security through any securities clearance system in the United States.

Payments, deliveries, transfers, exchanges, notices and other matters relating to the securities made through Euroclear or Clearstream must comply with the rules and procedures of those systems. Those clearing systems could change their rules and procedures at any time. Neither we nor the Issuer Trusts have control over those systems or their participants, and neither we nor the Issuer Trusts take responsibility for their activities. Transactions between participants in Euroclear or Clearstream, on one hand, and participants in DTC, on the other hand, when DTC is the depositary, would also be subject to DTC's rules and procedures.

Special Timing Considerations for Transactions in Euroclear and Clearstream

Investors will be able to make and receive through Euroclear and Clearstream payments, deliveries, transfers, exchanges, notices and other transactions involving any securities held through those clearing systems only on days when those systems are open for business. These clearing systems may not be open for business on days when banks, brokers and other institutions are open for business in the United States.

In addition, because of time-zone differences, U.S. investors who hold their interests in the securities through these clearing systems and wish to transfer their interests, or to receive or make a payment or delivery or exercise any other right with respect to their interests, on a particular day may find that the transaction will not be effected until the next business day in Luxembourg or Brussels, as applicable. Thus, investors who wish to exercise rights that expire on a particular day may need to act before the expiration date. In addition, investors who hold their interests through both DTC and Euroclear or Clearstream may need to make special arrangements to finance any purchases or sales of their interests between the U.S. and European clearing systems, and those transactions may settle later than would be the case for transactions within one clearing system.

CONSIDERATIONS RELATING TO FLOATING RATE DEBT SECURITIES

Changes in Banks' Inter-bank Lending Rate Reporting Practices or the Method Pursuant to Which the LIBOR Rates Are Determined May Adversely Affect the Value of Your Floating Rate Debt Securities

Beginning in 2008, concerns have been raised that some of the member banks surveyed by the British Bankers' Association (the "BBA") in connection with the calculation of daily LIBOR rates may have been under-reporting the inter-bank lending rate applicable to them in order to avoid an appearance of capital insufficiency or adverse reputational or other consequences that may result from reporting higher inter-bank lending rates. Inquiries remain ongoing, including investigations by regulators and governmental authorities in various jurisdictions, and if such under-reporting occurred, it may have resulted in the LIBOR rate being artificially low. If any such under-reporting still exists and some or all of the member banks discontinue such practice, there may be a resulting sudden or prolonged upward movement in LIBOR rates. In addition, in August 2008 the BBA announced that it was changing the LIBOR rate-fixing process by increasing the number of banks surveyed to set the LIBOR rate. The BBA has taken steps intended to strengthen the oversight of the process and review biannually the composition of the panels of banks surveyed to set the LIBOR rate. Any changes in the method pursuant to which the LIBOR rates are determined, or the development of a widespread market view that LIBOR rates have been or are being manipulated by members of the bank panel, may result in a sudden or prolonged increase or decrease in the reported LIBOR rates. If that were to occur, the level of interest payments and the value of the floating rate debt securities may be adversely affected. If your floating rate debt securities are subject to a maximum rate specified in your prospectus supplement or pricing supplement, you may not benefit from any such increase in LIBOR rates because the interest on your floating rate debt securities may be significantly less than it would have been had you invested in a similar investment instrument not subject to such a maximum interest rate.

CONSIDERATIONS RELATING TO SECURITIES ISSUED IN BEARER FORM

If we or the Issuer Trusts, as applicable, issue securities in bearer, rather than registered, form, those securities will be subject to special provisions described in this section. This section primarily describes provisions relating to debt securities issued in bearer form. Other provisions may apply to securities of other kinds issued in bearer form. To the extent the provisions described in this section are inconsistent with those described elsewhere in this prospectus, they supersede those described elsewhere with regard to any bearer securities. Otherwise, the relevant provisions described elsewhere in this prospectus will apply to bearer securities.

Temporary and Permanent Bearer Global Securities

If we or the Issuer Trusts, as applicable, issue securities in bearer form, all securities of the same series and kind will initially be represented by a temporary bearer global security, which we or the Issuer Trusts will deposit with a common depositary for Euroclear and Clearstream. Euroclear and Clearstream will credit the account of each of their subscribers with the amount of securities the subscriber purchases. We or the Issuer Trusts will promise to exchange the temporary bearer global security for a permanent bearer global security, which we will deliver to the common depositary upon the later of the following two dates:

- the date that is 40 days after the later of (a) the completion of the distribution of the securities as determined by the underwriter, dealer or agent
 and (b) the closing date for the sale of the securities by us; we may extend this date as described below under "— Extensions for Further
 Issuances": and
- the date on which Euroclear and Clearstream provide us or our agent with the necessary tax certificates described below under "— U.S. Tax Certificate Required".

Unless we or the Issuer Trusts say otherwise in the applicable prospectus supplement, owners of beneficial interests in a permanent bearer global security will be able to exchange those interests at their option, in whole but not in part, for:

- non-global securities in bearer form with interest coupons attached, if applicable; or
- · non-global securities in registered form without coupons attached.

A beneficial owner will be able to make this exchange by giving us or our designated agent 60 days' prior written notice in accordance with the terms of the securities.

Extensions for Further Issuances

Without the consent of the trustee, any holders or any other person, we or the Issuer Trusts, as applicable, may issue additional securities identical to a prior issue from time to time. If we issue additional securities before the date on which we would otherwise be required to exchange the temporary bearer global security representing the prior issue for a permanent bearer global security as described above, that date will be extended until the 40th day after the completion of the distribution and the closing, whichever is later, for the additional securities. Extensions of this kind may be repeated if we or the Issuer Trusts sell additional identical securities. As a result of these extensions, beneficial interests in the temporary bearer global security may not be exchanged for interests in a permanent bearer global security until the 40th day after the additional securities have been distributed and sold.

U.S. Tax Certificate Required

We or the Issuer Trusts, as applicable, will not pay or deliver interest or other amounts in respect of any portion of a temporary bearer global security unless and until Euroclear or Clearstream delivers to us, the Issuer Trusts or our agent a tax certificate with regard to the owners of the beneficial interests in that portion of the global security. Also, neither we nor any Issuer Trust will exchange any portion of a temporary bearer global security for a permanent bearer global security unless and until we or the Issuer Trusts receive from Euroclear or Clearstream a tax certificate with regard to the owners of

the beneficial interests in the portion to be exchanged. In each case, this tax certificate must state that each of the relevant owners:

- is not a United States person, as defined below under "- Limitations on Issuance of Bearer Debt Securities";
- is a foreign branch of a United States financial institution purchasing for its own account or for resale, or is a United States person who acquired the security through a financial institution of this kind and who holds the security through that financial institution on the date of certification, provided in either case that the financial institution provides a certificate to us or the distributor selling the security to it stating that it agrees to comply with the requirements of Section 165(j)(3)(A), (B) or (C) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code and the U.S. Treasury Regulations under that Section; or
- is a financial institution holding for purposes of resale during the "restricted period", as defined in U.S. Treasury Regulations Section 1.163-5(c) (2)(i)(D)(7). A financial institution of this kind, whether or not it is also described in either of the two preceding bullet points, must certify that it has not acquired the security for purposes of resale directly or indirectly to a United States person or to a person within the United States or its possessions.

The tax certificate must be signed by an authorized person satisfactory to us.

No one who owns an interest in a temporary bearer global security will receive payment or delivery of any amount or property in respect of its interest, and will not be permitted to exchange its interest for an interest in a permanent bearer global security or a security in any other form, unless we, the Issuer Trusts or our agent have received the required tax certificate on its behalf.

Special requirements and restrictions imposed by United States federal tax laws and regulations will apply to bearer debt securities. We describe these below under "— Limitations on Issuance of Bearer Debt Securities".

Legal Ownership of Bearer Securities

Securities in bearer form are not registered in any name. Whoever is the bearer of the certificate representing a security in bearer form is the legal owner of that security. Legal title and ownership of bearer securities will pass by delivery of the certificates representing the securities. Thus, when we use the term "holder" in this prospectus with regard to bearer securities, we mean the bearer of those securities.

The common depositary for Euroclear and Clearstream will be the bearer, and thus the holder and legal owner, of both the temporary and permanent bearer global securities described above. Investors in those securities will own beneficial interests in the securities represented by those global securities; they will be only indirect owners, not holders or legal owners, of the securities.

As long as the common depositary is the bearer of any bearer security in global form, the common depositary will be considered the sole legal owner and holder of the securities represented by the bearer security in global form. Ownership of beneficial interests in any bearer security in global form will be shown on records maintained by Euroclear or Clearstream, as applicable, or by the common depositary on their behalf, and by the direct and indirect participants in their clearing systems, and ownership interests can be held and transferred only through those records. We, or the Issuer Trusts, as applicable, will pay any amounts owing with respect to a bearer global security only to the common depositary.

Neither we, the Issuer Trusts, the trustee nor any agent will recognize any owner of indirect interests as a holder or legal owner. Nor will we, the Issuer Trusts, the trustee or any agent have any responsibility for the ownership records or practices of Euroclear or Clearstream, the common depositary or any direct or indirect participants in those systems or for any payments, transfers, deliveries, notices or other transactions within those systems, all of which will be subject to the rules and procedures of those systems and participants. If you own an indirect interest in a bearer global security, you must look only to the common depositary for Euroclear or Clearstream, and to their direct

and indirect participants through which you hold your interest, for your ownership rights. You should read the section above entitled "Legal Ownership and Book-Entry Issuance" for more information about holding interests through Euroclear and Clearstream.

Payment and Exchange of Non-Global Bearer Securities

Payments and deliveries owing on non-global bearer securities will be made, in the case of interest payments, only to the holder of the relevant coupon after the coupon is surrendered to the paying agent. In all other cases, payments and deliveries will be made only to the holder of the certificate representing the relevant security after the certificate is surrendered to the paying agent.

Non-global bearer securities, with all unmatured coupons relating to the securities, if any, may be exchanged for a like aggregate amount of non-global bearer or registered securities of like kind. Non-global registered securities may be exchanged for a like aggregate amount of non-global registered securities of like kind, as described above in the sections on the different types of securities we may offer. However, neither we nor the Issuer Trusts will issue bearer securities in exchange for any registered securities.

Replacement certificates and coupons for non-global bearer securities will not be issued in lieu of any lost, stolen or destroyed certificates and coupons unless we, or the Issuer Trust, and our transfer agent receive evidence of the loss, theft or destruction, and an indemnity against liabilities, satisfactory to us and our agent. Upon redemption or any other settlement before the stated maturity or expiration, as well as upon any exchange, of a non-global bearer security, the holder will be required to surrender all unmatured coupons to us, the Issuer Trust, or our designated agent. If any unmatured coupons are not surrendered, we, the Issuer Trust, or our agent may deduct the amount of interest relating to those coupons from the amount otherwise payable or deliverable or we, the Issuer Trusts, or our agent may demand an indemnity against liabilities satisfactory to us and our agent.

We and the Issuer Trusts may make payments, deliveries and exchanges in respect of bearer securities in global form in any manner acceptable to us and the depositary.

Notices

If we or the Issuer Trusts are required to give notice to the holders of bearer securities, we or the Issuer Trusts will do so by publication in a daily newspaper of general circulation in a city in Western Europe. The term "daily newspaper" means a newspaper that is published on each day, other than a Saturday, Sunday or holiday, in the relevant city. If these bearer securities are listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange and its rules so require, that city will be Luxembourg and we expect that newspaper to be the Luxemburger Wort, or notice may be given on the website of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange at www.bourse.lu. If publication in Luxembourg is impractical, the publication will be made elsewhere in Western Europe. A notice of this kind will be presumed to have been received on the date it is first published. If we or the Issuer Trusts cannot give notice as described in this paragraph because the publication of any newspaper is suspended or it is otherwise impractical to publish the notice, then we or the Issuer Trusts will give notice in another form. That alternate form of notice will be deemed to be sufficient notice to each holder. Neither the failure to give notice to a particular holder, nor any defect in a notice given to a particular holder, will affect the sufficiency of any notice given to another holder.

We or the Issuer Trusts may give any required notice with regard to bearer securities in global form to the common depositary for the securities, in accordance with its applicable procedures. If these provisions do not require that notice be given by publication in a newspaper, we or the Issuer Trusts may omit giving notice by publication.

Limitations on Issuance of Bearer Debt Securities

In compliance with United States federal income tax laws and regulations, bearer debt securities, including bearer debt securities in global form, will not be offered, sold, resold or delivered, directly or indirectly, in the United States or its possessions or to United States persons, as defined below, except as otherwise permitted by U.S. Treasury Regulations Section 1.163-5(c)(2)(i)(D). Any underwriters,

dealers or agents participating in the offerings of bearer debt securities, directly or indirectly, must agree that they will not, in connection with the original issuance of any bearer debt securities or during the restricted period applicable under the Treasury Regulations cited earlier, offer, sell, resell or deliver, directly or indirectly, any bearer debt securities in the United States or its possessions or to United States persons, other than as permitted by the applicable Treasury Regulations described above.

In addition, any underwriters, dealers or agents must have procedures reasonably designed to ensure that their employees or agents who are directly engaged in selling bearer debt securities are aware of the above restrictions on the offering, sale, resale or delivery of bearer debt securities.

We and the Issuer Trusts will make payments on bearer debt securities only outside the United States and its possessions except as permitted by the applicable Treasury Regulations described above.

Bearer debt securities and any coupons will bear the following legend:

"Any United States person who holds this obligation will be subject to limitations under the United States income tax laws, including the limitations provided in sections 165(j) and 1287(a) of the Internal Revenue Code".

The sections referred to in this legend provide that, with exceptions, a United States person will not be permitted to deduct any loss, and will not be eligible for capital gain treatment with respect to any gain realized on the sale, exchange or redemption of that bearer debt security or coupon.

As used in this subsection entitled "— Limitations on Issuance of Bearer Debt Securities", the term "bearer debt securities" includes bearer debt securities that are part of units. As used in this section entitled "Considerations Relating to Securities Issued in Bearer Form", "United States person" means:

- · a citizen or resident of the United States;
- a corporation or partnership, including an entity treated as a corporation or partnership for United States federal income tax purposes, created or organized in or under the laws of the United States, any state of the United States or the District of Columbia;
- · an estate the income of which is subject to United States federal income taxation regardless of its source; or
- a trust if a court within the United States is able to exercise primary supervision of the administration of the trust and one or more United States persons have the authority to control all substantial decisions of the trust.

"United States" means the United States of America, including the States and the District of Columbia, and "possessions" of the United States include Puerto Rico, the U.S. Virgin Islands, Guam, American Samoa, Wake Island and the Northern Mariana Islands. In addition, some trusts treated as United States persons before August 20, 1996 may elect to continue to be so treated to the extent provided in the Treasury Regulations.

CONSIDERATIONS RELATING TO INDEXED SECURITIES

We use the term "indexed securities" to mean any of the securities described in this prospectus, or any units that include securities, whose value is linked to an underlying asset or index or another property (including one or more securities or indices of securities). Indexed securities may present a high level of risk, and investors in certain indexed securities may lose their entire investment. In addition, the treatment of indexed securities for U.S. federal income tax purposes is often unclear due to the absence of any authority specifically addressing the issues presented by any particular indexed security. Thus, if you propose to invest in indexed securities, you should independently evaluate the federal income tax consequences of purchasing an indexed security that apply in your particular circumstances. You should also read "United States Taxation" below for a discussion of U.S. tax matters.

Investors in Indexed Securities Could Lose Their Investment

The amount of principal and/or interest payable on an indexed debt security, the cash value or physical settlement value of a physically settled debt security and the cash value or physical settlement value of an indexed warrant or purchase contract will be determined by reference to the price, value or level of one or more securities, currencies, commodities or other properties, any other financial, economic or other measure or instrument, including the occurrence or non-occurrence of any event or circumstance, one or more indices and/or one or more baskets of any of these items. We refer to each of these as an "index". The direction and magnitude of the change in the price, value or level of the relevant index will determine the amount of principal and/or interest payable on an indexed debt security, the cash value or physical settlement value of a physically settled debt security and the cash value or physical settlement value of an indexed warrant or purchase contract. The terms of a particular indexed debt security may or may not include a fixed return of a percentage of the principal amount at maturity or a minimum interest rate. An indexed warrant or purchase contract generally will not provide for any fixed minimum settlement value. Thus, if you purchase an indexed security that does not provide a return of 100% of the principal or other amount you invest, you may lose all or a portion of the principal or other amount you invest and may receive no interest on your investment.

The Return on Indexed Securities May Be Below the Return on Similar Securities

Depending on the terms of an indexed security, as specified in the applicable pricing supplement, you may not receive any periodic interest payments or receive only very low payments on such indexed security. As a result, the overall return on such indexed security may be less than the amount you would have earned by investing the principal or other amount you invest in such indexed security in a non-indexed debt security that bears interest at a prevailing market fixed or floating rate.

The Issuer of a Security or Currency That Serves as an Index Could Take Actions That May Adversely Affect an Indexed Security

The issuer of a security that serves as an index or part of an index for an indexed security will have no involvement in the offer and sale of the indexed security and no obligations to the holder of the indexed security. The issuer may take actions, such as a merger or sale of assets, without regard to the interests of the holder. Any of these actions could adversely affect the value of a security indexed to that security or to an index of which that security is a component.

If the index for an indexed security includes a non-U.S. dollar currency or other asset denominated in a non-U.S. dollar currency, the government that issues that currency will also have no involvement in the offer and sale of the indexed security and no obligations to the holder of the indexed security. That government may take actions that could adversely affect the value of the security. See "Considerations Relating to Securities Denominated or Payable in or Linked to a Non-U.S. Dollar Currency — Government Policy Can Adversely Affect Foreign Currency Exchange Rates and an Investment in a Non-U.S. Dollar Security" below for more information about these kinds of government actions.

An Indexed Security May Be Linked to a Volatile Index, Which May Adversely Affect Your Investment

Some indices are highly volatile, which means that their value may change significantly, up or down, over a short period of time. It is impossible to predict the future performance of an index based on its historical performance. The amount of principal or interest that can be expected to become payable on an indexed debt security or the expected settlement value of an indexed warrant or purchase contract may vary substantially from time to time. Because the amounts payable with respect to an indexed security are generally calculated based on the price, value or level of the relevant index on a specified date or over a limited period of time, volatility in the index increases the risk that the return on the indexed security may be adversely affected by a fluctuation in the level of the relevant index.

The volatility of an index may be affected by financial, political, military or economic events, including governmental actions, or by the activities of participants in the relevant markets. Any of these events or activities could adversely affect the value of an indexed security.

An Index to Which a Security Is Linked Could Be Changed or Become Unavailable

Some indices compiled by us or our affiliates or third parties may consist of or refer to several or many different securities, commodities or currencies or other instruments or measures. The index sponsor of such an index typically reserves the right to alter the composition of the index and the manner in which the value or level of the index is calculated. Changes to the composition of an index may result in a decrease in the value of or return on an indexed security that is linked to such index. The indices for our indexed securities may include published indices of this kind or customized indices developed by us or our affiliates in connection with particular issues of indexed securities.

A published index may become unavailable, or a customized index may become impossible to calculate in the normal manner, due to events such as war, natural disasters, cessation of publication of the index or a suspension or disruption of trading in one or more securities, commodities or currencies or other instruments or measures on which the index is based. If an index becomes unavailable or impossible to calculate in the normal manner, the terms of a particular indexed security may allow us to delay determining the amount payable as principal or interest on an indexed debt security or the settlement value of an indexed warrant or purchase contract, or we may use an alternative method to determine the value of the unavailable index. Alternative methods of valuation are generally intended to produce a value similar to the value resulting from reference to the relevant index. However, it is unlikely that any alternative method of valuation we use will produce a value identical to the value that the actual index would produce. If we use an alternative method of valuation for a security linked to an index of this kind, the value of the security, or the rate of return on it, may be lower than it otherwise would be.

Some indexed securities are linked to indices that are not commonly used or that have been developed only recently. The lack of a trading history may make it difficult to anticipate the volatility or other risks associated with an indexed security of this kind. In addition, trading in these indices or their underlying stocks, commodities or currencies or other instruments or measures, or options or futures contracts on these stocks, commodities or currencies or other instruments or measures, may be limited, which could increase their volatility and decrease the value of the related indexed securities or the rates of return on them.

We May Engage in Hedging Activities that Could Adversely Affect an Indexed Security

In order to hedge an exposure on a particular indexed security, we may, directly or through our affiliates, enter into transactions involving the securities, commodities or currencies or other instruments or measures that underlie the index for that security, or derivative instruments, such as swaps, options or futures, on the index or any of its component items. By engaging in transactions of this kind, we could adversely affect the value of an indexed security. It is possible that we could achieve substantial returns from our hedging transactions while the value of the indexed security may decline.

Information About an Index or Indices May Not Be Indicative of Future Performance

If we issue an indexed security, we may include historical information about the relevant index or indices in the applicable prospectus supplement. Any information about indices that we may provide will be furnished as a matter of information only, and you should not regard the information as indicative of the range of, or trends in, fluctuations in the relevant index or indices that may occur in the future.

We May Have Conflicts of Interest Regarding an Indexed Security

Goldman, Sachs & Co. and our other affiliates may have conflicts of interest with respect to some indexed securities. Goldman, Sachs & Co. and our other affiliates may engage in trading, including trading for hedging purposes, for their proprietary accounts or for other accounts under their management, in indexed securities and in the securities, commodities or currencies or other instruments or measures on which the index is based or in other derivative instruments related to the index or its component items. These trading activities could adversely affect the value of indexed securities. We and our affiliates may also issue or underwrite securities or derivative instruments that are linked to the same index as one or more indexed securities. By introducing competing products into the marketplace in this manner, we could adversely affect the value of an indexed security.

Goldman, Sachs & Co. or another of our affiliates may serve as calculation agent for the indexed securities and may have considerable discretion in calculating the amounts payable in respect of the securities. To the extent that Goldman, Sachs & Co. or another of our affiliates calculates or compiles a particular index, it may also have considerable discretion in performing the calculation or compilation of the index. Exercising discretion in this manner could adversely affect the value of an indexed security based on the index or the rate of return on the security.

If You Purchase an Indexed Security, You Will Have No Rights with Respect to any Underlying Index to which Such Indexed Security is Linked

Investing in an indexed security will not make you a holder of the underlying asset or index or other property. As a result, you will not have any voting rights, any right to receive dividends or other distributions or any other rights with respect to any of the index components.

CONSIDERATIONS RELATING TO SECURITIES DENOMINATED OR PAYABLE IN OR LINKED TO A NON-U.S. DOLLAR CURRENCY

If you intend to invest in a non-U.S. dollar security — e.g., a security whose principal and/or interest is payable in a currency other than U.S. dollars or that may be settled by delivery of or reference to a non-U.S. dollar currency or property denominated in or otherwise linked to a non-U.S. dollar currency — you should consult your own financial and legal advisors as to the currency risks entailed by your investment. Securities of this kind may not be an appropriate investment for investors who are unsophisticated with respect to non-U.S. dollar currency transactions.

The information in this prospectus is directed primarily to investors who are U.S. residents. Investors who are not U.S. residents should consult their own financial and legal advisors about currency-related risks particular to their investment.

An Investment in a Non-U.S. Dollar Security Involves Currency-Related Risks

An investment in a non-U.S. dollar security entails significant risks that are not associated with a similar investment in a security that is payable solely in U.S. dollars and where settlement value is not otherwise based on a non-U.S. dollar currency. These risks include the possibility of significant changes in rates of exchange between the U.S. dollar and the various non-U.S. dollar currencies or composite currencies and the possibility of the imposition or modification of foreign exchange controls or other conditions by either the United States or non-U.S. governments. These risks generally depend on factors over which we have no control, such as economic and political events and the supply of and demand for the relevant currencies in the global markets.

Changes in Currency Exchange Rates Can Be Volatile and Unpredictable

Rates of exchange between the U.S. dollar and many other currencies have been highly volatile, and this volatility may continue and perhaps spread to other currencies in the future. Fluctuations in currency exchange rates could adversely affect an investment in a security denominated in, or whose value is otherwise linked to, a specified currency other than U.S. dollars. Depreciation of the specified currency against the U.S. dollar could result in a decrease in the U.S. dollar-equivalent value of payments on the security, including the principal payable at maturity or settlement value payable upon exercise. That in turn could cause the market value of the security to fall. Depreciation of the specified currency against the U.S. dollar could result in a loss to the investor on a U.S. dollar basis.

Government Policy Can Adversely Affect Foreign Currency Exchange Rates and an Investment in a Non-U.S. Dollar Security

Foreign currency exchange rates can either float or be fixed by sovereign governments. From time to time, governments use a variety of techniques, such as intervention by a country's central bank or imposition of regulatory controls or taxes, to affect the exchange rate of their currencies. Governments may also issue a new currency to replace an existing currency or alter the exchange rate or exchange characteristics by devaluation or revaluation of a currency. Thus, a special risk in purchasing non-U.S. dollar securities is that their yields or payouts could be significantly and unpredictably affected by governmental actions. Even in the absence of governmental action directly affecting currency exchange rates, political or economic developments in the country issuing the specified currency for a non-U.S. dollar security or elsewhere could lead to significant and sudden changes in the exchange rate between the U.S. dollar and the specified currency. These changes could affect the value of the security as participants in the global currency markets move to buy or sell the specified currency or U.S. dollars in reaction to these developments.

Governments have imposed from time to time and may in the future impose exchange controls or other conditions, including taxes, with respect to the exchange or transfer of a specified currency that could affect exchange rates as well as the availability of a specified currency for a security at its maturity or on any other payment date. In addition, the ability of a holder to move currency freely out of the country in which payment in the currency is received or to convert the currency at a freely determined market rate could be limited by governmental actions.

Non-U.S. Dollar Securities May Permit Us to Make Payments in U.S. Dollars or Delay Payment If We Are Unable to Obtain the Specified Currency

Securities payable in a currency other than U.S. dollars may provide that, if the other currency is subject to convertibility, transferability, market disruption or other conditions affecting its availability at or about the time when a payment on the securities comes due because of circumstances beyond our control, we will be entitled to make the payment in U.S. dollars or delay making the payment. These circumstances could include the imposition of exchange controls or our inability to obtain the other currency because of a disruption in the currency markets. If we made payment in U.S. dollars, the exchange rate we would use would be determined in the manner described above under "Description of Debt Securities We May Offer — Payment Mechanics for Debt Securities — How We Will Make Payments Due in Other Currencies — When the Specified Currency Is Not Available." A determination of this kind may be based on limited information and would involve significant discretion on the part of our exchange rate agent, which may be an affiliate of ours. As a result, the value of the payment in U.S. dollars an investor would receive on the payment date may be less than the value of the payment the investor would have received in the other currency if it had been available, or may be zero. In addition, a government may impose extraordinary taxes on transfers of a currency. If that happens we will be entitled to deduct these taxes from any payment on securities payable in that currency.

We Will Not Adjust Non-U.S. Dollar Securities to Compensate for Changes in Foreign Currency Exchange Rates

Except as described above, we will not make any adjustment or change in the terms of a non-U.S. dollar security in the event of any change in foreign currency exchange rates for the relevant currency, whether in the event of any devaluation, revaluation or imposition of exchange or other regulatory controls or taxes or in the event of other developments affecting that currency, the U.S. dollar or any other currency. Consequently, investors in non-U.S. dollar securities will bear the risk that their investment may be adversely affected by these types of events.

In a Lawsuit for Payment on a Non-U.S. Dollar Security, an Investor May Bear Foreign Currency Exchange Risk

Our debt securities, warrants, purchase contracts and units will be governed by New York law. Under Section 27 of the New York Judiciary Law, a state court in the State of New York rendering a judgment on a security denominated in a currency other than U.S. dollars would be required to render the judgment in the specified currency; however, the judgment would be converted into U.S. dollars at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of entry of the judgment. Consequently, in a lawsuit for payment on a security denominated in a currency other than U.S. dollars, investors would bear currency exchange risk until judgment is entered, which could be a long time.

In courts outside of New York, investors may not be able to obtain judgment in a specified currency other than U.S. dollars. For example, a judgment for money in an action based on a non-U.S. dollar security in many other U.S. federal or state courts ordinarily would be enforced in the United States only in U.S. dollars. The date used to determine the rate of conversion of the currency in which any particular security is denominated into U.S. dollars will depend upon various factors, including which court renders the judgment.

Information About Foreign Currency Exchange Rates May Not Be Indicative of Future Performance

If we issue a non-U.S. dollar security, we may include in the applicable prospectus supplement a currency supplement that provides information about historical exchange rates for the relevant non-U.S. dollar currency or currencies. Any information about exchange rates that we may provide will be furnished as a matter of information only, and you should not regard the information as indicative of the range of, or trends in, fluctuations in currency exchange rates that may occur in the future. That rate will likely differ from the exchange rate used under the terms that apply to a particular security.

Determinations Made by the Exchange Rate Agent

All determinations made by the exchange rate agent will be made in its sole discretion (except to the extent expressly provided in this prospectus or in the applicable prospectus supplement that any determination is subject to approval by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.). In the absence of manifest error, its determinations will be conclusive for all purposes and will bind all holders and us. The exchange rate agent will not have any liability for its determinations.

CONSIDERATIONS RELATING TO CAPITAL SECURITIES

An investment in the capital securities involves a number of risks. Because each Issuer Trust will rely on payments on the corresponding subordinated debt securities to fund all payments on its capital securities, and because the Issuer Trust may distribute the corresponding subordinated debt securities in exchange for its capital securities upon its dissolution and liquidation, you should carefully review the information in this prospectus regarding both of these securities. You should carefully review the following information about these risks together with other information contained in this prospectus and in documents incorporated by reference in this prospectus before deciding whether an investment in capital securities is suitable for you.

You Are Making an Investment Decision With Regard to the Subordinated Debt Securities As Well As the Capital Securities

Each Issuer Trust will rely on the payments it receives on the corresponding subordinated debt securities to fund all payments on its capital securities. In addition, each Issuer Trust may distribute the corresponding subordinated debt securities in exchange for its capital securities upon its dissolution and liquidation. Accordingly, you should carefully review the information in this prospectus regarding both of these securities.

Payments on the Capital Securities Are Dependent on Our Payments on the Subordinated Debt Securities

The ability of the Issuer Trusts timely to pay distributions on the capital securities and to pay the liquidation amount is dependent upon our making the related payments on the subordinated debt securities when due.

If we default on our obligation to pay principal of or any premium or interest on the corresponding subordinated debt securities, the Issuer Trusts will not have sufficient funds to pay distributions or the liquidation amount on the related capital securities. As a result, you will not be able to rely upon the guarantee for payment of these amounts. You or the property trustee of the Issuer Trust may, however, sue us to enforce the rights of such trust under the corresponding subordinated debt securities. For more information, please refer to "Description of Capital Securities and Related Instruments — Enforcement of Certain Rights by Holders of Capital Securities" and "Description of Capital Securities and Related Instruments — Relationship Among the Capital Securities and the Related Instruments — Enforcement Rights of Holders of Capital Securities" above.

Our Obligations Will Be Deeply Subordinated, and We Will Pay Our Other Debt Obligations Before We Pay You

Our obligations under the guarantee and under the corresponding subordinated debt securities will be unsecured and rank subordinate and junior in right of payment to all of our senior indebtedness, which includes nearly all of our existing and future indebtedness (including any subordinated debt securities not issued to the Issuer Trusts and other subordinated debt). This means that we cannot make any payments on the subordinated debt securities or under the guarantee if certain events of default have occurred under our senior indebtedness. In the event of our bankruptcy or liquidation, our assets must be used to pay off our senior debt in full before any payments may be made on the subordinated debt securities or under the guarantee.

Neither the subordinated debt indenture governing the corresponding subordinated debt securities nor the trust agreement and the guarantee relating to the capital securities will place any limitation on the nature or amount of additional indebtedness that we, or our subsidiaries, may incur in the future.

The Subordinated Debt Securities and the Guarantee Will Be Effectively Subordinated to the Obligations of Our Subsidiaries

We are a holding company that conducts substantially all of our operations through subsidiaries. As a result, our ability to make payments on the subordinated debt securities and the guarantees will depend primarily upon the receipt of dividends and other distributions from our subsidiaries. Many of our subsidiaries, including our broker-dealer, bank and insurance subsidiaries, are subject to laws that restrict dividend payments or authorize regulatory bodies to block or reduce the flow of funds from those subsidiaries to us. Restrictions or regulatory action of that kind could impede access to funds that we need to make payments on our obligations, including debt obligations. Furthermore, we have guaranteed the payment obligations of Goldman, Sachs & Co., Goldman Sachs Bank USA and Goldman Sachs Bank (Europe) PLC, our regulated Irish Bank, subject to certain exceptions, and have pledged significant assets to Goldman Sachs Bank USA to support our obligations to it. These guarantees may require us to provide substantial funds or assets to our subsidiaries or their creditors and counterparties at a time when we are in need of liquidity to fund our own obligations. In addition, our right to participate in any distribution of assets from any subsidiary, upon the subsidiary's liquidation or otherwise, is subject to the prior claims of creditors of that subsidiary, except to the extent that we are recognized as a creditor of that subsidiary. As a result, the subordinated debt securities and the guarantees will be effectively subordinated to all existing and future liabilities of our subsidiaries. You should look only to the assets of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. as the source of payment for the subordinated debt securities and the guarantees.

Our Ability to Make Distributions on or Redeem the Capital Securities Is Restricted

Federal banking authorities will have the right to examine the trust and its activities because it is our subsidiary. Under certain circumstances, including any determination that our relationship to the Issuer Trusts would result in an unsafe and unsound banking practice, these banking authorities have the authority to issue orders which could restrict the trust's ability to make distributions on or to redeem the capital securities.

The Guarantees Only Guarantee Payments on the Capital Securities if the Issuer Trusts Have Cash Available

If we fail to make payments on the subordinated debt securities, the Issuer Trusts will be unable to make the related distribution, redemption or liquidation payments on the capital securities to you. In those circumstances, you cannot rely on the guarantees for payments of those amounts. Instead, if we are in default under the subordinated debt securities, you may rely on the property trustee of the applicable Issuer Trust to enforce the Issuer Trust's rights under the subordinated debt securities or you may directly sue us or seek other remedies to collect your pro rata share of the payments owed.

You Will Not Receive Timely Distributions If We Elect to Defer Payments

Unless otherwise provided in the applicable prospectus supplement, we may defer the payment of interest on the corresponding subordinated debt securities at any time up to a number of consecutive interest periods that is specified in the applicable prospectus supplement, provided that (1) no such extension period may extend beyond the stated maturity date and (2) we are not in default under the subordinated debt indenture with respect to the corresponding subordinated debt securities (unless our default has not ripened into a formal "event of default"). If there is a deferral, the Issuer Trust also will defer distributions on the related capital securities. Before any extension period ends, we may elect to extend the period further.

At the end of any extension period and upon the payment of all interest then accrued and unpaid, we may elect to begin a new extension period. There is no limitation on the number of extension periods. Deferrals of payments during an extension period will not result in a default or event of default. For further

information on our option to defer payments, see "Description of Capital Securities and Related Instruments — Corresponding Subordinated Debt Securities — Option to Defer Interest Payments" above.

If We Elect to Defer Interest Payments, You Will Have to Include Interest in Your Taxable Income Before You Receive the Money

During an extension period, you would be required to accrue interest income for U.S. federal income tax purposes on your proportionate share of the corresponding subordinated debt securities held by an Issuer Trust, even if you are a cash basis taxpayer. As a result, you would need to include this income in your gross income for U.S. federal income tax purposes in advance of the receipt of cash. You also would not receive the cash related to any accrued and unpaid interest income from the trust if you dispose of the capital securities prior to the record date for the payment of distributions. For further information, see "United States Taxation — Taxation of Capital Securities" below.

The Market Price of the Capital Securities May Not Reflect Unpaid Interest, and You May Suffer a Loss If You Sell Them While Interest Remains Unpaid

Because of our right to defer interest payments on the corresponding subordinated debt securities, the market price of the related capital securities may be more volatile than the market prices of similar securities that do not have this feature. We currently do not intend to exercise our right to defer payments of interest on the subordinated debt securities. However, if we exercise our right to defer, the market price of the capital securities may decline. Accordingly, the capital securities that you purchase, whether in an offering made pursuant to a prospectus supplement or in the secondary market, or the subordinated debt securities that you may receive on liquidation of the trust, may trade at a discount to the price that you paid.

If you dispose of your capital securities before the record date for the payment of a distribution, then you will not receive that distribution. However, you will be required to include accrued but unpaid interest on the corresponding subordinated debt securities through the date of the sale as ordinary income for U.S. federal income tax purposes and to add the amount of the accrued but unpaid interest to your tax basis in the capital securities. Your increased tax basis in the capital securities will increase the amount of any capital loss that you may have otherwise realized on the sale. In general, an individual taxpayer may offset only \$3,000 of capital losses against ordinary income during any year. For further information on tax consequences, see "United States Taxation — Taxation of Capital Securities — Sale or Redemption of Capital Securities" below.

We May Redeem the Corresponding Subordinated Debt Securities Upon the Occurrence of Specified Tax or Regulatory Events

We may redeem the corresponding subordinated debt securities in whole at any time within 90 days following the occurrence of specified tax or regulatory events, including:

- any change in tax laws or regulations (or any official interpretation) that poses a substantial risk that the related capital securities might lose their special tax treatment; and
- any change in laws or regulations (or any official interpretation) that poses a substantial risk that the relevant Issuer Trust is or will be considered
 an "investment company" that is required to be registered under the Investment Company Act.

If we redeem the corresponding subordinated debt securities, the Issuer Trust will be required to redeem the related capital securities. Unless your prospectus supplement says otherwise, you may not receive any premium upon redemption, and you may not be able to invest the redemption proceeds at a rate of return that equals or is higher than the rate on your capital securities.

For further information on redemption, see "Description of Capital Securities and Related Instruments — Redemption or Exchange" above.

Each Issuer Trust May Distribute the Subordinated Debt Securities In Exchange For the Capital Securities, Which Could Affect the Market Price and Could Be a Taxable Event

We may dissolve any Issuer Trust at any time. After satisfying its liabilities to its creditors, the Issuer Trust may distribute the corresponding subordinated debt securities to the holders of the related capital securities. For further information, see "Description of Capital Securities and Related Instruments — Liquidation Distribution Upon Dissolution" above.

We cannot predict the market prices for capital securities or for subordinated debt securities that may be distributed in exchange for capital securities. Accordingly, the capital securities, or the subordinated debt securities that you may receive on liquidation of an Issuer Trust, may trade at a discount to the price that you paid to purchase the capital securities.

Under current U.S. federal income tax law and assuming, as we expect, that the amended and restated trust agreement for the relevant Issuer Trust will contain substantially identical terms as the form of amended and restated trust agreement attached as an exhibit to our registration statement filed with the SEC, and the relevant Issuer Trust will not be classified as an association taxable as a corporation, you will not be taxed if we dissolve the trust and the trust distributes subordinated debt securities to you. However, if an Issuer Trust were to become taxed on the income received or accrued on the corresponding subordinated debt securities due to a tax event, both you and the Issuer Trust might be taxed on a distribution of the corresponding subordinated debt securities by the trust. For further information, see "United States Taxation — Taxation of Capital Securities — Distribution of Subordinated Debt Securities to Holders of Capital Securities Upon Liquidation of the Issuer Trusts" below.

Investors Will Not Control the Administration of the Issuer Trusts and Will Have Limited Voting Rights

We will hold all the common securities of each Issuer Trust. These securities give us the right to control nearly all aspects of the administration, operation or management of the Issuer Trust, including selection and removal of the administrative trustees. The capital securities, on the other hand, will generally have no voting rights. You will be able to vote only on matters relating to the modification of the terms of your capital securities or the corresponding subordinated debt securities, the acceleration of payments on those securities and waivers of related past defaults as described in this prospectus. For further information, see "Description of Capital Securities and Related Instruments — Voting Rights; Amendment of Each Trust Agreement" above

Listing of the Capital Securities, If Any, Does Not Guarantee Their Liquidity or Full Value

We may apply to list a series of capital securities on the NYSE or another exchange, but are not required to do so. If listed, trading in a series of capital securities on the NYSE is expected to commence within 30 days after the initial delivery of the series. Although we expect the underwriters to make a market in the capital securities prior to commencement of trading on the NYSE, they are not obligated to do so. They may also discontinue these market-making activities at any time without notice. We cannot assure the liquidity of the trading market for the capital securities.

The capital securities may trade at prices that do not fully reflect the value of accrued and unpaid interest with respect to the corresponding subordinated debt securities. See "United States Taxation — Taxation of Capital Securities — Interest Income and Original Issue Discount" and "— Sale or Redemption of Capital Securities" below for a discussion of the United States federal income tax consequences that may result from a taxable disposition of the capital securities.

UNITED STATES TAXATION

This section describes the material United States federal income tax consequences of owning certain of the debt securities, preferred stock, depositary shares we are offering and the capital securities that the Issuer Trusts are offering. The material United States federal income tax consequences of owning the debt securities described below under "— Taxation of Debt Securities — United States Holders — Indexed and Other Debt Securities", of owning preferred stock that may be convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for securities or other property, of owning capital securities that contain, or that represent any subordinated debt security that contains, any material term not described in this prospectus or of owning warrants, purchase contracts and units will be described in the applicable prospectus supplement. This section is the opinion of Sidley Austin LLP and Sullivan & Cromwell LLP, United States tax counsel to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. It applies to you only if you hold your securities as capital assets for tax purposes. This section does not apply to you if you are a member of a class of holders subject to special rules, such as:

- · a dealer in securities or currencies;
- · a trader in securities that elects to use a mark-to-market method of accounting for your securities holdings;
- · a bank:
- · a life insurance company;
- · a thrift institution;
- · a regulated investment company;
- a tax-exempt organization;
- · a person that owns offered securities that are a hedge or that are hedged against interest rate or currency risks;
- a person that purchases or sells the offered securities as part of a wash-sale for tax purposes;
- · a person that owns offered securities as part of a straddle or conversion transaction for tax purposes; or
- a United States holder (as defined below) whose functional currency for tax purposes is not the U.S. dollar.

This section is based on the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, its legislative history, existing and proposed regulations under the Internal Revenue Code, published rulings and court decisions, all as currently in effect. These laws are subject to change, possibly on a retroactive basis.

If a partnership holds the securities, the United States federal income tax treatment of a partner will generally depend on the status of the partner and the tax treatment of the partnership. A partner in a partnership holding the securities should consult its tax advisor with regard to the United States federal income tax treatment of an investment in the securities.

Please consult your own tax advisor concerning the consequences of owning these securities in your particular circumstances under the Internal Revenue Code and the laws of any other taxing jurisdiction.

Taxation of Debt Securities

This subsection describes the material United States federal income tax consequences of owning, selling and disposing of the debt securities we are offering, other than the debt securities described below under "— United States Holders — Indexed and Other Debt Securities", which will be described in the applicable prospectus supplement. It deals only with debt securities that are due to mature 30 years or less from the date on which they are issued. The United States federal income tax consequences of owning debt securities that are due to mature more than 30 years from their date of issue will be discussed in the applicable prospectus supplement.

United States Holders

This subsection describes the tax consequences to a United States holder. You are a United States holder if you are a beneficial owner of a debt security and you are:

- · a citizen or resident of the United States;
- · a domestic corporation;
- · an estate whose income is subject to United States federal income tax regardless of its source; or
- a trust if a United States court can exercise primary supervision over the trust's administration and one or more United States persons are authorized to control all substantial decisions of the trust.

If you are not a United States holder, this subsection does not apply to you and you should refer to "— United States Alien Holders" below.

Payments of Interest

General

Except as described below in the case of interest on an original issue discount debt security that is not qualified stated interest, each as defined below under "— Original Issue Discount — General", you will be taxed on any interest on your debt security, whether payable in U.S. dollars or a non-U.S. dollar currency, including a composite currency or basket of currencies other than U.S. dollars, as ordinary income at the time you receive the interest or when it accrues, depending on your method of accounting for tax purposes.

Cash Basis Taxpayers

If you are a taxpayer that uses the cash receipts and disbursements method of accounting for tax purposes and you receive an interest payment that is denominated in, or determined by reference to, a non-U.S. dollar currency, you must recognize income equal to the U.S. dollar value of the interest payment, based on the exchange rate in effect on the date of receipt, regardless of whether you actually convert the payment into U.S. dollars.

Accrual Basis Taxpayers

If you are a taxpayer that uses an accrual method of accounting for tax purposes, you may determine the amount of income that you recognize with respect to an interest payment denominated in, or determined by reference to, a non-U.S. dollar currency by using one of two methods. Under the first method, you will determine the amount of income accrued based on the average exchange rate in effect during the interest accrual period or, with respect to an accrual period that spans two taxable years, that part of the period within the taxable year.

If you elect the second method, you would determine the amount of income accrued on the basis of the exchange rate in effect on the last day of the accrual period, or, in the case of an accrual period that spans two taxable years, the exchange rate in effect on the last day of the part of the period within the taxable year. Additionally, under this second method, if you receive a payment of interest within five business days of the last day of your accrual period or taxable year, you may instead translate the interest accrued into U.S. dollars at the exchange rate in effect on the day that you actually receive the interest payment. If you elect the second method, it will apply to all debt instruments that you hold at the beginning of the first taxable year to which the election applies and to all debt instruments that you subsequently acquire. You may not revoke this election without the consent of the United States Internal Revenue Service.

When you actually receive an interest payment, including a payment attributable to accrued but unpaid interest upon the sale or retirement of your debt security, denominated in, or determined by reference to, a non-U.S. dollar currency for which you accrued an amount of income, you will recognize ordinary income or loss measured by the difference, if any, between the exchange rate that you used

to accrue interest income and the exchange rate in effect on the date of receipt, regardless of whether you actually convert the payment into U.S. dollars.

Original Issue Discount

General

If you own a debt security, other than a short-term debt security with a term of one year or less, it will be treated as an original issue discount debt security if the amount by which the debt security's stated redemption price at maturity exceeds its issue price is more than a de minimis amount. Generally, a debt security's issue price will be the first price at which a substantial amount of debt securities included in the issue of which the debt security is a part is sold to persons other than bond houses, brokers, or similar persons or organizations acting in the capacity of underwriters, placement agents, or wholesalers. A debt security's stated redemption price at maturity is the total of all payments provided by the debt security that are not payments of qualified stated interest. Generally, an interest payment on a debt security is qualified stated interest if it is one of a series of stated interest payments on a debt security that are unconditionally payable at least annually at a single fixed rate, with certain exceptions for lower rates paid during some periods, applied to the outstanding principal amount of the debt security. There are special rules for variable rate debt securities that are discussed below under "— Variable Rate Debt Securities".

In general, your debt security is not an original issue discount debt security if the amount by which its stated redemption price at maturity exceeds its issue price is less than the de minimis amount of 0.25 percent of its stated redemption price at maturity multiplied by the number of complete years to its maturity. Your debt security will have de minimis original issue discount if the amount of the excess is less than the de minimis amount. If your debt security has de minimis original issue discount, you must include the de minimis amount in income as stated principal payments are made on the debt security, unless you make the election described below under "— Election to Treat All Interest as Original Issue Discount". You can determine the includible amount with respect to each such payment by multiplying the total amount of your debt security's de minimis original issue discount by a fraction equal to:

· the amount of the principal payment made

divided by:

· the stated principal amount of the debt security.

Generally, if your original issue discount debt security matures more than one year from its date of issue, you must include original issue discount in income before you receive cash attributable to that income. The amount of original issue discount that you must include in income is calculated using a constant-yield method, and generally you will include increasingly greater amounts of original issue discount in income over the life of your debt security. More specifically, you can calculate the amount of original issue discount that you must include in income by adding the daily portions of original issue discount with respect to your original issue discount debt security for each day during the taxable year or portion of the taxable year that you hold your original issue discount debt security. You can determine the daily portion by allocating to each day in any accrual period a pro rata portion of the original issue discount allocable to that accrual period. You may select an accrual period of any length with respect to your original issue discount debt security and you may vary the length of each accrual period over the term of your original issue discount debt security. However, no accrual period may be longer than one year and each scheduled payment of interest or principal on the original issue discount debt security must occur on either the first or final day of an accrual period.

You can determine the amount of original issue discount allocable to an accrual period by:

- multiplying your original issue discount debt security's adjusted issue price at the beginning of the accrual period by your debt security's yield to
 maturity; and then
- · subtracting from this figure the sum of the payments of qualified stated interest on your debt security allocable to the accrual period.

You must determine the original issue discount debt security's yield to maturity on the basis of compounding at the close of each accrual period and adjusting for the length of each accrual period. Further, you determine your original issue discount debt security's adjusted issue price at the beginning of any accrual period by:

- · adding your original issue discount debt security's issue price and any accrued original issue discount for each prior accrual period; and then
- subtracting any payments previously made on your original issue discount debt security that were not qualified stated interest payments.

If an interval between payments of qualified stated interest on your original issue discount debt security contains more than one accrual period, then, when you determine the amount of original issue discount allocable to an accrual period, you must allocate the amount of qualified stated interest payable at the end of the interval, including any qualified stated interest that is payable on the first day of the accrual period immediately following the interval, pro rata to each accrual period in the interval based on their relative lengths. In addition, you must increase the adjusted issue price at the beginning of each accrual period in the interval by the amount of any qualified stated interest that has accrued prior to the first day of the accrual period but that is not payable until the end of the interval. You may compute the amount of original issue discount allocable to an initial short accrual period by using any reasonable method if all other accrual periods, other than a final short accrual period, are of equal length.

The amount of original issue discount allocable to the final accrual period is equal to the difference between:

- · the amount payable at the maturity of your debt security, other than any payment of qualified stated interest; and
- · your debt security's adjusted issue price as of the beginning of the final accrual period.

Acquisition Premium

If you purchase your debt security for an amount that is less than or equal to the sum of all amounts, other than qualified stated interest, payable on your debt security after the purchase date but is greater than the amount of your debt security's adjusted issue price, as determined above under "— General", the excess is acquisition premium. If you do not make the election described below under "— Election to Treat All Interest as Original Issue Discount", then you must reduce the daily portions of original issue discount by a fraction equal to:

- the excess of your adjusted basis in the debt security immediately after purchase over the adjusted issue price of the debt security divided by:
- the excess of the sum of all amounts payable, other than qualified stated interest, on the debt security after the purchase date over the debt security's adjusted issue price.

Pre-Issuance Accrued Interest

An election may be made to decrease the issue price of your debt security by the amount of pre-issuance accrued interest if:

- a portion of the initial purchase price of your debt security is attributable to pre-issuance accrued interest;
- the first stated interest payment on your debt security is to be made within one year of your debt security's issue date; and
- · the payment will equal or exceed the amount of pre-issuance accrued interest.

If this election is made, a portion of the first stated interest payment will be treated as a return of the excluded pre-issuance accrued interest and not as an amount payable on your debt security.

<u>Debt Securities Subject to Contingencies Including Optional Redemption</u>

Your debt security is subject to a contingency if it provides for an alternative payment schedule or schedules applicable upon the occurrence of a contingency or contingencies, other than a remote or incidental contingency, whether such contingency relates to payments of interest or of principal. In such a case, you must determine the yield and maturity of your debt security by assuming that the payments will be made according to the payment schedule most likely to occur if:

- · the timing and amounts of the payments that comprise each payment schedule are known as of the issue date; and
- · one of such schedules is significantly more likely than not to occur.

If there is no single payment schedule that is significantly more likely than not to occur, other than because of a mandatory sinking fund, you must include income on your debt security in accordance with the general rules that govern contingent payment obligations. These rules will be discussed in the applicable prospectus supplement.

Notwithstanding the general rules for determining yield and maturity, if your debt security is subject to contingencies, and either you or we have an unconditional option or options that, if exercised, would require payments to be made on the debt security under an alternative payment schedule or schedules, then:

- in the case of an option or options that we may exercise, we will be deemed to exercise or not exercise an option or combination of options in the manner that minimizes the yield on your debt security; and
- in the case of an option or options that you may exercise, you will be deemed to exercise or not exercise an option or combination of options in the manner that maximizes the yield on your debt security.

If both you and we hold options described in the preceding sentence, those rules will apply to each option in the order in which they may be exercised. You may determine the yield on your debt security for the purposes of those calculations by using any date on which your debt security may be redeemed or repurchased as the maturity date and the amount payable on the date that you chose in accordance with the terms of your debt security as the principal amount payable at maturity.

If a contingency, including the exercise of an option, actually occurs or does not occur contrary to an assumption made according to the above rules then, except to the extent that a portion of your debt security is repaid as a result of this change in circumstances and solely to determine the amount and accrual of original issue discount, you must redetermine the yield and maturity of your debt security by treating your debt security as having been retired and reissued on the date of the change in circumstances for an amount equal to your debt security's adjusted issue price on that date.

Election to Treat All Interest as Original Issue Discount

You may elect to include in gross income all interest that accrues on your debt security using the constant-yield method described above under "— General", with the modifications described below. For purposes of this election, interest will include stated interest, original issue discount, de minimis original issue discount, market discount, de minimis market discount and unstated interest, as adjusted by any amortizable bond premium, described below under "— Debt Securities Purchased at a Premium", or acquisition premium.

If you make this election for your debt security, then, when you apply the constant-yield method:

- · the issue price of your debt security will equal your cost;
- · the issue date of your debt security will be the date you acquired it; and

no payments on your debt security will be treated as payments of qualified stated interest.

Generally, this election will apply only to the debt security for which you make it; however, if the debt security has amortizable bond premium, you will be deemed to have made an election to apply amortizable bond premium against interest for all debt instruments with amortizable bond premium, other than debt instruments the interest on which is excludible from gross income, that you hold as of the beginning of the taxable year to which the election applies or any taxable year thereafter. Additionally, if you make this election for a market discount debt security, you will be treated as having made the election discussed below under "— Market Discount" to include market discount in income currently over the life of all debt instruments having market discount that you acquire on or after the first day of the first taxable year to which the election applies. You may not revoke any election to apply the constant-yield method to all interest on a debt security or the deemed elections with respect to amortizable bond premium or market discount debt securities without the consent of the United States Internal Revenue Service.

Variable Rate Debt Securities

Your debt security will be a variable rate debt security if:

- · your debt security's issue price does not exceed the total non-contingent principal payments by more than the lesser of:
 - .015 multiplied by the product of the total non-contingent principal payments and the number of complete years to maturity from the issue date; or
 - 2. 15 percent of the total non-contingent principal payments; and
- · your debt security provides for stated interest, compounded or paid at least annually, only at:
 - 1. one or more qualified floating rates;
 - 2. a single fixed rate and one or more qualified floating rates;
 - 3. a single objective rate; or
 - 4. a single fixed rate and a single objective rate that is a qualified inverse floating rate.

Your debt security will have a variable rate that is a qualified floating rate if:

- variations in the value of the rate can reasonably be expected to measure contemporaneous variations in the cost of newly borrowed funds in the currency in which your debt security is denominated; or
- · the rate is equal to such a rate multiplied by either:
 - 1. a fixed multiple that is greater than 0.65 but not more than 1.35; or
 - 2. a fixed multiple greater than 0.65 but not more than 1.35, increased or decreased by a fixed rate; and
- the value of the rate on any date during the term of your debt security is set no earlier than three months prior to the first day on which that value is in effect and no later than one year following that first day.

If your debt security provides for two or more qualified floating rates that are within 0.25 percentage points of each other on the issue date or can reasonably be expected to have approximately the same values throughout the term of the debt security, the qualified floating rates together constitute a single qualified floating rate.

Your debt security will not have a qualified floating rate, however, if the rate is subject to certain restrictions (including caps, floors, governors, or other similar restrictions) unless such restrictions are fixed throughout the term of the debt security or are not reasonably expected to significantly affect the yield on the debt security.

Your debt security will have a variable rate that is a single objective rate if:

- · the rate is not a qualified floating rate;
- the rate is determined using a single, fixed formula that is based on objective financial or economic information that is not within the control of or unique to the circumstances of the issuer or a related party; and
- the value of the rate on any date during the term of your debt security is set no earlier than three months prior to the first day on which that value is in effect and no later than one year following that first day.

Your debt security will not have a variable rate that is an objective rate, however, if it is reasonably expected that the average value of the rate during the first half of your debt security's term will be either significantly less than or significantly greater than the average value of the rate during the final half of your debt security's term.

An objective rate as described above is a qualified inverse floating rate if:

- · the rate is equal to a fixed rate minus a qualified floating rate; and
- the variations in the rate can reasonably be expected to inversely reflect contemporaneous variations in the cost of newly borrowed funds.

Your debt security will also have a single qualified floating rate or an objective rate if interest on your debt security is stated at a fixed rate for an initial period of one year or less followed by either a qualified floating rate or an objective rate for a subsequent period, and either:

- the fixed rate and the qualified floating rate or objective rate have values on the issue date of the debt security that do not differ by more than 0.25 percentage points; or
- · the value of the qualified floating rate or objective rate is intended to approximate the fixed rate.

In general, if your variable rate debt security provides for stated interest at a single qualified floating rate or objective rate, or one of those rates after a single fixed rate for an initial period, all stated interest on your debt security is qualified stated interest. In this case, the amount of original issue discount, if any, is determined by using, in the case of a qualified floating rate or qualified inverse floating rate, the value as of the issue date of the qualified floating rate or qualified inverse floating rate, or, for any other objective rate, a fixed rate that reflects the yield reasonably expected for your debt security.

If your variable rate debt security does not provide for stated interest at a single qualified floating rate or a single objective rate, and also does not provide for interest payable at a fixed rate other than a single fixed rate for an initial period, you generally must determine the interest and original issue discount accruals on your debt security by:

- determining a fixed rate substitute for each variable rate provided under your variable rate debt security;
- · constructing the equivalent fixed rate debt instrument, using the fixed rate substitute described above;
- · determining the amount of qualified stated interest and original issue discount with respect to the equivalent fixed rate debt instrument; and
- adjusting for actual variable rates during the applicable accrual period.

When you determine the fixed rate substitute for each variable rate provided under the variable rate debt security, you generally will use the value of each variable rate as of the issue date or, for an objective rate that is not a qualified inverse floating rate, a rate that reflects the reasonably expected yield on your debt security.

If your variable rate debt security provides for stated interest either at one or more qualified floating rates or at a qualified inverse floating rate, and also provides for stated interest at a single fixed rate other than at a single fixed rate for an initial period, you generally must determine interest and original issue discount accruals by using the method described in the previous paragraph. However,

your variable rate debt security will be treated, for purposes of the first three steps of the determination, as if your debt security had provided for a qualified floating rate, or a qualified inverse floating rate, rather than the fixed rate. The qualified floating rate, or qualified inverse floating rate, that replaces the fixed rate must be such that the fair market value of your variable rate debt security as of the issue date approximates the fair market value of an otherwise identical debt instrument that provides for the qualified floating rate, or qualified inverse floating rate, rather than the fixed rate.

Short-Term Debt Securities

In general, if you are an individual or other cash basis United States holder of a short-term debt security, you are not required to accrue original issue discount, as specially defined below for the purposes of this paragraph, for United States federal income tax purposes unless you elect to do so (although it is possible that you may be required to include any stated interest in income as you receive it). If you are an accrual basis taxpayer, a taxpayer in a special class, including, but not limited to, a regulated investment company, common trust fund, or a certain type of pass-through entity, or a cash basis taxpayer who so elects, you will be required to accrue original issue discount on short-term debt securities on either a straight-line basis or under the constant-yield method, based on daily compounding. If you are not required and do not elect to include original issue discount in income currently, any gain you realize on the sale or retirement of your short-term debt security will be ordinary income to the extent of the accrued original issue discount, which will be determined on a straight-line basis unless you make an election to accrue the original issue discount under the constant-yield method, through the date of sale or retirement. However, if you are not required and do not elect to accrue original issue discount on your short-term debt securities, you will be required to defer deductions for interest on borrowings allocable to your short-term debt securities in an amount not exceeding the deferred income until the deferred income is realized.

When you determine the amount of original issue discount subject to these rules, you must include all interest payments on your short-term debt security, including stated interest, in your short-term debt security's stated redemption price at maturity.

Non-U.S. Dollar Currency Original Issue Discount Debt Securities

If your original issue discount debt security is denominated in, or determined by reference to, a non-U.S. dollar currency, you must determine original issue discount for any accrual period on your original issue discount debt security in the non-U.S. dollar currency and then translate the amount of original issue discount into U.S. dollars in the same manner as stated interest accrued by an accrual basis United States holder, as described above under "— Taxation of Debt Securities — United States Holders — Payments of Interest". You may recognize ordinary income or loss when you receive an amount attributable to original issue discount in connection with a payment of interest or the sale or retirement of your debt security.

Market Discount

You will be treated as if you purchased your debt security, other than a short-term debt security, at a market discount, and your debt security will be a market discount debt security if the difference between the debt security's stated redemption price at maturity or, in the case of a discount debt security, the debt security's revised issue price, and the price you paid for your debt security is equal to or greater than 0.25 percent of your debt security's stated redemption price at maturity or revised issue price, respectively, *multiplied* by the number of complete years to the debt security's maturity. To determine the revised issue price of your debt security for these purposes, you generally add any original issue discount that has accrued on your debt security to its issue price.

If your debt security's stated redemption price at maturity or, in the case of a discount debt security, its revised issue price, exceeds the price you paid for the debt security by less than 0.25 percent *multiplied* by the number of complete years to the debt security's maturity, the excess constitutes de minimis market discount, and the rules discussed below are not applicable to you.

You must treat any gain you recognize on the maturity or disposition of your market discount debt security as ordinary income to the extent of the accrued market discount on your debt security. Alternatively, you may elect to include market discount in income currently over the life of your debt security. If you make this election, it will apply to all debt instruments with market discount that you acquire on or after the first day of the first taxable year to which the election applies. You may not revoke this election without the consent of the United States Internal Revenue Service. If you own a market discount debt security and do not make this election, you will generally be required to defer deductions for interest on borrowings allocable to your debt security in an amount not exceeding the accrued market discount on your debt security until the maturity or disposition of your debt security.

You will accrue market discount on your market discount debt security on a straight-line basis unless you elect to accrue market discount using a constant-yield method. If you make this election, it will apply only to the debt security with respect to which it is made and you may not revoke it.

Debt Securities Purchased at a Premium

If you purchase your debt security for an amount in excess of its principal amount, you may elect to treat the excess as amortizable bond premium. If you make this election, you will reduce the amount required to be included in your income each year with respect to interest on your debt security by the amount of amortizable bond premium allocable to that year, based on your debt security's yield to maturity. If your debt security is denominated in, or determined by reference to, a non-U.S. dollar currency, you will compute your amortizable bond premium in units of the non-U.S. dollar currency and your amortizable bond premium will reduce your interest income in units of the non-U.S. dollar currency. Gain or loss recognized that is attributable to changes in foreign currency exchange rates between the time your amortized bond premium offsets interest income and the time of the acquisition of your debt security is generally taxable as ordinary income or loss. If you make an election to amortize bond premium, it will apply to all debt instruments, other than debt instruments the interest on which is excludible from gross income, that you hold at the beginning of the first taxable year to which the election applies or that you thereafter acquire, and you may not revoke it without the consent of the United States Internal Revenue Service. See also "— Taxation of Debt Securities — United States Holders — Original Issue Discount — Election to Treat All Interest as Original Issue Discount".

Purchase, Sale and Retirement of the Debt Securities

Your tax basis in your debt security will generally be the U.S. dollar cost, as defined below, of your debt security, adjusted by:

- adding any original issue discount, market discount, de minimis original issue discount and de minimis market discount previously included in income with respect to your debt security; and then
- subtracting any payments on your debt security that are not qualified stated interest payments and any amortizable bond premium applied to reduce interest on your debt security.

If you purchase your debt security with non-U.S. dollar currency, the U.S. dollar cost of your debt security will generally be the U.S. dollar value of the purchase price on the date of purchase. However, if you are a cash basis taxpayer, or an accrual basis taxpayer if you so elect, and your debt security is traded on an established securities market, as defined in the applicable U.S. Treasury regulations, the U.S. dollar cost of your debt security will be the U.S. dollar value of the purchase price on the settlement date of your purchase.

You will generally recognize gain or loss on the sale or retirement of your debt security equal to the difference between the amount you realize on the sale or retirement and your tax basis in your debt security. If your debt security is sold or retired for an amount in non-U.S. dollar currency, the amount you realize will be the U.S. dollar value of such amount on the date the note is disposed of or retired, except that in the case of a note that is traded on an established securities market, as defined in the applicable Treasury regulations, a cash basis taxpayer, or an accrual basis taxpayer that so elects, will determine the amount realized based on the U.S. dollar value of the specified currency on the settlement date of the sale.

You will recognize capital gain or loss when you sell or retire your debt security, except to the extent:

- described above under "— Taxation of Debt Securities United States Holders Short-Term Debt Securities" or "— Market Discount";
- attributable to accrued but unpaid interest;
- · the rules governing contingent payment obligations apply; or
- · attributable to changes in exchange rates as described below.

Capital gain of a non-corporate United States holder is generally taxed at preferential rates where the property is held for more than one year.

You must treat any portion of the gain or loss that you recognize on the sale or retirement of a debt security as ordinary income or loss to the extent attributable to changes in exchange rates. However, you take exchange gain or loss into account only to the extent of the total gain or loss you realize on the transaction.

Exchange of Amounts in Other Than U.S. Dollars

If you receive non-U.S. dollar currency as interest on your debt security or on the sale or retirement of your debt security, your tax basis in the non-U.S. dollar currency will equal its U.S. dollar value when the interest is received or at the time of the sale or retirement. If you purchase non-U.S. dollar currency, you generally will have a tax basis equal to the U.S. dollar value of the non-U.S. dollar currency on the date of your purchase. If you sell or dispose of a non-U.S. dollar currency, including if you use it to purchase debt securities or exchange it for U.S. dollars, any gain or loss recognized generally will be ordinary income or loss.

Indexed and Other Debt Securities

The applicable prospectus supplement will discuss the material United States federal income tax rules with respect to contingent non-U.S. dollar currency debt securities, debt securities that may be convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for common or preferred stock or other securities of Goldman Sachs or debt or equity securities of one or more third parties, debt securities the payments on which are determined by reference to any index and other debt securities that are subject to the rules governing contingent payment obligations which are not subject to the rules governing variable rate debt securities, any renewable and extendible debt securities and any debt securities providing for the periodic payment of principal over the life of the debt security.

United States Alien Holders

This subsection describes the tax consequences to a United States alien holder. You are a United States alien holder if you are the beneficial owner of a debt security and are, for United States federal income tax purposes:

- · a nonresident alien individual;
- · a foreign corporation; or
- an estate or trust that in either case is not subject to United States federal income tax on a net income basis on income or gain from a debt security.

If you are a United States holder, this subsection does not apply to you.

This discussion assumes that the debt security or coupon is not subject to the rules of Section 871(h)(4)(A) of the Internal Revenue Code, relating to interest payments that are determined by reference to the income, profits, changes in the value of property or other attributes of the debtor or a related party.

Under United States federal income and estate tax law, and subject to the discussion of backup withholding and foreign account tax compliance below, if you are a United States alien holder of a debt security or coupon:

- we and other U.S. payors generally will not be required to deduct United States withholding tax from payments of principal, premium, if any, and interest, including original issue discount, to you if, in the case of payments of interest:
 - 1. you do not actually or constructively own 10% or more of the total combined voting power of all classes of our stock entitled to vote;
 - 2. you are not a controlled foreign corporation that is related to us through stock ownership;
 - 3. you are not a bank receiving interest on an extension of credit made pursuant to a loan agreement entered into in the ordinary course of your trade or business;
 - 4. in the case of a debt security other than a bearer debt security, the U.S. payor does not have actual knowledge or reason to know that you are a United States person and:
 - a. you have furnished to the U.S. payor an Internal Revenue Service Form W-8BEN or an acceptable substitute form upon which you certify, under penalties of perjury, that you are not a United States person;
 - b. in the case of payments made outside the United States to you at an offshore account (generally, an account maintained by you at a bank or other financial institution at any location outside the United States), you have furnished to the U.S. payor documentation that establishes your identity and your status as the beneficial owner of the payment for United States federal income tax purposes and as a person who is not a United States person;
 - c. the U.S. payor has received a withholding certificate (furnished on an appropriate Internal Revenue Service Form W-8 or an acceptable substitute form) from a person claiming to be:
 - a withholding foreign partnership (generally a foreign partnership that has entered into an agreement with the Internal Revenue Service to assume primary withholding responsibility with respect to distributions and guaranteed payments it makes to its partners);
 - ii. a qualified intermediary (generally a non-United States financial institution or clearing organization or a non-United States branch or office of a United States financial institution or clearing organization that is a party to a withholding agreement with the Internal Revenue Service); or
 - iii. a U.S. branch of a non-United States bank or of a non-United States insurance company: and

the withholding foreign partnership, qualified intermediary or U.S. branch has received documentation upon which it may rely to treat the payment as made to a person who is not a United States person that is, for United States federal income tax purposes, the beneficial owner of the payments on the debt securities in accordance with U.S. Treasury regulations (or, in the case of a qualified intermediary, in accordance with its agreement with the Internal Revenue Service);

- d. the U.S. payor receives a statement from a securities clearing organization, bank or other financial institution that holds customers' securities in the ordinary course of its trade or business:
 - certifying to the U.S. payor under penalties of perjury that an Internal Revenue Service Form W-8BEN or an acceptable substitute form has been received from you by it or by a similar financial institution between it and you; and

- ii. to which is attached a copy of the Internal Revenue Service Form W-8BEN or acceptable substitute form; or
- e. the U.S. payor otherwise possesses documentation upon which it may rely to treat the payment as made to a person who is not a United States person that is, for United States federal income tax purposes, the beneficial owner of the payments on the debt securities in accordance with U.S. Treasury regulations; and
- 5. in the case of a bearer debt security that is issued on or before March 18, 2012, the debt security is offered, sold and delivered in compliance with the restrictions described above under "Considerations Relating to Securities Issued in Bearer Form" and payments on the debt security are made in accordance with the procedures described above under that section; and
- no deduction for any United States federal withholding tax will be made from any gain that you realize on the sale or exchange of your debt security or coupon.

Further, a debt security or coupon held by an individual who at death is not a citizen or resident of the United States will not be includible in the individual's gross estate for United States federal estate tax purposes if:

- the decedent did not actually or constructively own 10% or more of the total combined voting power of all classes of our stock entitled to vote at the time of death; and
- · the income on the debt security would not have been effectively connected with a U.S. trade or business of the decedent at the same time.

Treasury Regulations Requiring Disclosure of Reportable Transactions

Treasury regulations require United States taxpayers to report certain transactions that give rise to a loss in excess of certain thresholds (a "Reportable Transaction"). Under these regulations, if the debt securities are denominated in a foreign currency, a United States holder (or a United States alien holder that holds the debt securities in connection with a U.S. trade or business) that recognizes a loss with respect to the debt securities that is characterized as an ordinary loss due to changes in currency exchange rates (under any of the rules discussed above) would be required to report the loss on Internal Revenue Service Form 8886 (Reportable Transaction Statement) if the loss exceeds the thresholds set forth in the regulations. For individuals and trusts, this loss threshold is \$50,000 in any single taxable year. For other types of taxpayers and other types of losses, the thresholds are higher. You should consult with your tax advisor regarding any tax filing and reporting obligations that may apply in connection with acquiring, owning and disposing of debt securities.

Medicare Tax

For taxable years beginning after December 31, 2012, a U.S. person that is an individual or estate, or a trust that does not fall into a special class of trusts that is exempt from such tax, will be subject to a 3.8% tax on the lesser of (1) the U.S. person's "net investment income" for the relevant taxable year and (2) the excess of the U.S. person's modified gross income for the taxable year over a certain threshold (which in the case of individuals will be between \$125,000 and \$250,000, depending on the individual's circumstances). A holder's net investment income will generally include its interest income and its net gains from the disposition of debt securities, unless such interest payments or net gains are derived in the ordinary course of the conduct of a trade or business (other than a trade or business that consists of certain passive or trading activities). If you are a U.S. person that is an individual, estate or trust, you are urged to consult your tax advisors regarding the applicability of the Medicare tax to your income and gains in respect of your investment in the debt securities.

Backup Withholding and Information Reporting

United States Holders

In general, if you are a noncorporate United States holder, we and other payors are required to report to the United States Internal Revenue Service all payments of principal, any premium and interest on your debt security, and the accrual of original issue discount on an original issue discount debt security. In addition, we and other payors are required to report to the United States Internal Revenue Service any payment of proceeds of the sale of your debt security before maturity within the United States. Additionally, backup withholding will apply to any payments, including payments of original issue discount, if you fail to provide an accurate taxpayer identification number, or you are notified by the United States Internal Revenue Service that you have failed to report all interest and dividends required to be shown on your federal income tax returns.

United States Alien Holders

In general, if you are a United States alien holder, payments of principal, premium or interest, including original issue discount, made by us and other payors to you will not be subject to backup withholding and information reporting, provided that the certification requirements described above under "— Taxation of Debt Securities — United States Alien Holders" are satisfied or you otherwise establish an exemption. However, we and other payors are required to report payments of interest on your debt securities on Internal Revenue Service Form 1042-S even if the payments are not otherwise subject to information reporting requirements. In addition, payment of the proceeds from the sale of debt securities effected at a United States office of a broker will not be subject to backup withholding and information reporting provided that:

- the broker does not have actual knowledge or reason to know that you are a United States person and you have furnished to the broker:
 - 1. an appropriate Internal Revenue Service Form W-8 or an acceptable substitute form upon which you certify, under penalties of perjury, that you are not a United States person; or
 - other documentation upon which it may rely to treat the payment as made to a person who is not a United States person that is, for United States federal income tax purposes, the beneficial owner of the payment on the debt securities in accordance with U.S. Treasury regulations; or
- · you otherwise establish an exemption.

If you fail to establish an exemption and the broker does not possess adequate documentation of your status as a person who is not a United States person, the payments may be subject to information reporting and backup withholding. However, backup withholding will not apply with respect to payments made outside the United States to an offshore account maintained by you unless the broker has actual knowledge that you are a United States person.

In general, payment of the proceeds from the sale of debt securities effected at a foreign office of a broker will not be subject to information reporting or backup withholding. However, a sale effected at a foreign office of a broker will be subject to information reporting and backup withholding if:

- · the proceeds are transferred to an account maintained by you in the United States;
- · the payment of proceeds or the confirmation of the sale is mailed to you at a United States address; or
- the sale has some other specified connection with the United States as provided in U.S. Treasury regulations;

unless the broker does not have actual knowledge or reason to know that you are a United States person and the documentation requirements described above (relating to a sale of debt securities effected at a United States office of a broker) are met or you otherwise establish an exemption.

In addition, payment of the proceeds from the sale of debt securities effected at a foreign office of a broker will be subject to information reporting if the broker is:

- · a United States person;
- · a controlled foreign corporation for United States tax purposes;
- foreign person 50% or more of whose gross income is effectively connected with the conduct of a United States trade or business for a specified three-year period; or
- a foreign partnership, if at any time during its tax year:
 - 1. one or more of its partners are "U.S. persons", as defined in U.S. Treasury regulations, who in the aggregate hold more than 50% of the income or capital interest in the partnership; or
 - 2. such foreign partnership is engaged in the conduct of a United States trade or business;

unless the broker does not have actual knowledge or reason to know that you are a United States person and the documentation requirements described above (relating to a sale of debt securities effected at a United States office of a broker) are met or you otherwise establish an exemption. Backup withholding will apply if the sale is subject to information reporting and the broker has actual knowledge that you are a United States person.

Foreign Account Tax Compliance

On March 18, 2010, the Hiring Incentives to Restore Employment Act (the "HIRE Act") was signed into law. Under certain circumstances, the HIRE Act will impose a withholding tax of 30% on interest income (including original issue discount) or other payments on, and the gross proceeds from a disposition of, debt securities. In some cases, the ultimate recipient of payments might be eligible for refunds or credits of such taxes. The effective date of the HIRE Act is January 1, 2013. However, according to a notice issued by the Internal Revenue Service on July 14, 2011, the withholding tax described above will not apply to payments of interest made before January 1, 2014 and to payments of gross proceeds from a disposition of debt securities made before January 1, 2015. In addition, the withholding requirements under the HIRE Act generally will not apply to payments made on, or gross proceeds from a disposition of, debt securities issued and outstanding as of March 18, 2012. Prospective investors should consult their tax advisors regarding the HIRE Act.

Taxation of Preferred Stock and Depositary Shares

This subsection describes the material United States federal income tax consequences of owning, selling and disposing of the preferred stock and depositary shares that we may offer other than preferred stock that may be convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for securities or other property, which will be described in the applicable prospectus supplement. When we refer to preferred stock in this subsection, we mean both preferred stock and depositary shares.

United States Holders

This subsection describes the tax consequences to a United States holder. You are a United States holder if you are a beneficial owner of a share of preferred stock and you are:

- · a citizen or resident of the United States;
- · a domestic corporation;
- · an estate whose income is subject to United States federal income tax regardless of its source; or
- a trust if a United States court can exercise primary supervision over the trust's administration and one or more United States persons are authorized to control all substantial decisions of the trust.

If you are not a United States holder, this subsection does not apply to you and you should refer to "— United States Alien Holders" below.

Distributions on Preferred Stock

You will be taxed on distributions on preferred stock as dividend income to the extent paid out of our current or accumulated earnings and profits for United States federal income tax purposes. If you are a non-corporate United States holder, dividends paid to you in taxable years beginning before January 1, 2013 that constitute qualified dividend income will be taxable to you at a maximum rate of 15%, provided that you hold your shares of preferred stock for more than 60 days during the 121-day period beginning 60 days before the ex-dividend date (or, if the dividend is attributable to a period or periods aggregating over 366 days, provided that you hold your shares of preferred stock for more than 90 days during the 181-day period beginning 90 days before the ex-dividend date) and meet other holding periods requirements. If you are taxed as a corporation, except as described in the next subsection, dividends would be eligible for the 70% dividends-received deduction.

You generally will not be taxed on any portion of a distribution not paid out of our current or accumulated earnings and profits if your tax basis in the preferred stock is greater than or equal to the amount of the distribution. However, you would be required to reduce your tax basis (but not below zero) in the preferred stock by the amount of the distribution, and would recognize capital gain to the extent that the distribution exceeds your tax basis in the preferred stock. Further, if you are a corporation, you would not be entitled to a dividends-received deduction on this portion of a distribution.

Limitations on Dividends-Received Deduction

Corporate shareholders may not be entitled to take the 70% dividends-received deduction in all circumstances. Prospective corporate investors in preferred stock should consider the effect of:

- Section 246A of the Internal Revenue Code, which reduces the dividends-received deduction allowed to a corporate shareholder that has incurred indebtedness that is "directly attributable" to an investment in portfolio stock such as preferred stock;
- Section 246(c) of the Internal Revenue Code, which, among other things, disallows the dividends-received deduction in respect of any dividend on a share of stock that is held for less than the minimum holding period (generally at least 46 days during the 90 day period beginning on the date which is 45 days before the date on which such share becomes ex-dividend with respect to such dividend); and
- Section 1059 of the Internal Revenue Code, which, under certain circumstances (including situations where preferred stock is issued at a
 premium), reduces the basis of stock for purposes of calculating gain or loss in a subsequent disposition by the portion of any "extraordinary
 dividend" (as defined below) that is eligible for the dividends-received deduction.

Extraordinary Dividends

If you are a corporate shareholder, you will be required to reduce your tax basis (but not below zero) in the preferred stock by the non-taxed portion of any "extraordinary dividend" if you have not held your stock for more than two years before the earliest of the date such dividend is declared, announced, or agreed. Generally, the non-taxed portion of an extraordinary dividend is the amount excluded from income by operation of the dividends-received deduction. An extraordinary dividend on the preferred stock generally would be a dividend that:

- equals or exceeds 5% of the corporate shareholder's adjusted tax basis in the preferred stock, treating all dividends having ex-dividend dates within an 85 day period as one dividend; or
- exceeds 20% of the corporate shareholder's adjusted tax basis in the preferred stock, treating all dividends having ex-dividend dates within a 365 day period as one dividend.

In determining whether a dividend paid on the preferred stock is an extraordinary dividend, a corporate shareholder may elect to substitute the fair market value of the stock for its tax basis for

purposes of applying these tests if the fair market value as of the day before the ex-dividend date is established to the satisfaction of the Secretary of the Treasury. An extraordinary dividend also includes any amount treated as a dividend in the case of a redemption that is either non-pro rata as to all stockholders or in partial liquidation of the company, regardless of the stockholder's holding period and regardless of the size of the dividend. Any part of the non-taxed portion of an extraordinary dividend that is not applied to reduce the corporate shareholder's tax basis as a result of the limitation on reducing its basis below zero would be treated as capital gain and would be recognized in the taxable year in which the extraordinary dividend is received.

If you are a corporate shareholder, please consult your tax advisor with respect to the possible application of the extraordinary dividend provisions of the federal income tax law to your ownership or disposition of preferred stock in your particular circumstances.

Redemption Premium

If we may redeem your preferred stock at a redemption price in excess of its issue price, the entire amount of the excess may constitute an unreasonable redemption premium which will be treated as a constructive dividend. You generally must take this constructive dividend into account each year in the same manner as original issue discount would be taken into account if the preferred stock were treated as an original issue discount debt security for United States federal income tax purposes. See "— Taxation of Debt Securities — United States Holders — Original Issue Discount — General" above for a discussion of the special tax rules for original issue discount. A corporate shareholder would be entitled to a dividends-received deduction for any constructive dividends unless the special rules denying a dividends-received deduction described above in "— Limitations on Dividends-Received Deduction" apply. A corporate shareholder would also be required to take these constructive dividends into account when applying the extraordinary dividend rules described above. Thus, a corporate shareholder's receipt of a constructive dividend may cause some or all stated dividends to be treated as extraordinary dividends. The applicable prospectus supplement for preferred stock that is redeemable at a price in excess of its issue price will indicate whether tax counsel believes that a shareholder must include any redemption premium in income.

Sale or Exchange of Preferred Stock Other Than by Redemption

If you sell or otherwise dispose of your preferred stock (other than by redemption), you will generally recognize capital gain or loss equal to the difference between the amount realized upon the disposition and your adjusted tax basis of the preferred stock. Capital gain of a non-corporate United States holder is generally taxed at preferential rates where the property is held for more than one year.

Redemption of Preferred Stock

If we are permitted to and redeem your preferred stock, it generally would be a taxable event. You would be treated as if you had sold your preferred stock if the redemption:

- · results in a complete termination of your stock interest in us;
- is substantially disproportionate with respect to you; or
- · is not essentially equivalent to a dividend with respect to you.

In determining whether any of these tests has been met, shares of stock considered to be owned by you by reason of certain constructive ownership rules set forth in Section 318 of the Internal Revenue Code, as well as shares actually owned, must be taken into account.

If we redeem your preferred stock in a redemption that meets one of the tests described above, you generally would recognize taxable gain or loss equal to the sum of the amount of cash and fair market value of property (other than stock of us or a successor to us) received by you less your tax basis in the preferred stock redeemed. This gain or loss would be long-term capital gain or capital loss if you have held the preferred stock for more than one year.

If a redemption does not meet any of the tests described above, you generally would be taxed on the cash and fair market value of the property you receive as a dividend to the extent paid out of our current and accumulated earnings and profits. Any amount in excess of our current or accumulated earnings and profits would first reduce your tax basis in the preferred stock and thereafter would be treated as capital gain. If a redemption of the preferred stock is treated as a distribution that is taxable as a dividend, your basis in the redeemed preferred stock would be transferred to the remaining shares of our stock that you own, if any.

Special rules apply if we redeem preferred stock for our debt securities. We will discuss these rules in an applicable prospectus supplement if we have the option to redeem your preferred stock for our debt securities.

Medicare Tax

For taxable years beginning after December 31, 2012, a U.S. person that is an individual or estate, or a trust that does not fall into a special class of trusts that is exempt from such tax, will be subject to a 3.8% tax on the lesser of (1) the U.S. person's "net investment income" for the relevant taxable year and (2) the excess of the U.S. person's modified gross income for the taxable year over a certain threshold (which in the case of individuals will be between \$125,000 and \$250,000, depending on the individual's circumstances). A holder's net investment income will generally include its interest or dividend income and its net gains from the disposition of preferred stock, unless such interest payments or net gains are derived in the ordinary course of the conduct of a trade or business (other than a trade or business that consists of certain passive or trading activities). If you are a U.S. person that is an individual, estate or trust, you are urged to consult your tax advisors regarding the applicability of the Medicare tax to your income and gains in respect of your investment in preferred stock.

United States Alien Holders

This section summarizes certain United States federal income and estate tax consequences of the ownership and disposition of preferred stock by a United States alien holder. You are a United States alien holder if you are, for United States federal income tax purposes:

- · a nonresident alien individual;
- · a foreign corporation; or
- an estate or trust that in either case is not subject to United States federal income tax on a net income basis on income or gain from preferred stock.

Dividends

Except as described below, if you are a United States alien holder of preferred stock, dividends paid to you are subject to withholding of United States federal income tax at a 30% rate or at a lower rate if you are eligible for the benefits of an income tax treaty that provides for a lower rate. Even if you are eligible for a lower treaty rate, we and other payors will generally be required to withhold at a 30% rate (rather than the lower treaty rate) on dividend payments to you, unless you have furnished to us or another payor:

- a valid Internal Revenue Service Form W-8BEN or an acceptable substitute form upon which you certify, under penalties of perjury, your status as a person who is not a United States person and your entitlement to the lower treaty rate with respect to such payments; or
- in the case of payments made outside the United States to an offshore account (generally, an account maintained by you at an office or branch of a bank or other financial institution at any location outside the United States), other documentary evidence establishing your entitlement to the lower treaty rate in accordance with U.S. Treasury regulations.

If you are eligible for a reduced rate of United States withholding tax under a tax treaty, you may obtain a refund of any amounts withheld in excess of that rate by filing a refund claim with the United States Internal Revenue Service.

If dividends paid to you are "effectively connected" with your conduct of a trade or business within the United States, and, if required by a tax treaty, the dividends are attributable to a permanent establishment that you maintain in the United States, we and other payors generally are not required to withhold tax from the dividends, provided that you have furnished to us or another payor a valid Internal Revenue Service Form W-8ECI or an acceptable substitute form upon which you represent, under penalties of perjury, that:

- · you are not a United States person; and
- the dividends are effectively connected with your conduct of a trade or business within the United States and are includible in your gross income.

"Effectively connected" dividends are taxed at rates applicable to United States citizens, resident aliens and domestic United States corporations.

If you are a corporate United States alien holder, "effectively connected" dividends that you receive may, under certain circumstances, be subject to an additional "branch profits tax" at a 30% rate or at a lower rate if you are eligible for the benefits of an income tax treaty that provides for a lower rate.

Gain on Disposition of Preferred Stock

If you are a United States alien holder, you generally will not be subject to United States federal income tax on gain that you recognize on a disposition of preferred stock unless:

- the gain is "effectively connected" with your conduct of a trade or business in the United States, and the gain is attributable to a permanent establishment that you maintain in the United States, if that is required by an applicable income tax treaty as a condition for subjecting you to United States taxation on a net income basis:
- you are an individual, you hold the preferred stock as a capital asset, you are present in the United States for 183 or more days in the taxable year of the sale and certain other conditions exist; or
- we are or have been a United States real property holding corporation for federal income tax purposes and you held, directly or indirectly, at any
 time during the five-year period ending on the date of disposition, more than 5% of your class of preferred stock and you are not eligible for any
 treaty exemption.

If you are a corporate United States alien holder, "effectively connected" gains that you recognize may also, under certain circumstances, be subject to an additional "branch profits tax" at a 30% rate or at a lower rate if you are eligible for the benefits of an income tax treaty that provides for a lower rate.

We have not been, are not and do not anticipate becoming a United States real property holding corporation for United States federal income tax purposes.

Federal Estate Taxes

Preferred stock held by a United States alien holder at the time of death will be included in the holder's gross estate for United States federal estate tax purposes, unless an applicable estate tax treaty provides otherwise.

Backup Withholding and Information Reporting

United States Holders

In general, dividend payments, or other taxable distributions, made within the United States to you will be subject to information reporting requirements and backup withholding tax if you are a non-corporate United States person and you:

- · fail to provide an accurate taxpayer identification number;
- are notified by the United States Internal Revenue Service that you have failed to report all interest or dividends required to be shown on your federal income tax returns; or
- · in certain circumstances, fail to comply with applicable certification requirements.

If you sell your preferred stock outside the United States through a non-U.S. office of a non-U.S. broker, and the sales proceeds are paid to you outside the United States, then U.S. backup withholding and information reporting requirements generally will not apply to that payment. However, U.S. information reporting, but not backup withholding, will apply to a payment of sales proceeds, even if that payment is made outside the United States, if you sell your preferred stock through a non-U.S. office of a broker that is:

- · a United States person;
- · a controlled foreign corporation for United States tax purposes;
- a foreign person 50% or more of whose gross income is effectively connected with the conduct of a United States trade or business for a specified three-year period; or
- a foreign partnership, if at any time during its tax year:
 - 1. one or more of its partners are "U.S. persons", as defined in U.S. Treasury regulations, who in the aggregate hold more than 50% of the income or capital interest in the partnership; or
 - 2. such foreign partnership is engaged in the conduct of a United States trade or business.

You generally may obtain a refund of any amounts withheld under the U.S. backup withholding rules that exceed your income tax liability by filing a refund claim with the United States Internal Revenue Service.

United States Alien Holders

If you are a United States alien holder, you are generally exempt from backup withholding and information reporting requirements with respect to:

- · dividend payments; and
- the payment of the proceeds from the sale of preferred stock effected at a United States office of a broker;

as long as the income associated with such payments is otherwise exempt from United States federal income tax, and:

- the payor or broker does not have actual knowledge or reason to know that you are a United States person and you have furnished to the payor or broker:
 - 1. a valid Internal Revenue Service Form W-8BEN or an acceptable substitute form upon which you certify, under penalties of perjury, that you are not a United States person; or
 - other documentation upon which it may rely to treat the payments as made to a non-United States person that is, for United States federal income tax purposes, the beneficial owner of the payments in accordance with U.S. Treasury regulations; or
- · you otherwise establish an exemption.

Payment of the proceeds from the sale of preferred stock effected at a foreign office of a broker generally will not be subject to information reporting or backup withholding. However, a sale of preferred stock that is effected at a foreign office of a broker will be subject to information reporting and backup withholding if:

· the proceeds are transferred to an account maintained by you in the United States;

- · the payment of proceeds or the confirmation of the sale is mailed to you at a United States address; or
- the sale has some other specified connection with the United States as provided in U.S. Treasury regulations;

unless the broker does not have actual knowledge or reason to know that you are a United States person and the documentation requirements described above are met or you otherwise establish an exemption.

In addition, a sale of preferred stock will be subject to information reporting if it is effected at a foreign office of a broker that is:

- · a United States person;
- a controlled foreign corporation for United States tax purposes;
- a foreign person 50% or more of whose gross income is effectively connected with the conduct of a United States trade or business for a specified three-year period; or
- · a foreign partnership, if at any time during its tax year:
 - 1. one or more of its partners are "U.S. persons", as defined in U.S. Treasury regulations, who in the aggregate hold more than 50% of the income or capital interest in the partnership; or
 - 2. such foreign partnership is engaged in the conduct of a United States trade or business;

unless the broker does not have actual knowledge or reason to know that you are a United States person and the documentation requirements described above are met or you otherwise establish an exemption. Backup withholding will apply if the sale is subject to information reporting and the broker has actual knowledge that you are a United States person that is, for United States federal income tax purposes, the beneficial owner of the payments.

You generally may obtain a refund of any amounts withheld under the backup withholding rules that exceed your income tax liability by filing a refund claim with the Internal Revenue Service.

Foreign Account Tax Compliance

The HIRE Act will generally impose a withholding tax of 30% on dividend payments on, and the gross proceeds from a disposition of, preferred stock paid to a foreign financial institution, unless such foreign financial institution enters into an agreement with the U.S. government to collect and provide to the U.S. tax authorities substantial information regarding certain U.S. account holders of such institution (which would include certain account holders that are foreign entities with U.S. owners). In addition, the HIRE Act will generally impose a withholding tax of 30% on dividend payments on, and the gross proceeds from a disposition of, preferred stock paid to a non-financial foreign entity unless such non-financial foreign entity provides the withholding agent with certain certification or information relating to U.S. ownership of the entity. Under certain circumstances, such foreign persons might be eligible for refunds or credits of such taxes. The effective date of the HIRE Act is January 1, 2013. However, according to a notice issued by the Internal Revenue Service on July 14, 2011, the withholding tax described above will not apply to dividend payments made before January 1, 2014 and to payments of gross proceeds from a disposition of preferred stock made before January 1, 2015. Prospective investors should consult their tax advisors regarding the HIRE Act.

Taxation of Capital Securities

The following discussion of the material U.S. federal income tax consequences to the purchase, ownership and disposition of capital securities only addresses the tax consequences to a U.S. holder that acquires capital securities on their original issue date at their original offering price and holds the capital securities as a capital asset for tax purposes. You are a U.S. holder if you are a beneficial owner of a capital security that is:

- · a citizen or resident of the United States;
- · a domestic corporation;
- · an estate whose income is subject to U.S. federal income tax regardless of its source; or
- a trust if a U.S. court can exercise primary supervision over the trust's administration and one or more U.S. persons have authority to control all substantial decisions of the trust.

This summary does not apply if the subordinated debt securities or capital securities:

- · are issued with more than a de minimis amount of original issue discount;
- · mature 1 year or less than or more than 30 years after the issue date;
- · are denominated or pay principal, premium, if any, or interest in a currency other than U.S. dollars;
- · pay principal, premium, if any, or interest based on an index or indices;
- allow for deferral of interest for more than 5 years' worth of consecutive interest periods;
- · are issued in bearer form:
- contain any obligation or right of us or a holder to convert or exchange the subordinated debt securities into other securities or properties of Goldman Sachs;
- contain any obligation or right of Goldman Sachs to redeem, purchase or repay the subordinated debt securities (other than a redemption of the outstanding subordinated debt securities at a price equal to (1) 100% of the principal amount of the subordinated debt securities being redeemed, plus (2) accrued but unpaid interest, plus, if applicable, (3) a premium or make-whole amount determined by a quotation agent, equal to the sum of the present value of scheduled payments of principal and interest from the issue date of the subordinated debt securities to their redemption date, discounted at a rate equal to a U.S. treasury rate plus some fixed amount or amounts); or
- · contain any other material provision described only in the prospectus supplement.

The material U.S. federal income tax consequences of the purchase, ownership and disposition of capital securities in a trust owning the underlying subordinated debt securities that contain these terms will be described in the applicable prospectus supplement.

The authorities on which this discussion is based are subject to various interpretations, and it is therefore possible that the federal income tax treatment of the purchase, ownership and disposition of capital securities may differ from the treatment described below.

Please consult your own tax advisor concerning the consequences of owning the capital securities in your particular circumstances under the Internal Revenue Code and the laws of any other taxing jurisdiction.

Classification of the Issuer Trusts

Under current law and assuming full compliance with the terms of an amended trust agreement substantially in the form attached to this prospectus as an exhibit and the indenture, each Issuer Trust will not be taxable as a corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes. As a result, you will be required to include in your gross income your proportional share of the interest income, including original issue discount, paid or accrued on the subordinated debt securities, whether or not the trust actually distributes cash to you.

Interest Income and Original Issue Discount

Under Treasury regulations, an issuer and the Internal Revenue Service will ignore a "remote" contingency that stated interest will not be timely paid when determining whether a subordinated debt

security is issued with original issue discount. On the date of this prospectus, we currently believe that the likelihood of exercising our option to defer interest payments is remote because we would be prohibited from making certain distributions on our capital stock and payments on our indebtedness if we exercise that option. Accordingly, we currently believe that the subordinated debt securities will not be considered to be issued with original issue discount at the time of their original issuance. However, if our belief changes on the date any capital security is issued, we will describe the relevant U.S. federal income tax consequences in the applicable prospectus supplement.

Under these regulations, if we were to exercise our option to defer any payment of interest, the subordinated debt securities would at that time be treated as issued with original issue discount, and all stated interest on the subordinated debt securities would thereafter be treated as original issue discount as long as the subordinated debt securities remained outstanding. In that event, all of your taxable interest income on the subordinated debt securities would be accounted for as original issue discount on an economic accrual basis regardless of your method of tax accounting, and actual distributions of stated interest would not be reported as taxable income. Consequently, you would be required to include original issue discount in gross income even though we would not make any actual cash payments during an extension period.

These regulations have not been addressed in any rulings or other interpretations by the Internal Revenue Service, and it is possible that the Internal Revenue Service could take a position contrary to the interpretation in this prospectus.

Because income on the capital securities will constitute interest or original issue discount, corporate U.S. holders of the capital securities will not be entitled to a dividends-received deduction for any income taken into account on the capital securities.

Moreover, because income on the capital securities will constitute interest or original issue discount, U.S. holders of the capital securities will not be entitled to the preferential tax rate (generally 15%) generally applicable to payments of dividends before January 1, 2013.

In the rest of this discussion, we assume that unless and until we exercise our option to defer any payment of interest, the subordinated debt securities will not be treated as issued with original issue discount, and whenever we use the term interest, it also includes income in the form of original issue discount.

Distribution of Subordinated Debt Securities to Holders of Capital Securities Upon Liquidation of the Issuer Trusts

If the applicable Issuer Trust distributes the subordinated debentures as described above under the caption "Description of Capital Securities and Related Instruments — Liquidation Distribution Upon Dissolution", you will receive directly your proportional share of the subordinated debt securities previously held indirectly through the trust. Under current law, you will not be taxed on the distribution and your holding period and aggregate tax basis in your subordinated debt securities will be equal to the holding period and aggregate tax basis you had in your capital securities before the distribution. If, however, the trust were to become taxed on the income received or accrued on the subordinated debt securities due to a tax event, the trust might be taxed on a distribution of subordinated debt securities to you, and you might recognize gain or loss as if you had exchanged your capital securities for the subordinated debt securities you received upon the liquidation of the trust. You will include interest in income in respect of subordinated debt securities received from the trust in the manner described above under "— Taxation of Capital Securities — Interest Income and Original Issue Discount".

Sale or Redemption of Capital Securities

If you sell your capital securities, including through a redemption for cash, you will recognize gain or loss equal to the difference between your adjusted tax basis in your capital securities and the amount you realize on the sale of your capital securities. Assuming that we do not exercise our option to defer payment of interest on the subordinated debt securities, your adjusted tax basis in your capital securities generally will be the price you paid for your capital securities.

If the subordinated debt securities are deemed to be issued with original issue discount as a result of an actual deferral of interest payments, your adjusted tax basis in your capital securities generally will be the price you paid for your capital securities, increased by original issue discount previously includible in your gross income to the date of disposition and decreased by distributions or other payments you received on your capital securities since and including the date of the first extension period. This gain or loss generally will be capital gain or loss, except to the extent any amount that you realize is treated as a payment of accrued interest on your proportional share of the subordinated debt securities required to be included in income. Capital gain of a non-corporate United States holder is generally taxed at preferential rates where the property is held for more than one year.

If we exercise our option to defer any payment of interest on the subordinated debt securities, our capital securities may trade at a price that does not accurately reflect the value of accrued but unpaid interest with respect to the underlying subordinated debt securities. If you sell your capital securities before the record date for the payment of distributions, you will not receive payment of a distribution for the period before the sale. However, you will be required to include accrued but unpaid

interest on the subordinated debt securities through the date of the sale as ordinary income for U.S. federal income tax purposes and to add the amount of accrued but unpaid interest to your tax basis in the capital securities. Your increased tax basis in the capital securities will increase the amount of any capital loss that you may have otherwise realized on the sale. In general, an individual taxpayer may offset only \$3,000 of capital losses against regular income during any year.

Medicare Tax

For taxable years beginning after December 31, 2012, a U.S. person that is an individual or estate, or a trust that does not fall into a special class of trusts that is exempt from such tax, will be subject to a 3.8% tax on the lesser of (1) the U.S. person's "net investment income" for the relevant taxable year and (2) the excess of the U.S. person's modified gross income for the taxable year over a certain threshold (which in the case of individuals will be between \$125,000 and \$250,000, depending on the individual's circumstances). A holder's net investment income will generally include its interest income and its net gains from the disposition of capital securities, unless such interest payments or net gains are derived in the ordinary course of the conduct of a trade or business (other than a trade or business that consists of certain passive or trading activities). If you are a U.S. person that is an individual, estate or trust, you are urged to consult your tax advisors regarding the applicability of the Medicare tax to your income and gains in respect of your investment in the capital securities.

Backup Withholding Tax and Information Reporting

We will be required to report the amount of interest income paid and original issue discount accrued on your capital securities to the Internal Revenue Service unless you are a corporation or other exempt U.S. holder. Backup withholding will apply to payments of interest to you unless you are an exempt U.S. holder or you furnish your taxpayer identification number in the manner prescribed in applicable regulations, certify that such number is correct, certify as to no loss of exemption from backup withholding and meet certain other conditions.

Payment of the proceeds from the disposition of capital securities to or through the U.S. office of a broker is subject to information reporting and backup withholding unless you establish an exemption from information reporting and backup withholding.

Any amounts withheld from you under the backup withholding rules will be allowed as a refund or a credit against your U.S. federal income tax liability, provided the required information is furnished to the Internal Revenue Service.

It is anticipated that each Issuer Trust or its paying agent will report income on the capital securities to the Internal Revenue Service and to you on Form 1099 by January 31 following each calendar year.

PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

Initial Offering and Sale of Securities

We or the Issuer Trusts, as applicable, may sell the securities from time to time in their initial offering as follows:

- · through agents:
- · to dealers or underwriters for resale;
- · directly to purchasers; or
- through a combination of any of these methods of sale.

In addition, we may issue the securities as a dividend or distribution or in a subscription rights offering to our existing security holders. In some cases, we or dealers acting with us or on our behalf may also purchase securities and reoffer them to the public by one or more of the methods described above. This prospectus may be used in connection with any offering of our securities or capital securities of the Issuer Trusts through any of these methods or other methods described in the applicable prospectus supplement.

The securities we distribute by any of these methods may be sold to the public, in one or more transactions, either:

- · at a fixed price or prices, which may be changed;
- · at market prices prevailing at the time of sale;
- · at prices related to prevailing market prices; or
- · at negotiated prices.

We or the Issuer Trusts, as applicable, may solicit offers to purchase securities directly from the public from time to time. We may also designate agents from time to time to solicit offers to purchase securities from the public on our behalf. If required, the prospectus supplement relating to any particular offering of securities will name any agents designated to solicit offers, and will include information about any commissions we or the Issuer Trusts may pay the agents, in that offering. Agents may be deemed to be "underwriters" as that term is defined in the Securities Act.

From time to time, we or the Issuer Trusts may sell securities to one or more dealers acting as principals. The dealers, who may be deemed to be "underwriters" as that term is defined in the Securities Act, may then resell those securities to the public.

We or the Issuer Trusts may sell securities from time to time to one or more underwriters, who would purchase the securities as principal for resale to the public, either on a firm-commitment or best-efforts basis. If we or the Issuer Trusts sell securities to underwriters, we or the Issuer Trusts may execute an underwriting agreement with them at the time of sale and will name them in the applicable prospectus supplement. In connection with those sales, underwriters may be deemed to have received compensation from us or the Issuer Trusts in the form of underwriting discounts or commissions and may also receive commissions from purchasers of the securities for whom they may act as agents. Underwriters may resell the securities to or through dealers, and those dealers may receive compensation in the form of discounts, concessions or commissions from the underwriters and/or commissions from purchasers for whom they may act as agents. The applicable prospectus supplement will include any required information about underwriting compensation we pay to underwriters, and any discounts, concessions or commissions underwriters allow to participating dealers, in connection with an offering of securities.

If we offer securities in a subscription rights offering to our existing security holders, we may enter into a standby underwriting agreement with dealers, acting as standby underwriters. We may pay the standby underwriters a commitment fee for the securities they commit to purchase on a standby basis.

If we do not enter into a standby underwriting arrangement, we may retain a dealer-manager to manage a subscription rights offering for us.

We or the Issuer Trusts, as applicable, may authorize underwriters, dealers and agents to solicit from third parties offers to purchase securities under contracts providing for payment and delivery on future dates. The applicable prospectus supplement will describe the material terms of these contracts, including any conditions to the purchasers' obligations, and will include any required information about commissions we may pay for soliciting these contracts

Underwriters, dealers, agents and other persons may be entitled, under agreements that they may enter into with us, to indemnification by us or the Issuer Trusts, as applicable, against certain liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act.

In connection with an offering, the underwriters may purchase and sell securities in the open market. These transactions may include short sales, stabilizing transactions and purchases to cover positions created by short sales. Short sales involve the sale by the underwriters of a greater number of securities than they are required to purchase in an offering. Stabilizing transactions consist of certain bids or purchases made for the purpose of preventing or retarding a decline in the market price of the securities while an offering is in progress.

The underwriters also may impose a penalty bid. This occurs when a particular underwriter repays to the underwriters a portion of the underwriting discount received by it because the underwriters have repurchased securities sold by or for the account of that underwriter in stabilizing or short-covering transactions

These activities by the underwriters may stabilize, maintain or otherwise affect the market price of the securities. As a result, the price of the securities may be higher than the price that otherwise might exist in the open market. If these activities are commenced, they may be discontinued by the underwriters at any time. These transactions may be effected on an exchange or automated quotation system, if the securities are listed on that exchange or admitted for trading on that automated quotation system, or in the over-the-counter market or otherwise.

The underwriters, dealers and agents, as well as their associates, may be customers of or lenders to, and may engage in transactions with and perform services for, The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., its subsidiaries and the Issuer Trusts in the ordinary course of business. In addition, we expect to offer the securities to or through our affiliates, as underwriters, dealers or agents. Among our affiliates, Goldman, Sachs & Co. may offer the securities for sale in the United States and Goldman Sachs International, Goldman Sachs (Asia) L.L.C. and Goldman Sachs (Singapore) Pte. may offer the securities for sale outside the United States. Our affiliates may also offer the securities in other markets through one or more selling agents, including one another.

Goldman, Sachs & Co. is a subsidiary of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. is the parent of Goldman, Sachs & Co. FINRA Rule 5121 imposes certain requirements when a member of FINRA, such as Goldman, Sachs & Co., distributes an affiliated company's securities. Goldman, Sachs & Co. has advised The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. that each particular offering of securities in which it participates will comply with the applicable requirements of Rule 5121 or any successor FINRA rule. In addition, offerings of capital securities will be conducted in compliance with FINRA Rule 2310, as applicable.

Under Rule 15c6-1 of the Exchange Act, trades in the secondary market generally are required to settle in three business days, unless the parties to any such trade expressly agree otherwise. Your prospectus supplement may provide that the original issue date for your securities may be more than three scheduled business days after the trade date for your securities. Accordingly, in such a case, if you wish to trade securities on any date prior to the third business day before the original issue date for your securities, you will be required, by virtue of the fact that your securities initially are expected to settle in more than three scheduled business days after the trade date for your securities, to make alternative settlement arrangements to prevent a failed settlement

Market-Making Resales by Affiliates

This prospectus may be used by Goldman, Sachs & Co. in connection with offers and sales of the securities in market-making transactions. In a market-making transaction, Goldman, Sachs & Co. may resell a security it acquires from other holders, after the original offering and sale of the security. Resales of this kind may occur in the open market or may be privately negotiated, at prevailing market prices at the time of resale or at related or negotiated prices. In these transactions, Goldman, Sachs & Co. may act as principal or agent, including as agent for the counterparty in a transaction in which Goldman, Sachs & Co. acts as principal, or as agent for both counterparties in a transaction in which Goldman, Sachs & Co. may receive compensation in the form of discounts and commissions, including from both counterparties in some cases. Other affiliates of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. may also engage in transactions of this kind and may use this prospectus for this purpose. These affiliates may include, among others, Goldman Sachs International, Goldman Sachs (Asia) L.L.C. and Goldman Sachs (Singapore) Pte.

The securities to be sold in market-making transactions include securities to be issued after the date of this prospectus, as well as securities previously issued.

The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. does not expect to receive any proceeds from market-making transactions. The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. does not expect that Goldman, Sachs & Co. or any other affiliate that engages in these transactions will pay any proceeds from its market-making resales to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.

Information about the trade and settlement dates, as well as the purchase price, for a market-making transaction will be provided to the purchaser in a separate confirmation of sale.

Unless The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. or an agent informs you in your confirmation of sale that your security is being purchased in its original offering and sale, you may assume that you are purchasing your security in a market-making transaction.

Matters Relating to Initial Offering and Market-Making Resales

Each series of securities will be a new issue, and there will be no established trading market for any security prior to its original issue date. Neither we nor the Issuer Trusts may list any particular series of securities on a securities exchange or quotation system. We and the Issuer Trusts have been advised by Goldman, Sachs & Co. that it intends to make a market in the securities, and any underwriters to whom we or the Issuer Trusts sell securities for public offering may also make a market in those securities. However, neither Goldman, Sachs & Co. nor any underwriter that makes a market is obligated to do so, and any of them may stop doing so at any time without notice. No assurance can be given as to the liquidity or trading market for any of the securities.

Unless otherwise indicated in the applicable prospectus supplement or confirmation of sale, the purchase price of the securities will be required to be paid in immediately available funds in New York City.

In this prospectus, an offering of securities refers to the initial offering of the securities made in connection with their original issuance, and does not refer to any subsequent resales of securities in market-making transactions.

Conflicts of Interest

Goldman, Sachs & Co. is an affiliate of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and, as such, will have a "conflict of interest" in any offering of the securities within the meaning of FINRA Rule 5121. Consequently, any offering of the securities will be conducted in compliance with the provisions of Rule 5121. Goldman, Sachs & Co. will not be permitted to sell securities in any offering to an account over which it exercises discretionary authority without the prior specific written approval of the account holder.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT INCOME SECURITY ACT

This section is only relevant to you if you are an insurance company or the fiduciary of a pension plan or an employee benefit plan (including a governmental plan, an IRA or a Keogh Plan) proposing to invest in the securities.

The U.S. Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended ("ERISA"), and the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), prohibit certain transactions ("prohibited transactions") involving the assets of an employee benefit plan that is subject to the fiduciary responsibility provisions of ERISA or Section 4975 of the Code (including individual retirement accounts, Keogh plans and other plans described in Section 4975(e)(1) of the Code) (a "Plan") and certain persons who are "parties in interest" (within the meaning of ERISA) or "disqualified persons" (within the meaning of the Code) with respect to the Plan; governmental plans may be subject to similar prohibitions unless an exemption applies to the transaction. The assets of a Plan may include assets held in the general account of an insurance company that are deemed "plan assets" under ERISA or assets of certain investment vehicles in which the Plan invests. Each of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and certain of its affiliates may be considered a "party in interest" or a "disqualified person" with respect to many Plans, and, accordingly, prohibited transactions may arise if the securities are acquired by or on behalf of a Plan unless those securities are acquired and held pursuant to an available exemption. In general, available exemptions are: transactions effected on behalf of that Plan by a "qualified professional asset manager" (prohibited transaction exemption 84-14) or an "in-house asset manager" (prohibited transaction exemption 96-23), transactions involving insurance company general accounts (prohibited transaction exemption 95-60), transactions involving insurance company pooled separate accounts (prohibited transaction exemption 90-1), transactions involving bank collective investment funds (prohibited transaction exemption 91-38) and transactions with service providers under Section 408(b)(17) of ERISA and Section 4975(d) (20) of the Code where the Plan receives no less and pays no more than "adequate consideration" (within the meaning of Section 408(b)(17) of ERISA and Section 4975(f)(10) of the Code). The person making the decision on behalf of a Plan or a governmental plan shall be deemed, on behalf of itself and the plan, by purchasing and holding the securities, or exercising any rights related thereto, to represent that (a) the plan will receive no less and pay no more than "adequate consideration" (within the meaning of Section 408(b)(17) of ERISA and Section 4975(f)(10) of the Code) in connection with the purchase and holding of the securities. (b) none of the purchase, holding or disposition of the securities or the exercise of any rights related to the securities will result in a non-exempt prohibited transaction under ERISA or the Code (or, with respect to a governmental plan, under any similar applicable law or regulation), and (c) neither The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. nor any of its affiliates is a "fiduciary" (within the meaning of Section 3(21) of ERISA (or any regulations thereunder) or, with respect to a governmental plan, under any similar applicable law or regulation) with respect to the purchaser or holder in connection with such person's acquisition, disposition or holding of the securities, or as a result of any exercise by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. or any of its affiliates of any rights in connection with the securities, and no advice provided by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. or any of its affiliates has formed a primary basis for any investment decision by or on behalf of such purchaser or holder in connection with the securities and the transactions contemplated with respect to the securities.

If you are an insurance company or the fiduciary of a pension plan or an employee benefit plan (including a governmental plan, an IRA or a Keogh plan) and propose to invest in the securities described in this prospectus, you should consult your legal counsel.

VALIDITY OF THE SECURITIES

The validity of the securities, other than capital securities, that may be issued after the date of this prospectus has been passed upon for The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. by Sullivan & Cromwell LLP, New York, New York. The opinion of Sullivan & Cromwell LLP was based on assumptions about future actions required to be taken by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and the trustee in connection with the issuance and sale of the securities, about the specific terms of the securities and about other matters that may affect the validity of the securities but which could not be ascertained on the date of that opinion. The validity of certain debt securities that may be issued after the date of this prospectus also has been passed upon for The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. by Sidley Austin LLP, New York, New York. The opinion of Sidley Austin LLP was based on assumptions about future actions required to be taken by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and the trustee in connection with the issuance and sale of such debt securities, about the specific terms of such debt securities but which could not be ascertained on the date of that opinion. The validity of capital securities that may be issued after the date of this prospectus supplement has been passed upon for The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and the Issuer Trusts by Richards, Layton & Finger, P.A., Wilmington, Delaware. The opinion of Richards, Layton & Finger, P.A. was based on assumptions about future actions required to be taken by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., the Issuer Trusts and the trustees in connection with the issuance and sale of the capital securities, about the specific terms of the capital securities and about other matters that may affect the validity of the capital securities but which could not be ascertained on the date of that opinion.

Each of Sullivan & Cromwell LLP, Sidley Austin LLP and Richards, Layton & Finger, P.A. has in the past represented and continues to represent Goldman Sachs on a regular basis and in a variety of matters. Sullivan & Cromwell LLP and Sidley Austin LLP also performed services for The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. in connection with the offering of the securities described in this prospectus. Richards, Layton & Finger, P.A. also performed services for The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. in connection with the offering of capital securities described in this prospectus.

EXPERTS

The financial statements of Goldman Sachs incorporated in this prospectus by reference to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010 have been so incorporated in reliance on the report of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, given on the authority of said firm as experts in auditing and accounting.

The historical income statement, balance sheet and common share data set forth in "Selected Financial Data" as of or for the years ended December 31, 2010, December 31, 2009, November 28, 2008, November 30, 2007 and November 24, 2006 and for the month ended December 26, 2008 incorporated by reference in this prospectus have been so incorporated in reliance on the report of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, given on the authority of said firm as experts in auditing and accounting.

REVIEW OF UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BY INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

With respect to the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements of Goldman Sachs for (i) the three month periods ended March 31, 2011 and March 31, 2010, and (ii) the three month and six month periods ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, incorporated by reference in this prospectus, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP reported that they have applied limited procedures in accordance with professional standards for a review of such information. However, their separate reports dated (i) May 9, 2011 and (ii) August 8, 2011 incorporated by reference in this prospectus state that they did

not audit and they do not express an opinion on that unaudited condensed consolidated financial information. Accordingly, the degree of reliance on their reports on such information should be restricted in light of the limited nature of the review procedures applied. PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP is not subject to the liability provisions of Section 11 of the U.S. Securities Act of 1933 for their reports on the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements because those reports are not a "report" or a "part" of the registration statements prepared or certified by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP within the meaning of Sections 7 and 11 of the Securities Act of 1933.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO THE PRIVATE SECURITIES LITIGATION REFORM ACT OF 1995

We have included or incorporated by reference in this prospectus statements that may constitute "forward-looking statements" within the meaning of the safe harbor provisions of The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These forward-looking statements are not historical facts but instead represent only our belief regarding future events, many of which, by their nature, are inherently uncertain and outside of our control. It is possible that our actual results may differ, possibly materially, from the anticipated results indicated in these forward-looking statements.

Information regarding important factors that could cause actual results to differ, perhaps materially, from those in our forward-looking statements is contained under "Risk Factors" in Part I, Item 1A of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010, which is incorporated in this prospectus by reference (and in any of our annual reports for a subsequent fiscal year that are so incorporated). See "Available Information" above for information about how to obtain a copy of this annual report.

We have not authorized anyone to provide any information or to make any representations other than those contained or incorporated by reference in this prospectus or in any free writing prospectuses we have prepared. We take no responsibility for, and can provide no assurance as to the reliability of, any other information that others may give you. This prospectus is an offer to sell only the securities offered hereby, but only under circumstances and in jurisdictions where it is lawful to do so. The information contained in this prospectus is current only as of its date.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
Available Information	2
Prospectus Summary	4
Use of Proceeds	8
Description of Debt Securities We May Offer	9
Description of Warrants We May Offer	33
Description of Purchase Contracts We May Offer	48
Description of Units We May Offer	53
Description of Preferred Stock We May Offer	58
The Issuer Trusts	65
Description of Capital Securities and Related Instruments	67
Description of Capital Stock of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	88
Legal Ownership and Book-Entry Issuance	92
Considerations Relating to Floating Rate Debt Securities	97
Considerations Relating to Securities Issued in Bearer Form	98
Considerations Relating to Indexed Securities	102
Considerations Relating to Securities Denominated or Payable in or	
Linked to a Non-U.S. Dollar Currency	105
Considerations Relating to Capital Securities	108
<u>United States Taxation</u>	112
<u>Plan of Distribution</u>	135
Conflicts of Interest	137
Employee Retirement Income Security Act	138
Validity of the Securities	139
Experts	139
Review of Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements by	
Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm	139
Cautionary Statement Pursuant to the Private Securities Litigation	
Reform Act of 1995	140

The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.

Debt Securities
Warrants
Purchase Contracts
Units
Preferred Stock
Depositary Shares

Goldman Sachs Capital I Goldman Sachs Capital II Goldman Sachs Capital III Goldman Sachs Capital IV Goldman Sachs Capital V Goldman Sachs Capital VI

Capital Securities



Goldman, Sachs & Co.



GS Finance Corp. The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.

Debt Securities Warrants Units of

GS Finance Corp.

fully and unconditionally guaranteed as described herein by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.

GS Finance Corp. from time to time may offer to sell debt securities and warrants, as well as units comprised of these securities of GS Finance Corp. or securities of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. The securities of GS Finance Corp. offered from time to time hereunder shall be fully and unconditionally guaranteed as described herein by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. GS Finance Corp. is a wholly owned subsidiary of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. The common stock of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. is listed on the New York Stock Exchange and trades under the ticker symbol "GS".

GS Finance Corp. may offer and sell these securities to or through one or more underwriters, dealers and agents, including the firm named below, or directly to purchasers, on a continuous or delayed basis.

This prospectus describes some of the general terms that may apply to these securities and the general manner in which they may be offered. The specific terms of any securities to be offered, and the specific manner in which they may be offered, will be described in the applicable prospectus supplement to this prospectus.

These securities are not bank deposits and are not insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or any other governmental agency, nor are they obligations of, or guaranteed by, a bank.

Neither the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission nor any other regulatory body has approved or disapproved of these securities or passed upon the accuracy or adequacy of this prospectus. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

GS Finance Corp. may use this prospectus in the initial sale of these securities. In addition, Goldman, Sachs & Co. or any other affiliate of GS Finance Corp. may use this prospectus in a market-making transaction in any of these or similar securities after its initial sale. *Unless GS Finance Corp.* or its agent informs the purchaser otherwise in the confirmation of sale, this prospectus is being used in a market-making transaction.

Goldman, Sachs & Co.

Prospectus dated September 19, 2011.

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. is required to file annual, quarterly and current reports, proxy statements and other information with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC"). You may read and copy any documents filed by us at the SEC's public reference room at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further information on the public reference room. Our filings with the SEC are also available to the public through the SEC's Internet site at http://www.sec.gov and through the New York Stock Exchange, 20 Broad Street, New York, New York 10005, on which The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s common stock is listed.

We have filed a registration statement on Form S-3 with the SEC relating to the securities covered by this prospectus. This prospectus is a part of the registration statement and does not contain all of the information in the registration statement. Whenever a reference is made in this prospectus to a contract or other document of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., please be aware that the reference is only a summary and that you should refer to the exhibits that are a part of the registration statement for a copy of the applicable contract or other document. You may review a copy of the registration statement at the SEC's public reference room in Washington, D.C., as well as through the SEC's Internet site.

The SEC's rules allow us to "incorporate by reference" information into this prospectus. This means that we can disclose important information to you by referring you to any of the SEC filings referenced in the list below. Any information referred to in this way in this prospectus or the applicable prospectus supplement is considered part of this prospectus from the date we file that document. Any reports filed by us with the SEC after the date of this prospectus and before the date that the offering of securities by means of this prospectus is terminated will automatically update and, where applicable, supersede any information contained in this prospectus or incorporated by reference in this prospectus.

The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. incorporates by reference into this prospectus the following documents or information filed with the SEC (other than, in each case, documents or information deemed to have been furnished and not filed in accordance with SEC rules):

- (1) Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010 (File No. 001-14965);
- (2) Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2011 (File No. 001-14965);
- (3) Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2011 (File No. 001-14965);
- (4) Current Reports on Form 8-K, dated and filed on January 11, 2011 and January 19, 2011 (Item 8.01 only) (File No. 001-14965);
- (5) Current Report on Form 8-K, dated January 26, 2011 and filed January 28, 2011 (File No. 001-14965);
- (6) Current Report on Form 8-K, dated March 16, 2011 and filed March 18, 2011 (File No. 001-14965);
- (7) Current Reports on Form 8-K dated and filed on March 18, 2011, March 21, 2011, March 22, 2011, March 23, 2011, March 24, 2011, March 25, 2011, March 28, 2011, March 30, 2011, March 31, 2011, April 1, 2011, April 6, 2011, April 8, 2011, April 11, 2011, April 12, 2011, April 13, 2011, April 14, 2011, April 15, 2011, April 19, 2011 (Item 8.01 only), April 26, 2011, April 27, 2011, April 28, 2011, April 29, 2011, May 2, 2011, May 3, 2011, May 4, 2011 and May 5, 2011 (File No. 001-14965);

- (8) Current Report on Form 8-K, dated May 6, 2011 and filed on May 10, 2011 (File No. 001-14965);
- (9) Current Reports on Form 8-K dated and filed on May 9, 2011, May 11, 2011, May 12, 2011, May 16, 2011, May 17, 2011, May 18, 2011, May 19, 2011, May 20, 2011, May 23, 2011, May 25, 2011, May 26, 2011, May 27, 2011, May 31, 2011, June 3, 2011, June 6, 2011, June 7, 2011, June 8, 2011, June 9, 2011, June 10, 2011, June 13, 2011, June 14, 2011, June 15, 2011 and June 16, 2011 (File No. 001-14965):
- (10) Current Report on Form 8-K, dated June 16, 2011 and filed on June 17, 2011 (File No. 001-14965);
- (11) Current Reports on Form 8-K dated and filed on June 17, 2011, June 21, 2011, June 22, 2011, June 23, 2011, June 28, 2011, June 29, 2011, June 30, 2011, July 1, 2011, July 5, 2011, July 7, 2011, July 8, 2011, July 12, 2011, July 18, 2011, July 19, 2011 (Acc-no: 0001193125-11-191470), July 19, 2011 (Acc-no: 0000950123-11-066365) (Item 8.01 only), July 20, 2011, July 21, 2011, July 25, 2011, July 27, 2011, July 28, 2011, July 29, 2011, August 4, 2001, August 5, 2011, August 8, 2011, August 10, 2011, August 11, 2011, August 15, 2011, August 16, 2011, August 17, 2011, August 18, 2011, August 22, 2011, August 24, 2011, August 25, 2011, August 26, 2011, August 29, 2011, August 31, 2011, September 1, 2011, September 9, 2011, September 14, 2011, September 15, 2011 and September 16, 2011 (File No. 001-14965);
- (12) All documents filed by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. under Section 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Exchange Act") on or after the date of this prospectus and before the termination of the offering of securities under this prospectus; and
- (13) Solely with regard to the securities covered by this prospectus that were initially offered and sold under previously filed registration statements of GS Finance Corp. and that from time to time may be reoffered and resold in market-making transactions under this prospectus, the information in the prospectus supplements relating to those securities that were previously filed by GS Finance Corp. in connection with their initial offer and sale (except to the extent that any such information has been modified or superseded by other information included or incorporated by reference in this prospectus).

We will provide without charge to each person, including any beneficial owner, to whom this prospectus is delivered, upon his or her written or oral request, a copy of any or all documents referred to above which have been or may be incorporated by reference into this prospectus excluding exhibits to those documents unless they are specifically incorporated by reference into those documents. You can request those documents from Investor Relations, 200 West Street, New York, New York 10282, telephone (212) 902-0300.

No separate financial statements of GS Finance Corp. are included in this prospectus. The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and GS Finance Corp. do not consider that such financial statements would be material to holders of the securities of GS Finance Corp. because GS Finance Corp. has no operating history or independent operations and is not engaged in and does not propose to engage in any activity other than issuing its debt securities, warrants or units and lending the net proceeds therefrom to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and/or its subsidiaries. Furthermore, The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s obligations under the related guarantees provide a full, irrevocable and unconditional guarantee of payments of distributions and other amounts due on the related securities of GS Finance Corp. For a more detailed discussion, see "Description of Debt Securities We May Offer", "Description of Warrants We May Offer" and "Descriptions of Units We May Offer" below. In addition, The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. does not expect GS Finance Corp. to file reports under the Exchange Act with the SEC.

When we refer to "Goldman Sachs" or the "Firm" in this prospectus, we mean The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., together with its consolidated subsidiaries and affiliates.

PROSPECTUS SUMMARY

This summary highlights information contained elsewhere in this prospectus or incorporated by reference into this prospectus as further described above under "Available Information". This summary does not contain all the information that you should consider before investing in the securities being offered by this prospectus. You should carefully read the entire prospectus, the documents incorporated by reference into this prospectus, the applicable prospectus supplement, if applicable, and the prospectus supplement relating to the securities that you propose to buy, especially any description of investment risks that we may include in the applicable prospectus supplement.

GS Finance Corp.

GS Finance Corp. is a Delaware corporation and a wholly owned subsidiary of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., created for the primary purpose of providing Goldman Sachs with financing for its operations by issuing securities to investors and lending the net proceeds therefrom to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and/or its subsidiaries.

The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.

The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. is a leading global financial services firm providing investment banking, securities and investment management services to a substantial and diversified client base that includes corporations, financial institutions, governments and high-net-worth individuals. Founded in 1869, the firm is headquartered in New York and maintains offices in all major financial centers around the world. Our headquarters are located at 200 West Street, New York, New York 10282, telephone (212) 902-1000. The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. is a bank holding company and a financial holding company regulated by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System (the "Federal Reserve Board"). Our U.S. depository institution subsidiary, Goldman Sachs Bank USA, is a New York State-chartered bank.

The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. is a Holding Company

Because the assets of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. consist principally of interests in the subsidiaries through which The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. conducts its businesses, its right to participate as an equity holder in any distribution of assets of any of its subsidiaries upon the subsidiary's liquidation or otherwise, and thus the ability of the security holders of GS Finance Corp., as the beneficiaries of the guarantee by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., to benefit from the distribution, is junior to creditors of the subsidiary, except to the extent that any claims The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. may have as a creditor of the subsidiary are recognized. In addition, dividends, loans and advances to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. from some of its subsidiaries, including Goldman, Sachs & Co., are restricted by net capital requirements under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and under rules of securities exchanges and other regulatory bodies. Furthermore, because some of the subsidiaries of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., including Goldman, Sachs & Co., are partnerships in which The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. is a general partner or the sole limited partner, The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. may be liable for their obligations. The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. also guarantees many of the obligations of its subsidiaries other than GS Finance Corp. Any liability The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. may have for its subsidiaries' obligations could reduce its assets that are available to satisfy its guarantee obligations to the investors in securities of GS Finance Corp.

The Securities We Are Offering

We may offer any of the following securities from time to time:

- debt securities;
- · warrants; and

• units, comprised of (i) one or more debt securities or warrants described in this prospectus or (ii) any of the foregoing and debt or equity securities of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.

The securities we offer from time to time will be fully and unconditionally guaranteed by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.

When we use the term "security" or "securities" in this prospectus, we mean any of the securities we may offer with this prospectus, including the guarantee of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., unless the context requires otherwise. This prospectus, including the following summary, describes the general terms that may apply to the securities; the specific terms of any particular securities that we may offer will be described in the applicable prospectus supplement to this prospectus and may differ from the general terms described herein.

Debt Securities

The debt securities may be senior or subordinated in right of payment. For any particular debt securities we offer, the applicable prospectus supplement will describe the title and series of the debt securities, the aggregate principal amount and the original issue price; the ranking, whether senior or subordinated; the stated maturity; the redemption terms, if any; the rate or manner of calculating the rate and the payment dates for interest, if any; the amount or manner of calculating the amount payable at maturity; and any other specific terms. The senior debt securities will be issued under either of the two senior debt indentures (as described in "Description of Debt Securities We May Offer — The Senior Debt Indentures and the Subordinated Debt Indenture") among us, The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., as guarantor, and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee, and the subordinated debt securities will be issued under a subordinated debt indenture (as defined herein) to be entered into at a later date among us, The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., as guarantor, and a bank, trust company or other financial institution, as trustee.

The payment of principal of, and any interest and premium on, the debt securities we may offer will be fully and unconditionally guaranteed by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. The guarantee will remain in effect until the entire principal of, and interest and premium, if any, on the debt securities has been paid in full or discharged in accordance with the provisions of the relevant indenture, or otherwise fully defeased by us or by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. The guarantee of senior debt securities of GS Finance Corp. will rank equally in right of payment with all senior indebtedness of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., whereas the guarantee of subordinated debt securities of GS Finance Corp. will be subordinate and junior in right of payment to all senior indebtedness of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.

Warrants

We may offer warrants whose cash value is determined by reference to the performance, level or value of one or more of the following:

- securities of one or more issuers, including the common or preferred stock or other securities of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. or debt or equity securities of third parties;
- · one or more currencies;
- · one or more commodities:
- any other financial, economic or other measure or instrument, including the occurrence or non-occurrence of any event or circumstance;
- · one or more indices; and/or
- · one or more baskets of the items described above.

For any particular warrants we offer, the applicable prospectus supplement will describe the underlying property; the expiration date; the exercise price or the manner of determining the exercise price; the amount in cash, or the manner of determining the amount in cash, to be paid by you or us upon exercise; and any other specific terms. Unless otherwise specified in the applicable prospectus supplement, the warrants will be issued under a warrant indenture (as defined herein) to be entered into among us, The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., as guarantor, and a bank, trust company or other financial institution, as trustee.

The payment on the warrants we may offer will be fully and unconditionally guaranteed by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. The guarantee will remain in effect until the entire payment, if any, on the warrants has been paid in full or discharged in accordance with the provisions of the warrant indenture

Units

We may offer units, comprised of one or more debt securities or warrants described in this prospectus, as well as debt or equity securities of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. For any particular units we offer, the applicable prospectus supplement will describe the particular securities comprising each unit; the terms on which those securities will be separable, if any; whether the holder will pledge property to secure the performance of any obligations the holder may have under the unit; and any other specific terms of the units. We may issue the units under unit agreements between us and one or more unit agents.

The payment of principal of, any interest, premium, dividends, liquidation preference, sinking fund payment or any other applicable payment on our own securities included in the units we may offer will be fully and unconditionally guaranteed by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. The guarantee will remain in effect until the entire applicable payment, if any, on our own securities included in the units has been paid in full or discharged in accordance with the provisions of the related debt indenture, warrant indenture or guarantee agreement or otherwise fully defeased by us or by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., if applicable.

References to our securities include our units, even though our units may include securities of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.

Form of Securities

We will issue the securities in book-entry form through one or more depositaries, such as The Depository Trust Company, Euroclear or Clearstream, named in the applicable prospectus supplement. Each sale of a security in book-entry form will settle in immediately available funds through the applicable depositary, unless otherwise stated. We will issue the securities only in registered form, without coupons, although we may issue the securities in bearer form if so specified in the applicable prospectus supplement.

Payment Currencies

Amounts payable in respect of the securities, including the original issue price, will be payable in U.S. dollars, unless the applicable prospectus supplement says otherwise.

Listing

If any securities are to be listed or quoted on a securities exchange or quotation system, the applicable prospectus supplement will say so.

Use of Proceeds

We will lend the net proceeds from sales of the securities to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and/or its subsidiaries. Goldman Sachs expects to use the proceeds from such loans to provide additional funds for its operations and for other general corporate purposes.

Manner of Offering

The securities will be offered in connection with their initial issuance or in market-making transactions by our affiliates after initial issuance. Those offered in market-making transactions may be securities that we will not issue until after the date of this prospectus as well as securities that we have previously issued.

When we issue new securities, we may offer them for sale to or through underwriters, dealers and agents, including our affiliates, or directly to purchasers. The applicable prospectus supplement will include any required information about the firms we use and the discounts or commissions we may pay them for their services.

Our affiliates that we refer to above may include, among others, Goldman, Sachs & Co., for offers and sales in the United States, and Goldman Sachs International, Goldman Sachs (Asia) L.L.C. and Goldman Sachs (Singapore) Pte., for offers and sales outside the United States.

Conflicts of Interest

Goldman, Sachs & Co. is an affiliate of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and, as such, will have a "conflict of interest" in any offering of the securities within the meaning of Financial Industry Regulatory Authority, Inc. (FINRA) Rule 5121. Consequently, any offering of the securities will be conducted in compliance with the provisions of Rule 5121. Goldman, Sachs & Co. will not be permitted to sell securities in any offering to an account over which it exercises discretionary authority without the prior specific written approval of the account holder.

Considerations Relating to the Securities

There are a number of considerations that you should take into account prior to investing in the securities. Please read "Considerations Relating to Floating Rate Debt Securities", "Considerations Relating to Securities Issued in Bearer Form", "Considerations Relating to Indexed Securities" and "Considerations Relating to Securities Denominated or Payable in or Linked to a Non-U.S. Dollar Currency" for more information.

For a discussion of important business and financial risks relating to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., please see "Risk Factors" in Part I, Item 1A of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010, which is incorporated in this prospectus by reference (and in any of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. annual or quarterly reports for a subsequent fiscal period that are so incorporated).

USE OF PROCEEDS

We will lend the net proceeds from sales of the securities to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and/or its subsidiaries. Goldman Sachs expects to use the proceeds from such loans to provide additional funds for its operations and for other general corporate purposes.

DESCRIPTION OF DEBT SECURITIES WE MAY OFFER

Please note that in this section entitled "Description of Debt Securities We May Offer", references to "we", "our" and "us" refer only to GS Finance Corp. and not to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., and references to "The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc." refer only to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and not to its consolidated subsidiaries. Also, in this section, references to "holders" mean those who own debt securities registered in their own names, on the books that we or the trustee maintain for this purpose, and not those who own beneficial interests in debt securities registered in street name or in debt securities issued in book-entry form through one or more depositaries. Owners of beneficial interests in the debt securities should read the section below entitled "Legal Ownership and Book-Entry Issuance".

Debt Securities May Be Senior or Subordinated

We may issue from time to time senior or subordinated debt securities. Neither the senior debt securities nor the subordinated debt securities will be secured by any of our property or assets or property or assets of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. or its subsidiaries. Thus, by owning a debt security, you are one of our unsecured creditors.

The senior debt securities and, in the case of senior debt securities in bearer form, any related interest coupons, will constitute part of our senior debt, will be issued under either of the senior debt indentures (as described in "Description of Debt Securities We May Offer — The Senior Debt Indentures and the Subordinated Debt Indenture"), and will rank equally with all of our other unsecured and unsubordinated debt.

The subordinated debt securities and, in the case of subordinated debt securities in bearer form, any related interest coupons, will constitute part of our subordinated debt, will be issued under the subordinated debt indenture described below and will be subordinate in right of payment to all of our "senior indebtedness", as defined in the subordinated debt indenture. The prospectus supplement for any series of subordinated debt securities or the information incorporated in this prospectus by reference will indicate the approximate amount of senior indebtedness outstanding as of the end of our most recent fiscal quarter.

The two senior debt indentures do not, and the subordinated debt indenture will not, limit our ability to incur additional senior indebtedness.

When we refer to "debt securities" in this prospectus, we mean both the senior debt securities and the subordinated debt securities, unless the context requires otherwise.

The Senior Debt Indentures and the Subordinated Debt Indenture

The senior debt securities and the subordinated debt securities are each governed by a document called an "indenture". The applicable prospectus supplement will tell you whether the senior debt securities to be offered and sold will be governed by the Senior Debt Indenture, dated as of December 4, 2007, among us, The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., as guarantor, and The Bank of New York Mellon (formerly known as The Bank of New York), as trustee, which we refer to as the "2007 GSFC indenture", or the Senior Debt Indenture, dated as of October 10, 2008, among us, The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., as guarantor, and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee, which we refer to as the "2008 GSFC indenture". We refer to the 2007 GSFC indenture and the 2008 GSFC indenture together as the "senior debt indentures". At a later date, we may enter into a supplemental indenture with The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., as guarantor, and a bank, trust company or other financial institution (which may include The Bank of New York Mellon), as trustee, which will modify the 2008 GSFC indenture to provide for the issuance of subordinated debt securities of GSFC.

Subordinated debt securities will be governed by the 2008 GSFC indenture, as supplemented by the supplemental indenture, which we refer to together as the "subordinated debt indenture". We refer to the senior debt indentures and the subordinated debt indenture together as the "debt indentures". We will file the subordinated debt indenture, when executed, with the SEC as an exhibit to an amendment to the registration statement of which this prospectus is a part. See "Available Information" above for information on how to obtain a copy of the subordinated debt indenture when it is filed. The debt indentures will be substantially identical, except for the covenant of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. described below under "— Restriction on Liens", which will be included only in the senior debt indentures, the provisions relating to subordination, which will be included only in the subordinated debt indenture, the provisions relating to "tranches" of securities, which are included only in the 2007 GSFC indenture, and certain provisions described below under "Modification of the Debt Indentures and Waiver of Covenants", which vary substantially between the two senior debt indentures.

The trustee under each senior debt indenture has, and under the subordinated debt indenture will have, two main roles:

- First, the trustee can enforce your rights against us or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. if we or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. defaults. There are some limitations on the extent to which the trustee acts on your behalf, which we describe below under "— Default, Remedies and Waiver of Default".
- · Second, the trustee performs administrative duties for us, such as sending you interest payments and notices.

See "- Our Relationship With the Trustee" below for more information about the trustee.

When we refer to the "indenture" or the "trustee" with respect to any debt securities, we mean the debt indenture under which those debt securities are issued and the trustee under that debt indenture.

We May Issue Many Debt Securities or Series of Debt Securities

We may issue many distinct debt securities or series of debt securities under any of our three debt indentures. This section summarizes terms of the debt securities that apply generally to all debt securities and series of debt securities. The provisions of each debt indenture allow us not only to issue debt securities with terms different from those of debt securities previously issued under that debt indenture, but also to "reopen" previously issued debt securities and issue additional debt securities as the same series, with the same CUSIP number, stated maturity, interest payment dates, if any, and other terms, except for the date of issuance and issue price. We will describe the specific terms of your debt securities in the applicable prospectus supplement accompanying this prospectus. Those terms may vary from the terms described here.

Under the 2007 GSFC indenture, we refer to each distinct debt security as a "tranche", each tranche comprising a portion (or, if there is only one tranche, all) of the series to which such tranche belongs. A "tranche" under the 2007 GSFC indenture means all securities that have the same CUSIP number, stated maturity, interest payment dates, if any, and other terms, except for the date of issuance and issue price, or as may otherwise be specified in your prospectus supplement. We will determine whether a series of senior debt securities issued under the 2007 GSFC indenture is to be issued in multiple tranches at the time the series is created and, if it is, we will determine which securities will be in each tranche at the time the tranche is issued. Therefore, when we refer to "debt securities" in this prospectus, we mean the applicable tranche or tranches of senior debt securities if such debt securities are issued under the 2007 GSFC indenture or the particular debt securities or series of debt securities if such debt securities are issued under the 2008 GSFC indenture or the subordinated debt indenture, unless the context requires otherwise.

As you read this section, please remember that the specific terms of your debt security as described in your prospectus supplement will supplement and, if applicable, may modify or replace the general terms described in this section. If there are any differences between your prospectus supplement and this prospectus, your prospectus supplement will control. Thus, the statements we make in this section may not apply to your debt security.

When we refer to "debt securities" or a "series of debt securities", we mean, respectively, debt securities or a series of debt securities issued under the applicable debt indenture. When we refer to your prospectus supplement, we mean the prospectus supplement describing the specific terms of the debt security you purchase. The terms used in your prospectus supplement will have the meanings described in this prospectus, unless otherwise specified.

Amounts That We May Issue

None of the debt indentures limits the aggregate amount of debt securities that we may issue or the number of series or the aggregate amount of any particular series of debt securities. We may issue debt securities and other securities at any time without your consent and without notifying you.

The debt indentures and the debt securities do not limit our ability to incur other indebtedness or to issue other securities. Also, we are not subject to financial or similar restrictions by the terms of the debt securities, except for The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. as described below under "— Restriction on Liens".

Principal Amount, Stated Maturity and Maturity

Unless otherwise stated, the principal amount of a debt security means the principal amount payable at its stated maturity, unless such amount is not determinable, in which case the principal amount of a debt security is its face amount. Any debt securities owned by us, The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. or any of our other affiliates are not deemed to be outstanding.

The term "stated maturity" with respect to any debt security means the day on which the principal amount of your debt security is scheduled to become due. The principal of your debt security may become due sooner, by reason of redemption or acceleration after a default or otherwise in accordance with the terms of your debt security. The day on which the principal of your debt security actually becomes due, whether at the stated maturity or otherwise, is called the "maturity" of the principal.

We also use the terms "stated maturity" and "maturity" to refer to the days when other payments become due. For example, we may refer to a regular interest payment date when an installment of interest is scheduled to become due as the "stated maturity" of that installment. When we refer to the "stated maturity" or the "maturity" of a debt security without specifying a particular payment, we mean the stated maturity or maturity, as the case may be, of the principal.

This Section Is Only a Summary

The debt indentures and their associated documents, including your debt security, contain the full legal text of the matters described in this section and your prospectus supplement. We have filed copies of the senior debt indentures, and will file a copy of the subordinated debt indenture, when executed, with the SEC as exhibits to our registration statement, of which this prospectus is a part. See "Available Information" above for information on how to obtain copies of such debt indentures.

This section and your prospectus supplement summarize all the material terms of the debt indentures, where applicable, and your debt security. They do not, however, describe every aspect of the debt indentures and your debt security. For example, in this section and your prospectus supplement, we use terms that have been given special meaning in the debt indentures, but we describe the meaning for only the more important of those terms. Your prospectus supplement will have a more detailed description of the specific terms of your debt security.

Governing Law

The senior debt indentures are, and the subordinated debt indenture and the debt securities will be, governed by New York law.

Currency of Debt Securities

Amounts that become due and payable on your debt security in cash will be payable in a currency, composite currency, basket of currencies or currency unit or units specified in your prospectus supplement. We refer to this currency, composite currency, basket of currencies or currency unit or units as a "specified currency". The specified currency for your debt security will be U.S. dollars, unless your prospectus supplement states otherwise. Some debt securities may have different specified currencies for principal and interest. You will have to pay for your debt securities by delivering the requisite amount of the specified currency for the principal to Goldman, Sachs & Co. or another firm that we name in your prospectus supplement, unless other arrangements have been made between you and us or you and Goldman, Sachs & Co. We will make payments on your debt securities in the specified currency, except as described below in "— Payment Mechanics for Debt Securities". See "Considerations Relating to Securities Denominated or Payable in or Linked to a Non-U.S. Dollar Currency" below for more information about risks of investing in debt securities of this kind.

Form of Debt Securities

We will issue each debt security in global — *i.e.*, book-entry — form only, unless we specify otherwise in the applicable prospectus supplement. Debt securities in book-entry form will be represented by a global security registered in the name of a depositary, which will be the holder of all the debt securities represented by the global security. Those who own beneficial interests in a global debt security will do so through participants in the depositary's securities clearing system, and the rights of these indirect owners will be governed solely by the applicable procedures of the depositary and its participants. We describe book-entry securities below under "Legal Ownership and Book-Entry Issuance".

In addition, we will generally issue each debt security in registered form, without coupons, unless we specify otherwise in the applicable prospectus supplement. If we issue a debt security in bearer form, the provisions described below under "Considerations Relating to Securities Issued in Bearer Form" would apply to that security. As we note in that section, some of the features of the debt securities that we describe in this prospectus may not apply to bearer debt securities.

Types of Debt Securities

We may issue any of the three types of senior debt securities or subordinated debt securities described below. A debt security may have elements of each of the three types of debt securities described below. For example, a debt security may bear interest at a fixed rate for some periods and at a floating rate in others. Similarly, a debt security may provide for a payment of principal at maturity linked to an index and also bear interest at a fixed or floating rate.

Fixed Rate Debt Securities

A debt security of this type will bear interest at a fixed rate described in the applicable prospectus supplement. This type includes zero coupon debt securities, which bear no interest and are instead issued at a price lower than the principal amount. See "— Original Issue Discount Debt Securities" below for more information about zero coupon and other original issue discount debt securities.

Each fixed rate debt security, except any zero coupon debt security, will bear interest from its original issue date or from the most recent date to which interest on the debt security has been paid or made available for payment. Interest will accrue on the principal of a fixed rate debt security at the fixed rate per annum stated in the applicable prospectus supplement, until the principal is paid or made available for payment. Each payment of interest due on an interest payment date or the maturity will

include interest accrued from and including the last date to which interest has been paid, or made available for payment, or from the issue date if none has been paid or made available for payment, to but excluding the next interest payment date or the maturity. We will compute interest on fixed rate debt securities on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months (30/360 (ISDA) day count convention), unless your prospectus supplement provides that we will compute interest on a different basis. We will pay interest on each interest payment date and at maturity as described below under "— Payment Mechanics for Debt Securities".

If your debt security is a zero coupon debt security, the applicable prospectus supplement may specify the original issue discount and the information necessary to determine the accreted value. The accreted value will be (1) as of any date prior to the stated maturity, an amount equal to the sum of (A) the original issue price of your debt security and (B) the portion of the excess of the principal amount of your debt security over the original issue price that shall have been accreted from the original issue price on a daily basis and compounded annually on a date specified in the applicable prospectus supplement, up to and including the stated maturity, at a rate that will be specified in the applicable prospectus supplement from the original issue date, computed on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day calendar months; and (2) as of any date on or after the stated maturity, the principal amount of your debt security.

Floating Rate Debt Securities

A debt security of this type will bear interest at rates that are determined by reference to an interest rate formula. In some cases, the rates may also be adjusted by adding or subtracting a spread or multiplying by a spread multiplier and may be subject to a minimum rate or a maximum rate. If your debt security is a floating rate debt security, the formula and any adjustments that apply to the interest rate will be specified in your prospectus supplement.

Each floating rate debt security will bear interest from its original issue date or from the most recent date to which interest on the debt security has been paid or made available for payment. Interest will accrue on the principal of a floating rate debt security at a rate per annum determined according to the interest rate formula stated in the applicable prospectus supplement, until the principal is paid or made available for payment. We will pay interest on each interest payment date and at maturity as described below under "— Payment Mechanics for Debt Securities".

Calculation Agent. Calculations relating to floating rate debt securities will be made by the calculation agent, an institution that we appoint as our agent for this purpose. That institution may include any affiliate of ours, such as Goldman, Sachs & Co. The prospectus supplement for a particular floating rate debt security will name the institution that we have appointed to act as the calculation agent for that debt security as of its original issue date. Unless otherwise specified in the applicable prospectus supplement, we have initially appointed Goldman, Sachs & Co. as calculation agent for all the floating rate debt securities. We may appoint a different institution to serve as calculation agent from time to time after the original issue date of the debt security without your consent and without notifying you of the change. Absent manifest error, all determinations of the calculation agent will be final and binding on you and us, without any liability on the part of the calculation agent.

Calculation of Interest. For each floating rate debt security, the calculation agent will determine, on the corresponding interest calculation or interest determination date, as described in the applicable prospectus supplement, the interest rate that takes effect on each interest reset date. In addition, the calculation agent will calculate the amount of interest that has accrued during each interest period — i.e., the period from and including an interest payment date (or, with respect to the initial interest period, the original issue date) to but excluding the next succeeding interest payment date. For each interest period, the calculation agent will calculate the amount of accrued interest by multiplying the face or other specified amount of the floating rate debt security by an accrued interest factor for the interest period. Unless we specify otherwise in the applicable prospectus supplement, this

factor will be equal to the number of days in the applicable interest period divided by 360 (Actual/360 (ISDA) day count convention).

Upon the request of the holder of any floating rate debt security, the calculation agent will provide for that debt security the interest rate then in effect — and, if determined, the interest rate that will become effective on the next interest reset date. The calculation agent's determination of any interest rate, and its calculation of the amount of interest for any interest period, will be final and binding in the absence of manifest error.

All percentages resulting from any calculation relating to any debt security will be rounded upward or downward, as appropriate, to the next higher or lower one hundred-thousandth of a percentage point, e.g., 9.876541% (or .09876541) being rounded down to 9.87654% (or .0987654) and 9.876545% (or .09876545) being rounded up to 9.87655% (or .0987655). All amounts used in or resulting from any calculation relating to a floating rate debt security will be rounded upward or downward, as appropriate, to the nearest cent, in the case of U.S. dollars, or to the nearest corresponding hundredth of a unit, in the case of a currency other than U.S. dollars, with one-half cent or one-half of a corresponding hundredth of a unit or more being rounded upward.

In determining the base rate that applies to a floating rate debt security during a particular interest period, the calculation agent may obtain rate quotes from various banks or dealers active in the relevant market, as described in the applicable prospectus supplement. Those reference banks and dealers may include the calculation agent itself and its affiliates, as well as any underwriter, dealer or agent participating in the distribution of the relevant floating rate debt securities and its affiliates, and they may include affiliates of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.

Indexed Debt Securities

A debt security of this type provides that the principal amount payable at its maturity, and/or the amount of interest payable on an interest payment date, will be determined by reference to:

- · securities of one or more issuers;
- one or more currencies;
- one or more commodities:
- · any other financial, economic or other measure or instrument, including the occurrence or non-occurrence of any event or circumstance;
- · one or more indices; and/or
- · one or more baskets of the items described above.

Any indexed securities that we issue will be cash settled only.

An indexed debt security may bear interest at a fixed or floating rate, if specified in your prospectus supplement. Unless otherwise indicated in your prospectus supplement, indexed debt securities that bear interest at a fixed rate will bear interest as described above under "— Fixed Rate Debt Securities" and indexed debt securities that bear interest at a floating rate will bear interest as described above under "— Floating Rate Debt Securities".

If you purchase an indexed debt security, your prospectus supplement will include information about the relevant index or indices, about how amounts that are to become payable will be determined by reference to the price or value of that index or indices and about the terms on which the security may be settled. Your prospectus supplement will also identify the calculation agent that will calculate the amounts payable with respect to the indexed debt security and will have sole discretion in doing so. The calculation agent may be Goldman, Sachs & Co. or another of our affiliates. See "Considerations Relating to Indexed Securities" for more information about risks of investing in debt securities of this type.

Original Issue Discount Debt Securities

A fixed rate debt security, a floating rate debt security or an indexed debt security may be an original issue discount debt security. A debt security of this type is issued at a price lower than its principal amount and may provide that, upon redemption or acceleration of its maturity, an amount less than its principal amount may be payable. An original issue discount debt security may be a zero coupon debt security. A debt security issued at a discount to its principal may, for U.S. federal income tax purposes, be considered an original issue discount debt security, regardless of the amount payable upon redemption or acceleration of maturity. See "United States Taxation — Taxation of Debt Securities — United States Holders — Original Issue Discount" below for a brief description of the U.S. federal income tax consequences of owning an original issue discount debt security.

Information in Your Prospectus Supplement

Your prospectus supplement will describe the specific terms of your debt security, which will include some or all of the following:

- whether it is a senior debt security or a subordinated debt security and, if it is a senior debt security, under which senior debt indenture it will be issued:
- the aggregate principal amount of your debt security or the debt securities of the same series, as applicable;
- the stated maturity;
- the specified currency or currencies for principal and interest and, if the specified currency is not U.S. dollars, certain other terms relating to your debt security;
- · the issue price at which we originally issue your debt security, expressed as a percentage of the principal amount, and the original issue date;
- · whether your debt security is a fixed rate debt security, a floating rate debt security or an indexed debt security or any combination thereof;
- if your debt security is a fixed rate debt security, a rate per annum at which your debt security will bear interest, if any, and the interest payment dates;
- if your debt security is a floating rate debt security, the interest rate basis; any applicable index currency or index maturity, spread or spread multiplier or initial base rate, maximum rate or minimum rate; the interest reset, determination, calculation and payment dates; the day count convention used to calculate interest payments for any period; the business day convention; and the calculation agent;
- if your debt security is an indexed debt security, the principal amount, if any, we will pay you at maturity, the amount of interest, if any, we will pay you on an interest payment date or the formula we will use to calculate these amounts, if any, and the terms on which your debt security will be paid:
- · if your debt security is also an original issue discount debt security, the yield to maturity;
- if applicable, the circumstances under which your debt security may be redeemed at our option or repaid at the holder's option before the stated maturity, including any redemption commencement date, repayment date(s), redemption price(s) and redemption period(s);

- the authorized denominations, if other than \$1,000 and integral multiples of \$1,000 in excess thereof;
- the depositary for your debt security, if other than DTC, and any circumstances under which the holder may request securities in non-global form, if we choose not to issue your debt security in book-entry form only;
- if your debt security will be issued in bearer form, any special provisions relating to bearer securities that are not addressed in this prospectus;
- if applicable, the circumstances under which we will pay additional amounts on any debt securities held by a person who is not a United States person for tax purposes and under which we can redeem the debt securities if we have to pay additional amounts;
- the names and duties of any co-trustees, depositaries, authenticating agents, paying agents, transfer agents or registrars for your debt security, as applicable;
- any terms of guarantee of your debt security by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. that is different from or in addition to the description under "— Guarantee" below; and
- · any other terms of your debt security, which could be different from those described in this prospectus.

Market-Making Transactions. If you purchase your debt security — or any of our other securities we describe in this prospectus — in a market-making transaction, you will receive information about the issue price you pay and your trade and settlement dates in a separate confirmation of sale. A market-making transaction is one in which Goldman, Sachs & Co. or another of our affiliates resells a security that it has previously acquired from another holder. A market-making transaction in a particular security occurs after the original issuance and sale of the security. See "Plan of Distribution" below.

Redemption and Repayment

Unless otherwise indicated in your prospectus supplement, your debt security will not be entitled to the benefit of any sinking fund — that is, we or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. will not deposit money on a regular basis into any separate custodial account to repay your debt securities. In addition, we will not be entitled to redeem your debt security before its stated maturity unless your prospectus supplement specifies a redemption commencement date. You will not be entitled to require us to buy your debt security from you, before its stated maturity, unless your prospectus supplement specifies one or more repayment dates.

If your prospectus supplement specifies a redemption commencement date or a repayment date, it will also specify one or more redemption prices or repayment prices, which may be expressed as a percentage of the principal amount of your debt security. It may also specify one or more redemption periods during which the redemption prices relating to a redemption of debt securities during those periods will apply.

If your prospectus supplement specifies a redemption commencement date, your debt security will be redeemable at our option at any time on or after that date or at a specified time or times. If we redeem your debt security, we will do so at the specified redemption price, together with interest accrued to but excluding the redemption date. If different prices are specified for different redemption periods, the price we pay will be the price that applies to the redemption period during which your debt security is redeemed.

If your prospectus supplement specifies a repayment date, your debt security will be repayable at the holder's option on the specified repayment date at the specified repayment price, together with interest accrued to but excluding the repayment date.

If we exercise an option to redeem any debt security, we will give to the holder written notice of the principal amount of the debt security to be redeemed, not less than 30 days nor more than 60 days before the applicable redemption date. We will give the notice in the manner described below in "— Notices"

If a debt security represented by a global debt security is subject to repayment at the holder's option, the depositary or its nominee, as the holder, will be the only person that can exercise the right to repayment. Any indirect owners who own beneficial interests in the global debt security and wish to exercise a repayment right must give proper and timely instructions to their banks or brokers through which they hold their interests, requesting that they notify the depositary to exercise the repayment right on their behalf. Different firms have different deadlines for accepting instructions from their customers, and you should take care to act promptly enough to ensure that your request is given effect by the depositary before the applicable deadline for exercise.

Tax redemption. If your prospectus supplement specifies that we will pay additional amounts with respect to your debt securities, as described below under "— Payment of Additional Amounts", we will be entitled, at our option, to redeem the outstanding debt securities in whole and not in part if at any time we become obligated to pay additional amounts on your debt securities on the next date on which payments are made, but only if our obligation results from a change in the laws or regulations of any U.S. taxing authority (as defined below in "— Payment of Additional Amounts"), or from a change in any official interpretation or application of those laws or regulations, that becomes effective or is announced on or after the date of your prospectus supplement, unless another date is specified.

If we redeem your debt securities because we have become obligated to pay additional amounts, we will do so at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the debt securities redeemed *plus* accrued interest to the redemption date.

If we become entitled to redeem your debt securities because we have become obligated to pay additional amounts, we may do so at any time on a redemption date of our choice. However, we must give the holders of the debt securities being redeemed notice of the redemption not less than 30 days or more than 60 days before the redemption date and not more than 90 days before the next date on which we would be obligated to pay additional amounts. In addition, our obligation to pay additional amounts must remain in effect when we give the notice of redemption. We will give the notice in the manner described below under "— Notices".

Street name and other indirect owners should contact their banks or brokers for information about how to exercise a repayment right in a timely manner.

We, The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. or our other affiliates may purchase debt securities from investors who are willing to sell from time to time, either in the open market at prevailing prices or in private transactions at negotiated prices. Debt securities that we or they purchase may, at our discretion, be held, resold or canceled.

Mergers and Similar Transactions

If you are the holder of senior debt securities issued under the 2007 GSFC indenture, then all references to "series" under this subsection entitled "Mergers and Similar Transactions" shall also refer to any "tranche" with respect to your debt securities issued under the 2007 GSFC indenture.

We are, and The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. is, generally permitted to merge or consolidate with another corporation or other entity. We are, and The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. is, also permitted to sell our or its assets substantially as an entirety to another corporation or other entity. With regard to any series of debt securities, however, we or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. may not take any of these actions unless all the following conditions are met:

- If the successor entity in the transaction is not GS Finance Corp. or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., as the case may be, the successor entity must be organized as a corporation, partnership or trust and must expressly assume our or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s obligations under the debt securities of that series and the underlying debt indenture with respect to that series. The successor entity may be organized under the laws of any jurisdiction, whether in the United States or elsewhere.
- Immediately after the transaction, no default under the debt securities of that series or the related guarantees has occurred and is continuing. For this purpose, "default under the debt securities of that series or the related guarantees" means an event of default with respect to that series or the related guarantees or any event that would be an event of default with respect to that series or the related guarantees if the requirements for giving us or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. default notice and for our or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s default having to continue for a specific period of time were disregarded. We describe these matters below under "— Default, Remedies and Waiver of Default".

If the conditions described above are satisfied with respect to the debt securities of any series, neither we nor The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. will need to obtain the approval of the holders of those debt securities in order to merge or consolidate or to sell our or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s assets. Also, these conditions will apply only if we or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. wishes to merge or consolidate with another entity or sell our or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s assets substantially as an entirety to another entity. Neither we nor The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. will need to satisfy these conditions if we or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. enters into other types of transactions, including any transaction in which we or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. but in which we or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. but in which we or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. does not merge or consolidate and any transaction in which we or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. sells less than substantially all our or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s assets. While we are currently a wholly owned subsidiary of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., Inc., there is no requirement that we remain a subsidiary.

Also, if we or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. merges, consolidates or sells our or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s assets substantially as an entirety and the successor is a non-U.S. entity, neither we nor The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. nor any successor would have any obligation to compensate you for any resulting adverse tax consequences relating to your debt securities.

Subordination Provisions

Holders of subordinated debt securities should recognize that contractual provisions in the subordinated debt indenture may prohibit us and The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. from making payments on those securities. Subordinated debt securities will be subordinate and junior in right of payment, to the extent and in the manner stated in the subordinated debt indenture, to all of our senior indebtedness, as will be defined in the subordinated debt indenture, including all debt securities we have issued and will issue under either of the senior debt indentures and all warrants that we will issue under the warrant indenture.

The subordinated debt indenture will define "senior indebtedness" as all indebtedness and obligations of, or guaranteed or assumed by, us or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. for borrowed money or evidenced by bonds, debentures, notes or other similar instruments, whether existing now or in the future, and all amendments, renewals, extensions, modifications and refundings of any indebtedness or obligations of that kind. Senior debt excludes the subordinated debt securities and any other indebtedness or obligations specifically designated as being subordinate, or not superior, in right of payment to the subordinated debt securities.

We may modify the subordination provisions, including the definition of senior indebtedness, with respect to one or more series of subordinated debt securities. For a description of these modifications, see the applicable prospectus supplement.

The subordinated debt indenture will provide that, unless all principal of and any premium or interest on the senior indebtedness of us or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. has been paid in full, no payment or other distribution by us or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. as the case may be, may be made in respect of any subordinated debt securities in the following circumstances:

- in the event of any insolvency or bankruptcy proceedings, or any receivership, liquidation, reorganization, assignment for creditors or other similar proceedings or events involving us or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. or our or its assets;
- (a) in the event and during the continuation of any default in the payment of principal, premium or interest on any senior indebtedness of us or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. beyond any applicable grace period or (b) in the event that any event of default with respect to any such senior indebtedness has occurred and is continuing, permitting the holders of that senior indebtedness (or a trustee) to accelerate the maturity of that senior indebtedness, whether or not the maturity is in fact accelerated (unless, in the case of (a) or (b), the payment default or event of default has been cured or waived or ceased to exist and any related acceleration has been rescinded) or (c) in the event that any judicial proceeding is pending with respect to a payment default or event of default described in (a) or (b); or
- in the event that any of our subordinated debt securities or that of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. has been declared due and payable before their stated maturity.

If the trustee under the subordinated debt indenture or any holders of the subordinated debt securities receive any payment or distribution that is prohibited under the subordination provisions, then the trustee or the holders will have to repay that money to the holders of the senior indebtedness.

Even if the subordination provisions will prevent us or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. from making any payment when due on the subordinated debt securities of any series or related guarantees, we or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., as the case may be, will be in default on our or its obligations under that series if we or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. do not make the payment when due. This means that the trustee under the subordinated debt indenture and the holders of that series can take action against us, but they will not receive any money until the claims of the holders of senior indebtedness have been fully satisfied.

The subordinated debt indenture will allow the holders of senior indebtedness to obtain a court order requiring us or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and any holder of subordinated debt securities to comply with the subordination provisions.

Restriction on Liens

If you are the holder of senior debt securities issued under the 2007 GSFC indenture, then all references to "series" under this subsection entitled "Restriction on Liens" shall also refer to any "tranche" with respect to your debt securities issued under the 2007 GSFC indenture.

In each of the senior debt indentures, The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. promises, with respect to each series of senior debt securities, not to create, assume, incur or guarantee any debt for borrowed money that is secured by a lien on the voting or profit participating equity ownership interests that The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. or any of its subsidiaries own in Goldman, Sachs & Co., or in any subsidiary of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. that beneficially owns or holds, directly or indirectly, those interests in Goldman, Sachs & Co., unless The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. also secures the senior debt securities of that series on an equal or priority basis with the other secured debt. The promise of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., however, is subject to an important exception: it may secure debt for borrowed money with liens on those interests without securing the senior debt securities of any series if its board of directors determines that the liens do not materially detract from or interfere with the value or control of those interests, as of the date of the determination.

The subordinated debt indenture will not include the promise described in the preceding paragraph.

Except as noted above, none of the debt indentures restricts The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s ability to put liens on its interests in its subsidiaries other than Goldman, Sachs & Co., nor do the debt indentures restrict The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s ability to sell or otherwise dispose of its interests in any of its subsidiaries, including Goldman, Sachs & Co. In addition, the restriction on liens in the senior debt indenture applies only to liens that secure debt for borrowed money. For example, liens imposed by operation of law, such as liens to secure statutory obligations for taxes or workers' compensation benefits, or liens The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. creates to secure obligations to pay legal judgments or surety bonds, would not be covered by this restriction.

Defeasance and Covenant Defeasance

Unless we say otherwise in the applicable prospectus supplement, the provisions for full defeasance and covenant defeasance described below apply to each senior and subordinated debt security and guarantee endorsed thereon. In general, we expect these provisions to apply to each debt security that has a specified currency of U.S. dollars and is not a floating rate or indexed debt security.

Full Defeasance. If there is a change in U.S. federal tax law, as described below, we and The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. can legally release ourselves from all payment and other obligations on any debt securities and guarantees endorsed on such debt securities. This is called full defeasance. For us and The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. to do so, each of the following must occur:

- We or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. must deposit in trust for the benefit of all holders of those debt securities (and guarantees endorsed on such debt securities) money or a combination of money and U.S. government or U.S. government agency notes or bonds that will generate enough cash to make interest, principal and any other payments on those debt securities on their various due dates;
- There must be a change in current U.S. federal tax law or an Internal Revenue Service ruling that lets us or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.
 make the above deposit without causing the holders to be taxed on those debt securities any differently than if we or The Goldman Sachs
 Group, Inc. did not make the deposit and just repaid those debt securities ourselves or itself. Under current federal tax law, the deposit and our
 and The Goldman Sachs Group. Inc.'s legal

release from your debt security and guarantee on such debt security would be treated as though we and The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. took back your debt security and guarantee on such debt security and gave you your share of the cash and notes or bonds deposited in trust. In that event, you could recognize gain or loss on your debt security and guarantee on such debt security;

- We or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. must deliver to the trustee a legal opinion of our counsel confirming the tax law change described above: and
- · In the case of the subordinated debt securities, the following requirements must also be met:
 - No event or condition may exist that, under the provisions described under "— Subordination Provisions" above, would prevent us or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. from making payments of principal, premium or interest on those subordinated debt securities on the date of the deposit referred to above or during the 90 days after that date; and
 - We or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. must deliver to the trustee an opinion of counsel to the effect that (a) the trust funds will not be subject to any rights of holders of senior indebtedness and (b) after the 90-day period referred to above, the trust funds will not be subject to any applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or similar laws affecting creditors' rights generally, except that if a court were to rule under any of those laws in any case or proceeding that the trust funds remained our property, then the relevant trustee and the holders of the subordinated debt securities would be entitled to some enumerated rights as secured creditors in the trust funds.

If we or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. ever fully defeased your debt security and guarantee on such debt security, you would have to rely solely on the trust deposit for payments on your debt security and guarantee on such debt security. You would not be able to look to us or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. for payment in the event of any shortfall.

Covenant Defeasance. Under current U.S. federal tax law, we can make the same type of deposit described above and be released from the restriction on liens (in case of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.) described under "— Restriction on Liens" above and any other restrictive covenants relating to your debt security and guarantee on such debt security that may be described in your prospectus supplement. This is called covenant defeasance. In that event, you would lose the protection of those restrictive covenants. In order to achieve covenant defeasance for any debt securities and guaranteed endorsed on such debt securities, we or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. must do both of the following:

- We or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. must deposit in trust for the benefit of the holders of those debt securities (and guarantees endorsed on such debt securities) money or a combination of money and U.S. government or U.S. government agency notes or bonds that will generate enough cash to make interest, principal and any other payments on those debt securities on their various due dates; and
- We or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. must deliver to the trustee a legal opinion of our counsel confirming that under current U.S. federal income tax law we may make the above deposit without causing the holders to be taxed on those debt securities any differently than if we or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. did not make the deposit and just repaid those debt securities ourselves.

In addition, in order to achieve covenant defeasance for any subordinated debt securities that have the benefit of any restrictive covenants, both conditions described in the last bullet point under "— Full Defeasance" above must be satisfied. Subordinated debt securities will not have the benefit of any restrictive covenants unless the applicable prospectus supplement specifically provides that they do.

If we or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. accomplish covenant defeasance with regard to your debt security and the guarantee on such debt security, the following provisions of the applicable debt indenture and your debt security and guarantee on such debt security would no longer apply:

- If your debt security is a senior debt security, the promise by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. not to create liens on its voting or profit
 participating equity ownership interests in Goldman, Sachs & Co. described above under "— Restriction on Liens";
- · Any additional covenants that your prospectus supplement may state are applicable to your debt security; and
- The events of default resulting from a breach of covenants, described below in the fourth bullet point under "— Default, Remedies and Waiver of Default Events of Default".

Any right we have to redeem will survive covenant defeasance with regard to those debt securities.

If we or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. accomplish covenant defeasance on your debt security and guarantee on such debt security, you can still look to us or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. for repayment of your debt security or guarantee on such debt security in the event of any shortfall in the trust deposit. You should note, however, that if one of the remaining events of default occurred, such as our or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s bankruptcy and your debt security became immediately due and payable, there may be a shortfall. Depending on the event causing the default, you may not be able to obtain payment of the shortfall.

Default, Remedies and Waiver of Default

You will have special rights if an event of default with respect to your series (or your tranche, in the case of senior debt securities issued under the 2007 GSFC indenture) of debt securities occurs and is continuing, as described in this subsection.

Events of Default

If you are the holder of senior debt securities issued under the 2007 GSFC indenture, then all references to "series" under this subsection entitled "Events of Default" shall instead mean "tranche" with respect to your debt securities issued under the 2007 GSFC indenture.

Unless your prospectus supplement says otherwise, when we refer to an event of default with respect to any series of debt securities, we mean any of the following:

- · We or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. does not pay the principal or any premium on any debt security of that series on the due date;
- · We or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. does not pay interest on any debt security of that series within 30 days after the due date;
- We or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. does not deposit a sinking fund payment with regard to any debt security of that series on the due date, but only if the payment is required under provisions described in the applicable prospectus supplement;
- The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. remains in breach of its covenant described above under "— Restriction on Liens", or we remain in breach of
 any other covenant we or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. makes in the debt indenture for the benefit of the relevant series, for 60 days after we
 and The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. receive a notice of default stating that we or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. is in breach and requiring us
 or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. to remedy the breach, as applicable. The notice must be sent by the trustee or the holders of at least 10% in
 principal amount of the relevant series of debt securities then outstanding;

- We or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. files for bankruptcy or other events of bankruptcy, insolvency or reorganization relating to us or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. occur. Those events must arise under U.S. federal or state law, unless we or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. merges, consolidates or sells our or its assets as described above and the successor firm is a non-U.S. entity. If that happens, then those events must arise under U.S. federal or state law or the law of the jurisdiction in which the successor firm is legally organized;
- Except as provided by the relevant indenture, the debt security of that series and the related guarantee, the guarantee ceases to be effective, or a court finds the guarantee to be unenforceable or invalid, or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. denies its obligations as the guarantor; or
- · If the applicable prospectus supplement states that any additional event of default applies to the series, that event of default occurs.

We may change, eliminate, or add to the events of default with respect to any particular series or any particular debt security or debt securities within a series, as indicated in the applicable prospectus supplement.

Remedies If an Event of Default Occurs

If you are the holder of a subordinated debt security, all the remedies available upon the occurrence of an event of default under the subordinated debt indenture will be subject to the restrictions on the subordinated debt securities described above under "— Subordination Provisions".

If you are the holder of senior debt securities issued under the 2007 GSFC indenture, then all references to "series" under this subsection entitled "Remedies If an Event of Default Occurs" shall instead mean "tranche" with respect to your debt securities issued under the 2007 GSFC indenture.

Except as otherwise specified in the applicable prospectus supplement, if an event of default has occurred with respect to any series of debt securities and has not been cured or waived, the trustee or the holders of not less than 25% in principal amount of all debt securities of that series then outstanding may declare the entire principal amount of the debt securities of that series to be due immediately. Except as otherwise specified in the applicable prospectus supplement, if the event of default occurs because of events in bankruptcy, insolvency or reorganization relating to us or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., the entire principal amount of the debt securities of that series will be automatically accelerated, without any action by the trustee or any holder.

Each of the situations described above is called an acceleration of the stated maturity of the affected series of debt securities. Except as otherwise specified in the applicable prospectus supplement, if the stated maturity of any series is accelerated and a judgment for payment has not yet been obtained, the holders of a majority in principal amount of the debt securities of that series may cancel the acceleration for the entire series.

If an event of default occurs, the trustee will have special duties. In that situation, the trustee will be obligated to use those of its rights and powers under the relevant debt indenture, and to use the same degree of care and skill in doing so, that a prudent person would use in that situation in conducting his or her own affairs.

Except as described in the prior paragraph, the trustee is not required to take any action under the relevant debt indenture at the request of any holders unless the holders offer the trustee reasonable protection from expenses and liability. This is called an indemnity. If the trustee is provided with an indemnity reasonably satisfactory to it, the holders of a majority in principal amount of all debt securities of the relevant series may direct the time, method and place of conducting any lawsuit or other formal legal action seeking any remedy available to the trustee with respect to that series. These majority holders may also direct the trustee in performing any other action under the applicable debt indenture with respect to the debt securities of that series.

Before you bypass the trustee and bring your own lawsuit or other formal legal action or take other steps to enforce your rights or protect your interests relating to any debt security, all of the following must occur:

- The holder of your debt security must give the trustee written notice that an event of default has occurred, and the event of default must not
 have been cured or waived;
- The holders of not less than 25% in principal amount of all debt securities of your series must make a written request that the trustee take action because of the default, and they or other holders must offer to the trustee indemnity reasonably satisfactory to the trustee against the cost and other liabilities of taking that action:
- · The trustee must not have taken action for 60 days after the above steps have been taken; and
- During those 60 days, the holders of a majority in principal amount of the debt securities of your series must not have given the trustee directions that are inconsistent with the written request of the holders of not less than 25% in principal amount of the debt securities of your series.

You are entitled at any time, however, to bring a lawsuit for the payment of money due on your debt security on or after its stated maturity (or, if your debt security is redeemable, on or after its redemption date).

Waiver of Default

The holders of not less than a majority in principal amount of the debt securities of any series (or of any tranche, in the case of senior debt securities issued under the 2007 GSFC indenture) may waive a default for all debt securities of that series (or of that tranche, in the case of senior debt securities issued under the 2007 GSFC indenture). If this happens, the default will be treated as if it has not occurred. No one can waive a payment default on your debt security, however, without the approval of the particular holder of that debt security.

We and The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. Will Give the Trustee Information About Defaults Annually

We and The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. will furnish to each trustee every year a written statement, respectively, of two of our or its officers certifying that to their knowledge we or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., as the case may be, is in compliance with the applicable debt indenture and the debt securities issued under it, or else specifying any default under the relevant debt indenture.

Book-entry and other indirect owners should consult their banks or brokers for information on how to give notice or direction to or make a request of the trustee and how to declare or cancel an acceleration of the stated maturity. Book-entry and other indirect owners are described below under "Legal Ownership and Book-Entry Issuance".

Modification of the Debt Indentures and Waiver of Covenants

There are four types of changes we and The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. can make to the debt indentures and the debt securities or series of debt securities and related guarantees issued under a particular debt indenture.

Changes Requiring Each Holder's Approval

First, there are changes that cannot be made without the approval of the holder of each debt security affected by the change under the applicable debt indenture. Here is a list of those types of changes:

- change the stated maturity for any principal or interest payment on a debt security;
- reduce the principal amount, the amount payable on acceleration of the stated maturity after a default, the interest rate or the redemption price for a debt security;
- · permit redemption of a debt security if not previously permitted;
- · impair any right a holder may have to require repayment of its debt security;
- change the currency of any payment on a debt security;
- · change the place of payment on a debt security;
- impair a holder's right to sue for payment of any amount due on its debt security;
- reduce the percentage in principal amount of the debt securities of any one or more affected series (or affected tranche, in the case of senior debt securities issued under the 2007 GSFC indenture), taken separately or together, as applicable, and whether comprising the same or different series or less than all of the debt securities of a series, the approval of whose holders is needed to change the applicable debt indenture or those debt securities;
- reduce the percentage in principal amount of the debt securities of any one or more affected series (or affected tranche, in the case of senior debt securities issued under the 2007 GSFC indenture), taken separately or together, as applicable, and whether comprising the same or different series or less than all of the debt securities of a series, the consent of whose holders is needed to waive our compliance with the applicable debt indenture or to waive defaults; and
- change the provisions of the applicable debt indenture dealing with modification and waiver in any other respect, except to increase any required
 percentage referred to above or to add to the provisions that cannot be changed or waived without approval of the holder of each affected debt
 security.

Changes Not Requiring Approval

The second type of change does not require any approval by holders of the debt securities affected. These changes are limited to clarifications and changes that would not adversely affect any debt securities of any series in any material respect. Neither we nor The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. needs any approval to make changes that affect only debt securities to be issued under the applicable indenture after the changes take effect.

We and The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. may also make changes or obtain waivers that do not adversely affect a particular debt security, even if they affect other debt securities. In those cases, neither we nor The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. needs to obtain the approval of the holder of the unaffected debt security; we and The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. need only obtain any required approvals from the holders of the affected debt securities.

Modification of Subordination Provisions

The subordinated debt indenture will provide that neither we nor The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. may amend the subordinated debt indenture to alter the subordination of any outstanding subordinated debt securities without the written consent of each holder of the then outstanding senior indebtedness of us and The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. who would be adversely affected. In addition, the subordinated debt indenture will provide that neither we nor The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. may modify the subordination provisions of the subordinated debt indenture in a manner that would adversely affect the subordinated debt securities of any one or more series then outstanding in any material respect, without the consent of the holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of all affected series then outstanding, voting together as one class (and also of any affected series that by its terms is entitled to vote separately as a series, as described below).

Changes Requiring Majority Approval

Any other change to the 2007 GSFC indenture and the debt securities issued under that indenture would require the following approval:

- If the change affects only the debt securities of a particular tranche, it must be approved by the holders of a majority in principal amount of the
 debt securities of that tranche.
- If the change affects the debt securities of more than one tranche of debt securities, it must be approved by the holders of a majority in principal amount of all tranches affected by the change, with the debt securities of all the affected tranches voting together as one class for this purpose (and of any affected tranche that by its terms is entitled to vote separately as a tranche, as described below).

On the other hand, any other change to either the 2008 GSFC indenture or the subordinated debt indenture and the debt securities issued under either such debt indenture would require the following approval:

- If the change affects only particular debt securities within a series, it must be approved by the holders of a majority in principal amount of such particular debt securities.
- If the change affects multiple debt securities of one or more series, it must be approved by the holders of a majority in principal amount of all
 debt securities affected by the change, with all such affected debt securities voting together as one class for this purpose (and by the holders of
 a majority in principal amount of any affected debt securities that by their terms are entitled to vote separately as described below).

In each case, the required approval must be given by written consent.

This would mean that modification of terms with respect to certain debt securities of a series could be effectuated under any debt indenture without obtaining the consent of the holders of a majority in principal amount of other securities of such series that are not affected by such modification.

The same majority approval would be required for us to obtain a waiver of any of our covenants in any debt indenture. Our covenants include the promises we and The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. make about merging and, with respect to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., putting liens on our interests in Goldman, Sachs & Co., which we describe above under "— Mergers and Similar Transactions" and "— Restriction on Liens", and which, in the latter case, are only for the benefit of the holders of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s senior debt securities. If the holders approve a waiver of a covenant, neither we nor The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. will have to comply with it. The holders,

however, cannot approve a waiver of any provision in a particular debt security, or in the applicable debt indenture as it affects that debt security, that neither we nor The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. can change without the approval of the holder of that debt security as described above in "— Changes Requiring Each Holder's Approval", unless that holder approves the waiver.

Book-entry and other indirect owners should consult their banks or brokers for information on how approval may be granted or denied if we and The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. seek to change a debt indenture or any debt securities or request a waiver.

Special Rules for Action by Holders

When holders take any action under any debt indenture, such as giving a notice of default, declaring an acceleration, approving any change or waiver or giving the trustee an instruction, we will apply the following rules.

Only Outstanding Debt Securities Are Eligible

Only holders of outstanding debt securities or the outstanding debt securities of the applicable series, as applicable, will be eligible to participate in any action by holders of such debt securities or the debt securities of that series. Also, we will count only outstanding debt securities in determining whether the various percentage requirements for taking action have been met. For these purposes, a debt security will not be "outstanding" if:

- · it has been surrendered for cancellation;
- · we have deposited or set aside, in trust for its holder, money for its payment or redemption;
- we have fully defeased it as described above under "— Defeasance and Covenant Defeasance Full Defeasance"; or
- · we or one of our affiliates, such as Goldman, Sachs & Co., is the owner.

Special Class Voting Rights

With respect to the 2007 GSFC indenture, we may issue tranches of debt securities that are entitled, by their terms, to vote separately on matters (for example, modification or waiver of provisions in the 2007 GSFC indenture) that would otherwise require a vote of all affected tranches, voting together as a single class. Any such tranche would be entitled to vote together with all other affected tranches, voting together as one class, and would also be entitled to vote separately, as one tranche only. In some cases, other parties may be entitled to exercise these special voting rights on behalf of the holders of the relevant tranche. For tranches of debt securities that have these rights, the rights will be described in the applicable prospectus supplement. For tranches that do not have these special rights, voting will occur as described in the preceding section, but subject to any separate voting rights of any other tranches having special rights. We may issue tranches having these or other special voting rights without obtaining the consent of or giving notice to holders of outstanding tranches.

With respect to the 2008 GSFC indenture and the subordinated debt indenture, we may issue particular debt securities or a particular series of debt securities, as applicable, that are entitled, by their terms, to vote separately on matters (for example, modification or waiver of provisions in the applicable indenture) that would otherwise require a vote of all affected debt securities or all affected series voting together as a single class. Any such debt securities or series of debt securities would be entitled to vote together with all other affected debt securities or affected series voting together as one class, and would also be entitled to vote separately as one class only. In some cases, other parties may be entitled to exercise these special voting rights on behalf of the holders of the relevant debt

securities or the relevant series. For debt securities or series of debt securities that have these rights, the rights will be described in the applicable prospectus supplement. For debt securities or series of debt securities that do not have these special rights, voting will occur as described in the preceding section, but subject to any separate voting rights of any other debt securities or series of debt securities having special rights. We may issue series having these or other special voting rights without obtaining the consent of or giving notice to holders of outstanding debt securities or series.

Eligible Principal Amount of Some Debt Securities

In some situations, we may follow special rules in calculating the principal amount of debt securities that are to be treated as outstanding for the purposes described above. This may happen, for example, if the principal amount is payable in a non-U.S. dollar currency, increases over time or is not to be fixed until maturity.

For any debt security of the kind described below, we will decide how much principal amount to attribute to the debt security as follows:

- For an original issue discount debt security, we will use the principal amount that would be due and payable on the action date if the maturity of the debt security were accelerated to that date because of a default;
- For a debt security whose principal amount is not known, we will use any amount that we indicate in the prospectus supplement for that debt security. The principal amount of a debt security may not be known, for example, because it is based on an index that changes from time to time and the principal amount is not to be determined until a later date; or
- For debt securities with a principal amount denominated in one or more non-U.S. dollar currencies or currency units, we will use the U.S. dollar equivalent, which we will determine.

Determining Record Dates for Action by Holders

We and The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. will generally be entitled to set any day as a record date for the purpose of determining the holders that are entitled to take action under a particular debt indenture. In certain limited circumstances, only the trustee will be entitled to set a record date for action by holders. If we, The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. or the trustee set a record date for an approval or other action to be taken by holders, that vote or action may be taken only by persons or entities who are holders on the record date and must be taken during the period that we specify for this purpose, or that the trustee specifies if it sets the record date. We, The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. or the trustee, as applicable, may shorten or lengthen this period from time to time. This period, however, may not extend beyond the 180th day after the record date for the action. In addition, record dates for any global debt security may be set in accordance with procedures established by the depositary from time to time. Accordingly, record dates for global debt securities may differ from those for other debt securities.

Form, Exchange and Transfer of Debt Securities

If any debt securities cease to be issued in registered global form, they will be issued:

- · only in fully registered form;
- · without interest coupons; and
- · unless we indicate otherwise in your prospectus supplement, in denominations of \$1,000 and integral multiples of \$1,000 in excess thereof.

Holders may exchange their debt securities for debt securities of smaller denominations or combined into fewer debt securities of larger denominations, as long as the total principal amount is not changed. You may not exchange your debt securities for securities of a different series (or tranche, in the case of senior debt securities issued under the 2007 GSFC indenture) or having different terms, unless your prospectus supplement says you may.

Holders may exchange or transfer their debt securities at the office of the trustee. They may also replace lost, stolen, destroyed or mutilated debt securities at that office. We have appointed the trustee to act as our agent for registering senior debt securities in the names of holders and transferring and replacing debt securities and will do the same with respect to subordinated debt securities. We may appoint another entity to perform these functions or perform them ourselves.

Holders will not be required to pay a service charge to transfer or exchange their debt securities, but they may be required to pay for any tax or other governmental charge associated with the exchange or transfer. The transfer or exchange, and any replacement, will be made only if our transfer agent is satisfied with the holder's proof of legal ownership. The transfer agent may require an indemnity before replacing any debt securities.

If we have designated additional transfer agents for your debt security, they will be named in your prospectus supplement. We may appoint additional transfer agents or cancel the appointment of any particular transfer agent. We may also approve a change in the office through which any transfer agent acts.

If the debt securities of any series (or tranche, in the case of senior debt securities issued under the 2007 GSFC indenture) are redeemable and we redeem less than all those debt securities, we may block the transfer or exchange of those debt securities during the period beginning 15 calendar days before the day we mail the notice of redemption and ending on the day of that mailing, in order to freeze the list of holders to prepare the mailing. We may also refuse to register transfers of or exchange any debt security selected for redemption, except that we will continue to permit transfers and exchanges of the unredeemed portion of any debt security being partially redeemed.

If a debt security is issued as a global debt security, only the depositary — e.g., DTC, Euroclear or Clearstream — will be entitled to transfer and exchange the debt security as described in this subsection, since the depositary will be the sole holder of the debt security.

Payment of Additional Amounts

We intend to make all payments on the debt securities without deducting U.S. withholding taxes unless the law requires us to deduct withholding taxes. The remainder of this subsection does not apply unless the relevant prospectus supplement specifies that this subsection entitled "— Payment of Additional Amounts" is applicable to your debt securities.

If we are required by law to deduct U.S. withholding taxes on payments to non-U.S. investors and if so specified in your prospectus supplement, we will pay additional amounts on those payments to the extent described in this subsection.

We will pay additional amounts on a debt security only if the beneficial owner of the debt security is a United States alien. The term "United States alien" means any person who, for U.S. federal income tax purposes, is:

- · a nonresident alien individual;
- a foreign corporation;
- a foreign partnership one or more of the members of which is, for U.S. federal income tax purposes, a foreign corporation, a nonresident alien individual or a nonresident alien fiduciary of a foreign estate or trust; or

• a nonresident alien fiduciary of an estate or trust that is not subject to U.S. federal income tax on a net income basis on income or gain from a debt security.

If the beneficial owner of a debt security is a United States alien, we will pay all additional amounts that may be necessary so that every net payment of interest or principal on that debt security will not be less than the amount provided for in that debt security. By net payment, we mean the amount we or our paying agent pays after deducting or withholding an amount for or on account of any present or future tax, assessment or other governmental charge imposed with respect to that payment by a U.S. taxing authority.

Our obligation to pay additional amounts is subject to several important exceptions, however. We will **not** pay additional amounts for or on account of any of the following:

- any tax, assessment or other governmental charge imposed solely because at any time there is or was a connection between the beneficial
 owner or between a fiduciary, settlor, beneficiary, shareholder or member of the beneficial owner, if the beneficial owner is an estate, trust,
 partnership or corporation and the United States (other than the mere receipt of a payment or the ownership or holding of a debt security),
 including because the beneficial owner or the fiduciary, settlor, beneficiary, shareholder or member at any time, for U.S. federal income tax
 purposes:
 - · is or was a citizen or resident or is or was treated as a resident of the United States;
 - · is or was present in the United States;
 - · is or was engaged in a trade or business in the United States;
 - · has or had a permanent establishment in the United States;
 - · is or was a personal holding company, a passive foreign investment company or a controlled foreign corporation;
 - · is or was a corporation that accumulates earnings to avoid U.S. federal income tax; or
 - · is or was a "ten percent shareholder" of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.;
- any tax, assessment or other governmental charge imposed solely because of a change in applicable law or regulation, or in any official
 interpretation or application of applicable law or regulation, that becomes effective more than 15 days after the day on which the payment
 becomes due or is duly provided for, whichever occurs later;
- any estate, inheritance, gift, sales, excise, transfer, wealth or personal property tax, or any similar tax, assessment or other governmental charge;
- any tax, assessment or other governmental charge imposed solely because the beneficial holder or any other person fails to comply with any
 certification, identification or other reporting requirement concerning the nationality, residence, identity or connection with the United States of
 the holder or any beneficial owner of the debt security, if compliance is required by statute or by regulation of the U.S. Treasury department or by
 an applicable income tax treaty to which the United States is a party, as a precondition to exemption from such tax, assessment or other
 governmental charge;
- any tax, assessment or other governmental charge that can be paid other than by deduction or withholding from a payment on the debt securities:
- any tax, assessment or other governmental charge imposed solely because the payment is to be made by a particular paying agent (including The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.) and would not be imposed if made by another paying agent;
- any tax, assessment or other governmental charge imposed solely because the holder (1) is a bank purchasing the debt security in the ordinary course of its lending business or (2) is a bank that is neither (A) buying the debt security for investment purposes only nor (B) buying the debt

security for resale to a third party that either is not a bank or holding the debt security for investment purposes only;

- any tax, assessment or other governmental charge imposed solely because the holder or any beneficial owner in the holder has failed to perfect
 an exemption from any withholding taxes imposed under Sections 1471 through 1474 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and
 any regulations or official interpretations thereof; or
- · any combination of the taxes, assessments or other governmental charges described above.

In addition, we will not pay additional amounts with respect to any payment of principal, or interest to any United States alien who is a fiduciary or a partnership, or who is not the sole beneficial owner of the payment, to the extent that we would not have to pay additional amounts to any beneficiary or settlor of the fiduciary or any member of the partnership, or to any beneficial owner of the payment, if that person or entity were treated as the beneficial owner of the debt security for these purposes.

When we refer to a "U.S. taxing authority" in this subsection and "— Redemption and Repayment" above, we mean the United States of America or any state, other jurisdiction or taxing authority in the United States. When we refer to the "United States", we mean the United States of America, including the states and the District of Columbia, together with the territories, possessions and all those areas subject to the jurisdiction of the United States of America

When we refer to any payment of interest or principal on a debt security in this subsection, this includes any additional amount that may be payable as described above in respect of that payment.

Payment Mechanics for Debt Securities

Who Receives Payment?

If interest is due on a debt security on an interest payment date, we or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. will pay the interest to the person in whose name the debt security is registered at the close of business on the regular record date relating to the interest payment date as described below under "— Payment and Record Dates for Interest". If interest is due at maturity but on a day that is not an interest payment date, we or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. will pay the interest to the person entitled to receive the principal of the debt security. If principal or another amount besides interest is due on a debt security at maturity, we or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. will pay the amount to the holder of the debt security against surrender of the debt security at a proper place of payment or, in the case of a global debt security, in accordance with the applicable policies of the depositary, DTC, Euroclear or Clearstream, as applicable.

Payment and Record Dates for Interest

Unless we specify otherwise in the applicable prospectus supplement, interest on any fixed rate debt security will be payable semiannually each May 15 and November 15 and at maturity, and the regular record date relating to an interest payment date for any fixed rate debt security will be the May 1 or November 1 preceding that interest payment date. Unless we specify otherwise in the applicable prospectus supplement, the regular record date relating to an interest payment date for any floating rate debt security will be the 15th calendar day before that interest payment date. These record dates will apply regardless of whether a particular record date is a "business day", as defined below. For the purpose of determining the holder at the close of business on a regular record date when business is not being conducted, the close of business will mean 5:00 P.M., New York City time, on that day.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, and unless specified otherwise in your prospectus supplement, the regular record date relating to an interest payment date for any debt security in book-entry or global form will be the day immediately prior to the day on which the interest payment is to be made (as such payment day may be adjusted under the applicable business day convention). This prior day will be the record date whether or not it is a business day.

Unless we specify otherwise in this prospectus or in the applicable prospectus supplement, the term "days" refers to calendar days.

Business Days

One or more of the following business day definitions will apply to any debt security:

"Euro business day" means each Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday and Friday on which the Trans-European Automated Real-Time Gross Settlement Express Transfer (TARGET) System, or any successor system, is open for business.

"London business day" means each Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday and Friday that is not a day on which banking institutions in London generally are authorized or obligated by law, regulation or executive order to close and, in the case of a debt security for which LIBOR is an interest rate basis, is also a day on which dealings in the applicable index currency are transacted in the London interbank market.

"New York business day" means each Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday and Friday that is not a day on which banking institutions in New York City generally are authorized or obligated by law, regulation or executive order to close.

Additional business days not defined above may apply to any debt security and will be described in the applicable prospectus supplement.

Business Day Conventions

As specified in the applicable prospectus supplement, one of the following business day conventions may apply to any debt security with regard to any relevant date other than one that falls on the maturity:

"Following business day convention" means, for any interest payment date, other than the maturity, if such date would otherwise fall on a day that is not a business day, then such date will be postponed to the next day that is a business day.

"Modified following business day convention" means, for any interest payment date, other than the maturity, if such date would otherwise fall on a day that is not a business day, then such date will be postponed to the next day that is a business day, except that, if the next business day falls in the next calendar month, then such date will be advanced to the immediately preceding day that is a business day.

"Following unadjusted business day convention" means, for any interest payment date, other than the maturity, that falls on a day that is not a business day, any payment due on such interest payment date will be postponed to the next day that is a business day; provided that interest due with respect to such interest payment date shall not accrue from and including such interest payment date to and including the date of payment of such interest as so postponed.

"Modified following unadjusted business day convention" means, for any interest payment date, other than the maturity, that falls on a day that is not a business day, any payment due on such interest payment date will be postponed to the next day that is a business day; provided that interest due with respect to such interest payment date shall not accrue from and including such interest payment date to and including the date of payment of such interest as so postponed, and provided further that, if such day would fall in the succeeding calendar month, the date of payment with respect to such interest payment date will be advanced to the business day immediately preceding such interest payment date.

In all cases, if the stated maturity or any earlier redemption date or repayment date with respect to a debt security falls on a day that is not a business day, any payment of principal, premium, if any, and interest otherwise due on such day will be made on the next succeeding business day, and no

interest on such payment shall accrue for the period from and after such stated maturity, redemption date or repayment date, as the case may be.

How We or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. Will Make Payments Due in U.S. Dollars

We or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. will follow the practice described in this subsection when paying amounts due in U.S. dollars. Payments of amounts due in other currencies will be made as described in the next subsection.

Payments on Global Debt Securities. We or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. will make payments on a global debt security in accordance with the applicable policies of the depositary as in effect from time to time. Under those policies, we or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. will pay directly to the depositary, or its nominee, and not to any indirect owners who own beneficial interests in the global debt security. An indirect owner's right to receive those payments will be governed by the rules and practices of the depositary and its participants, as described below in the section entitled "Legal Ownership and Book-Entry Issuance — What Is a Global Security?".

Payments on Non-Global Debt Securities. We or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. will make payments on a debt security in non-global, registered form as follows. We or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. will pay interest that is due on an interest payment date by check mailed on the interest payment date to the holder at his or her address shown on the trustee's records as of the close of business on the regular record date. We or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. will make all other payments by check or via wire transfer at the paying agent described below, against surrender of the debt security. All payments by check will be made in next-day funds — *i.e.*, funds that become available on the day after the check is cashed or wire transfer is completed.

Alternatively, if a non-global debt security has a principal amount of at least \$1,000,000 (or the equivalent in another currency) and the holder asks us to do so, we or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. will pay any amount that becomes due on the debt security by wire transfer of immediately available funds to an account at a bank in New York City, on the due date. To request wire payment, the holder must give the paying agent appropriate wire transfer instructions at least five business days before the requested wire payment is due. In the case of any interest payment due on an interest payment date, the instructions must be given by the person or entity who is the holder on the relevant regular record date. In the case of any other payment, payment will be made only after the debt security is surrendered to the paying agent. Any wire instructions, once properly given, will remain in effect unless and until new instructions are given in the manner described above.

Book-entry and other indirect owners should consult their banks or brokers for information on how they will receive payments on their debt securities.

How We or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. Will Make Payments Due in Other Currencies

We or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. will follow the practice described in this subsection when paying amounts that are due in a specified currency other than U.S. dollars.

Payments on Global Debt Securities. We or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. will make payments on a global debt security in the applicable specified currency in accordance with the applicable policies as in effect from time to time of the depositary, which will be DTC, Euroclear or Clearstream. Unless we specify otherwise in the applicable prospectus supplement, The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York, known as DTC, will be the depositary for all debt securities in global form.

Indirect owners of a global debt security denominated in a currency other than U.S. dollars should consult their banks or brokers for information on how to request payment in the specified currency in cases where holders have a right to do so.

Payments on Non-Global Debt Securities. Except as described in the last paragraph under this heading, we or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. will make payments on debt securities in non-global form in the applicable specified currency. We or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. will make these payments by wire transfer of immediately available funds to any account that is maintained in the applicable specified currency at a bank designated by the holder and is acceptable to us or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and the trustee. To designate an account for wire payment, the holder must give the paying agent appropriate wire instructions at least five business days before the requested wire payment is due. In the case of any interest payment due on an interest payment date, the instructions must be given by the person or entity who is the holder on the regular record date. In the case of any other payment, the payment will be made only after the debt security is surrendered to the paying agent. Any instructions, once properly given, will remain in effect unless and until new instructions are properly given in the manner described above.

If a holder fails to give instructions as described above, we or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. will notify the holder at the address in the trustee's records and will make the payment within five business days after the holder provides appropriate instructions. Any late payment made in these circumstances will be treated under the applicable debt indenture as if made on the due date, and no interest will accrue on the late payment from the due date to the date paid.

Although a payment on a debt security in non-global form may be due in a specified currency other than U.S. dollars, we or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. will make the payment in U.S. dollars if your prospectus supplement specifies that holders may ask us to do so and you make such a request. To request U.S. dollar payment in these circumstances, the holder must provide appropriate written notice to the trustee at least five business days before the next due date for which payment in U.S. dollars is requested. In the case of any interest payment due on an interest payment date, the request must be made by the person or entity who is the holder on the regular record date. Any request, once properly made, will remain in effect unless and until revoked by notice properly given in the manner described above.

Book-entry and other indirect owners of a debt security with a specified currency other than U.S. dollars should contact their banks or brokers for information about how to receive payments in the specified currency or in U.S. dollars.

Conversion to U.S. Dollars. Unless otherwise indicated in your prospectus supplement, holders are not entitled to receive payments in U.S. dollars of an amount due in another currency, either on a global debt security or a non-global debt security.

If your prospectus supplement specifies that holders may request that we make payments in U.S. dollars of an amount due in another currency, the exchange rate agent described below will calculate the U.S. dollar amount the holder receives in the exchange rate agent's discretion. A holder that requests payment in U.S. dollars will bear all associated currency exchange costs, which will be deducted from the payment.

When the Specified Currency Is Not Available. If we or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. is obligated to make any payment in a specified currency other than U.S. dollars, and the specified currency or any successor currency is not available to us or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. due to circumstances beyond our or its control — such as the imposition of exchange controls or a disruption in the currency markets — we or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. will be entitled to satisfy our obligation to make the payment in that specified currency by making the payment in U.S. dollars, on the basis of the exchange rate determined by the exchange rate agent described below, in its discretion.

The foregoing will apply to any debt security, whether in global or non-global form, and to any payment, including a payment at maturity. Any payment made under the circumstances and in a manner described above will not result in a default under any debt security or the applicable debt indenture.

Exchange Rate Agent. If we issue a debt security in a specified currency other than U.S. dollars, we will appoint a financial institution to act as the exchange rate agent and will name the institution initially appointed when the debt security is originally issued in the applicable prospectus supplement. We may select Goldman, Sachs & Co. or another of our affiliates to perform this role. We may change the exchange rate agent from time to time after the original issue date of the debt security without your consent and without notifying you of the change.

All determinations made by the exchange rate agent will be in its sole discretion unless we state in the applicable prospectus supplement that any determination requires our approval. In the absence of manifest error, those determinations will be conclusive for all purposes and binding on you and us, without any liability on the part of the exchange rate agent.

Payment When Offices Are Closed

Unless specified otherwise in the applicable prospectus supplement, if any payment is due on a debt security on a day that is not a business day, we or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. will make the payment on the next business day. Payments postponed to the next business day in this situation will be treated under the applicable debt indenture as if they were made on the original due date. Postponement of this kind will not result in a default under any debt security or the applicable debt indenture, and, unless otherwise specified on the applicable prospectus supplement, no interest will accrue on the postponed amount from the original due date to the next business day. The term business day has a special meaning, which we describe above under "— Payment and Record Dates for Interest".

Paying Agent

We may appoint one or more financial institutions to act as our or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s paying agents, at whose designated offices debt securities in non-global entry form may be surrendered for payment at their maturity. We call each of those offices a paying agent. We may add, replace or terminate paying agents from time to time. We may also choose to act as our own paying agent. Initially, we have appointed the trustee, at its corporate trust office in New York City, as the paying agent. We must notify the trustee of changes in the paying agents.

Unclaimed Payments

Regardless of who acts as paying agent, all money paid by us to a paying agent that remains unclaimed at the end of two years after the amount is due to a holder will be repaid to us. After that two-year period, the holder may look only to us or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. for payment and not to the trustee, any other paying agent or anyone else.

Notices

Notices to be given to holders of a global debt security will be given only to the depositary, in accordance with its applicable policies as in effect from time to time. Notices to be given to holders of debt securities not in global form will be sent by mail to the respective addresses of the holders as they appear in the trustee's records, and will be deemed given when mailed. Neither the failure to give any notice to a particular holder, nor any defect in a notice given to a particular holder, will affect the sufficiency of any notice given to another holder.

Book-entry and other indirect owners should consult their banks or brokers for information on how they will receive notices.

Guarantee by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.

The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. will fully and unconditionally guarantee the payment of principal of, and any interest and premium on, the debt securities, when due and payable, whether at the stated maturity, by declaration of acceleration, call for redemption or otherwise, in accordance with the terms of the security, the relevant debt indenture and the applicable prospectus supplement accompanying this prospectus. The guarantee will remain in effect until the entire principal of, and interest and premium, if any, on, the debt securities has been paid in full or discharged in accordance with the provisions of the relevant indenture, or otherwise fully defeased by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.

Because The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. is a holding company, its ability to perform its obligations on the guarantees endorsed on our debt securities will depend in part on its ability to participate in distributions of assets from its subsidiaries. We discuss these matters above under "Prospectus Summary — The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. is a Holding Company".

Guarantee of Debt Securities of GS Finance Corp. Issued under the Senior Debt Indentures

The guarantee by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. of our debt securities issued under either of the senior debt indentures will rank equally in right of payment with all senior indebtedness of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.

Guarantee of Debt Securities of GS Finance Corp. to Be Issued under the Subordinated Debt Indenture

The guarantee by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. of our debt securities to be issued under the subordinated debt indenture will be subordinate and junior in right of payment to all senior indebtedness of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. No payment of the principal of, or interest or premium on, such subordinated debt securities may be made by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. under the terms of the subordinated guarantee provision to be included in the subordinated debt indenture until all holders of senior indebtedness of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. have been paid, if any of the following occurs:

- certain events of bankruptcy, insolvency or reorganization of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.;
- any senior indebtedness of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. is not paid when due (after the expiration of any applicable grace period, if any) and that default continues without cure or waiver; or
- any other default has occurred and continues without cure or waiver (after the expiration of any applicable grace period, if any) pursuant to
 which the holders of senior indebtedness of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. are permitted to accelerate the maturity of such senior
 indebtedness

Upon any distribution of our or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s assets to our or its creditors in connection with any insolvency, bankruptcy or similar proceeding, all principal of, and premium, if any, and interest due or to become due on all of its senior indebtedness must be paid in full before the holders of the subordinated debt securities are entitled to receive or retain any payment from such distribution.

The subordinated debt indenture will not limit the aggregate amount of senior indebtedness that may be issued.

Pursuant to the subordination provisions to be included in the subordinated debt indenture, any payment, which would otherwise (but for the subordination provisions) be payable in respect of the subordinated debt securities by us or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., will instead be paid directly to the holders of such senior indebtedness of us or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. (or our or its representative or trustee), as the case may be, in accordance with the priorities then existing among such holders until all such senior indebtedness has been paid in full before any payment or distribution is made to the holders of the subordinated debt securities. In the event that, notwithstanding such

subordination provisions, any payment of any kind or character is made on the subordinated debt securities by us or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. before all such senior indebtedness is paid in full, the trustee or the holders of the subordinated debt securities receiving such payment will be required to pay over such payment or distribution to the holders of such senior indebtedness.

The subordinated debt indenture will provide that senior indebtedness will not be deemed to have been paid in full unless the holders thereof, as applicable, shall have received cash (or securities or other property satisfactory to such holders) in full payment of such senior indebtedness then outstanding. Upon the payment in full of all such senior indebtedness, the holders of the subordinated debt securities shall be subrogated to all the rights of any holders of such senior indebtedness to receive any further payments of us or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. applicable to such senior indebtedness until the subordinated debt securities shall have been paid in full, and such payments received by the holders of the subordinated debt securities, by reason of such subrogation, which otherwise would be paid or distributed to the holders of such senior indebtedness, shall, as between us or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., and its creditors other than the holders of senior indebtedness, on the one hand, and the holders of the subordinated debt securities on the other, be deemed to be a payment on account of such senior indebtedness, and not on account of the subordinated debt securities or the subordinated quarantee provision in the subordinated debt indenture.

The subordinated debt indenture will provide that no present or future holder of any senior indebtedness of us or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. will be prejudiced in the right to enforce subordination of the indebtedness under the subordinated debt indenture by any act or failure to act on the part of us or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.

Our Relationship With the Trustee

The Bank of New York Mellon has provided commercial banking and other services for The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and its affiliates in the past and may do so in the future. Among other things, The Bank of New York Mellon provides The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. with a line of credit, holds debt securities issued by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and serves as trustee or agent with regard to other debt obligations and warrants of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. or its subsidiaries.

The Bank of New York Mellon is initially serving as the trustee for the senior debt securities under the senior debt indentures. We and The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. may also enter into supplemental indentures to the 2008 GSFC indenture with The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee, under which our subordinated debt securities and warrants may be issued. Consequently, if the Bank of New York Mellon serves as trustee for all those securities and if an actual or potential event of default occurs with respect to any of these securities, the trustee may be considered to have a conflicting interest for purposes of the Trust Indenture Act of 1939. In that case, the trustee may be required to resign under one or more of the indentures, and we would be required to appoint a successor trustee. For this purpose, a "potential" event of default means an event that would be an event of default if the requirements for giving us default notice or for the default having to exist for a specific period of time were disregarded. Under the terms of the 2008 GSFC indenture, the trustee is deemed not to have a conflicting interest with respect to the 2007 GSFC indenture if an actual or potential event of default occurs with respect to senior debt securities issued under the 2008 GSFC indenture (provided that no subordinated debt securities are outstanding). Similarly, under the terms of the 2007 GSFC indenture, the trustee is deemed not to have a conflicting interest with respect to the 2008 GSFC indenture if an actual or potential event of default occurs with respect to senior debt securities issued under the 2007 GSFC indenture (provided that no subordinated debt securities are outstanding).

Under the senior debt indentures, we are required to file with the trustee any information, documents and other reports, or summaries thereof, as may be required under the Trust Indenture Act, at the times and in the manner provided under the Trust Indenture Act. However, in case of documents filed with the SEC pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act, any such filing with the trustee need not be made until 15th day after such filing is actually made with the SEC.

DESCRIPTION OF WARRANTS WE MAY OFFER

Please note that in this section entitled "Description of Warrants We May Offer", references to "we", "our" and "us" refer only to GS Finance Corp. and not to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., and references to "The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc." refer only to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and not to its consolidated subsidiaries. Also, in this section, references to "holders" mean those who own warrants registered in their own names, on the books that we or the trustee maintain for this purpose, and not those who own beneficial interests in warrants registered in street name or in warrants issued in book-entry form through one or more depositaries. Owners of beneficial interests in the warrants should read the section below entitled "Legal Ownership and Book-Entry Issuance".

The Warrant Indenture

We may issue universal warrants under a supplemental indenture to be entered into at a later date among us, The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., as guarantor, and a bank, trust company or other financial institution (which may include The Bank of New York Mellon), as trustee. The supplemental indenture will modify the 2008 GSFC indenture to provide for the issuance of such warrants under such indenture, and we refer to the supplemental indenture, together with the 2008 GSFC indenture, as the "warrant indenture". We will file the warrant indenture, when executed, with the SEC as an exhibit to an amendment to the registration statement of which this prospectus is a part. See "Available Information" above for information on how to obtain a copy of the warrant indenture when it is filed. Warrants of this kind will not be secured by any of our property or assets or property or assets of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. or its subsidiaries. Thus, by owning warrants issued under the warrant indenture, you hold our unsecured obligations.

The warrants issued under the warrant indenture, and the guarantee endorsed thereon, will be our or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s contractual obligations and will rank equally with all of our or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s other unsecured contractual obligations and unsecured and unsubordinated debt. The indenture will not limit our ability to incur additional contractual obligations or debt.

The trustee under the warrant indenture will have two main roles:

- First, the trustee can enforce your rights against us or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. if we or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. defaults. There will be some limitations on the extent to which the trustee acts on your behalf, which we describe below under "— Default, Remedies and Waiver of Default".
- · Second, the trustee performs administrative duties for us, such as sending you payments and notices.

See "— Our Relationship With the Trustee" below for more information about the trustee.

We May Issue Many Series of Warrants

We may issue warrants that are universal warrants settled in cash. We may offer warrants together with our other warrants or debt securities or debt or equity securities of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. in the form of units, as summarized below in "Description of Units We May Offer".

We have no restrictions on the number of warrants or number of distinct series of warrants we may issue. Unless otherwise indicated in your prospectus supplement, each series of warrants will be issued under a warrant indenture. This section summarizes terms to be included in the warrant indenture and terms of the warrants that apply generally to the warrants. We will describe the specific terms of your warrant in the applicable prospectus supplement. Those terms may vary from the terms described here.

As you read this section, please remember that the specific terms of your warrant as described in your prospectus supplement will supplement and, if applicable, may modify or replace the general terms described in this section. If there are differences between your prospectus supplement and this prospectus, your prospectus supplement will control. Thus, the statements we make in this section may not apply to your warrant.

When we refer to a series of warrants, we mean all warrants issued as part of the same series under the applicable indenture. When we refer to your prospectus supplement, we mean the prospectus supplement describing the specific terms of the warrant you purchase.

Universal Warrants

We may issue warrants, on terms to be determined at the time of sale whose cash value is determined by reference to the performance, level or value of, one or more of the following:

- securities of one or more issuers, including our common stock or other securities described in this prospectus, the common or preferred stock or other securities of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. or debt or equity securities of third parties;
- · one or more currencies;
- · one or more commodities;
- · any other financial, economic or other measure or instrument, including the occurrence or non-occurrence of any event or circumstance; and
- · one or more indices; and/or
- · one or more baskets of the items described above.

We refer to this type of warrant as a "universal warrant". We refer to each property described above as a "warrant property".

We may satisfy our obligations, if any, and the holder of universal warrants may satisfy its obligations, if any, with respect to any universal warrants by paying the cash value of the warrants determined by reference to the performance, level or value of the warrant property.

The applicable prospectus supplement will describe the amount in cash we may pay to satisfy our obligations, if any, and the amount in cash the holder of universal warrants may pay to satisfy its obligations, if any, with respect to any universal warrants.

General Terms of Warrants

Your prospectus supplement may contain, where applicable, the following information about your warrants:

- the title and series of, the aggregate number of, and the original issue price of, the warrants;
- the currency with which the warrants may be purchased;
- · the warrant indenture under which the warrants will be issued;

- the date on which the right to exercise the warrants will begin and the date on which that right will expire or, if you may not continuously exercise the warrants throughout that period, the specific date or dates on which you may exercise the warrants;
- whether the warrants will be issued in fully registered form or bearer form, in global or non-global form or in any combination of these forms, although, in any case, the form of warrants included in a unit will correspond to the form of the unit and of any security included in that unit;
- the identities of the trustee, any depositaries and any paying, transfer, calculation or other agents for the warrants;
- any securities exchange or quotation system on which the warrants or any securities deliverable upon exercise of the warrants may be listed;
- · whether the warrants are to be sold separately or with other securities, as part of units or otherwise;
- · the amount in cash or the method of determining the amount in cash payable upon exercise of each universal warrant; and
- · any other terms of the warrants.

If we issue warrants as part of a unit, the applicable prospectus supplement will specify whether the warrants will be separable from the other securities in the unit before the warrants' expiration date. Warrants issued in a unit in the United States may not be so separated before the 91st day after the unit is issued.

No holder of the warrants will have any rights of a holder of the warrant property relating to the warrants.

An investment in warrants may involve special risks, including risks associated with indexed securities and currency-related risks if the warrants or the warrant property is linked to an index or is payable in or otherwise linked to a non-U.S. dollar currency. We describe some of these risks below under "Considerations Relating to Indexed Securities" and "Considerations Relating to Securities Denominated or Payable in or Linked to a Non-U.S. Dollar Currency".

Our affiliates may resell warrants in market-making transactions after their initial issuance. We discuss these transactions above under "Description of Debt Securities We May Offer — Information in Your Prospectus Supplement — Market-Making Transactions".

We May Issue Many Series of Warrants Under the Warrant Indenture

We may issue many distinct series of warrants under the warrant indenture. This section summarizes terms of the warrants that apply generally to all series. The provisions of the warrant indenture allow us not only to issue warrants with terms different from those of warrants previously issued under the warrant indenture, but also to "reopen" a previously issued series of warrants and issue additional warrants of that series.

Amounts That We May Issue

The warrant indenture will not limit the aggregate number of warrants that we may issue or the number of series or the aggregate amount of any particular series. We may issue warrants and other securities at any time without your consent and without notifying you.

The warrant indenture and the warrants will not limit our ability to incur other contractual obligations or indebtedness or to issue other securities. Also, the terms of the warrants do not impose financial or similar restrictions on us except for The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. as described below under "— Restriction on Liens".

Expiration Date and Payment or Settlement Date

The term "expiration date" with respect to any warrant means the date on which the right to exercise the warrant expires. The term "payment or settlement date" with respect to any warrant means the date when any amount in cash with respect to that warrant becomes payable upon exercise or redemption of that warrant in accordance with its terms.

This Section Is Only a Summary

The warrant indenture and its associated documents, including your warrant will contain the full legal text of the matters described in this section and your prospectus supplement. We will file a copy of the warrant indenture, when executed, with the SEC as an exhibit to our registration statement, of which this prospectus is a part. See "Available Information" above for information on how to obtain a copy of the warrant indenture when it is filed.

This section and your prospectus supplement summarize all the material terms of the warrant indenture and your warrant. They do not, however, describe every aspect of the warrant indenture and your warrant. For example, in this section and your prospectus supplement, we use terms that will be given special meaning in the warrant indenture, but we describe the meaning for only the more important of those terms.

Governing Law

The warrant indenture and the warrants will be governed by New York law.

Currency of Warrants

Amounts that become due and payable on your warrant may be payable in a currency, composite currency, basket of currencies or currency unit or units specified in your prospectus supplement. We refer to this currency, composite currency, basket of currencies or currency unit or units as a "specified currency". The specified currency for your warrant will be U.S. dollars, unless your prospectus supplement states otherwise. You will have to pay for your warrant by delivering the requisite amount of the specified currency to Goldman, Sachs & Co. or another firm that we name in your prospectus supplement, unless other arrangements have been made between you and us or you and that firm. We will make payments on your warrants in the specified currency, except as described below in "— Payment Mechanics for Warrants". See "Considerations Relating to Securities Denominated or Payable in or Linked to a Non-U.S. Dollar Currency" below for more information about risks of investing in warrants of this kind.

Mergers and Similar Transactions

We are, and The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. is, generally permitted to merge or consolidate with another corporation or other entity. We are, and The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. is, also permitted to sell our or its assets substantially as an entirety to another corporation or other entity. With regard to any warrant, however, we or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. may not take any of these actions unless all the following conditions are met:

If the successor entity in the transaction is not GS Finance Corp. or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., as the case may be, the successor entity
must be organized as a corporation, partnership or trust and must expressly assume our or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s obligations under
that warrant and the warrant indenture. The successor entity may be organized under the laws of any jurisdiction, whether in the United States
or elsewhere

• Immediately after the transaction, no default under the warrant or the related guarantee has occurred and is continuing. For this purpose, "default under the warrant or the related guarantee" means an event of default with respect to that warrant or any event that would be an event of default with respect to that warrant or the related guarantee if the requirements for giving us or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. default notice and for our or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s default having to continue for a specific period of time were disregarded. We describe these matters below under "— Default, Remedies and Waiver of Default".

If the conditions described above are satisfied with respect to any warrant, neither we nor The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. will need to obtain the approval of the holder of that warrant in order to merge or consolidate or to sell our or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s assets. Also, these conditions will apply only if we or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. wishes to merge or consolidate with another entity or sell our or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s assets substantially as an entirety to another entity. Neither we nor The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. will need to satisfy these conditions if we or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. enters into other types of transactions, including any transaction in which we acquire the stock or assets of another entity, any transaction that involves a change of control of us or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. but in which we or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. does not merge or consolidate and any transaction in which we or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. sells less than substantially all our or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s assets. While we are currently a wholly owned subsidiary of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., there is no requirement that we remain a subsidiary.

Also, if we or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. merges, consolidates or sells our or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s assets substantially as an entirety and the successor is a non-U.S. entity, neither we nor The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. nor any successor would have any obligation to compensate you for any resulting adverse tax consequences relating to your warrants.

Restriction on Liens

In the warrant indenture, The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. will promise, with respect to each series of warrants, not to create, assume, incur or guarantee any debt for borrowed money that is secured by a lien on the voting or profit participating equity ownership interests that, The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. or any of its subsidiaries own in Goldman, Sachs & Co., or in any subsidiary of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. that beneficially owns or holds, directly or indirectly, those interests in Goldman, Sachs & Co., unless The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. also secures the warrants of that series on an equal or priority basis with the other secured debt. The promise of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., however, is subject to an important exception: it may secure debt for borrowed money with liens on those interests without securing the warrants of any series if its board of directors determines that the liens do not materially detract from or interfere with the value or control of those interests as of the date of the determination.

Except as noted above, the warrant indenture will not restrict The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s ability to put liens on its interests in its subsidiaries other than Goldman, Sachs & Co., nor does the warrant indenture restrict The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s ability to sell or otherwise dispose of its interests in any of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s subsidiaries, including Goldman, Sachs & Co. In addition, the restriction on liens in the warrant indenture applies only to liens that secure debt for borrowed money. For example, liens imposed by operation of law, such as liens to secure statutory obligations for taxes or workers' compensation benefits, or liens The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. creates to secure obligations to pay legal judgments or surety bonds, would not be covered by this restriction.

Default, Remedies and Waiver of Default

You will have special rights if an event of default with respect to your warrant occurs and is continuing, as described in this subsection.

Events of Default

Unless your prospectus supplement says otherwise, when we refer to an event of default with respect to any warrant, we mean that, upon satisfaction by the holder of the warrant of all conditions precedent to our relevant obligation or covenant to be satisfied by the holder, any of the following occurs:

- Except as otherwise provided in terms of the warrants, we or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. does not pay any amount in cash with respect to that warrant on the payment or settlement date in accordance with the terms of that warrant;
- The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. remains in breach of its covenant described above under "— Restriction on Liens", or we remain in breach of any other covenant we or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. makes in the warrant indenture for the benefit of the holder of that warrant for 60 days after we and The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. receive a notice of default stating that we are in breach and requiring us or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. to remedy the breach, as applicable. The notice must be sent by the trustee or the holders of at least 25% in number of the relevant series of warrants:
- We or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. files for bankruptcy or other events of bankruptcy, insolvency or reorganization relating to us or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. occur. Those events must arise under U.S. federal or state law, unless we or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. merges, consolidates or sells our its assets as described above and the successor firm is a non-U.S. entity. If that happens, then those events must arise under U.S. federal or state law or the law of the jurisdiction in which the successor firm is legally organized;
- Except as provided by the warrant indenture, the warrants and the related guarantee, the guarantee ceases to be effective, or a court finds the guarantee to be unenforceable or invalid, or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. denies its obligations as the guarantor; or
- · If the applicable prospectus supplement states that any additional event of default applies to the series, that event of default occurs.

Except as otherwise provided in the terms of the warrants, if we or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. do not pay any amount in cash when due with respect to a particular warrant of a series, as described in the first bullet point above, that failure to make a payment will not constitute an event of default with respect to any other warrant of the same series or any other series.

Remedies If an Event of Default Occurs

If an event of default occurs, the trustee will have special duties. In that situation, the trustee will be obligated to use those of its rights and powers under the warrant indenture, and to use the same degree of care and skill in doing so, that a prudent person would use in that situation in conducting his or her own affairs.

Except as described in the prior paragraph, the trustee will not be required to take any action under the warrant indenture at the request of any holders unless the holders offer the trustee reasonable protection from expenses and liability. This is called an indemnity. If the trustee is provided with an indemnity reasonably satisfactory to it, the holders of a majority in number of all warrants of the relevant series may direct the time, method and place of conducting any lawsuit or other formal legal action seeking any remedy available to the trustee with respect to that series. These majority holders may also direct the trustee in performing any other action under the warrant indenture with respect to the warrants of that series.

Before you bypass the trustee and bring your own lawsuit or other formal legal action or take other steps to enforce your rights or protect your interests relating to any warrant, all of the following must occur:

- The holder of your warrant must give the trustee written notice that an event of default has occurred, and the event of default must not have been cured or waived;
- The holders of not less than 25% in number of all warrants of your series must make a written request that the trustee take action because of the default, and they or other holders must offer to the trustee indemnity reasonably satisfactory to the trustee against the cost and other liabilities of taking that action;
- The trustee must not have taken action for 60 days after the above steps have been taken; and
- During those 60 days, the holders of a majority in number of the warrants of your series must not have given the trustee directions that are inconsistent with the written request of the holders of not less than 25% in number of the warrants of your series.

You will be entitled at any time to bring a lawsuit for the payment of any amount in cash due on your warrant on or after its payment or settlement date.

Waiver of Default

The holders of not less than a majority in number of the warrants of any series may waive a default for all warrants of that series. If this happens, the default will be treated as if it has not occurred. No one can waive a default in payment of any amount in cash due on any warrant, however, without the approval of the particular holder of that warrant.

We and The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. Will Give the Trustee Information About Defaults Annually

We and The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. will furnish to the trustee every year a written statement, respectively, of two of our or its officers certifying that to their knowledge we or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., as the case may be, is in compliance with the warrant indenture and the warrants issued under it, or else specifying any default under the warrant indenture.

Book-entry and other indirect owners should consult their banks or brokers for information on how to give notice or direction to or make a request of the trustee. Book-entry and other indirect owners are described below under "Legal Ownership and Book-Entry Issuance".

Modification of the Warrant Indenture and Waiver of Covenants

There are three types of changes we and The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. can make to the warrant indenture, the warrants and related guarantees of any series issued under that indenture.

Changes Requiring Each Holder's Approval

First, there are changes that cannot be made without the approval of each holder of the warrants affected by the change. Here is a list of those types of changes:

- · change the exercise price of the warrants;
- · change the terms of any warrants with respect to the payment or settlement date of the warrants;

- · reduce the amount in cash payable upon the exercise of the warrants or any premium payable upon redemption of the warrants;
- · change the currency of any payment on the warrants;
- · change the place of payment on the warrants;
- · permit redemption of the warrants if not previously permitted;
- impair a holder's right to exercise its warrants, or sue for payment of any amount in cash payable with respect to its warrants on or after the payment or settlement date or, in the case of redemption, the redemption date:
- · if any warrant provides that the holder may require us to repurchase the warrant, impair the holder's right to require repurchase of the warrant;
- reduce the percentage in number of the warrants of any one or more affected series, taken separately or together, as applicable, the approval of whose holders is needed to change the warrant indenture or those warrants;
- reduce the percentage in number of the warrants of any one or more affected series, taken separately or together, as applicable, the consent of whose holders is needed to waive our compliance with the warrant indenture or to waive defaults; and
- change the provisions of the warrant indenture dealing with modification and waiver in any other respect, except to increase any required
 percentage referred to above or to add to the provisions that cannot be changed or waived without approval of the holder of each affected
 warrant.

Changes Not Requiring Approval

The second type of change does not require any approval by holders of the warrants of an affected series. These changes are limited to clarifications and changes that would not adversely affect the warrants of that series in any material respect. Neither we nor The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. needs any approval to make changes that affect only warrants to be issued under the warrant indenture after the changes take effect.

We and The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. may also make changes or obtain waivers that do not adversely affect particular warrants, even if they affect other warrants. In those cases, neither we nor The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. needs to obtain the approval of the holder of those warrants; we and The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. need only obtain any required approvals from the holders of the affected warrants.

Changes Requiring Majority Approval

Any other change to the warrant indenture and the warrants issued under the warrant indenture would require the following approval:

- If the change affects only the warrants of a particular series, it must be approved by the holders of a majority in number of the warrants of that series.
- If the change affects the warrants of more than one series issued under the warrant indenture, it must be approved by the holders of a majority in number of all series affected by the change, with the warrants of all the affected series voting together as one class for this purpose.

In each case, the required approval must be given by written consent.

The same majority approval would be required for us to obtain a waiver of any of our covenants in the warrant indenture. Our covenants include the promises we and The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. make about merging and, with respect to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., putting liens on its interests in Goldman, Sachs & Co., which we describe above under "— Mergers and Similar Transactions" and "— Restriction on Liens". If the holders approve a waiver of a covenant, neither we nor The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. will have to comply with it. The holders, however, cannot approve a waiver of any provision in a particular warrant, or in the warrant indenture as it affects that warrant, that neither we nor The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. can change without the approval of the holder of that warrant as described above in "— Changes Requiring Each Holder's Approval", unless that holder approves the waiver

Book-entry and other indirect owners should consult their banks or brokers for information on how approval may be granted or denied if we and The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. seek to change the warrant indenture or any warrants or request a waiver.

Special Rules for Action by Holders

When holders take any action under the warrant indenture, such as giving a notice of default, approving any change or waiver or giving the trustee an instruction, we will apply the following rules.

Only Outstanding Warrants Are Eligible

Only holders of outstanding warrants of the applicable series will be eligible to participate in any action by holders of warrants of that series. Also, we will count only outstanding warrants in determining whether the various percentage requirements for taking action have been met. For these purposes, the warrants will not be "outstanding" if:

- · they have been surrendered for cancellation;
- · they have been called for redemption;
- · we have deposited or set aside, in trust for its holder, an amount in cash for their payment or settlement; or
- we or one of our affiliates, such as Goldman, Sachs & Co., is the owner.

Determining Record Dates for Action by Holders

We or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. will generally be entitled to set any day as a record date for the purpose of determining the holders that are entitled to take action under the warrant indenture. In certain limited circumstances, only the trustee will be entitled to set a record date for action by holders. If we, The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. or the trustee set a record date for an approval or other action to be taken by holders, that vote or action may be taken only by persons or entities who are holders on the record date and must be taken during the period that we specify for this purpose, or that the trustee specifies if it sets the record date. We, The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. or the trustee, as applicable, may shorten or lengthen this period from time to time. This period, however, may not extend beyond the 180th day after the record date for the action. In addition, record dates for any global warrant may be set in accordance with procedures established by the depositary from time to time. Accordingly, record dates for global warrants may differ from those for other warrants.

Redemption

We will not be entitled to redeem your warrant before its expiration date unless your prospectus supplement specifies a redemption commencement date.

If your prospectus supplement specifies a redemption commencement date, it will also specify one or more redemption prices. It may also specify one or more redemption periods during which the redemption prices relating to a redemption of warrants during those periods will apply.

If your prospectus supplement specifies a redemption commencement date, your warrants will be redeemable at our option at any time on or after that date or at a specified time or times. If we redeem your warrants, we will do so at the specified redemption price. If different prices are specified for different redemption periods, the price we or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. pay will be the price that applies to the redemption period during which your warrant is redeemed.

If we exercise an option to redeem any warrant, we will give to the holder written notice of the redemption price of the warrant to be redeemed, not less than 30 days nor more than 60 days before the applicable redemption date or within any other period before the applicable redemption date specified in the applicable prospectus supplement. We will give the notice in the manner described below in "— Notices".

We, The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. or our or its affiliates may purchase warrants from investors who are willing to sell from time to time, either in the open market at prevailing prices or in private transactions at negotiated prices. Warrants that we or they purchase may, at our discretion, be held, resold or canceled

Form, Exchange and Transfer of Warrants

Each warrant will be issued in global — *i.e.*, book-entry — form only, unless we say otherwise in the applicable prospectus supplement. Warrants in book-entry form will be represented by a global security registered in the name of a depositary, which will be the holder of all the warrants represented by the global security. Those who own beneficial interests in a global warrant will do so through participants in the depositary's clearing system, and the rights of these indirect owners will be governed solely by the applicable procedures of the depositary and its participants. We describe book-entry securities below under "Legal Ownership and Book-Entry Issuance".

If the warrants are issued as a registered global warrant, only the depositary — e.g., DTC, Euroclear and Clearstream — will be entitled to transfer and exchange the warrants as described in this subsection, since the depositary will be the sole holder of the warrant.

If any warrants cease to be issued in registered global form, they will be issued:

- · only in fully registered form; and
- · only in the denominations specified in your prospectus supplement.

Holders may exchange their warrants for warrants of smaller denominations or combined into fewer warrants of larger denominations, as long as the total number of warrants is not changed.

Holders may exchange or transfer their warrants at the office of the trustee. They may also replace lost, stolen, destroyed or mutilated warrants at that office. We may appoint the trustee to act as our agent for registering warrants in the names of holders and transferring and replacing warrants. We may, without your approval, appoint another entity to perform these functions or perform them ourselves.

Holders will not be required to pay a service charge to transfer or exchange their warrants, but they may be required to pay for any tax or other governmental charge associated with the transfer or exchange. The transfer or exchange, and any replacement, will be made only if our transfer agent is satisfied with the holder's proof of legal ownership. The transfer agent may require an indemnity before replacing any warrants.

If we have the right to redeem, accelerate or settle any warrants before their expiration, and we exercise our right as to less than all those warrants, we may block the transfer or exchange of those warrants during the period beginning 15 days before the day we mail the notice of exercise and ending on the day of that mailing or during any other period specified in the applicable prospectus supplement, in order to freeze the list of holders to prepare the mailing. We may also refuse to register transfers of or exchange any warrants selected for early settlement, except that we will continue to permit transfers and exchanges of the unsettled portion of any warrants being partially settled.

If we have designated additional transfer agents for your warrant, they will be named in your prospectus supplement. We may, without your approval, appoint additional transfer agents or cancel the appointment of any particular transfer agent. We may also approve a change in the office through which any transfer agent acts.

The rules for exchange described above apply to exchange of warrants for other warrants of the same series and kind.

Payment Mechanics for Warrants

Who Receives Payment?

If money is due on the warrants at their payment or settlement date, we or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. will pay the amount to the holder of the warrant against surrender of the warrant at a proper place of payment or, in the case of a global warrant, in accordance with the applicable policies of the depositary, Euroclear and Clearstream, as applicable.

How We or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. Will Make Payments Due in U.S. Dollars

We or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. will follow the practice described in this subsection when paying amounts due in U.S. dollars. Payments of amounts due in other currencies will be made as described in the next subsection.

- Payments on Global Warrants. We or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. will make payments on a global warrant in accordance with the
 applicable policies of the depositary as in effect from time to time. Under those policies, we or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. will pay directly
 to the depositary, or its nominee, and not to any indirect owners who own beneficial interests in the global warrant. An indirect owner's right to
 receive those payments will be governed by the rules and practices of the depositary and its participants, as described below in the section
 entitled "Legal Ownership and Book-Entry Issuance What Is a Global Security?".
- Payments on Non-Global Warrants. We or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. will make payments on the warrants in non-global, registered form as follows. We or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. will make all payments by check at the paying agent described below, against surrender of the warrants. All payments by check will be made in next-day funds i.e., funds that become available on the day after the check is cashed.

Alternatively, if a non-global warrant has an original issue price of at least \$1,000,000 and the holder asks us to do so, we or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. will pay any amount that becomes due on the warrants by wire transfer of immediately available funds to an account at a bank in New York City, on the payment or settlement date. To request wire payment, the holder must give the paying agent appropriate wire transfer instructions at least five business days before the requested wire payment is due. Payment will be made only after the warrant is surrendered to the paying agent.

Book-entry and other indirect owners should consult their banks or brokers for information on how they will receive payments on their warrants.

How We or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. Will Make Payments Due in Other Currencies

We or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. will follow the practice described in this subsection when paying amounts that are due in a specified currency other than U.S. dollars.

Payments on Global Warrants. We or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. will make payments on a global warrant in the applicable specified currency in accordance with the applicable policies as in effect from time to time of the depositary, which may be DTC, Euroclear or Clearstream. Unless we specify otherwise in the applicable prospectus supplement, The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York, known as DTC, will be the depositary for all warrants in global form.

Indirect owners of a global warrant denominated in a currency other than U.S. dollars should consult their banks or brokers for information on how to request payment in the specified currency in cases where holders have a right to do so.

Payments on Non-Global Warrants. Except as described in the last paragraph under this heading, we or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. will make payments on warrants in non-global form in the applicable specified currency. We or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. will make these payments by wire transfer of immediately available funds to any account that is maintained in the applicable specified currency at a bank designated by the holder and acceptable to us or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and the trustee. To designate an account for wire payment, the holder must give the paying agent appropriate wire instructions at least five business days before the requested wire payment is due. The payment will be made only after the warrants are surrendered to the paying agent.

If a holder fails to give instructions as described above, we or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. will notify the holder at the address in the trustee's records and will make the payment within five business days after the holder provides appropriate instructions. Any late payment made in these circumstances will be treated under the warrant indenture as if made on the payment or settlement date, and no interest will accrue on the late payment from the payment or settlement date to the date paid.

Although a payment on warrants in non-global form may be due in a specified currency other than U.S. dollars, we or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. will make the payment in U.S. dollars if your prospectus supplement specifies that holders may ask us to do so and you make such a request. To request U.S. dollar payment in these circumstances, the holder must provide appropriate written notice to the trustee at least five business days before the payment or settlement date for which payment in U.S. dollars is requested.

Book-entry and other indirect owners of a warrant with a specified currency other than U.S. dollars should contact their banks or brokers for information about how to receive payments in the specified currency or in U.S. dollars.

Conversion to U.S. Dollars. Unless otherwise indicated in your prospectus supplement, holders are not entitled to receive payments in U.S. dollars of an amount due in another currency, either on a global warrant or a non-global warrant.

If your prospectus supplement specifies that holders may request that we make payments in U.S. dollars of an amount due in another currency, the exchange rate agent described below will calculate the U.S. dollar amount the holder receives in the exchange rate agent's discretion. A holder that requests payment in U.S. dollars will bear all associated currency exchange costs, which will be deducted from the payment.

When the Specified Currency Is Not Available. If we or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. is obligated to make any payment in a specified currency other than U.S. dollars, and the specified currency or any successor currency is not available to us or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. due to circumstances beyond our or its control — such as the imposition of exchange controls or a disruption

in the currency markets — we or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. will be entitled to satisfy our obligation to make the payment in that specified currency by making the payment in U.S. dollars, on the basis of the exchange rate determined by the exchange rate agent described below, in its discretion.

The foregoing will apply to any warrant, whether in global or non-global form, and to any payment, including a payment at the payment or settlement date. Any payment made under the circumstances and in a manner described above will not result in a default under any warrant or the warrant indenture

Exchange Rate Agent. If we issue a warrant in a specified currency other than U.S. dollars, we will appoint a financial institution to act as the exchange rate agent and will name the institution initially appointed when the warrant is originally issued in the applicable prospectus supplement. We may select Goldman, Sachs & Co. or another of our affiliates to perform this role. We may change the exchange rate agent from time to time after the original issue date of the warrant without your consent and without notifying you of the change.

All determinations made by the exchange rate agent will be in its sole discretion unless we state in the applicable prospectus supplement that any determination requires our approval. In the absence of manifest error, those determinations will be conclusive for all purposes and binding on you and us, without any liability on the part of the exchange rate agent.

Payment When Offices Are Closed

Unless otherwise specified in the applicable prospectus supplement, any payment is due on a warrant on a day that is not a business day, we or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. will make the payment on the next day that is a business day. Payments postponed to the next business day in this situation will be treated under the warrant indenture as if they were made on the original payment or settlement date. Postponement of this kind will not result in a default under any warrant or the warrant indenture, and, unless otherwise specified in the applicable prospectus supplement, no interest will accrue on the postponed amount from the original payment or settlement date to the next day that is a business day.

The term "business day" means, for any warrant, a day that meets all the following applicable requirements:

- for all warrants, is a Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday or Friday that is not a day on which banking institutions in New York City are
 authorized or obligated by law or executive order to close and that satisfies any other criteria specified in your prospectus supplement; and
- if the warrant has a specified currency other than U.S. dollars or euros, is also a day on which banking institutions are not authorized or obligated by law, regulation or executive order to close in the principal financial center of the country issuing the specified currency.

Paying Agent

We may appoint one or more financial institutions to act as our or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s paying agents, at whose designated offices warrants in non-global entry form may be surrendered for payment at their payment or settlement date. We call each of those offices a paying agent. We may add, replace or terminate paying agents from time to time. We may also choose to act as our own paying agent. We must notify the trustee of changes in the paying agents.

Unclaimed Payments

Regardless of who acts as paying agent, all amounts in cash paid by us to a paying agent that remain unclaimed at the end of two years after the amount is due to a holder will be repaid or redelivered to us or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. After that two-year period, the holder may look

only to us or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. for payment of any amount in cash, and not to the trustee, any other paying agent or anyone else.

Notices

Notices to be given to holders of a global warrant will be given only to the depositary, in accordance with its applicable policies as in effect from time to time. Notices to be given to holders of warrants not in global form will be sent by mail to the respective addresses of the holders as they appear in the trustee's records, and will be deemed given when mailed. Neither the failure to give any notice to a particular holder, nor any defect in a notice given to a particular holder, will affect the sufficiency of any notice given to another holder.

Book-entry and other indirect owners should consult their banks or brokers for information on how they will receive notices.

Guarantee by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.

The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. will fully and unconditionally guarantee the payment on the warrants, when due and payable, upon the exercise of your warrants, call for redemption or otherwise, in accordance with the terms of the warrant, the warrant indenture and the applicable prospectus supplement accompanying this prospectus. The guarantee will remain in effect until the entire payment, if any, on the warrant has been paid in full or discharged in accordance with the provisions of the warrant indenture.

Because The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. is a holding company, its ability to perform its obligations on the guarantees endorsed on the warrants will depend in part on its ability to participate in distributions of assets from its subsidiaries. We discuss these matters above under "Prospectus Summary — The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. is a Holding Company".

Our Relationship With the Trustee

The Bank of New York Mellon has provided commercial banking and other services for The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and its affiliates in the past and may do so in the future. Among other things, The Bank of New York Mellon provides The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. with a line of credit, holds debt securities issued by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and serves as trustee or agent with regard to other warrants and debt obligations of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. or its subsidiaries.

The Bank of New York Mellon is initially serving as the trustee for the senior debt securities under the senior debt indentures. We and The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. may enter into supplemental indentures to the 2008 GSFC indenture with The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee, under which our subordinated debt securities and warrants may be issued. Consequently, if The Bank of New York Mellon serves as trustee for all of those securities and if an actual or potential event of default occurs with respect to any of these securities, the trustee may be considered to have a conflicting interest for purposes of the Trust Indenture Act of 1939. In that case, the trustee may be required to resign under one or more of the indentures, including the warrant indenture, and we would be required to appoint a successor trustee. For this purpose, a "potential" event of default means an event that would be an event of default if the requirements for giving us default notice or for the default having to exist for a specific period of time were disregarded. Under the terms of the 2008 GSFC indenture, the trustee is deemed not to have a conflicting interest with respect to the 2007 GSFC indenture if an actual or potential event of default occurs with respect to the senior debt securities or warrants issued under the 2008 GSFC indenture (provided that no subordinated debt securities is seed under the 2007 GSFC indenture (provided that no subordinated debt securities are outstanding).

Under the warrant indenture, we will be required to file with the trustee any information, documents and other reports, or summaries thereof, as may be required under the Trust Indenture Act, at the times and in the manner provided under the Trust Indenture Act. However, in case of documents filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act, any such filing with the trustee will not need to be made until 15th day after such filing is actually made with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Calculation Agent

Calculations relating to warrants will be made by the calculation agent, an institution that we appoint as our agent for this purpose. That institution may include any affiliate of ours, such as Goldman, Sachs & Co. The prospectus supplement for a particular warrant will name the institution that we have appointed to act as the calculation agent for that warrant as of its original issue date. We may appoint a different institution to serve as calculation agent from time to time after the original issue date of the warrant without your consent and without notifying you of the change.

The calculation agent's determination of any amount in cash payable with respect to the warrants will be final and binding in the absence of manifest error.

All percentages resulting from any calculation relating to the warrants will be rounded upward or downward, as appropriate, to the next higher or lower one hundred-thousandth of a percentage point, e.g., 9.876541% (or .09876541) being rounded down to 9.87654% (or .0987654) and 9.876545% (or .09876545) being rounded up to 9.87655% (or .0987655). All amounts used in or resulting from any calculation relating to the warrants will be rounded upward or downward, as appropriate, to the nearest cent, in the case of U.S. dollars, or to the nearest corresponding hundredth of a unit, in the case of a currency other than U.S. dollars, with one-half cent or one-half of a corresponding hundredth of a unit or more being rounded upward.

DESCRIPTION OF UNITS WE MAY OFFER

Please note that in this section entitled "Description of Units We May Offer", references to "we", "our" and "us" refer only to GS Finance Corp. and not to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., and references to "The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc." refer only to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and not to its consolidated subsidiaries. Also, in this section, references to "holders" mean those who own units registered in their own names, on the books that we or our agent maintain for this purpose, and not those who own beneficial interests in units registered in street name or in units issued in bookentry form through one or more depositaries. Owners of beneficial interests in the units should read the section below entitled "Legal Ownership and Book-Entry Issuance".

We may issue units comprised of one or more debt securities or warrants described in this prospectus or of the foregoing and debt or equity securities of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. Each unit will be issued so that the holder of the unit is also the holder of each security included in the unit. Thus, the holder of a unit will have the rights and obligations of a holder of each included security. The unit agreement under which a unit is issued may provide that the securities included in the unit may not be held or transferred separately, at any time or at any time before a specified date.

The applicable prospectus supplement may describe:

- the designation and terms of the units and of the securities comprising the units, including whether and under what circumstances those securities may be held or transferred separately;
- · any provisions of the governing unit agreement that differ from those described below; and
- · any provisions for the issuance, payment, settlement, transfer or exchange of the units or of the securities comprising the units.

The provisions described in this section, as well as those described under "Description of Debt Securities We May Offer" and "Description of Warrants We May Offer" will apply to the securities included in each unit, to the extent relevant. If a unit includes securities of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., such securities of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. will be described in a separate prospectus.

An investment in units may involve special risks, including risks associated with indexed securities and currency-related risks if the securities comprising the units are linked to an index or are payable in or otherwise linked to a non-U.S. dollar currency. We describe some of these risks below under "Considerations Relating to Indexed Securities" and "Considerations Relating to Securities Denominated or Payable in or Linked to a Non-U.S. Dollar Currency".

Our affiliates may resell units after their initial issuance in market-making transactions. We discuss these transactions above under "Description of Debt Securities We May Offer — Information in Your Prospectus Supplement — Market-Making Transactions".

We May Issue Many Series of Units

We may issue units in such amounts and in as many distinct series as we wish. We may also "reopen" a previously issued series of units and issue additional units of that series. This section summarizes terms of the units that apply generally to all series. We describe other specific terms of your series in the applicable prospectus supplement accompanying this prospectus. Those terms may vary from the terms described here.

As you read this section, please remember that the specific terms of your units as described in your prospectus supplement will supplement and, if applicable, may modify or replace the general terms described in this section. If there are differences between your prospectus supplement and this prospectus, your prospectus supplement will control. Thus, the statements we make in this section may not apply to your units.

When we refer to a series of units, we mean all units issued as part of the same series under the applicable unit agreement. We will identify the series of which your units are a part in your prospectus supplement. When we refer to your prospectus supplement, we mean the prospectus supplement describing the specific terms of the units you purchase.

Unit Agreements

The units will be issued under one or more unit agreements to be entered into among us, The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., as guarantor, and a bank or other financial institution, as unit agent. We may add, replace or terminate unit agents from time to time. We may also choose to act as our own unit agent, and we may select Goldman, Sachs & Co. or another of our affiliates to perform this role. We will identify the unit agreement under which your units will be issued and the unit agent under that agreement in your prospectus supplement. In some cases, we may issue units under one of our indentures. Securities included in a unit will be governed by their respective governing documents.

We will file the unit agreement, when executed, under which we issue your units with the SEC as an exhibit to an amendment to the registration statement of which this prospectus is a part. See "Available Information" above for information on how to obtain a copy of a unit agreement when it is filed.

General Provisions of a Unit Agreement

This following provisions will generally apply to all unit agreements unless otherwise stated in the applicable prospectus supplement.

Enforcement of Rights

The unit agent under a unit agreement will act solely as our agent in connection with the units issued under that agreement. The unit agent will not assume any obligation or relationship of agency or trust for or with any holders of those units or of the securities comprising those units. The unit agent will not be obligated to take any action on behalf of those holders to enforce or protect their rights under the units or the included securities.

Except as described in the next paragraph, a holder of a unit may, without the consent of the unit agent or any other holder, enforce its rights as holder under any security included in the unit, in accordance with the terms of that security and the warrant indenture or unit agreement under which that security is issued. Those terms are described elsewhere in this prospectus under the sections relating to debt securities and warrants or the prospectus relating to the relevant debt or equity securities of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, a unit agreement may limit or otherwise affect the ability of a holder of units issued under that agreement to enforce its rights, including any right to bring a legal action, with respect to those units or any securities, other than debt securities and warrants issued under the warrant indenture, that are included in those units. Limitations of this kind will be described in the applicable prospectus supplement.

Modifications Without Consent of Holders

We, The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and the applicable unit agent may amend any unit or unit agreement without the consent of any holder:

- · to cure any ambiguity;
- · to cure, correct or supplement any defective or inconsistent provision; or
- to make any other change that we believe is necessary or desirable and will not adversely affect the interests of the affected holders in any
 material respect.

Neither we nor The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. needs any approval to make changes that affect only units to be issued after the changes take effect. We may also make changes that do not adversely affect a particular unit in any material respect, even if they adversely affect other units in a material respect. In those cases, neither we nor The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. needs to obtain the approval of the holder of the unaffected unit; we and The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. need only obtain any required approvals from the holders of the affected units.

The foregoing applies also to any security issued under a unit agreement, as the governing document.

Modifications With Consent of Holders

Neither we nor The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. may amend any particular unit or a unit agreement with respect to any particular unit unless we and The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. obtain the consent of the holder of that unit, if the amendment would:

- impair any right of the holder to exercise or enforce any right under a security included in the unit if the terms of that security require the consent of the holder to any changes that would impair the exercise or enforcement of that right; or
- reduce the percentage of outstanding units of any series or the consent of whose holders is required to amend that series, or the applicable unit
 agreement with respect to that series, as described below.

Any other change to a particular unit agreement and the units issued under that agreement would require the following approval:

- If the change affects only the units of a particular series issued under that agreement, the change must be approved by the holders of a majority
 of the outstanding units of that series.
- If the change affects the units of more than one series issued under that agreement, it must be approved by the holders of a majority of all
 outstanding units of all series affected by the change, with the units of all the affected series voting together as one class for this purpose.

These provisions regarding changes with majority approval also apply to changes affecting any securities issued under a unit agreement, as the governing document.

In each case, the required approval must be given by written consent.

Unit Agreements Will Not Be Qualified Under Trust Indenture Act

No unit agreement will be qualified as an indenture, and no unit agent will be required to qualify as a trustee, under the Trust Indenture Act.

Therefore, holders of units issued under unit agreements will not have the protections of the Trust Indenture Act with respect to their units; in such a case, if any of the component securities of the units are issued under a governing document qualified under the

Trust Indenture Act, the holders will have the protections of the Trust Indenture Act with respect to such component securities as holders of such component securities.

Mergers and Similar Transactions Permitted; No Restrictive Covenants or Events of Default

The unit agreements will not restrict our ability to merge or consolidate with, or sell our or its assets to, another corporation or other entity or to engage in any other transactions. If at any time we or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. merges or consolidates with, or sells our or its assets substantially as an entirety to, another corporation or other entity, the successor entity will succeed to and assume our or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s obligations under the unit agreements. We or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. will then be relieved of any further obligation under these agreements.

The unit agreements will not include any restrictions on The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s ability to put liens on its assets, including its interests in its subsidiaries other than Goldman, Sachs & Co., nor will they restrict our or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s ability to sell our or its assets. The unit agreements also will not provide for any events of default or remedies upon the occurrence of any events of default.

Governing Law

The unit agreements and the units will be governed by New York law.

Form, Exchange and Transfer

Each unit will be issued in global — *i.e.*, book-entry — form only. Units in book-entry form will be represented by a global security registered in the name of a depositary, which will be the holder of all the units represented by the global security. Those who own beneficial interests in a unit will do so through participants in the depositary's clearing system, and the rights of these indirect owners will be governed solely by the applicable procedures of the depositary and its participants. We describe book-entry securities below under "Legal Ownership and Book-Entry Issuance".

In addition, each unit will be issued in registered form, unless we say otherwise in the applicable prospectus supplement. Bearer securities would be subject to special provisions, as we describe below under "Considerations Relating to Securities Issued in Bearer Form".

Each unit and all securities comprising the unit will be issued in the same form.

If we issue any units in registered, non-global form, the following will apply to them.

The units will be issued in the denominations stated in the applicable prospectus supplement. Holders may exchange their units for units of smaller denominations or combined into fewer units of larger denominations, as long as the total amount is not changed.

- Holders may exchange or transfer their units at the office of the unit agent. Holders may also replace lost, stolen, destroyed or mutilated units at that office. We may appoint another entity to perform these functions or perform them ourselves.
- Holders will not be required to pay a service charge to transfer or exchange their units, but they may be required to pay for any tax or other governmental charge associated with the transfer or exchange. The transfer or exchange, and any replacement, will be made only if our transfer agent is satisfied with the holder's proof of legal ownership. The transfer agent may also require an indemnity before replacing any units.

• If we have the right to redeem, accelerate or settle any units before their maturity, and we exercise our right as to less than all those units or other securities, we may block the exchange or transfer of those units during the period beginning 15 days before the day we mail the notice of exercise and ending on the day of that mailing, in order to freeze the list of holders to prepare the mailing. We may also refuse to register transfers of or exchange any unit selected for early settlement, except that we will continue to permit transfers and exchanges of the unsettled portion of any unit being partially settled. We may also block the transfer or exchange of any unit in this manner if the unit includes securities that are or may be selected for early settlement.

Only the depositary will be entitled to transfer or exchange a unit in global form, since it will be the sole holder of the unit.

Payments and Notices

In making payments and giving notices with respect to our units, we will follow the procedures we plan to use with respect to our debt securities, where applicable. We describe those procedures above under "Description of Debt Securities We May Offer — Payment Mechanics for Debt Securities" and "Description of Debt Securities We May Offer — Notices".

Guarantee by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.

The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. will fully and unconditionally guarantee the payment on our own securities included in the units, when due and payable, upon maturity, exercise, call for redemption or otherwise, as the case may be, in accordance with the terms of our securities included in the units, the relevant indenture and the applicable prospectus supplement accompanying this prospectus. The guarantee will remain in effect until the entire payment, if any, on our securities included in the unit has been paid in full or discharged in accordance with the provisions of the relevant indenture.

Because The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. is a holding company, its ability to perform its obligations on the guarantees endorsed on our securities included in the units will depend in part on its ability to participate in distributions of assets from its subsidiaries. We discuss these matters above under "Prospectus Summary — The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. is a Holding Company".

GS FINANCE CORP.

Please note that in this section entitled "GS Finance Corp", references to "we", "our" and "us" refer only to GS Finance Corp. and not to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., and references to "The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc." refer only to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and not to its consolidated subsidiaries.

General

GS Finance Corp. is a corporation formed under the Delaware General Corporation Law by filing a certificate of incorporation with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware. GS Finance Corp. is a wholly owned subsidiary of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.

GS Finance Corp. was formed for the exclusive purpose of:

- issuing its common stock to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.;
- · issuing its debt securities, warrants and units to the public;
- · lending the net proceeds from the offering of its securities to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and/or its subsidiaries; and
- · engaging in any related or incidental activities.

The principal executive office of GS Finance Corp. is located at 200 West Street, New York, New York 10282.

Activities of GS Finance Corp.

GS Finance Corp.'s principal business objective is (i) to issue its debt securities, warrants and units to the public and (ii) to lend the net proceeds from the offering of its securities to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and/or its subsidiaries.

As described in other sections of this prospectus, GS Finance Corp. will issue its securities pursuant to the 2007 GSFC indenture, the 2008 GSFC indenture, a subordinated debt indenture, a warrant indenture or one or more unit agreements, as the case may be. GS Finance Corp.'s debt securities, warrants and units will be fully and unconditionally guaranteed by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.

The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and GS Finance Corp. have entered into an intercompany loan agreement, pursuant to which The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. promises to borrow, and GS Finance Corp. to lend, the net proceeds from the offering of GS Finance Corp.'s securities. GS Finance Corp. will receive payment from The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. pursuant to the terms of the intercompany loan agreement and will use the proceeds to satisfy its obligation to the holders of securities of GS Finance Corp.

Management of GS Finance Corp.

As of the date of this prospectus, the board of directors of GS Finance Corp. consists of three members, Manda J. D'Agata, Steven M. Bunson and Rajashree Datta. The directors will serve until their successors are duly elected and qualified. GS Finance Corp. will have at least two officers. The names and titles of the initial officers of GS Finance Corp. are set forth below:

Manda J. D'Agata President

Ellis Whipple Vice President and Treasurer
Kenneth L. Josselyn General Counsel and Secretary

Julie Hausen Associate General Counsel and Assistant Secretary

Matthew E. Tropp Associate General Counsel and Assistant Secretary

Russell A. Broome Assistant Secretary
Steven M. Bunson Assistant Secretary
Nabanita Chaterjee Assistant Secretary
Rajashree Datta Assistant Treasurer
Brian D. Glass Assistant Treasurer
Henry S. Webb Assistant Treasurer
James J. White, Jr. Assistant Treasurer

All of the officers of GS Finance Corp. are also officers or employees of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. or its affiliates.

Ownership of GS Finance Corp.

Out of 100 shares of authorized common stock of GS Finance Corp., one share is currently issued and outstanding. The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. is the sole shareholder of all currently issued and outstanding stock of GS Finance Corp.

Guarantee by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.

The debt securities, warrants and units issued by GS Finance Corp. will be fully and unconditionally guaranteed by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. as described in this prospectus. We expect that the guarantee of securities of GS Finance Corp. other than subordinated debt securities will rank equally in right of payment with all senior indebtedness of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., whereas the guarantee of subordinated debt securities of GS Finance Corp. will be subordinate and junior in right of payment to all senior indebtedness of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. The terms of the guarantee may be provided in more detail in the applicable prospectus supplement.

Because The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. is a holding company, its ability to perform its obligations on the guarantees endorsed on the debt securities, warrants or units issued by GS Finance Corp. depend in part on its ability to participate in distributions of assets from its subsidiaries. We discuss these matters above under "Prospectus Summary — The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. is a Holding Company".

LEGAL OWNERSHIP AND BOOK-ENTRY ISSUANCE

In this section, we describe special considerations that will apply to registered securities issued in global — *i.e.*, book-entry — form. First we describe the difference between legal ownership and indirect ownership of registered securities. Then we describe special provisions that apply to global securities.

Who Is the Legal Owner of a Registered Security?

Each debt security, warrant and unit in registered form will be represented either by a certificate issued in definitive form to a particular investor or by one or more global securities representing the entire issuance of securities. We refer to those who have securities registered in their own names, on the books that we or the trustee or other agent maintain for this purpose, as the "holders" of those securities. These persons are the legal holders of the securities. We refer to those who, indirectly through others, own beneficial interests in securities that are not registered in their own names as indirect owners of those securities. As we discuss below, indirect owners are not legal holders, and investors in securities issued in book-entry form or in street name will be indirect owners.

Book-Entry Owners

Each security will be issued in book-entry form only. This means securities will be represented by one or more global securities registered in the name of a financial institution that holds them as depositary on behalf of other financial institutions that participate in the depositary's book-entry system. These participating institutions, in turn, hold beneficial interests in the securities on behalf of themselves or their customers.

Under each indenture, only the person in whose name a security is registered is recognized as the holder of that security. Consequently, for securities issued in global form, we will recognize only the depositary as the holder of the securities and we will make all payments on the securities to the depositary. The depositary passes along the payments it receives to its participants, which in turn pass the payments along to their customers who are the beneficial owners. The depositary and its participants do so under agreements they have made with one another or with their customers; they are not obligated to do so under the terms of the securities.

As a result, investors will not own securities directly. Instead, they will own beneficial interests in a global security, through a bank, broker or other financial institution that participates in the depositary's book-entry system or holds an interest through a participant. As long as the securities are issued in global form, investors will be indirect owners, and not holders, of the securities.

Street Name Owners

In the future we may terminate a global security or issue securities initially in non-global form. In these cases, investors may choose to hold their securities in their own names or in street name. Securities held by an investor in street name would be registered in the name of a bank, broker or other financial institution that the investor chooses, and the investor would hold only a beneficial interest in those securities through an account he or she maintains at that institution.

For securities held in street name, we will recognize only the intermediary banks, brokers and other financial institutions in whose names the securities are registered as the holders of those securities and we will make all payments on those securities, including deliveries of any property other than cash, to them. These institutions pass along the payments they receive to their customers who are the beneficial owners, but only because they agree to do so in their customer agreements or because they are legally required to do so. Investors who hold securities in street name will be indirect owners, not holders, of those securities.

Legal Holders

Our obligations, the obligations of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., as guarantor, as well as the obligations of the trustee under any indenture and the obligations, if any, of unit agents and any other third parties employed by us, the trustee or any of those agents, run only to the holders of the securities. Neither we nor The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. has any obligations to investors who hold beneficial interests in global securities, in street name or by any other indirect means. This will be the case whether an investor chooses to be an indirect owner of a security or has no choice because we are issuing the securities only in global form.

For example, once we or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. make a payment or give a notice to the holder, neither we nor The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. have any further responsibility for that payment or notice even if that holder is required, under agreements with depositary participants or customers or by law, to pass it along to the indirect owners but does not do so. Similarly, if we or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. wants to obtain the approval of the holders for any purpose — e.g., to amend the warrant indenture for a particular series of warrants or to relieve us of the consequences of a default or of our obligation to comply with a particular provision of an indenture — we or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. would seek the approval only from the holders, and not the indirect owners, of the relevant securities. Whether and how the holders contact the indirect owners is up to the holders.

When we refer to "you" in this prospectus, we mean those who invest in the securities being offered by this prospectus, whether they are the holders or only indirect owners of those securities. When we refer to "your securities" in this prospectus, we mean the securities in which you will hold a direct or indirect interest.

Special Considerations for Indirect Owners

If you hold securities through a bank, broker or other financial institution, either in book-entry form or in street name, you should check with your own institution to find out:

- · how it handles securities payments and notices;
- · whether it imposes fees or charges;
- · whether and how you can instruct it to exercise any rights under the warrants;
- · how it would handle a request for the holders' consent, if ever required;
- whether and how you can instruct it to send you securities registered in your own name so you can be a holder, if that is permitted in the future;
- how it would exercise rights under the securities if there were a default or other event triggering the need for holders to act to protect their interests; and
- · if the securities are in book-entry form, how the depositary's rules and procedures will affect these matters.

What Is a Global Security?

Each security will be issued in book-entry form only. Each security issued in book-entry form will be represented by a global security that we deposit with and register in the name of one or more financial institutions or clearing systems, or their nominees, which we select. A financial institution or clearing system that we select for any security for this purpose is called the "depositary" for that security. A security will usually have only one depositary but it may have more.

Each security will have one or more of the following as the depositaries:

- The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York, which is known as "DTC";
- · a financial institution holding the securities on behalf of Euroclear Bank SA/NV, which is known as "Euroclear";
- · a financial institution holding the securities on behalf of Clearstream Banking, société anonyme, which is known as "Clearstream"; and
- · any other clearing system or financial institution named in the applicable prospectus supplement.

The depositaries named above may also be participants in one another's clearing systems. Thus, for example, if DTC is the depositary for a global security, investors may hold beneficial interests in that security through Euroclear or Clearstream, as DTC participants. The depositary or depositaries for your securities will be named in your prospectus supplement; if none is named, the depositary will be DTC.

A global security may represent one or any other number of individual securities. Generally, all securities represented by the same global security will have the same terms. We may, however, issue a global security that represents multiple securities of the same kind, such as debt securities, that have different terms and are issued at different times. We call this kind of global security a master global security. Your prospectus supplement will not indicate whether your securities are represented by a master global security.

A global security may not be transferred to or registered in the name of anyone other than the depositary or its nominee, unless special termination situations arise. We describe those situations below under "— Holder's Option to Obtain a Non-Global Security; Special Situations When a Global Security Will Be Terminated". If termination occurs, we may issue the securities through another book-entry clearing system or decide that the securities may no longer be held through any book-entry clearing system.

The depositary, or its nominee, will be the sole registered owner and holder of all securities represented by a global security, and investors will be permitted to own only indirect interests in a global security. Indirect interests must be held by means of an account with a broker, bank or other financial institution that in turn has an account with the depositary or with another institution that does. Thus, an investor whose security is represented by a global security will not be a holder of the security, but only an indirect owner of an interest in the global security.

Special Considerations for Global Securities

As an indirect owner, an investor's rights relating to a global security will be governed by the account rules of the depositary and those of the investor's financial institution or other intermediary through which it holds its interest (e.g., Euroclear or Clearstream, if DTC is the depositary), as well as general laws relating to securities transfers. We do not recognize this type of investor or any intermediary as a holder of securities and instead deal only with the depositary that holds the global security.

If securities are issued only in the form of a global security, an investor should be aware of the following:

An investor cannot cause the securities to be registered in his or her own name, and cannot obtain non-global certificates for his or her interest
in the securities, except in the special situations we describe below;

- An investor will be an indirect holder and must look to his or her own bank or broker for payments on the securities and protection of his or her legal rights relating to the securities, as we describe above under "— Who Is the Legal Owner of a Registered Security?":
- An investor may not be able to sell interests in the securities to some insurance companies and other institutions that are required by law to own their securities in non-book-entry form;
- An investor may not be able to pledge his or her interest in a global security in circumstances where certificates representing the securities must be delivered to the lender or other beneficiary of the pledge in order for the pledge to be effective;
- The depositary's policies will govern payments, deliveries, transfers, exchanges, notices and other matters relating to an investor's interest in a
 global security, and those policies may change from time to time. We, the trustee and unit agents will have no responsibility for any aspect of the
 depositary's policies, actions or records of ownership interests in a global security. We, the trustee and unit agents also do not supervise the
 depositary in any way;
- The depositary will require that those who purchase and sell interests in a global security within its book-entry system use immediately available funds and your broker or bank may require you to do so as well; and
- Financial institutions that participate in the depositary's book-entry system and through which an investor holds its interest in the global securities, directly or indirectly, may also have their own policies affecting payments, deliveries, transfers, exchanges, notices and other matters relating to the securities, and those policies may change from time to time. For example, if you hold an interest in a global security through Euroclear or Clearstream, when DTC is the depositary, Euroclear or Clearstream, as applicable, will require those who purchase and sell interests in that security through them to use immediately available funds and comply with other policies and procedures, including deadlines for giving instructions as to transactions that are to be effected on a particular day. There may be more than one financial intermediary in the chain of ownership for an investor. Neither we nor The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. monitors or is responsible for the policies or actions or records of ownership interests of any of those intermediaries.

Holder's Option to Obtain a Non-Global Security; Special Situations When a Global Security Will Be Terminated

If we issue any particular securities or series of securities in book-entry form but we choose to give the beneficial owners of those particular securities or series of securities the right to obtain non-global securities, any beneficial owner entitled to obtain non-global securities may do so by following the applicable procedures of the depositary, any transfer agent or registrar for those securities or that series of securities and that owner's bank, broker or other financial institution through which that owner holds its beneficial interest in the securities. For example, in the case of a global security representing debt securities, a beneficial owner will be entitled to obtain a non-global security representing its interest by making a written request to the transfer agent or other agent designated by us. If you are entitled to request a non-global certificate and wish to do so, you will need to allow sufficient lead time to enable us or our agent to prepare the requested certificate.

In addition, in a few special situations described below, a global security will be terminated and interests in it will be exchanged for certificates in non-global form representing the securities it represented. After that exchange, the choice of whether to hold the securities directly or in street name will be up to the investor. Investors must consult their own banks or brokers to find out how to have their interests in a global security transferred on termination to their own names, so that they will be holders. We have described the rights of holders and street name investors above under "— Who Is the Legal Owner of a Registered Security?".

The special situations for termination of a global security are as follows:

- if the depositary notifies us that it is unwilling, unable or no longer qualified to continue as depositary for that global security and we do not appoint another institution to act as depositary within 60 days;
- · if we notify the trustee or unit agent, as applicable, that we wish to terminate that global security; or
- in the case of a global security representing debt securities or warrants issued under an indenture, if an event of default has occurred with regard to such securities and has not been cured or waived.

DTC's current rules provide that it would notify its participants of a request by us to terminate a global security, but will only withdraw beneficial interests from the global security at the request of each DTC participant.

If a global security is terminated, only the depositary, and not we, The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., the trustee for any debt securities or warrants or the unit agent for any units, is responsible for deciding the names of the institutions in whose names the securities represented by the global security will be registered and, therefore, who will be the holders of those securities.

Considerations Relating to Euroclear and Clearstream

Euroclear and Clearstream are securities clearing systems in Europe. Both systems clear and settle securities transactions between their participants through electronic, book-entry delivery of securities against payment.

Euroclear and Clearstream may be depositaries for a global security. In addition, if DTC is the depositary for a global security, Euroclear and Clearstream may hold interests in the global security as participants in DTC.

As long as any global security is held by Euroclear or Clearstream, as depositary, you may hold an interest in the global security only through an organization that participates, directly or indirectly, in Euroclear or Clearstream. If Euroclear or Clearstream is the depositary for a global security and there is no depositary in the United States, you will not be able to hold interests in that global security through any securities clearance system in the United States

Payments, deliveries, transfers, exchanges, notices and other matters relating to the securities made through Euroclear or Clearstream must comply with the rules and procedures of those systems. Those clearing systems could change their rules and procedures at any time. Neither we nor The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. has any control over those systems or their participants, and neither we nor The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. take any responsibility for their activities. Transactions between participants in Euroclear or Clearstream, on one hand, and participants in DTC, on the other hand, when DTC is the depositary, would also be subject to DTC's rules and procedures.

Special Timing Considerations for Transactions in Euroclear and Clearstream

Investors will be able to make and receive through Euroclear and Clearstream payments, deliveries, transfers, exchanges, notices and other transactions involving any securities held through those clearing systems only on days when those systems are open for business. These clearing systems may not be open for business on days when banks, brokers and other institutions are open for business in the United States.

In addition, because of time-zone differences, U.S. investors who hold their interests in the securities through these clearing systems and wish to transfer their interests, or to receive or make a payment or delivery or exercise any other right with respect to their interests, on a particular day may find that the transaction will not be effected until the next business day in Luxembourg or Brussels, as applicable. Thus, investors who wish to exercise rights that expire on a particular day may need to act before the expiration date. In addition, investors who hold their interests through both DTC and Euroclear or Clearstream may need to make special arrangements to finance any purchases or sales of their interests between the U.S. and European clearing systems, and those transactions may settle later than would be the case for transactions within one clearing system.

CONSIDERATIONS RELATING TO FLOATING RATE DEBT SECURITIES

Changes in Banks' Inter-bank Lending Rate Reporting Practices or the Method Pursuant to Which the LIBOR Rates Are Determined May Adversely Affect the Value of Your Floating Rate Debt Securities

Beginning in 2008, concerns have been raised that some of the member banks surveyed by the British Bankers' Association (the "BBA") in connection with the calculation of daily LIBOR rates may have been under-reporting the inter-bank lending rate applicable to them in order to avoid an appearance of capital insufficiency or adverse reputational or other consequences that may result from reporting higher inter-bank lending rates. Inquiries remain ongoing, including investigations by regulators and governmental authorities in various jurisdictions, and if such under-reporting occurred, it may have resulted in the LIBOR rate being artificially low. If any such under-reporting still exists and some or all of the member banks discontinue such practice, there may be a resulting sudden or prolonged upward movement in LIBOR rates. In addition, in August 2008 the BBA announced that it was changing the LIBOR rate-fixing process by increasing the number of banks surveyed to set the LIBOR rate. The BBA has taken steps intended to strengthen the oversight of the process and review biannually the composition of the panels of banks surveyed to set the LIBOR rate. Any changes in the method pursuant to which the LIBOR rates are determined, or the development of a widespread market view that LIBOR rates. If that were to occur, the level of interest payments and the value of the floating rate debt securities may be adversely affected. If your floating rate debt securities are subject to a maximum rate specified in your prospectus supplement or pricing supplement, you may not benefit from any such increase in LIBOR rates because the interest on your floating rate debt securities may be significantly less than it would have been had you invested in a similar investment instrument not subject to such a maximum interest rate.

CONSIDERATIONS RELATING TO SECURITIES ISSUED IN BEARER FORM

If we issue securities in bearer, rather than registered, form, those securities will be subject to special provisions described in this section. This section primarily describes provisions relating to debt securities issued in bearer form. Other provisions may apply to securities of other kinds issued in bearer form. To the extent the provisions described in this section are inconsistent with those described elsewhere in this prospectus, they supersede those described elsewhere with regard to any bearer securities. Otherwise, the relevant provisions described elsewhere in this prospectus will apply to bearer securities.

Temporary and Permanent Bearer Global Securities

If we issue securities in bearer form, all securities of the same series (or of the same tranche, in the case of senior debt securities issued under the 2007 GSFC indenture) and kind will initially be represented by a temporary bearer global security, which we will deposit with a common depositary for Euroclear and Clearstream. Euroclear and Clearstream will credit the account of each of their subscribers with the amount of securities the subscriber purchases. We will promise to exchange the temporary bearer global security for a permanent bearer global security, which we will deliver to the common depositary upon the later of the following two dates:

- the date that is 40 days after the later of (a) the completion of the distribution of the securities as determined by the underwriter, dealer or agent and (b) the closing date for the sale of the securities by us; we may extend this date as described below under "— Extensions for Further Issuances": and
- the date on which Euroclear and Clearstream provide us or our agent with the necessary tax certificates described below under "— U.S. Tax Certificate Required".

Unless we say otherwise in the applicable prospectus supplement, owners of beneficial interests in a permanent bearer global security will be able to exchange those interests at their option, in whole but not in part, for:

- non-global securities in bearer form with interest coupons attached, if applicable; or
- · non-global securities in registered form without coupons attached.

A beneficial owner will be able to make this exchange by giving us or our designated agent 60 days' prior written notice in accordance with the terms of the securities.

Extensions for Further Issuances

Without the consent of the trustee, any holders or any other person, we may issue additional securities identical to a prior issue from time to time. If we issue additional securities before the date on which we would otherwise be required to exchange the temporary bearer global security representing the prior issue for a permanent bearer global security as described above, that date will be extended until the 40th day after the completion of the distribution and the closing, whichever is later, for the additional securities. Extensions of this kind may be repeated if we sell additional identical securities. As a result of these extensions, beneficial interests in the temporary bearer global security may not be exchanged for interests in a permanent bearer global security until the 40th day after the additional securities have been distributed and sold.

U.S. Tax Certificate Required

Neither we nor The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. will pay interest or other amounts in cash in respect of any portion of a temporary bearer global security unless and until Euroclear or Clearstream delivers to us or our agent a tax certificate with regard to the owners of the beneficial interests in that portion of the global security. Also, we will not exchange any portion of a temporary bearer global

security for a permanent bearer global security unless and until we receive from Euroclear or Clearstream a tax certificate with regard to the owners of the beneficial interests in the portion to be exchanged. In each case, this tax certificate must state that each of the relevant owners:

- is not a United States person, as defined below under "- Limitations on Issuance of Bearer Securities";
- is a foreign branch of a United States financial institution purchasing for its own account or for resale, or is a United States person who acquired the security through a financial institution of this kind and who holds the security through that financial institution on the date of certification, provided in either case that the financial institution provides a certificate to us or the distributor selling the security to it stating that it agrees to comply with the requirements of Section 165(j)(3)(A), (B) or (C) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code and the U.S. Treasury Regulations under that Section; or
- is a financial institution holding for purposes of resale during the "restricted period", as defined in U.S. Treasury Regulations Section 1.163-5(c) (2)(i)(D)(7). A financial institution of this kind, whether or not it is also described in either of the two preceding bullet points, must certify that it has not acquired the security for purposes of resale directly or indirectly to a United States person or to a person within the United States or its possessions.

The tax certificate must be signed by an authorized person satisfactory to us.

No one who owns an interest in a temporary bearer global security will receive payment of any amount in cash in respect of its interest, and will not be permitted to exchange its interest for an interest in a permanent bearer global security or a security in any other form, unless we or our agent have received the required tax certificate on its behalf.

Special requirements and restrictions imposed by United States federal tax laws and regulations will apply to debt securities issued in bearer form. We describe these below under "— Limitations on Issuance of Bearer Debt Securities".

Legal Ownership of Bearer Securities

Securities in bearer form are not registered in any name. Whoever is the bearer of the certificate representing a security in bearer form is the legal owner of that security. Legal title and ownership of bearer securities will pass by delivery of the certificates representing the securities. Thus, when we use the term "holder" in this prospectus with regard to bearer securities, we mean the bearer of those securities.

The common depositary for Euroclear and Clearstream will be the bearer, and thus the holder and legal owner, of both the temporary and permanent bearer global securities described above. Investors in those securities will own beneficial interests in the securities represented by those global securities; they will be only indirect owners, not holders or legal owners, of the securities.

As long as the common depositary is the bearer of any bearer security in global form, the common depositary will be considered the sole legal owner and holder of the securities represented by the bearer security in global form. Ownership of beneficial interests in any bearer security in global form will be shown on records maintained by Euroclear or Clearstream, as applicable, or by the common depositary on their behalf, and by the direct and indirect participants in their clearing systems, and ownership interests can be held and transferred only through those records. We or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. will pay any amounts owing with respect to a bearer global security only to the common depositary.

Neither we, The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., the trustee nor any agent will recognize any owner of indirect interests as a holder or legal owner. Nor will we, The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., the trustee or any agent have any responsibility for the ownership records or practices of Euroclear or Clearstream, the common depositary or any direct or indirect participants in those clearing systems or for any payments, transfers, deliveries, notices or other transactions within those clearing systems, all of which will be subject to the rules and procedures of those clearing systems and participants. If you own an indirect interest in a bearer global security, you must look only to the common depositary for Euroclear or Clearstream, and to their direct and indirect participants through which you hold your interest, for your ownership rights. You should read the section above entitled "Legal Ownership and Book-Entry Issuance" for more information about holding interests through Euroclear and Clearstream.

Payment and Exchange of Non-Global Bearer Securities

Payments owing on non-global bearer securities will be made, in the case of interest payments, only to the holder of the relevant coupon after the coupon is surrendered to the paying agent. In all other cases, payments and deliveries will be made only to the holder of the certificate representing the relevant security after the certificate is surrendered to the paying agent.

Non-global bearer securities, with all unmatured coupons relating to the securities, if any, may be exchanged for a like aggregate amount of non-global bearer or registered securities of like kind. Non-global registered securities may be exchanged for a like aggregate amount of non-global registered securities of like kind, as described above in the sections on the different types of securities we may offer. However, we will not issue bearer securities in exchange for any registered securities.

Replacement certificates and coupons for non-global bearer securities will not be issued in lieu of any lost, stolen or destroyed certificates and coupons unless we and our transfer agent receive evidence of the loss, theft or destruction, and an indemnity against liabilities, satisfactory to us and our agent. Upon redemption or any other settlement before the stated maturity or expiration, as well as upon any exchange, of a non-global bearer security, the holder will be required to surrender all unmatured coupons to us or our designated agent. If any unmatured coupons are not surrendered, we, The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. or our agent may deduct the amount of interest relating to those coupons from the amount otherwise payable or we, The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. or our agent may demand an indemnity against liabilities satisfactory to us and our agent.

We or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. may make payments, in respect of bearer securities in global form in any manner acceptable to us or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and the depositary.

Notices

If we are required to give notice to the holders of bearer securities, we will do so by publication in a daily newspaper of general circulation in a city in Western Europe. The term "daily newspaper" means a newspaper that is published on each day, other than a Saturday, Sunday or holiday, in the relevant city. If these bearer securities are listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange and its rules so require, that city will be Luxembourg and we expect that newspaper to be the *d'Wort*. If publication in Luxembourg is impractical, the publication will be made elsewhere in Western Europe. A notice of this kind will be presumed to have been received on the date it is first published. If we cannot give notice as described in this paragraph because the publication of any newspaper is suspended or it is otherwise impractical to publish the notice, then we will give notice in another form. That alternate form of notice will be deemed to be sufficient notice to each holder. Neither the failure to give notice to a particular holder, nor any defect in a notice given to a particular holder, will affect the sufficiency of any notice given to another holder.

We may give any required notice with regard to bearer securities in global form to the common depositary for the securities, in accordance with its applicable procedures. If these provisions do not require that notice be given by publication in a newspaper, we may omit giving notice by publication.

Limitations on Issuance of Bearer Debt Securities

In compliance with United States federal income tax laws and regulations, debt securities issued in bearer form, including those in global form, will not be offered, sold, resold or delivered, directly or indirectly, in the United States or its possessions or to United States persons, as defined below, except as otherwise permitted by U.S. Treasury Regulations Section 1.163-5(c)(2)(i)(D). Any underwriters, dealers or agents participating in the offerings of debt securities issued in bearer form, directly or indirectly, must agree that they will not, in connection with the original issuance of any debt securities issued in bearer form or during the restricted period applicable under the Treasury Regulations cited earlier, offer, sell, resell or deliver, directly or indirectly, any debt securities issued in bearer form in the United States or its possessions or to United States persons, other than as permitted by the applicable Treasury Regulations described above.

In addition, any underwriters, dealers or agents must have procedures reasonably designed to ensure that their employees or agents who are directly engaged in selling debt securities issued in bearer form are aware of the above restrictions on the offering, sale, resale or delivery of debt securities issued in bearer form.

We will make payments on debt securities issued in bearer form only outside the United States and its possessions except as permitted by the applicable Treasury Regulations described above.

Debt securities issued in bearer form and any coupons will bear the following legend:

"Any United States person who holds this obligation will be subject to limitations under the United States income tax laws, including the limitations provided in sections 165(j) and 1287(a) of the Internal Revenue Code."

The sections referred to in this legend provide that, with exceptions, a United States person will not be permitted to deduct any loss, and will not be eligible for capital gain treatment with respect to any gain, realized on the sale, exchange or redemption of that debt security issued in bearer form or coupon.

As used in this subsection entitled "— Limitations on Issuance of Bearer Debt Securities", the term "debt securities issued in bearer form" includes debt securities issued in bearer form that are part of units. As used in this section entitled "Considerations Relating to Securities Issued in Bearer Form", "United States person" means:

- · a citizen or resident of the United States;
- a corporation or partnership, including an entity treated as a corporation or partnership for United States federal income tax purposes, created or organized in or under the laws of the United States, any state of the United States or the District of Columbia;
- an estate the income of which is subject to United States federal income taxation regardless of its source; or
- a trust if a court within the United States is able to exercise primary supervision of the administration of the trust and one or more United States persons have the authority to control all substantial decisions of the trust.

"United States" means the United States of America, including the States and the District of Columbia, and "possessions" of the United States include Puerto Rico, the U.S. Virgin Islands, Guam, American Samoa, Wake Island and the Northern Mariana Islands. In addition, some trusts treated as United States persons before August 20, 1996 may elect to continue to be so treated to the extent provided in the Treasury Regulations.

CONSIDERATIONS RELATING TO INDEXED SECURITIES

We use the term "indexed securities" to mean any of the securities described in this prospectus, or any units that include securities, whose value is linked to an underlying asset or index or another property (including one or more securities or indices of securities). Indexed securities may present a high level of risk, and investors in certain indexed securities may lose their entire investment. In addition, the treatment of indexed securities for U.S. federal income tax purposes is often unclear due to the absence of any authority specifically addressing the issues presented by any particular indexed security. Thus, if you propose to invest in indexed securities, you should independently evaluate the federal income tax consequences of purchasing an indexed security that apply in your particular circumstances. You should also read "United States Taxation" below for a discussion of U.S. tax matters.

Investors in Indexed Securities Could Lose Their Investment

The amount of principal and/or interest payable on an indexed debt security and the cash value of an indexed warrant will be determined by reference to the price, value or level of one or more securities, currencies, commodities or other properties, any other financial, economic or other measure or instrument, including the occurrence or non-occurrence of any event or circumstance, one or more indices and/or one or more baskets of any of these items. We refer to each of these as an "index". The direction and magnitude of the change in the price, value or level of the relevant index will determine the amount of principal and/or interest payable on an indexed debt security and the cash value of an indexed warrant. The terms of a particular indexed debt security may or may not include a fixed return of a percentage of the principal amount at maturity or a minimum interest rate. An indexed warrant generally will not provide for any fixed minimum settlement value. Thus, if you purchase an indexed security that does not provide a return of 100% of the principal or other amount you invest, you may lose all or a portion of the principal or other amount you invest and may receive no interest on your investment.

The Return on Indexed Securities May Be Below the Return on Similar Securities

Depending on the terms of an indexed security, as specified in the applicable pricing supplement, you may not receive any periodic interest payments or receive only very low payments on such indexed security. As a result, the overall return on such indexed security may be less than the amount you would have earned by investing the principal or other amount you invest in such indexed security in a non-indexed debt security that bears interest at a prevailing market fixed or floating rate.

The Issuer of a Security or Currency That Serves as an Index Could Take Actions That May Adversely Affect an Indexed Security

The issuer of a security that serves as an index or part of an index for an indexed security will have no involvement in the offer and sale of the indexed security and no obligations to the holder of the indexed security. The issuer may take actions, such as a merger or sale of assets, without regard to the interests of the holder. Any of these actions could adversely affect the value of a security indexed to that security or to an index of which that security is a component.

If the index for an indexed security includes a non-U.S. dollar currency or other asset denominated in a non-U.S. dollar currency, the government that issues that currency will also have no involvement in the offer and sale of the indexed security and no obligations to the holder of the indexed security. That government may take actions that could adversely affect the value of the security. See "Considerations Relating to Securities Denominated or Payable in or Linked to a Non-U.S. Dollar Currency — Government Policy Can Adversely Affect Currency Exchange Rates and an Investment in a Non-U.S. Dollar Security" below for more information about these kinds of government actions.

An Indexed Security May Be Linked to a Volatile Index, Which May Adversely Affect Your Investment

Some indices are highly volatile, which means that their value may change significantly, up or down, over a short period of time. It is impossible to predict the future performance of an index based on its historical performance. The amount of principal or interest that can be expected to become payable on an indexed debt security or the expected cash value of an indexed warrant may vary substantially from time to time. Because the amounts payable with respect to an indexed security are generally calculated based on the price, value or level of the relevant index on a specified date or over a limited period of time, volatility in the index increases the risk that the return on the indexed security may be adversely affected by a fluctuation in the level of the relevant index

The volatility of an index may be affected by financial, political, military or economic events, including governmental actions, or by the activities of participants in the relevant markets. Any of these events or activities could adversely affect the value of an indexed security.

An Index to Which a Security Is Linked Could Be Changed or Become Unavailable

Some indices compiled by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. or its other affiliates or third parties may consist of or refer to several or many different securities, commodities or currencies or other instruments or measures. The index sponsor of such an index typically reserves the right to alter the composition of the index and the manner in which the value or level of the index is calculated. Changes to the composition of an index may result in a decrease in the value of or return on an indexed security that is linked to such index. The indices for our indexed securities may include published indices of this kind or customized indices developed by us or our affiliates in connection with particular issues of indexed securities.

A published index may become unavailable, or a customized index may become impossible to calculate in the normal manner, due to events such as war, natural disasters, cessation of publication of the index or a suspension or disruption of trading in one or more securities, commodities or currencies or other instruments or measures on which the index is based. If an index becomes unavailable or impossible to calculate in the normal manner, the terms of a particular indexed security may allow us to delay determining the amount payable as principal or interest on an indexed debt security or the cash value of an indexed warrant, or we may use an alternative method to determine the value of the unavailable index. Alternative methods of valuation are generally intended to produce a value similar to the value resulting from reference to the relevant index. However, it is unlikely that any alternative method of valuation we use will produce a value identical to the value that the actual index would produce. If we use an alternative method of valuation for a security linked to an index of this kind, the value of the security, or the rate of return on it, may be lower than it otherwise would be.

Some indexed securities are linked to indices that are not commonly used or that have been developed only recently. The lack of a trading history may make it difficult to anticipate the volatility or other risks associated with an indexed security of this kind. In addition, trading in these indices or their underlying stocks, commodities or currencies or other instruments or measures, or options or futures contracts on these stocks, commodities or currencies or other instruments or measures, may be limited, which could increase their volatility and decrease the value of the related indexed securities or the rates of return on them.

We May Engage in Hedging Activities that Could Adversely Affect an Indexed Security

In order to hedge an exposure on a particular indexed security, we may, directly or through our affiliates, enter into transactions involving the securities, commodities or currencies or other instruments or measures that underlie the index for that security, or derivative instruments, such as swaps, options or futures, on the index or any of its component items. By engaging in transactions of this kind, we could adversely affect the value of an indexed security. It is possible that we could achieve substantial returns from our hedging transactions while the value of the indexed security may decline.

Information About an Index or Indices May Not Be Indicative of Future Performance

If we issue an indexed security, we may include historical information about the relevant index or indices in the applicable prospectus supplement. Any information about indices that we may provide will be furnished as a matter of information only, and you should not regard the information as indicative of the range of, or trends in, fluctuations in the relevant index or indices that may occur in the future.

We May Have Conflicts of Interest Regarding an Indexed Security

Goldman, Sachs & Co. and our other affiliates may have conflicts of interest with respect to some indexed securities. Goldman, Sachs & Co. and our other affiliates may engage in trading, including trading for hedging purposes, for their proprietary accounts or for other accounts under their management, in indexed securities and in the securities, commodities or currencies or other instruments or measures on which the index is based or in other derivative instruments related to the index or its component items. These trading activities could adversely affect the value of indexed securities. We and our affiliates may also issue or underwrite securities or derivative instruments that are linked to the same index as one or more indexed securities. By introducing competing products into the marketplace in this manner, we could adversely affect the value of an indexed security.

Goldman, Sachs & Co. or another of our affiliates may serve as calculation agent for the indexed securities and may have considerable discretion in calculating the amounts payable in respect of the securities. To the extent that Goldman, Sachs & Co. or another of our affiliates calculates or compiles a particular index, it may also have considerable discretion in performing the calculation or compilation of the index. Exercising discretion in this manner could adversely affect the value of an indexed security based on the index or the rate of return on the security.

If You Purchase an Indexed Security, You Will Have No Rights with Respect to any Underlying Index to which Such Indexed Security is Linked

Investing in an indexed security will not make you a holder of the underlying asset or index or other property. As a result, you will not have any voting rights, any right to receive dividends or other distributions or any other rights with respect to any of the index components.

CONSIDERATIONS RELATING TO SECURITIES DENOMINATED OR PAYABLE IN OR LINKED TO A NON-U.S. DOLLAR CURRENCY

If you intend to invest in a non-U.S. dollar security — e.g., a security whose principal and/or interest is payable in a currency other than U.S. dollars or that may be settled by delivery of or reference to a non-U.S. dollar currency or property denominated in or otherwise linked to a non-U.S. dollar currency — you should consult your own financial and legal advisors as to the currency risks entailed by your investment. Securities of this kind may not be an appropriate investment for investors who are unsophisticated with respect to non-U.S. dollar currency transactions.

The information in this prospectus is directed primarily to investors who are U.S. residents. Investors who are not U.S. residents should consult their own financial and legal advisors about currency-related risks particular to their investment.

An Investment in a Non-U.S. Dollar Security Involves Currency-Related Risks

An investment in a non-U.S. dollar security entails significant risks that are not associated with a similar investment in a security that is payable solely in U.S. dollars and where settlement value is not otherwise based on a non-U.S. dollar currency. These risks include the possibility of significant changes in rates of exchange between the U.S. dollar and the various non-U.S. dollar currencies or composite currencies and the possibility of the imposition or modification of foreign exchange controls or other conditions by either the United States or non-U.S. governments. These risks generally depend on factors over which we have no control, such as economic and political events and the supply of and demand for the relevant currencies in the global markets.

Changes in Currency Exchange Rates Can Be Volatile and Unpredictable

Rates of exchange between the U.S. dollar and many other currencies have been highly volatile, and this volatility may continue and perhaps spread to other currencies in the future. Fluctuations in currency exchange rates could adversely affect an investment in a security denominated in, or whose value is otherwise linked to, a specified currency other than U.S. dollars. Depreciation of the specified currency against the U.S. dollar could result in a decrease in the U.S. dollar-equivalent value of payments on the security, including the principal payable at maturity or settlement value payable upon exercise. That in turn could cause the market value of the security to fall. Depreciation of the specified currency against the U.S. dollar could result in a loss to the investor on a U.S. dollar basis.

Government Policy Can Adversely Affect Foreign Currency Exchange Rates and an Investment in a Non-U.S. Dollar Security

Foreign currency exchange rates can either float or be fixed by sovereign governments. From time to time, governments use a variety of techniques, such as intervention by a country's central bank or imposition of regulatory controls or taxes, to affect the exchange rate of their currencies. Governments may also issue a new currency to replace an existing currency or alter the exchange rate or exchange characteristics by devaluation or revaluation of a currency. Thus, a special risk in purchasing non-U.S. dollar securities is that their yields or payouts could be significantly and unpredictably affected by governmental actions. Even in the absence of governmental action directly affecting currency exchange rates, political or economic developments in the country issuing the specified currency for a non-U.S. dollar security or elsewhere could lead to significant and sudden changes in the exchange rate between the U.S. dollar and the specified currency. These changes could affect the value of the security as participants in the global currency markets move to buy or sell the specified currency or U.S. dollars in reaction to these developments.

Governments have imposed from time to time and may in the future impose exchange controls or other conditions, including taxes, with respect to the exchange or transfer of a specified currency that could affect exchange rates as well as the availability of a specified currency for a security at its maturity or on any other payment date. In addition, the ability of a holder to move currency freely out of

the country in which payment in the currency is received or to convert the currency at a freely determined market rate could be limited by governmental actions

Non-U.S. Dollar Securities May Permit Us to Make Payments in U.S. Dollars or Delay Payment If We Are Unable to Obtain the Specified Currency

Securities payable in a currency other than U.S. dollars may provide that, if the other currency is subject to convertibility, transferability, market disruption or other conditions affecting its availability at or about the time when a payment on the securities comes due because of circumstances beyond our control, we will be entitled to make the payment in U.S. dollars or delay making the payment. These circumstances could include the imposition of exchange controls or our inability to obtain the other currency because of a disruption in the currency markets. If we made payment in U.S. dollars, the exchange rate we would use would be determined in the manner described above under "Description of Debt Securities We May Offer — Payment Mechanics for Debt Securities — How We Will Make Payments Due in Other Currencies — When the Specified Currency Is Not Available." A determination of this kind may be based on limited information and would involve significant discretion on the part of our exchange rate agent, which may be an affiliate of ours. As a result, the value of the payment in U.S. dollars an investor would receive on the payment date may be less than the value of the payment the investor would have received in the other currency if it had been available, or may be zero. In addition, a government may impose extraordinary taxes on transfers of a currency. If that happens we will be entitled to deduct these taxes from any payment on securities payable in that currency.

We Will Not Adjust Non-U.S. Dollar Securities to Compensate for Changes in Foreign Currency Exchange Rates

Except as described above, we will not make any adjustment or change in the terms of a non-U.S. dollar security in the event of any change in foreign currency exchange rates for the relevant currency, whether in the event of any devaluation, revaluation or imposition of exchange or other regulatory controls or taxes or in the event of other developments affecting that currency, the U.S. dollar or any other currency. Consequently, investors in non-U.S. dollar securities will bear the risk that their investment may be adversely affected by these types of events.

In a Lawsuit for Payment on a Non-U.S. Dollar Security, an Investor May Bear Foreign Currency Exchange Risk

Our debt securities, warrants and units will be governed by New York law. Under Section 27 of the New York Judiciary Law, a state court in the State of New York rendering a judgment on a security denominated in a currency other than U.S. dollars would be required to render the judgment in the specified currency; however, the judgment would be converted into U.S. dollars at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of entry of the judgment. Consequently, in a lawsuit for payment on a security denominated in a currency other than U.S. dollars, investors would bear currency exchange risk until judgment is entered, which could be a long time.

In courts outside of New York, investors may not be able to obtain judgment in a specified currency other than U.S. dollars. For example, a judgment for money in an action based on a non-U.S. dollar security in many other U.S. federal or state courts ordinarily would be enforced in the United States only in U.S. dollars. The date used to determine the rate of conversion of the currency in which any particular security is denominated into U.S. dollars will depend upon various factors, including which court renders the judgment.

Information About Foreign Currency Exchange Rates May Not Be Indicative of Future Performance

If we issue a non-U.S. dollar security, we may include in the applicable prospectus supplement a currency supplement that provides information about historical exchange rates for the relevant non-U.S. dollar currency or currencies. Any information about exchange rates that we may provide will be furnished as a matter of information only, and you should not regard the information as indicative of the range of, or trends in, fluctuations in currency exchange rates that may occur in the future. That rate will likely differ from the exchange rate used under the terms that apply to a particular security.

Determinations Made by the Exchange Rate Agent

All determinations made by the exchange rate agent will be made in its sole discretion (except to the extent expressly provided in this prospectus or in the applicable prospectus supplement that any determination is subject to approval by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.). In the absence of manifest error, its determinations will be conclusive for all purposes and will bind all holders and us. The exchange rate agent will not have any liability for its determinations.

UNITED STATES TAXATION

This section describes the material United States federal income tax consequences of owning certain of the debt securities we are offering. The material United States federal income tax consequences of owning the debt securities described below under "— Taxation of Debt Securities — United States Holders — Indexed and Other Debt Securities", of owning securities that contain, or that represent any subordinated debt security that contains, any material term not described in this prospectus or of owning warrants and units will be described in the applicable prospectus supplement. This section is the opinion of Sullivan & Cromwell LLP, United States tax counsel to GS Finance Corp. and The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. It applies to you only if you hold your securities as capital assets for tax purposes. This section does not apply to you if you are a member of a class of holders subject to special rules, such as:

- · a dealer in securities or currencies;
- · a trader in securities that elects to use a mark-to-market method of accounting for your securities holdings;
- a bank:
- a life insurance company;
- a thrift institution;
- · a regulated investment company;
- · a tax-exempt organization;
- a person that owns offered securities that are a hedge or that are hedged against interest rate or currency risks;
- a person that purchases or sells the offered securities as part of a wash-sale for tax purposes;
- · a person that owns offered securities as part of a straddle or conversion transaction for tax purposes; or
- a United States holder (as defined below) whose functional currency for tax purposes is not the U.S. dollar.

This section is based on the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, its legislative history, existing and proposed regulations under the Internal Revenue Code, published rulings and court decisions, all as currently in effect. These laws are subject to change, possibly on a retroactive basis.

If a partnership holds the debt securities, the United States federal income tax treatment of a partner will generally depend on the status of the partner and the tax treatment of the partnership. A partner in a partnership holding the debt securities should consult its tax advisor with regard to the United States federal income tax treatment of an investment in the debt securities.

Please consult your own tax advisor concerning the consequences of owning these securities in your particular circumstances under the Internal Revenue Code and the laws of any other taxing jurisdiction.

Taxation of Debt Securities

This subsection describes the material United States federal income tax consequences of owning, selling and disposing of the debt securities we are offering, other than the debt securities described below under "— United States Holders — Indexed and Other Debt Securities", which will be described in the applicable prospectus supplement. It deals only with debt securities that are due to

mature 30 years or less from the date on which they are issued. The United States federal income tax consequences of owning debt securities that are due to mature more than 30 years from their date of issue will be discussed in the applicable prospectus supplement.

United States Holders

This subsection describes the tax consequences to a United States holder. You are a United States holder if you are a beneficial owner of a debt security and you are:

- · a citizen or resident of the United States:
- · a domestic corporation;
- · an estate whose income is subject to United States federal income tax regardless of its source; or
- a trust if a United States court can exercise primary supervision over the trust's administration and one or more United States persons are authorized to control all substantial decisions of the trust.

If you are not a United States holder, this subsection does not apply to you and you should refer to "— United States Alien Holders" below.

Payments of Interest. Except as described below in the case of interest on an original issue discount debt security that is not qualified stated interest, each as defined below under "— United States Holders — Original Issue Discount — General", you will be taxed on any interest on your debt security, whether payable in U.S. dollars or a non-U.S. dollar currency, including a composite currency or basket of currencies other than U.S. dollars, as ordinary income at the time you receive the interest or when it accrues, depending on your method of accounting for tax purposes.

Cash Basis Taxpayers

If you are a taxpayer that uses the cash receipts and disbursements method of accounting for tax purposes and you receive an interest payment that is denominated in, or determined by reference to, a non-U.S. dollar currency, you must recognize income equal to the U.S. dollar value of the interest payment, based on the exchange rate in effect on the date of receipt, regardless of whether you actually convert the payment into U.S. dollars.

Accrual Basis Taxpayers

If you are a taxpayer that uses an accrual method of accounting for tax purposes, you may determine the amount of income that you recognize with respect to an interest payment denominated in, or determined by reference to, a non-U.S. dollar currency by using one of two methods. Under the first method, you will determine the amount of income accrued based on the average exchange rate in effect during the interest accrual period or, with respect to an accrual period that spans two taxable years, that part of the period within the taxable year.

If you elect the second method, you would determine the amount of income accrued on the basis of the exchange rate in effect on the last day of the accrual period, or, in the case of an accrual period that spans two taxable years, the exchange rate in effect on the last day of the part of the period within the taxable year. Additionally, under this second method, if you receive a payment of interest within five business days of the last day of your accrual period or taxable year, you may instead translate the interest accrued into U.S. dollars at the exchange rate in effect on the day that you actually receive the interest payment. If you elect the second method, it will apply to all debt instruments that you hold at

the beginning of the first taxable year to which the election applies and to all debt instruments that you subsequently acquire. You may not revoke this election without the consent of the United States Internal Revenue Service.

When you actually receive an interest payment, including a payment attributable to accrued but unpaid interest upon the sale or retirement of your debt security, denominated in, or determined by reference to, a non-U.S. dollar currency for which you accrued an amount of income, you will recognize ordinary income or loss measured by the difference, if any, between the exchange rate that you used to accrue interest income and the exchange rate in effect on the date of receipt, regardless of whether you actually convert the payment into U.S. dollars.

Original Issue Discount.

General

If you own a debt security, other than a short-term debt security with a term of one year or less, it will be treated as an original issue discount debt security if the amount by which the debt security's stated redemption price at maturity exceeds its issue price is more than a de minimis amount. Generally, a debt security's issue price will be the first price at which a substantial amount of debt securities included in the issue of which the debt security is a part is sold to persons other than bond houses, brokers, or similar persons or organizations acting in the capacity of underwriters, placement agents, or wholesalers. A debt security stated redemption price at maturity is the total of all payments provided by the debt security that are not payments of qualified stated interest. Generally, an interest payment on a debt security is qualified stated interest if it is one of a series of stated interest payments on a debt security that are unconditionally payable at least annually at a single fixed rate, with certain exceptions for lower rates paid during some periods, applied to the outstanding principal amount of the debt security. There are special rules for variable rate debt securities that are discussed below under "— Variable Rate Debt Securities".

In general, your debt security is not an original issue discount debt security if the amount by which its stated redemption price at maturity exceeds its issue price is less than the de minimis amount of 0.25 percent of its stated redemption price at maturity multiplied by the number of complete years to its maturity. Your debt security will have de minimis original issue discount if the amount of the excess is less than the de minimis amount. If your debt security has de minimis original issue discount, you must include the de minimis amount in income as stated principal payments are made on the debt security, unless you make the election described below under "— Election to Treat All Interest as Original Issue Discount". You can determine the includible amount with respect to each such payment by multiplying the total amount of your debt security's de minimis original issue discount by a fraction equal to:

- the amount of the principal payment made divided by:
- · the stated principal amount of the debt security.

Generally, if your original issue discount debt security matures more than one year from its date of issue, you must include original issue discount in income before you receive cash attributable to that income. The amount of original issue discount that you must include in income is calculated using a constant-yield method, and generally you will include increasingly greater amounts of original issue discount in income over the life of your debt security. More specifically, you can calculate the amount of original issue discount that you must include in income by adding the daily portions of original issue discount with respect to your original issue discount debt security for each day during the taxable year or portion of the taxable year that you hold your original issue discount debt security. You can determine the daily portion by allocating to each day in any accrual period a pro rata portion of the original issue discount allocable to that accrual period. You may select an accrual period of any length with respect to your original issue discount debt security and you may vary the length of each accrual period over the term of your original issue discount debt security. However, no accrual period may be longer than one year and each scheduled payment of interest or principal on the original issue discount debt security must occur on either the first or final day of an accrual period.

You can determine the amount of original issue discount allocable to an accrual period by:

- multiplying your original issue discount debt security's adjusted issue price at the beginning of the accrual period by your debt security's yield to
 maturity; and then
- · subtracting from this figure the sum of the payments of qualified stated interest on your debt security allocable to the accrual period.

You must determine the original issue discount debt security's yield to maturity on the basis of compounding at the close of each accrual period and adjusting for the length of each accrual period. Further, you determine your original issue discount debt security's adjusted issue price at the beginning of any accrual period by:

- adding your original issue discount debt security's issue price and any accrued original issue discount for each prior accrual period; and then
- · subtracting any payments previously made on your original issue discount debt security that were not qualified stated interest payments.

If an interval between payments of qualified stated interest on your original issue discount debt security contains more than one accrual period, then, when you determine the amount of original issue discount allocable to an accrual period, you must allocate the amount of qualified stated interest payable at the end of the interval, including any qualified stated interest that is payable on the first day of the accrual period immediately following the interval, pro rata to each accrual period in the interval based on their relative lengths. In addition, you must increase the adjusted issue price at the beginning of each accrual period in the interval by the amount of any qualified stated interest that has accrued prior to the first day of the accrual period but that is not payable until the end of the interval. You may compute the amount of original issue discount allocable to an initial short accrual period by using any reasonable method if all other accrual periods, other than a final short accrual period, are of equal length.

The amount of original issue discount allocable to the final accrual period is equal to the difference between:

- · the amount payable at the maturity of your debt security, other than any payment of qualified stated interest; and
- your debt security's adjusted issue price as of the beginning of the final accrual period.

Acquisition Premium

If you purchase your debt security for an amount that is less than or equal to the sum of all amounts, other than qualified stated interest, payable on your debt security after the purchase date but is greater than the amount of your debt security's adjusted issue price, as determined above under "— General", the excess is acquisition premium. If you do not make the election described below under "— Election to Treat All Interest as Original Issue Discount", then you must reduce the daily portions of original issue discount by a fraction equal to:

• the excess of your adjusted basis in the debt security immediately after purchase over the adjusted issue price of the debt security divided by:

 the excess of the sum of all amounts payable, other than qualified stated interest, on the debt security after the purchase date over the debt security's adjusted issue price.

Pre-Issuance Accrued Interest

An election may be made to decrease the issue price of your debt security by the amount of pre-issuance accrued interest if:

- · a portion of the initial purchase price of your debt security is attributable to pre-issuance accrued interest;
- · the first stated interest payment on your debt security is to be made within one year of your debt security's issue date; and
- · the payment will equal or exceed the amount of pre-issuance accrued interest.

If this election is made, a portion of the first stated interest payment will be treated as a return of the excluded pre-issuance accrued interest and not as an amount payable on your debt security.

Debt Securities Subject to Contingencies Including Optional Redemption

Your debt security is subject to a contingency if it provides for an alternative payment schedule or schedules applicable upon the occurrence of a contingency or contingencies, other than a remote or incidental contingency, whether such contingency relates to payments of interest or of principal. In such a case, you must determine the yield and maturity of your debt security by assuming that the payments will be made according to the payment schedule most likely to occur if:

- · the timing and amounts of the payments that comprise each payment schedule are known as of the issue date; and
- · one of such schedules is significantly more likely than not to occur.

If there is no single payment schedule that is significantly more likely than not to occur, other than because of a mandatory sinking fund, you must include income on your debt security in accordance with the general rules that govern contingent payment obligations. These rules will be discussed in the applicable prospectus supplement.

Notwithstanding the general rules for determining yield and maturity, if your debt security is subject to contingencies, and either you or we have an unconditional option or options that, if exercised, would require payments to be made on the debt security under an alternative payment schedule or schedules, then:

- in the case of an option or options that we may exercise, we will be deemed to exercise or not exercise an option or combination of options in the manner that minimizes the yield on your debt security; and
- in the case of an option or options that you may exercise, you will be deemed to exercise or not exercise an option or combination of options in the manner that maximizes the yield on your debt security.

If both you and we hold options described in the preceding sentence, those rules will apply to each option in the order in which they may be exercised. You may determine the yield on your debt security for the purposes of those calculations by using any date on which your debt security may be redeemed or repurchased as the maturity date and the amount payable on the date that you chose in accordance with the terms of your debt security as the principal amount payable at maturity.

If a contingency, including the exercise of an option, actually occurs or does not occur contrary to an assumption made according to the above rules then, except to the extent that a portion of your debt security is repaid as a result of this change in circumstances and solely to determine the amount and accrual of original issue discount, you must redetermine the yield and maturity of your debt security by treating your debt security as having been retired and reissued on the date of the change in circumstances for an amount equal to your debt security's adjusted issue price on that date.

Election to Treat All Interest as Original Issue Discount

You may elect to include in gross income all interest that accrues on your debt security using the constant-yield method described above under "— General", with the modifications described below. For purposes of this election, interest will include stated interest, original issue discount, de minimis original issue discount, market discount, de minimis market discount and unstated interest, as adjusted by any amortizable bond premium, described below under "— Debt Securities Purchased at a Premium", or acquisition premium.

If you make this election for your debt security, then, when you apply the constant-yield method:

- · the issue price of your debt security will equal your cost;
- · the issue date of your debt security will be the date you acquired it; and
- · no payments on your debt security will be treated as payments of qualified stated interest.

Generally, this election will apply only to the debt security for which you make it; however, if the debt security has amortizable bond premium, you will be deemed to have made an election to apply amortizable bond premium against interest for all debt instruments with amortizable bond premium, other than debt instruments the interest on which is excludible from gross income, that you hold as of the beginning of the taxable year to which the election applies or any taxable year thereafter. Additionally, if you make this election for a market discount debt security, you will be treated as having made the election discussed below under "— Market Discount" to include market discount in income currently over the life of all debt instruments having market discount that you acquire on or after the first day of the first taxable year to which the election applies. You may not revoke any election to apply the constant-yield method to all interest on a debt security or the deemed elections with respect to amortizable bond premium or market discount debt securities without the consent of the United States Internal Revenue Service.

Variable Rate Debt Securities

Your debt security will be a variable rate debt security if:

- · your debt security's issue price does not exceed the total non-contingent principal payments by more than the lesser of:
 - .015 multiplied by the product of the total non-contingent principal payments and the number of complete years to maturity from the issue date; or
 - 2. 15 percent of the total non-contingent principal payments; and
- your debt security provides for stated interest, compounded or paid at least annually, only at:
 - 1. one or more qualified floating rates;
 - 2. a single fixed rate and one or more qualified floating rates;

- 3. a single objective rate; or
- 4. a single fixed rate and a single objective rate that is a qualified inverse floating rate.

Your debt security will have a variable rate that is a qualified floating rate if:

- variations in the value of the rate can reasonably be expected to measure contemporaneous variations in the cost of newly borrowed funds in the currency in which your debt security is denominated; or
- the rate is equal to such a rate multiplied by either:
 - 1. a fixed multiple that is greater than 0.65 but not more than 1.35; or
 - 2. a fixed multiple greater than 0.65 but not more than 1.35, increased or decreased by a fixed rate; and
- the value of the rate on any date during the term of your debt security is set no earlier than three months prior to the first day on which that value is in effect and no later than one year following that first day.

If your debt security provides for two or more qualified floating rates that are within 0.25 percentage points of each other on the issue date or can reasonably be expected to have approximately the same values throughout the term of the debt security, the qualified floating rates together constitute a single qualified floating rate.

Your debt security will not have a qualified floating rate, however, if the rate is subject to certain restrictions (including caps, floors, governors, or other similar restrictions) unless such restrictions are fixed throughout the term of the debt security or are not reasonably expected to significantly affect the yield on the debt security.

Your debt security will have a variable rate that is a single objective rate if:

- · the rate is not a qualified floating rate;
- the rate is determined using a single, fixed formula that is based on objective financial or economic information that is not within the control of or unique to the circumstances of the issuer or a related party; and
- the value of the rate on any date during the term of your debt security is set no earlier than three months prior to the first day on which that value is in effect and no later than one year following that first day.

Your debt security will not have a variable rate that is an objective rate, however, if it is reasonably expected that the average value of the rate during the first half of your debt security's term will be either significantly less than or significantly greater than the average value of the rate during the final half of your debt security's term.

An objective rate as described above is a qualified inverse floating rate if:

- · the rate is equal to a fixed rate minus a qualified floating rate and
- the variations in the rate can reasonably be expected to inversely reflect contemporaneous variations in the cost of newly borrowed funds.

Your debt security will also have a single qualified floating rate or an objective rate if interest on your debt security is stated at a fixed rate for an initial period of one year or less followed by either a qualified floating rate or an objective rate for a subsequent period, and either:

- the fixed rate and the qualified floating rate or objective rate have values on the issue date of the debt security that do not differ by more than 0.25 percentage points; or
- · the value of the qualified floating rate or objective rate is intended to approximate the fixed rate.

In general, if your variable rate debt security provides for stated interest at a single qualified floating rate or objective rate, or one of those rates after a single fixed rate for an initial period, all stated interest on your debt security is qualified stated interest. In this case, the amount of original issue discount, if any, is determined by using, in the case of a qualified floating rate or qualified inverse floating rate, the value as of the issue date of the qualified floating rate or qualified inverse floating rate, or, for any other objective rate, a fixed rate that reflects the yield reasonably expected for your debt security.

If your variable rate debt security does not provide for stated interest at a single qualified floating rate or a single objective rate, and also does not provide for interest payable at a fixed rate other than a single fixed rate for an initial period, you generally must determine the interest and original issue discount accruals on your debt security by:

- determining a fixed rate substitute for each variable rate provided under your variable rate debt security;
- constructing the equivalent fixed rate debt instrument, using the fixed rate substitute described above;
- · determining the amount of qualified stated interest and original issue discount with respect to the equivalent fixed rate debt instrument; and
- adjusting for actual variable rates during the applicable accrual period.

When you determine the fixed rate substitute for each variable rate provided under the variable rate debt security, you generally will use the value of each variable rate as of the issue date or, for an objective rate that is not a qualified inverse floating rate, a rate that reflects the reasonably expected yield on your debt security.

If your variable rate debt security provides for stated interest either at one or more qualified floating rates or at a qualified inverse floating rate, and also provides for stated interest at a single fixed rate other than at a single fixed rate for an initial period, you generally must determine interest and original issue discount accruals by using the method described in the previous paragraph. However, your variable rate debt security will be treated, for purposes of the first three steps of the determination, as if your debt security had provided for a qualified floating rate, or a qualified inverse floating rate, rather than the fixed rate. The qualified floating rate, or qualified inverse floating rate, and also provided for a qualified floating rate, or a qualified inverse floating rate, rather than the fixed rate must be such that the fair market value of your variable rate debt security as of the issue date approximates the fair market value of an otherwise identical debt instrument that provides for the qualified floating rate, or qualified inverse floating rate, rather than the fixed rate.

Short-Term Debt Securities

In general, if you are an individual or other cash basis United States holder of a short-term debt security, you are not required to accrue original issue discount, as specially defined below for the purposes of this paragraph, for United States federal income tax purposes unless you elect to do so (although it is possible that you may be required to include any stated interest in income as you receive

it). If you are an accrual basis taxpayer, a taxpayer in a special class, including, but not limited to, a regulated investment company, common trust fund, or a certain type of pass-through entity, or a cash basis taxpayer who so elects, you will be required to accrue original issue discount on short-term debt securities on either a straight-line basis or under the constant-yield method, based on daily compounding. If you are not required and do not elect to include original issue discount in income currently, any gain you realize on the sale or retirement of your short-term debt security will be ordinary income to the extent of the accrued original issue discount, which will be determined on a straight-line basis unless you make an election to accrue the original issue discount under the constant-yield method, through the date of sale or retirement. However, if you are not required and do not elect to accrue original issue discount on your short-term debt securities, you will be required to defer deductions for interest on borrowings allocable to your short-term debt securities in an amount not exceeding the deferred income until the deferred income is realized.

When you determine the amount of original issue discount subject to these rules, you must include all interest payments on your short-term debt security, including stated interest, in your short-term debt security's stated redemption price at maturity.

Non-U.S. Dollar Currency Original Issue Discount Debt Securities

If your original issue discount debt security is denominated in, or determined by reference to, a non-U.S. dollar currency, you must determine original issue discount for any accrual period on your original issue discount debt security in the non-U.S. dollar currency and then translate the amount of original issue discount into U.S. dollars in the same manner as stated interest accrued by an accrual basis United States holder, as described above under "— Taxation of Debt Securities — United States Holders — Payments of Interest". You may recognize ordinary income or loss when you receive an amount attributable to original issue discount in connection with a payment of interest or the sale or retirement of your debt security.

Market Discount. You will be treated as if you purchased your debt security, other than a short-term debt security, at a market discount, and your debt security will be a market discount debt security if the difference between the debt security's stated redemption price at maturity or, in the case of a discount debt security, the debt security's revised issue price, and the price you paid for your debt security is equal to or greater than 0.25 percent of your debt security's stated redemption price at maturity or revised issue price, respectively, multiplied by the number of complete years to the debt security's maturity. To determine the revised issue price of your debt security for these purposes, you generally add any original issue discount that has accrued on your debt security to its issue price.

If your debt security's stated redemption price at maturity or, in the case of an original issue discount debt security, its revised issue price, exceeds the price you paid for the debt security by less than 0.25 percent *multiplied* by the number of complete years to the debt security's maturity, the excess constitutes de minimis market discount, and the rules discussed below are not applicable to you.

You must treat any gain you recognize on the maturity or disposition of your market discount debt security as ordinary income to the extent of the accrued market discount on your debt security. Alternatively, you may elect to include market discount in income currently over the life of your debt security. If you make this election, it will apply to all debt instruments with market discount that you acquire on or after the first day of the first taxable year to which the election applies. You may not revoke this election without the consent of the United States Internal Revenue Service. If you own a market discount debt security and do not make this election, you will generally be required to defer deductions for interest on borrowings allocable to your debt security in an amount not exceeding the accrued market discount on your debt security until the maturity or disposition of your debt security.

You will accrue market discount on your market discount debt security on a straight-line basis unless you elect to accrue market discount using a constant-yield method. If you make this election, it will apply only to the debt security with respect to which it is made and you may not revoke it.

Debt Securities Purchased at a Premium. If you purchase your debt security for an amount in excess of its principal amount, you may elect to treat the excess as amortizable bond premium. If you make this election, you will reduce the amount required to be included in your income each year with respect to interest on your debt security by the amount of amortizable bond premium allocable to that year, based on your debt security's yield to maturity. If your debt security is denominated in, or determined by reference to, a non-U.S. dollar currency, you will compute your amortizable bond premium in units of the non-U.S. dollar currency and your amortizable bond premium will reduce your interest income in units of the non-U.S. dollar currency. Gain or loss recognized that is attributable to changes in foreign currency exchange rates between the time your amortized bond premium offsets interest income and the time of the acquisition of your debt security is generally taxable as ordinary income or loss. If you make an election to amortize bond premium, it will apply to all debt instruments, other than debt instruments the interest on which is excludible from gross income, that you hold at the beginning of the first taxable year to which the election applies or that you thereafter acquire, and you may not revoke it without the consent of the United States Internal Issue Discount. Election to Treat All Interest as Original Issue Discount.

Purchase, Sale and Retirement of the Debt Securities. Your tax basis in your debt security will generally be the U.S. dollar cost, as defined below, of your debt security, adjusted by:

- adding any original issue discount, market discount, de minimis original issue discount and de minimis market discount previously included in income with respect to your debt security; and then
- subtracting any payments on your debt security that are not qualified stated interest payments and any amortizable bond premium applied to reduce interest on your debt security.

If you purchase your debt security with non-U.S. dollar currency, the U.S. dollar cost of your debt security will generally be the U.S. dollar value of the purchase price on the date of purchase. However, if you are a cash basis taxpayer, or an accrual basis taxpayer if you so elect, and your debt security is traded on an established securities market, as defined in the applicable U.S. Treasury regulations, the U.S. dollar cost of your debt security will be the U.S. dollar value of the purchase price on the settlement date of your purchase.

You will generally recognize gain or loss on the sale or retirement of your debt security equal to the difference between the amount you realize on the sale or retirement and your tax basis in your debt security. If your debt security is sold or retired for an amount in non-U.S. dollar currency, the amount you realize will be the U.S. dollar value of such amount on the date the notes are disposed of or retired, except that in the case of notes traded on an established securities market, as defined in the applicable Treasury regulations, a cash basis taxpayer, or an accrual basis taxpayer that so elects, will determine the amount realized based on the U.S. dollar value of the specified currency on the settlement date of the sale.

You will recognize capital gain or loss when you sell or retire your debt security, except to the extent:

- described above under "— Taxation of Debt Securities United States Holders Original Issue Discount Short-Term Debt Securities" or
 "— Market Discount";
- · attributable to accrued but unpaid interest;
- · the rules governing contingent payment obligations apply; or
- · attributable to changes in exchange rates as described below.

Capital gain of a non-corporate United States holder is generally taxed at preferential rates where the property is held for more than one year.

You must treat any portion of the gain or loss that you recognize on the sale or retirement of a debt security as ordinary income or loss to the extent attributable to changes in exchange rates. However, you take exchange gain or loss into account only to the extent of the total gain or loss you realize on the transaction.

Exchange of Amounts in Other Than U.S. Dollars. If you receive non-U.S. dollar currency as interest on your debt security or on the sale or retirement of your debt security, your tax basis in the non-U.S. dollar currency will equal its U.S. dollar value when the interest is received or at the time of the sale or retirement. If you purchase non-U.S. dollar currency, you generally will have a tax basis equal to the U.S. dollar value of the non-U.S. dollar currency on the date of your purchase. If you sell or dispose of a non-U.S. dollar currency, including if you use it to purchase debt securities or exchange it for U.S. dollars, any gain or loss recognized generally will be ordinary income or loss.

Medicare Tax. For taxable years beginning after December 31, 2012, a U.S. person that is an individual or estate, or a trust that does not fall into a special class of trusts that is exempt from such tax, will be subject to a 3.8% tax on the lesser of (1) the U.S. person's "net investment income" for the relevant taxable year and (2) the excess of the U.S. person's modified adjusted gross income for the taxable year over a certain threshold (which in the case of individuals will be between \$125,000 and \$250,000, depending on the individual's circumstances). A holder's net investment income will generally include its interest income and its net gains from the disposition of debt securities, unless such interest payments or net gains are derived in the ordinary course of the conduct of a trade or business (other than a trade or business that consists of certain passive or trading activities). If you are a U.S. person that is an individual, estate or trust, you are urged to consult your tax advisors regarding the applicability of the Medicare tax to your income and gains in respect of your investment in the debt securities.

Indexed and Other Debt Securities. The applicable prospectus supplement will discuss the material United States federal income tax rules with respect to contingent non-U.S. dollar currency debt securities, debt securities the payments on which are determined by reference to any index and other debt securities that are subject to the rules governing contingent payment obligations which are not subject to the rules governing variable rate debt securities, any renewable and extendible debt securities and any debt securities providing for the periodic payment of principal over the life of the debt security.

United States Alien Holders

This subsection describes the tax consequences to a United States alien holder. You are a United States alien holder if you are the beneficial owner of a debt security and are, for United States federal income tax purposes:

- · a nonresident alien individual:
- · a foreign corporation; or
- an estate or trust that in either case is not subject to United States federal income tax on a net income basis on income or gain from a debt security.

If you are a United States holder, this subsection does not apply to you.

This discussion assumes that the debt security or coupon is not subject to the rules of Section 871(h)(4)(A) of the Internal Revenue Code, relating to interest payments that are determined by reference to the income, profits, changes in the value of property or other attributes of the debtor or a related party.

Under United States federal income and estate tax law, and subject to the discussion of backup withholding and withholdable payments to foreign entities below, if you are a United States alien holder of a debt security or coupon:

- we and other U.S. payors generally will not be required to deduct United States withholding tax from payments of principal, premium, if any, and interest, including original issue discount, to you if, in the case of payments of interest:
 - 1. you do not actually or constructively own 10% or more of the total combined voting power of all classes of our stock entitled to vote;
 - 2. you are not a controlled foreign corporation that is related to us through stock ownership;
 - 3. you are not a bank receiving interest on an extension of credit made pursuant to a loan agreement entered into in the ordinary course of your trade or business;
 - 4. in the case of a debt security other than a bearer debt security, the U.S. payor does not have actual knowledge or reason to know that you are a United States person and:
 - a. you have furnished to the U.S. payor an Internal Revenue Service Form W-8BEN or an acceptable substitute form upon which you certify, under penalties of perjury, that you are not a United States person;
 - b. in the case of payments made outside the United States to you at an offshore account (generally, an account maintained by you at a bank or other financial institution at any location outside the United States), you have furnished to the U.S. payor documentation that establishes your identity and your status as the beneficial owner of the payment for United States federal income tax purposes and as a person who is not a United States person;
 - c. the U.S. payor has received a withholding certificate (furnished on an appropriate Internal Revenue Service Form W-8 or an acceptable substitute form) from a person claiming to be:
 - a withholding foreign partnership (generally a foreign partnership that has entered into an agreement with the Internal Revenue Service to assume primary withholding responsibility with respect to distributions and guaranteed payments it makes to its partners):
 - ii. a qualified intermediary (generally a non-United States financial institution or clearing organization or a non-United States branch or office of a United States financial institution or clearing organization that is a party to a withholding agreement with the Internal Revenue Service); or
 - iii. a U.S. branch of a non-United States bank or of a non-United States insurance company; and the withholding foreign partnership, qualified intermediary or U.S. branch has received documentation upon which it may rely to treat the payment as made to a person who is not a United States person that is, for United States federal income tax purposes, the beneficial owner of the payments on the debt securities in accordance with U.S. Treasury regulations (or, in the case of a qualified intermediary, in accordance with its agreement with the Internal Revenue Service);
 - d. the U.S. payor receives a statement from a securities clearing organization, bank or other financial institution that holds customers' securities in the ordinary course of its trade or business:

- i. certifying to the U.S. payor under penalties of perjury that an Internal Revenue Service Form W-8BEN or an acceptable substitute form has been received from you by it or by a similar financial institution between it and you; and
- ii. to which is attached a copy of the Internal Revenue Service Form W-8BEN or acceptable substitute form; or
- e. the U.S. payor otherwise possesses documentation upon which it may rely to treat the payment as made to a person who is not a United States person that is, for United States federal income tax purposes, the beneficial owner of the payments on the debt securities in accordance with U.S. Treasury regulations; and
- 5. in the case of a bearer debt security that is issued on or before March 18, 2012, the debt security is offered, sold and delivered in compliance with the restrictions described above under "Considerations Relating to Securities Issued in Bearer Form" and payments on the debt security are made in accordance with the procedures described above under that section; and
- no deduction for any United States federal withholding tax will be made from any gain that you realize on the sale or exchange of your debt security or coupon.

Further, a debt security or coupon held by an individual who at death is not a citizen or resident of the United States will not be includible in the individual's gross estate for United States federal estate tax purposes if:

- the decedent did not actually or constructively own 10% or more of the total combined voting power of all classes of our stock entitled to vote at
 the time of death; and
- · the income on the debt security would not have been effectively connected with a U.S. trade or business of the decedent at the same time.

Treasury Regulations Requiring Disclosure of Reportable Transactions

Treasury regulations require United States taxpayers to report certain transactions that give rise to a loss in excess of certain thresholds (a "Reportable Transaction"). Under these regulations, if the debt securities are denominated in a foreign currency, a United States holder (or a United States alien holder that holds the debt securities in connection with a U.S. trade or business) that recognizes a loss with respect to the debt securities that is characterized as an ordinary loss due to changes in currency exchange rates (under any of the rules discussed above) would be required to report the loss on Internal Revenue Service Form 8886 (Reportable Transaction Statement) if the loss exceeds the thresholds set forth in the regulations. For individuals and trusts, this loss threshold is \$50,000 in any single taxable year. For other types of taxpayers and other types of losses, the thresholds are higher. You should consult with your tax advisor regarding any tax filing and reporting obligations that may apply in connection with acquiring, owning and disposing of debt securities.

Withholdable Payments to Foreign Financial Entities and Other Foreign Entities

Under legislation enacted in March 2010, a 30% withholding tax would be imposed on certain payments to certain foreign financial institutions, investment funds and other non-US persons that fail to comply with information reporting requirements in respect of such non-US persons' direct and indirect United States shareholders and/or United States accountholders. Such payments would include interest and principal payments on any notes issued after March 18, 2012 and the gross proceeds from the sale or other disposition of any notes issued after March 18, 2012. IRS Guidance issued in July 2011 indicates that regulations will be enacted that will provide that withholding will only be made to payments of dividends made on or after January 1, 2014, and to other "withholdable payments" (including payments of gross proceeds) made on or after January 1, 2015.

Backup Withholding and Information Reporting

United States Holders. In general, if you are a noncorporate United States holder, we and other payors are required to report to the United States Internal Revenue Service all payments of principal, any premium and interest on your debt security, and the accrual of original issue discount on an original issue discount debt security. In addition, we and other payors are required to report to the United States Internal Revenue Service any payment of proceeds of the sale of your debt security before maturity within the United States. Additionally, backup withholding will apply to any payments, including payments of original issue discount, if you fail to provide an accurate taxpayer identification number, or you are notified by the United States Internal Revenue Service that you have failed to report all interest and dividends required to be shown on your federal income tax returns.

United States Alien Holders. In general, if you are a United States alien holder, payments of principal, premium or interest, including original issue discount, made by us and other payors to you will not be subject to backup withholding and information reporting, provided that the certification requirements described above under "— Taxation of Debt Securities — United States Alien Holders" are satisfied or you otherwise establish an exemption. However, we and other payors are required to report payments of interest on your debt securities on Internal Revenue Service Form 1042-S even if the payments are not otherwise subject to information reporting requirements. In addition, payment of the proceeds from the sale of debt securities effected at a United States office of a broker will not be subject to backup withholding and information reporting provided that:

- the broker does not have actual knowledge or reason to know that you are a United States person and you have furnished to the broker:
 - 1. an appropriate Internal Revenue Service Form W-8 or an acceptable substitute form upon which you certify, under penalties of perjury, that you are not a United States person; or
 - other documentation upon which it may rely to treat the payment as made to a person who is not a United States person that is, for United States federal income tax purposes, the beneficial owner of the payment on the debt securities in accordance with U.S. Treasury regulations; or
- · you otherwise establish an exemption.

If you fail to establish an exemption and the broker does not possess adequate documentation of your status as a person who is not a United States person, the payments may be subject to information reporting and backup withholding. However, backup withholding will not apply with respect to payments made outside the United States to an offshore account maintained by you unless the broker has actual knowledge that you are a United States person.

In general, payment of the proceeds from the sale of debt securities effected at a foreign office of a broker will not be subject to information reporting or backup withholding. However, a sale effected at a foreign office of a broker will be subject to information reporting and backup withholding if:

- the proceeds are transferred to an account maintained by you in the United States;
- · the payment of proceeds or the confirmation of the sale is mailed to you at a United States address; or
- the sale has some other specified connection with the United States as provided in U.S. Treasury regulations;

unless the broker does not have actual knowledge or reason to know that you are a United States person and the documentation requirements described above (relating to a sale of debt securities effected at a United States office of a broker) are met or you otherwise establish an exemption.

In addition, payment of the proceeds from the sale of debt securities effected at a foreign office of a broker will be subject to information reporting if the broker is:

- · a United States person;
- a controlled foreign corporation for United States tax purposes;
- a foreign person 50% or more of whose gross income is effectively connected with the conduct of a United States trade or business for a specified three-year period; or
- a foreign partnership, if at any time during its tax year:
 - 1. one or more of its partners are "U.S. persons", as defined in U.S. Treasury regulations, who in the aggregate hold more than 50% of the income or capital interest in the partnership; or
 - 2. such foreign partnership is engaged in the conduct of a United States trade or business;

unless the broker does not have actual knowledge or reason to know that you are a United States person and the documentation requirements described above (relating to a sale of debt securities effected at a United States office of a broker) are met or you otherwise establish an exemption. Backup withholding will apply if the sale is subject to information reporting and the broker has actual knowledge that you are a United States person.

PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

Initial Offering and Sale of Securities

We may sell the securities from time to time in their initial offering as follows:

- · through agents:
- · to dealers or underwriters for resale;
- · directly to purchasers; or
- · through a combination of any of these methods of sale.

In some cases, we or dealers acting with us or on our behalf may also purchase securities and reoffer them to the public by one or more of the methods described above. This prospectus may be used in connection with any offering of our securities through any of these methods or other methods described in the applicable prospectus supplement.

The securities we distribute by any of these methods may be sold to the public, in one or more transactions, either:

- · at a fixed price or prices, which may be changed;
- · at market prices prevailing at the time of sale;
- · at prices related to prevailing market prices; or
- · at negotiated prices.

We may solicit offers to purchase securities directly from the public from time to time. We may also designate agents from time to time to solicit offers to purchase securities from the public on our behalf. If required, the prospectus supplement relating to any particular offering of securities will name any agents designated to solicit offers, and will include information about any commissions we may pay the agents, in that offering. Agents may be deemed to be "underwriters" as that term is defined in the Securities Act.

From time to time, we may sell securities to one or more dealers acting as principals. The dealers, who may be deemed to be "underwriters" as that term is defined in the Securities Act, may then resell those securities to the public.

We may sell securities from time to time to one or more underwriters, who would purchase the securities as principal for resale to the public, either on a firm-commitment or best-efforts basis. If we sell securities to underwriters, we may execute an underwriting agreement with them at the time of sale and will name them in the applicable prospectus supplement. In connection with those sales, underwriters may be deemed to have received compensation from us in the form of underwriting discounts or commissions and may also receive commissions from purchasers of the securities for whom they may act as agents. Underwriters may resell the securities to or through dealers, and those dealers may receive compensation in the form of discounts, concessions or commissions from the underwriters and/or commissions from purchasers for whom they may act as agents. The applicable prospectus supplement will include any required information about underwriting compensation we pay to underwriters, and any discounts, concessions or commissions underwriters allow to participating dealers, in connection with an offering of securities.

We may authorize underwriters, dealers and agents to solicit from third parties offers to purchase securities under contracts providing for payment and delivery on future dates. The applicable prospectus supplement will describe the material terms of these contracts, including any conditions to the purchasers' obligations, and will include any required information about commissions we may pay for soliciting these contracts.

Underwriters, dealers, agents and other persons may be entitled, under agreements that they may enter into with us, to indemnification by us or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., as applicable, against certain liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act.

In connection with an offering, the underwriters may purchase and sell securities in the open market. These transactions may include short sales, stabilizing transactions and purchases to cover positions created by short sales. Short sales involve the sale by the underwriters of a greater number of securities than they are required to purchase in an offering. Stabilizing transactions consist of certain bids or purchases made for the purpose of preventing or retarding a decline in the market price of the securities while an offering is in progress.

The underwriters also may impose a penalty bid. This occurs when a particular underwriter repays to the underwriters a portion of the underwriting discount received by it because the underwriters have repurchased securities sold by or for the account of that underwriter in stabilizing or short-covering transactions.

These activities by the underwriters may stabilize, maintain or otherwise affect the market price of the securities. As a result, the price of the securities may be higher than the price that otherwise might exist in the open market. If these activities are commenced, they may be discontinued by the underwriters at any time. These transactions may be effected on an exchange or automated quotation system, if the securities are listed on that exchange or admitted for trading on that automated quotation system, or in the over-the-counter market or otherwise.

The underwriters, dealers and agents, as well as their associates, may be customers of or lenders to, and may engage in transactions with and perform services for us, The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and our or its subsidiaries in the ordinary course of business. In addition, we expect to offer the securities to or through our affiliates, as underwriters, dealers or agents. Among our affiliates, Goldman, Sachs & Co. may offer the securities for sale in the United States and Goldman Sachs International, Goldman Sachs (Asia) L.L.C. and Goldman Sachs (Singapore) Pte. may offer the securities for sale outside the United States. Our affiliates may also offer the securities in other markets through one or more selling agents, including one another.

Goldman, Sachs & Co. is a subsidiary of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. is our parent and the parent of Goldman, Sachs & Co. FINRA Rule 5121 imposes certain requirements when a member of FINRA, such as Goldman, Sachs & Co., distributes an affiliated company's securities. Goldman, Sachs & Co. has advised us and The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. that each particular offering of securities in which it participates will comply with the applicable requirements of Rule 5121 or any successor FINRA rule.

Under Rule 15c6-1 of the Exchange Act, trades in the secondary market generally are required to settle in three business days, unless the parties to any such trade expressly agree otherwise. Your prospectus supplement may provide that the original issue date for your securities may be more than three scheduled business days after the trade date for your securities. Accordingly, in such a case, if you wish to trade securities on any date prior to the third business day before the original issue date for your securities, you will be required, by virtue of the fact that your securities initially are expected to settle in more than three scheduled business days after the trade date for your securities, to make alternative settlement arrangements to prevent a failed settlement.

Market-Making Resales by Affiliates

This prospectus may be used by Goldman, Sachs & Co. in connection with offers and sales of the securities in market-making transactions. In a market-making transaction, Goldman, Sachs & Co. may resell a security it acquires from other holders, after the original offering and sale of the security. Resales of this kind may occur in the open market or may be privately negotiated, at prevailing market prices at the time of resale or at related or negotiated prices. In these transactions, Goldman, Sachs & Co. may act as principal or agent, including as agent for the counterparty in a transaction in which Goldman, Sachs & Co. acts as principal, or as agent for both counterparties in a transaction in which Goldman, Sachs & Co. may receive compensation in the form of discounts and commissions, including from both counterparties in some cases. Our other affiliates or other affiliates of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. may also engage in transactions of this kind and may use this prospectus for this purpose. These affiliates may include, among others, Goldman Sachs International, Goldman Sachs (Asia) L.L.C. and Goldman Sachs (Singapore) Pte.

The securities to be sold in market-making transactions include securities to be issued after the date of this prospectus, as well as securities previously issued.

We do not expect to receive any proceeds from market-making transactions. We do not expect that Goldman, Sachs & Co. or any other affiliate that engages in these transactions will pay any proceeds from its market-making resales to us.

Information about the trade and settlement dates, as well as the purchase price, for a market-making transaction will be provided to the purchaser in a separate confirmation of sale.

Unless we or our agent informs you in your confirmation of sale that your security is being purchased in its original offering and sale, you may assume that you are purchasing your security in a market-making transaction.

Matters Relating to Initial Offering and Market-Making Resales

Each series (or tranche, in the case of senior debt securities issued under the 2007 GSFC indenture) of securities will be a new issue, and there will be no established trading market for any security prior to its original issue date. We may choose not to list any particular series (or any particular tranche, in the case of senior debt securities issued under the 2007 GSFC indenture) of securities on a securities exchange or quotation system. We have been advised by Goldman, Sachs & Co. that it intends to make a market in the securities, and any underwriters to whom we sell securities for public offering may also make a market in those securities. However, neither Goldman, Sachs & Co. nor any underwriter that makes a market is obligated to do so, and any of them may stop doing so at any time without notice. No assurance can be given as to the liquidity or trading market for any of the securities.

Unless otherwise indicated in the applicable prospectus supplement or confirmation of sale, the purchase price of the securities will be required to be paid in immediately available funds in New York City.

In this prospectus, an offering of securities refers to the initial offering of the securities made in connection with their original issuance, and does not refer to any subsequent resales of securities in market-making transactions.

Conflicts of Interest

Goldman, Sachs & Co. is an affiliate of our parent, The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., and, as such, will have a "conflict of interest" in any offering of the securities within the meaning of FINRA Rule 5121. Consequently, any offering of the securities will be conducted in compliance with the provisions of Rule 5121. Goldman, Sachs & Co. will not be permitted to sell securities in any offering to an account over which it exercises discretionary authority without the prior specific written approval of the account holder.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT INCOME SECURITY ACT

This section is only relevant to you if you are an insurance company or the fiduciary of a pension plan or an employee benefit plan (including a governmental plan, an IRA or a Keogh Plan) proposing to invest in the securities.

The U.S. Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended ("ERISA"), and the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), prohibit certain transactions ("prohibited transactions") involving the assets of an employee benefit plan that is subject to the fiduciary responsibility provisions of ERISA or Section 4975 of the Code (including individual retirement accounts, Keogh plans and other plans described in Section 4975(e)(1) of the Code) (a "Plan") and certain persons who are "parties in interest" (within the meaning of ERISA) or "disqualified persons" (within the meaning of the Code) with respect to the Plan; governmental plans may be subject to similar prohibitions unless an exemption applies to the transaction. The assets of a Plan may include assets held in the general account of an insurance company that are deemed "plan assets" under ERISA or assets of certain investment vehicles in which the Plan invests. GS Finance Corp. and certain of its affiliates may be considered a "party in interest" or a "disqualified person" with respect to many Plans and, accordingly, prohibited transactions may arise if the securities are acquired by or on behalf of a Plan unless those securities are acquired and held pursuant to an available exemption. In general, available exemptions are: transactions effected on behalf of that Plan by a "qualified professional asset manager" (prohibited transaction exemption 84-14) or an "in-house asset manager" (prohibited transaction exemption 96-23), transactions involving insurance company general accounts (prohibited transaction exemption 95-60), transactions involving insurance company pooled separate accounts (prohibited transaction exemption 90-1), transactions involving bank collective investment funds (prohibited transaction exemption 91-38) and transactions with service providers under Section 408(b)(17) of ERISA and Section 4975(d)(20) of the Code where the Plan receives no less and pays no more than "adequate consideration" (within the meaning of Section 408(b)(17) of ERISA and Section 4975(f)(10) of the Code). The person making the decision on behalf of a Plan or a governmental plan shall be deemed, on behalf of itself and the Plan, by purchasing and holding the securities, or exercising any rights related thereto, to represent that (a) the Plan will receive no less and pay no more than "adequate consideration" (within the meaning of Section 408(b)(17) of ERISA and Section 4975(f)(10) of the Code) in connection with the purchase and holding of the securities, (b) none of the purchase, holding or disposition of the securities or the exercise of any rights related to the securities will result in a non-exempt prohibited transaction under ERISA or the Code (or, with respect to a governmental plan, under any similar applicable law or regulation), and (c) neither GS Finance Corp. nor any of its affiliates is a "fiduciary" (within the meaning of Section 3(21) of ERISA (or any regulations thereunder) or, with respect to a governmental plan, under any similar applicable law or regulation) with respect to the purchaser or holder in connection with such person's acquisition, disposition or holding of the securities, or as a result of any exercise by GS Finance Corp. or any of its affiliates of any rights in connection with the securities, and no advice provided by GS Finance Corp. or any of its affiliates has formed a primary basis for any investment decision by or on behalf of such purchaser or holder in connection with the securities and the transactions contemplated with respect to the securities.

If you are an insurance company or the fiduciary of a pension plan or an employee benefit plan (including a governmental plan, an IRA or a Keogh plan) and propose to invest in the securities described in this prospectus, you should consult your legal counsel.

VALIDITY OF THE SECURITIES AND GUARANTEES

In connection with particular offerings of the securities in the future, and if stated in the applicable prospectus supplements, the validity of those securities, including the guarantees endorsed thereon, may be passed upon for us and The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. by Sullivan & Cromwell LLP, New York, New York and for any underwriters or agents by Sullivan & Cromwell LLP or other counsel named in the applicable prospectus supplement.

Sullivan & Cromwell LLP has in the past represented and continues to represent Goldman Sachs on a regular basis and in a variety of matters, including offerings of the common and preferred stock and debt securities of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. Sullivan & Cromwell LLP also performed services for us and The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. in connection with the offering of the securities described in this prospectus.

EXPERTS

The financial statements of Goldman Sachs incorporated in this prospectus by reference to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010 have been so incorporated in reliance on the report of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, given on the authority of said firm as experts in auditing and accounting.

The historical income statement, balance sheet and common share data set forth in "Selected Financial Data" as of or for the years ended December 31, 2010, December 31, 2009, November 28, 2008, November 30, 2007 and November 24, 2006 and for the month ended December 26, 2008 incorporated by reference in this prospectus have been so incorporated in reliance on the report of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, given on the authority of said firm as experts in auditing and accounting.

REVIEW OF UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BY INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

With respect to the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements of Goldman Sachs for (i) the three month periods ended March 31, 2011 and March 31, 2010, and (ii) the three month and six month periods ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, incorporated by reference in this prospectus, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP reported that they have applied limited procedures in accordance with professional standards for a review of such information. However, their separate reports dated (i) May 9, 2011 and (ii) August 8, 2011 incorporated by reference in this prospectus state that they did not audit and they do not express an opinion on that unaudited condensed consolidated financial information. Accordingly, the degree of reliance on their reports on such information should be restricted in light of the limited nature of the review procedures applied. PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP is not subject to the liability provisions of Section 11 of the U.S. Securities Act of 1933 for their reports on the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements because those reports are not a "report" or a "part" of the registration statements prepared or certified by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP within the meaning of Sections 7 and 11 of the Securities Act of 1933.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO THE PRIVATE SECURITIES LITIGATION REFORM ACT OF 1995

We have included or incorporated by reference in this prospectus statements that may constitute "forward-looking statements" within the meaning of the safe harbor provisions of The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These forward-looking statements are not historical facts but instead represent only our belief regarding future events, many of which, by their nature, are inherently uncertain and outside of our control. It is possible that our actual results may differ, possibly materially, from the anticipated results indicated in these forward-looking statements.

Information regarding important factors that could cause actual results to differ, perhaps materially, from those in our forward-looking statements is contained under "Risk Factors" in Part I, Item 1A of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010, which is incorporated in this prospectus by reference (and in any of our annual reports for a subsequent fiscal year that are so incorporated). See "Available Information" above for information about how to obtain a copy of this annual report.

We have not authorized anyone to provide any information or to make any representations other than those contained or incorporated by reference in this prospectus or in any free writing prospectuses we have prepared. We take no responsibility for, and can provide no assurance as to the reliability of, any other information that others may give you. This prospectus is an offer to sell only the securities offered hereby, but only under circumstances and in jurisdictions where it is lawful to do so. The information contained in this prospectus is current only as of its date.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Available Information	2
Prospectus Summary	4
<u>Use of Proceeds</u>	8
Description of Debt Securities We May Offer	9
Description of Warrants We May Offer	39
<u>Description of Units We May Offer</u>	54
GS Finance Corp.	59
Legal Ownership and Book-Entry Issuance	61
Considerations Relating to Floating Rate Debt Securities	67
Considerations Relating to Securities Issued in Bearer Form	68
Considerations Relating to Indexed Securities	72
Considerations Relating to Securities Denominated or Payable in	
or Linked to a Non-U.S. Dollar Currency	75
<u>United States Taxation</u>	78
<u>Plan of Distribution</u>	93
Conflicts of Interest	95
Employee Retirement Income Security Act	96
Validity of the Securities and Guarantees	96
<u>Experts</u>	97
Review of Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial	
Statements by Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm	97
Cautionary Statement Pursuant to the Private Securities Litigation	
Reform Act of 1995	97

GS Finance Corp.

Debt Securities
Warrants
Units
fully and unconditionally
guaranteed as described herein by

The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.



Goldman, Sachs & Co.



The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.

Guarantees of Specified Certificates of Deposit of Goldman Sachs Bank USA

Under a General Guarantee Agreement dated December 1, 2008, which we refer to as the "guarantee agreement" in this prospectus, The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. has guaranteed various obligations of Goldman Sachs Bank USA, our banking subsidiary, including the certificates of deposit specified below. We refer to these specified certificates of deposit as the "specified CDs" and to our guarantees of the specified CDs under the guarantee agreement as "our guarantees". Except as stated under "Scope of This Prospectus" below, this prospectus relates solely to our guarantees of the specified CDs. No other guarantees under the guarantee agreement, including guarantees of obligations other than the specified CDs, are covered by this prospectus. In addition, neither this prospectus nor the registration statement of which it forms a part covers the specified CDs. As described in "Scope of This Prospectus" and "Other Certificates of Deposit" below, we reserve the right to amend or terminate our guarantees or extend them to cover other obligations.

Under our guarantees, we have guaranteed the performance of all payment obligations of Goldman Sachs Bank USA under the specified CDs, on the terms set forth in the guarantee agreement summarized in this prospectus. By "specified CDs" we mean the certificates of deposit issued or to be issued by Goldman Sachs Bank USA at any time and from time to time in the past or the future, other than any certificates of deposit that are owned by a person who is an unaffiliated broker or who purchased such certificates from an unaffiliated broker, as described more fully under "Our Guarantees and the Guarantee Agreement". For this purpose, an "unaffiliated broker" means any broker, dealer or other financial intermediary other than Goldman, Sachs & Co. and its affiliates. There is currently no limit on the amount of specified CDs that may be issued by Goldman Sachs Bank USA.

Goldman Sachs Bank USA may issue and sell the specified CDs to or through Goldman, Sachs & Co. and our other affiliates. All proceeds from the sale of the specified CDs, net of fees, commissions or discounts, will be received by Goldman Sachs Bank USA. We will receive no proceeds or any other compensation from any person in respect of our guarantees.

Our guarantees are not bank deposits and are not insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or any other governmental agency, nor are they obligations of, or guaranteed by, a bank.

This prospectus relates solely to our guarantee of the certificates of deposit. Neither this prospectus nor the registration statement of which it forms a part covers the certificates of deposit.

Neither the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission nor any other regulatory body has approved or disapproved of our guarantees or passed upon the accuracy or adequacy of this prospectus. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

We may use this prospectus in the initial sales of specified CDs covered by our guarantees. In addition, Goldman, Sachs & Co. or any of our other affiliates may use this prospectus in market-making transactions in specified CDs covered by our guarantees after their initial sale. *Unless the purchaser is informed otherwise in the confirmation of sale, this prospectus is being used in a market-making transaction.*

Goldman, Sachs & Co.

Prospectus dated September 19, 2011.

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. is required to file annual, quarterly and current reports, proxy statements and other information with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC"). You may read and copy any documents filed by us at the SEC's public reference room at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further information on the public reference room. Our filings with the SEC are also available to the public through the SEC's Internet site at http://www.sec.gov and through the New York Stock Exchange, 20 Broad Street, New York, New York 10005, on which our common stock is listed.

We have filed a registration statement on Form S-3 with the SEC relating to our guarantees covered by this prospectus. This prospectus is a part of the registration statement and does not contain all of the information in the registration statement. Whenever a reference is made in this prospectus to a contract or other document of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., please be aware that the reference is only a summary and that you should refer to the exhibits that are a part of the registration statement for a copy of the applicable contract or other document. You may review a copy of the registration statement at the SEC's public reference room in Washington, D.C., as well as through the SEC's Internet site.

The SEC's rules allow us to "incorporate by reference" information into this prospectus. This means that we can disclose important information to you by referring you to any of the SEC filings referenced in the list below. Any information referred to in this way in this prospectus or any prospectus supplement is considered part of this prospectus from the date we file that document. Any reports filed by us with the SEC after the date of this prospectus and before the date that the offering of our guarantees by means of this prospectus is terminated will automatically update and, where applicable, supersede any information contained in this prospectus or incorporated by reference in this prospectus.

The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. incorporates by reference into this prospectus the following documents or information filed with the SEC (other than, in each case, documents or information deemed to have been furnished and not filed in accordance with SEC rules):

- (1) Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010 (File No. 001-14965);
- (2) Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2011 (File No. 001-14965);
- (3) Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2011 (File No. 001-14965);
- (4) Current Reports on Form 8-K, dated and filed on January 11, 2011 and January 19, 2011 (Item 8.01 only) (File No. 001-14965);
- (5) Current Report on Form 8-K, dated January 26, 2011 and filed January 28, 2011 (File No. 001-14965);
- (6) Current Report on Form 8-K, dated March 16, 2011 and filed March 18, 2011 (File No. 001-14965);
- (7) Current Reports on Form 8-K dated and filed on March 18, 2011, March 21, 2011, March 22, 2011, March 23, 2011, March 24, 2011, March 25, 2011, March 28, 2011, March 30, 2011, March 31, 2011, April 1, 2011, April 6, 2011, April 8, 2011, April 11, 2011, April 12, 2011, April 13, 2011, April 14, 2011, April 15, 2011, April 19, 2011 (Item 8.01 only), April 26, 2011, April 27, 2011, April 28, 2011, April 29, 2011, May 2, 2011, May 3, 2011, May 4, 2011 and May 5, 2011 (File No. 001-14965);
- (8) Current Report on Form 8-K, dated May 6, 2011 and filed on May 10, 2011 (File No. 001-14965);
- (9) Current Reports on Form 8-K dated and filed on May 9, 2011, May 11, 2011, May 12, 2011, May 16, 2011, May 17, 2011, May 18, 2011, May 19, 2011, May 20, 2011, May 23, 2011, May 25, 2011, May 26, 2011, May 27, 2011, May 31, 2011, June 3, 2011, June 6,

- 2011, June 7, 2011, June 8, 2011, June 9, 2011, June 10, 2011, June 13, 2011, June 14, 2011, June 15, 2011 and June 16, 2011 (File No. 001-14965):
- (10) Current Report on Form 8-K, dated June 16, 2011 and filed on June 17, 2011 (File No. 001-14965);
- (11) Current Reports on Form 8-K dated and filed on June 17, 2011, June 21, 2011, June 22, 2011, June 23, 2011, June 28, 2011, June 29, 2011, June 30, 2011, July 1, 2011, July 5, 2011, July 7, 2011, July 8, 2011, July 12, 2011, July 18, 2011, July 19, 2011 (Acc-no: 001193125-11-191470), July 19, 2011 (Acc-no: 0000950123-11-66365) (Item 8.01 only), July 20, 2011, July 21, 2011, July 25, 2011, July 27, 2011, July 28, 2011, July 29, 2011, August 4, 2001, August 5, 2011, August 8, 2011, August 10, 2011, August 11, 2011, August 15, 2011, August 16, 2011, August 17, 2011, August 18, 2011, August 22, 2011, August 24, 2011, August 25, 2011, August 26, 2011, August 29, 2011, August 31, 2011, September 1, 2011, September 9, 2011, September 14, 2011, September 15, 2011 and September 16, 2011 (File No. 001-14965); and
- (12) All documents filed by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. under Section 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Exchange Act") on or after the date of this prospectus and before the termination of the offering of guarantees under this prospectus; and

We will provide without charge to each person, including any beneficial owner, to whom this prospectus is delivered, upon his or her written or oral request, a copy of any or all documents referred to above which have been or may be incorporated by reference into this prospectus excluding exhibits to those documents unless they are specifically incorporated by reference into those documents. You can request those documents from Investor Relations, 200 West Street, New York, New York 10282, telephone (212) 902-0300.

We describe the terms of our guarantees in this prospectus. We may file one or more prospectus supplement to this prospectus, which may amend or supplement the terms described herein. If the terms described in any such prospectus supplement are inconsistent with those described herein, the terms described in such prospectus supplement are controlling.

You should carefully read in their entirety this prospectus, any prospectus supplement to this prospectus, the documents incorporated by reference into this prospectus and any disclosure document relating to the specified CDs that you propose to buy, especially any description of investment risks that Goldman Sachs Bank USA may include in such disclosure document relating to the specified CDs. In addition, because an investment in specified CDs includes an investment in our guarantees, you should carefully read the description of investment risks relating to an investment in the securities of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., including our guarantees, described under "Risk Factors" in Part I, Item 1A of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010, which is incorporated by reference into this prospectus.

When we refer to "Goldman Sachs" in this prospectus, we mean The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., together with its consolidated subsidiaries and affiliates. References to "The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.", "we", "our" or "us" refer only to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and not to its consolidated subsidiaries. References to "GS Bank" mean Goldman Sachs Bank USA.

THE GOLDMAN SACHS GROUP, INC.

The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. is a leading global financial services firm providing investment banking, securities and investment management services to a substantial and diversified client base that includes corporations, financial institutions, governments and high-net-worth individuals. Founded in 1869, the firm is headquartered in New York and maintains offices in all major financial centers around the world. Our headquarters are located at 200 West Street, New York, New York 10282, telephone (212) 902-1000. The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. is a bank holding company and a financial holding company regulated by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System (the "Federal Reserve Board"). Our U.S. depository institution subsidiary, Goldman Sachs Bank USA, is a New York State-chartered bank.

WE ARE A HOLDING COMPANY

Because our assets consist principally of interests in the subsidiaries through which we conduct our businesses, our right to participate as an equity holder in any distribution of assets of any of our subsidiaries upon the subsidiary's liquidation or otherwise, and thus the ability of our security holders to benefit from the distribution, is junior to creditors of the subsidiary, except to the extent that any claims we may have as a creditor of the subsidiary are recognized. In addition, dividends, loans and advances to us from some of our subsidiaries, including Goldman, Sachs & Co., are restricted by net capital requirements under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and under rules of securities exchanges and other regulatory bodies. Dividends, loans and advances to us from our banking subsidiaries, including GS Bank, are also subject to regulatory restrictions under applicable federal and state banking laws and regulations. Furthermore, because some of our subsidiaries, including Goldman, Sachs & Co., are partnerships in which we are a general partner or the sole limited partner, we may be liable for their obligations. We also guarantee many of the obligations of our subsidiaries. Any liability we may have for our subsidiaries' obligations could reduce our assets that are available to satisfy our direct creditors, including investors in our securities.

USE OF PROCEEDS

We will receive no proceeds or any other compensation from any person in connection with the issuance of our guarantees.

We were advised by GS Bank that it intends to use the net proceeds from the sales of the specified CDs in order to provide additional funds for its operations and for other general corporate purposes.

OUR GUARANTEES AND THE GUARANTEE AGREEMENT

Under the guarantee agreement, we unconditionally and, subject to the provisions thereof, irrevocably guarantee to each person (a "Party") to whom GS Bank may owe any Obligations (as described below) from time to time, the complete payment when due, whether by acceleration or otherwise, of all payment obligations, whether now in existence or hereafter arising (other than non-recourse payment obligations), of GS Bank, including all payment obligations (other than non-recourse payment obligations) in connection with deposits, loans and other instruments specified in the guarantee agreement (collectively, the "Obligations"), provided, however, that, with respect to any Party, "Obligations" does not include any payment obligations, whether now in existence or hereafter arising, of GS Bank in connection with any certificate of deposit of GS Bank if such Party is an Unaffiliated Broker (as described below) or has purchased such certificate of deposit from an Unaffiliated Broker, in each case whether the Unaffiliated Broker acts as agent or principal, whether the purchase occurs in connection with the original issuance or any subsequent transaction and whether

the issuance or purchase of such certificate of deposit occurred or will occur at any time in the past or future. "Unaffiliated Broker" means any broker, dealer or other financial intermediary other than Goldman, Sachs & Co. or any of its affiliates.

Thus, as used in this prospectus, "specified CDs" means all certificates of deposit issued or to be issued by GS Bank at any time in the past or the future, other than any such certificates of deposit owned or held by a person who is an Unaffiliated Broker or who has purchased them from an Unaffiliated Broker, whether such broker acts as agent or principal, whether the purchase occurs in connection with the original issuance or any subsequent transaction and whether the issuance or purchase occurred or will occur at any time in the past or the future. Consequently, if you are an Unaffiliated Broker or you purchase or have purchased your certificates of deposit from an Unaffiliated Broker, your certificates of deposit are not specified CDs and are not covered by our guarantees or the guarantee agreement, or by this prospectus or the registration statement of which it forms a part.

The guarantee agreement provides that we may amend or terminate the guarantee agreement as to one Party, all Parties or a group of specified Parties, and as to one Obligation, all Obligations or specified Obligations (including in each case with respect to the specified CDs), at any time if:

- · we issue a press release reported by the Dow Jones News Service, the Associated Press or a comparable national news service; or
- · we provide a written notice signed by us,

in each case stating that we are so amending or terminating the guarantee agreement. Any such termination or amendment will be effective with respect to a Party on the opening of business on the fifth New York business day after the earlier of the issuance of such press release or the receipt of such written notice, as applicable. However, no such amendment or termination may adversely affect the rights of any Party relating to any Obligations incurred prior to the effectiveness of such amendment or termination. Any such amendment or termination may become effective as to one Party whether or not it becomes effective as to another Party. Our guarantees of the specified CDs are subject to these termination and amendment provisions.

The guarantee agreement further provides that we will not be liable to any Party for any amount in excess of the amount which GS Bank actually owes to such Party, and that we may assert any defense to payment available to GS Bank, other than those arising in a bankruptcy or insolvency proceeding. Upon payment of all due and unpaid Obligations owing to any Party, we will be subrogated to the rights of such Party against GS Bank with respect to such Obligations, and such Party will be obligated to take at our expense such steps as we may reasonably request to implement such subrogation.

We may not assign our rights or delegate our obligations under the guarantee agreement with respect to any Party, in whole or in part, without the prior written consent of such Party. However, this prohibition on assignment or delegation is subject to an important exception. We may assign and delegate all of our rights and obligations under the guarantee agreement to any partnership, corporation, trust or other organization in any form that succeeds to all or substantially all of our assets and business and assumes such obligations by contract, operation of law or otherwise. Upon any such delegation and assumption of obligations, we will be relieved of and fully discharged from all obligations under the guarantee agreement, whether such obligations arose before or after such delegation and assumption.

For the purposes of the guarantee agreement, references above to "GS Bank" include any banking subsidiary of ours (whether now or hereafter formed) that succeeds to the business of GS Bank. Under the guarantee agreement, therefore, "Obligations" include the Obligations of any such successor.

The guarantee agreement is governed by New York law.

The guarantee agreement has not been and will not be qualified as an indenture, and there is not and will not be any trustee, qualified under the Trust Indenture Act with respect to the guarantee agreement or our guarantees of the specified CDs. Therefore, the beneficiaries of our guarantees of the specified CDs will not have the protection of the Trust Indenture Act with respect to our guarantees.

Our guarantees of the specified CDs are governed by and subject to the guarantee agreement, and any payments we may become obligated to make in respect of our guarantees will be made on the terms and as provided in the guarantee agreement. Please note that we or our agent may require any person claiming payment under our guarantees to provide evidence reasonably satisfactory to us or our agent that such person is a Party entitled to such payment under the guarantee agreement. We have filed with the SEC the guarantee agreement as exhibit 4.78 to the registration statement of which this prospectus forms a part, and we encourage you to read it carefully.

The guarantee agreement supersedes and replaces a substantially identical general guarantee agreement dated October 21, 2008. The earlier general guarantee agreement does not apply with respect to the specified CDs or other obligations of GS Bank incurred after December 1, 2008.

Because we are a holding company, our ability to perform our obligations under our guarantees will depend in part on our ability to participate in distributions of assets from our subsidiaries. We discuss these matters under "We Are a Holding Company" above.

SCOPE OF THIS PROSPECTUS

As indicated above, the guarantee agreement applies to a wide range of payment obligations of GS Bank. The offering made by this prospectus, however, involves only our guarantees of the specified CDs, which are limited to certificates of deposit issued or to be issued by GS Bank at any time and from time to time in the past or the future, other than any certificates of deposit that are owned or held by or are purchased from an Unaffiliated Broker as described above. Subject only to the second paragraph below, this prospectus does not relate to any guarantee of any other obligations, including any other obligations of GS Bank covered by the guarantee agreement, unless we amend or supplement this prospectus to provide otherwise. See "Other Certificates of Deposit" below.

We reserve the right to amend or terminate the guarantee agreement with respect to the specified CDs, in whole or in any part (and with respect to some or all holders of the specified CDs), at any time in the future as permitted in the guarantee agreement. In the event that we terminate the guarantee agreement with respect to any specified CDs (or holders), this prospectus will not apply with respect to any offers or sales of those obligations made after the termination becomes effective (other than offers and sales to any holders as to whom the termination is not effective). However, absent effective termination of the guarantee agreement with respect to any specified CDs (or any particular holders), all offers and sales of those specified CDs with our guarantees (or all offers and sales to those holders, as the case may be) would be covered by this prospectus and the registration statement of which it forms a part.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, this prospectus and the registration statement of which it forms a part are also intended to cover the guarantees we made under the General Guarantee Agreement, dated September 21, 2008 (the "earlier guarantee agreement"), by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., of certificates of deposit that have been issued by GS Bank (or any successor) and are outstanding as of the date of this prospectus (whether or not such certificates of deposit are or were owned or held by, or purchased from, an Unaffiliated Broker). We refer to the guarantees under the earlier guarantee agreement as the "prior guarantees". The prior guarantees are governed by and are subject to the earlier guarantee agreement, which is substantially similar to our guarantee agreement as described above (except that the earlier guarantee agreement does not exclude certificates of deposit owned or held by, or purchased from, Unaffiliated Brokers). We have filed a copy of the earlier guarantee

agreement as Exhibit 10.2 to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended August 29, 2008. The prior guarantees, together with the certificates of deposit underlying such prior guarantees, have been offered and sold by financial institutions that are not affiliated with us, in a manner similar to that described below under "Plan of Distribution". The prior guarantees are not bank deposits and are not insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or any other governmental agency, nor are they obligations of, or guaranteed by, a bank. We are terminating the earlier guarantee agreement with respect to all obligations other than those outstanding on the date of this prospectus.

OTHER CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT

We may guarantee certificates of deposit issued by other banking subsidiaries of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. from time to time in the future, including certificates of deposit issued by any banking subsidiary of ours that may be formed in the future. If we do so, we may amend or supplement this prospectus so that it may be used in connection with any offers or sales of our guarantees of such other certificates of deposit. In the event that we file an amendment or supplement to this prospectus with the SEC, the information in any such filing may supersede and, if applicable, modify the information in this prospectus.

Unless otherwise stated in an amendment or supplement to this prospectus, our guarantees will apply to the specified CDs of any banking subsidiary of ours (whether now or hereafter formed) that succeeds to the business of GS Bank. Therefore, unless otherwise so stated, in this prospectus references to GS Bank include any such successor and references to the specified CDs and our guarantees thereof include, respectively, the specified CDs of any such successor (whether issued before or after the succession) and our guarantees thereof under the guarantee agreement.

PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

Initial Offering and Sale of Specified CDs and Guarantees

We have been advised by GS Bank that the specified CDs, together with our guarantees, are being offered from time to time by Goldman, Sachs & Co. and may also be offered by any of our other affiliates pursuant to brokerage agreements signed with GS Bank from time to time. Goldman, Sachs & Co. and our other affiliates involved in the distribution of the specified CDs and our guarantees may be deemed to be "underwriters" as that term is defined in the Securities Act of 1933 with respect to our guarantees. We refer to Goldman, Sachs & Co. and any such other affiliates as the "distributors" in this prospectus.

The distributors may offer the specified CDs, with our guarantees, for sale at varying prices, including prevailing market prices at the time of sale or related or negotiated prices, or at fixed prices determined at the time of sale, either directly or through other institutions acting as selling agents. The distributors may offer the specified CDs as agents for GS Bank or may purchase them for resale as principal and will be compensated by GS Bank in the form of placement fees, commissions, purchase price discounts or similar arrangements and may reallow or otherwise pay some of this compensation to their selling agents, if any. The specified CDs will be offered for sale primarily in the United States but may also be offered outside the United States. The specified CDs are not required to be, and have not been, registered under the Securities Act of 1933. We have been advised by GS Bank that GS Bank may authorize the distributors and their agents to solicit from third parties offers to purchase the specified CDs providing for payment and issuance on future dates.

Also, we have been advised by GS Bank that GS Bank may solicit offers to purchase the specified CDs directly from the public from time to time.

The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. does not expect to pay any fees or other compensation to any distributor or selling agent in connection with the offering of specified CDs with our guarantees. In

addition, The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. does not intend to charge any fees to or receive any other compensation from GS Bank or any other person in respect of our quarantees.

In connection with an offering, the distributors may purchase and sell specified CDs, together with our guarantees, in the open market. These transactions may include short sales, stabilizing transactions and purchases to cover positions created by short sales. Short sales involve the sale by the distributors of a greater number of specified CDs than they are required to purchase in an offering. Stabilizing transactions consist of certain bids or purchases made for the purpose of preventing or retarding a decline in the market price of the specified CDs while an offering is in progress.

The distributors also may impose a penalty bid. This occurs when a particular distributor repays to the distributors a portion of the fees, commissions or discounts received by it because the distributors have repurchased specified CDs sold by or for the account of that distributor in stabilizing or short-covering transactions.

These activities by the distributors may stabilize, maintain or otherwise affect the market price of the specified CDs with our guarantees. As a result, the price of the specified CDs with our guarantees may be higher than the price that otherwise might exist in the open market. If these activities are commenced, they may be discontinued by the distributors at any time.

We reserve the right to amend or supplement this prospectus at any time to reflect the addition of one or more other financial institutions as distributors. Any such distributors and any selling agents, as well as their affiliates, may be customers of or lenders to, and may engage in transactions with and perform services (including investment banking, financial advisory and banking services) for, The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and its subsidiaries in the ordinary course of business. In connection with some of these transactions and services, these parties have in the past received, and may in the future receive, customary fees from us or our affiliates. As noted above, GS Bank expects to offer the specified CDs with our guarantees to or through our affiliates, as distributors or selling agents. Among our affiliates, Goldman, Sachs & Co. may offer the specified CDs with our guarantees for sale in the United States and Goldman Sachs International, Goldman Sachs (Asia) L.L.C. and Goldman Sachs (Singapore) Pte. may offer them for sale outside the United States. Our affiliates may also offer the specified CDs with our guarantees in other markets through one or more selling agents, including one another.

Goldman, Sachs & Co. is a subsidiary of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. is the parent of Goldman, Sachs & Co. Rule 5121 of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority, Inc. (FINRA) imposes certain requirements when a member of FINRA, such as Goldman, Sachs & Co., distributes an affiliated company's securities. Goldman, Sachs & Co. has advised us that each particular offering of the specified CDs with our guarantees in which it participates will comply with the applicable requirements of Rule 5121 or any successor FINRA rule.

GS Bank has agreed (or will agree) to indemnify the distributors that have signed (or will sign) brokerage agreements against certain liabilities, which may include liabilities arising under the Securities Act of 1933.

Market-Making Resales by Affiliates

This prospectus may be used by Goldman, Sachs & Co. and any of our other affiliates in connection with offers and sales of specified CDs with our guarantees in market-making transactions. In a market-making transaction, Goldman, Sachs & Co. or any such other affiliate may resell a specified CD with our guarantee that it acquires from other holders, after the original offering and sale

of the specified CD. Resales of this kind may occur in the open market or may be privately negotiated, at prevailing market prices at the time of resale or at related or negotiated prices. In these transactions, Goldman, Sachs & Co. or such other affiliate may act as principal or agent, including as agent for the counterparty in a transaction in which the affiliate acts as principal, or as agent for both counterparties in a transaction in which the affiliate does not act as principal. Goldman, Sachs & Co. or such other affiliate may receive compensation in the form of fees, commissions and discounts, including from both counterparties in some cases. In addition to Goldman, Sachs & Co., our other affiliates who engage in transactions of this kind and may use this prospectus for this purpose include Goldman Sachs International, Goldman Sachs (Asia) L.L.C. and Goldman Sachs (Singapore) Pte.

We do not expect to pay or receive any fees or other compensation in respect of our guarantees in market-making transactions. We do not expect that Goldman, Sachs & Co. or any of our other affiliates that engages in these transactions will pay any proceeds from its market-making resales to us.

If you purchase any specified CDs with our guarantees from us or any of our affiliates, you may assume that you are purchasing them in a market-making transaction, unless we or any of our affiliates (or any agent thereof) informs you in your confirmation of sale that the specified CDs and guarantees are being purchased in their original offering and sale. If you purchase specified CDs with our guarantees from any other person, this prospectus applies only if the specified CDs and guarantees are being purchased in their original offering and sale.

Market for the Specified CDs

There is no established trading market for the specified CDs with our guarantees and there is no assurance that any will develop. Neither we nor GS Bank intends to list the specified CDs or our guarantees on any securities exchange or trading facility. We have been advised by Goldman, Sachs & Co. that it intends to make a market in the specified CDs with our guarantees, and it is possible that our other affiliates involved in the distribution of the specified CDs with our guarantees may also do so. Neither Goldman, Sachs & Co. nor any of our other affiliates, however, is obligated to do so and any one of them may discontinue market-making at any time without notice. No assurance can be given as to the liquidity or the trading market for the specified CDs with our guarantees.

In this prospectus, references to the offering of the specified CDs with our guarantees refers to the initial offering of the specified CDs and our guarantees made in connection with their original issuance, and does not refer to any subsequent resales of the specified CDs with our guarantees in market-making transactions.

Conflicts of Interest

Goldman, Sachs & Co. is an affiliate of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and, as such, will have a "conflict of interest" in any offering of the specified CDs with our guarantees within the meaning of FINRA Rule 5121. Consequently, any offering of the specified CDs with our guarantees will be conducted in compliance with the provisions of Rule 5121. Goldman, Sachs & Co. will not be permitted to sell specified CDs with our guarantees in any offering to an account over which it exercises discretionary authority without the prior specific written approval of the account holder.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT INCOME SECURITY ACT

This section is only relevant to you if you are an insurance company or the fiduciary of a pension plan or an employee benefit plan (including a governmental plan an IRA or a Keogh Plan) proposing to invest in the specified CDs with our guarantees.

The U.S. Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended ("ERISA"), and the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), prohibit certain transactions ("prohibited transactions") involving the assets of an employee benefit plan that is subject to the fiduciary responsibility provisions of ERISA or Section 4975 of the Code (including individual retirement accounts, Keogh plans and other plans described in Section 4975(e)(1) of the Code) (a "Plan") and certain persons who are "parties in interest" (within the meaning of ERISA) or "disqualified persons" (within the meaning of the Code) with respect to the Plan; governmental plans may be subject to similar prohibitions unless an exemption applies to the transaction. The assets of a Plan may include assets held in the general account of an insurance company that are deemed "plan assets" under ERISA or assets of certain investment vehicles in which the Plan invests. Each of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and certain of its affiliates may be considered a "party in interest" or a "disqualified person" with respect to many Plans, and, accordingly, prohibited transactions may arise if the specified CDs with our quarantees are acquired by or on behalf of a Plan unless the specified CDs with our quarantees are acquired and held pursuant to an available exemption. In general, available exemptions are: transactions effected on behalf of that Plan by a "qualified professional asset manager" (prohibited transaction exemption 84-14) or an "in-house asset manager" (prohibited transaction exemption 96-23), transactions involving insurance company general accounts (prohibited transaction exemption 95-60), transactions involving insurance company pooled separate accounts (prohibited transaction exemption 90-1), transactions involving bank collective investment funds (prohibited transaction exemption 91-38) and transactions with service providers under Section 408(b)(17) of ERISA and Section 4975(d)(20) of the Code where the Plan receives no less and pays no more than "adequate consideration" (within the meaning of Section 408(b)(17) of ERISA and Section 4975(f)(10) of the Code). A Plan should also consider whether its purchase, holdings and disposition of a specified CD is eligible to be covered under prohibited transaction exemption 81-8 (involving investments in certificates of deposit). The person making the decision on behalf of a Plan or a governmental plan shall be deemed, on behalf of itself and the plan, by purchasing and holding the specified CDs with our guarantees, or exercising any rights related thereto, to represent that (a) the plan will receive no less and pay no more than "adequate consideration" (within the meaning of Section 408(b)(17) of ERISA and Section 4975(f)(10) of the Code) in connection with the purchase and holding of the specified CDs with our guarantees, (b) none of the purchase, holding or disposition of the specified CDs with our guarantees or the exercise of any rights related to the specified CDs with our guarantees will result in a non-exempt prohibited transaction under ERISA or the Code (or, with respect to a governmental plan, under any similar applicable law or regulation), and (c) neither The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. nor any of its affiliates is a "fiduciary" (within the meaning of Section 3(21) of ERISA (or any regulations thereunder) or, with respect to a governmental plan, under any similar applicable law or regulation) with respect to the purchaser or holder in connection with such person's acquisition, disposition or holding of the specified CDs with our guarantees, or as a result of any exercise by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. or any of its affiliates of any rights in connection with the specified CDs with our guarantees, and no advice provided by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. or any of its affiliates has formed a primary basis for any investment decision by or on behalf of such purchaser or holder in connection with the specified CDs with our guarantees and any transactions contemplated with respect to the specified CDs with our guarantees.

If you are an insurance company or the fiduciary of a pension plan or an employee benefit plan (including a governmental plan an IRA or a Keogh plan) and propose to invest in the specified CDs with our guarantees described in this prospectus, you should consult your legal counsel.

VALIDITY OF OUR GUARANTEES

The validity of our guarantees, with regard to any holder of a specified CD who relies on them, has been passed upon for The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. by Sullivan & Cromwell LLP, New York, New York. The opinion of Sullivan & Cromwell LLP was based on assumptions about the absence of future changes in law or the authorization of our guarantees and about other matters that may affect the validity of our guarantees but which could not be ascertained on the date of that opinion. Sullivan & Cromwell LLP has not passed upon the validity of the specified CDs.

Sullivan & Cromwell LLP has in the past represented and continues to represent Goldman Sachs on a regular basis and in a variety of matters, including offerings of our common stock, preferred stock and debt securities. Sullivan & Cromwell LLP also performed services for The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and GS Bank in connection with the issuance of our guarantees and the specified CDs.

EXPERTS

The financial statements of Goldman Sachs incorporated in this prospectus by reference to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010 have been so incorporated in reliance on the report of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, given on the authority of said firm as experts in auditing and accounting.

The historical income statement, balance sheet and common share data set forth in "Selected Financial Data" as of or for the years ended December 31, 2010, December 31, 2009, November 28, 2008, November 30, 2007 and November 24, 2006 and for the month ended December 26, 2008 incorporated by reference in this prospectus have been so incorporated in reliance on the report of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, given on the authority of said firm as experts in auditing and accounting.

REVIEW OF UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BY INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

With respect to the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements of Goldman Sachs for (i) the three month periods ended March 31, 2011 and March 31, 2010, and (ii) the three month and six month periods ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, incorporated by reference in this prospectus, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP reported that they have applied limited procedures in accordance with professional standards for a review of such information. However, their separate reports dated (i) May 9, 2011 and (ii) August 8, 2011 incorporated by reference in this prospectus state that they did not audit and they do not express an opinion on that unaudited condensed consolidated financial information. Accordingly, the degree of reliance on their reports on such information should be restricted in light of the limited nature of the review procedures applied. PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP is not subject to the liability provisions of Section 11 of the U.S. Securities Act of 1933 for their reports on the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements because those reports are not a "report" or a "part" of the registration statements prepared or certified by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP within the meaning of Sections 7 and 11 of the Securities Act of 1933.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO THE PRIVATE SECURITIES LITIGATION REFORM ACT OF 1995

We have included or incorporated by reference in this prospectus statements that may constitute "forward-looking statements" within the meaning of the safe harbor provisions of The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These forward-looking statements are not historical facts but instead

represent only our belief regarding future events, many of which, by their nature, are inherently uncertain and outside of our control. It is possible that our actual results may differ, possibly materially, from the anticipated results indicated in these forward-looking statements.

Information regarding important factors that could cause actual results to differ, perhaps materially, from those in our forward-looking statements is contained under "Risk Factors" in Part I, Item 1A of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010, which is incorporated in this prospectus by reference (and in any of our annual reports for a subsequent fiscal year that are so incorporated). See "Available Information" above for information about how to obtain a copy of this annual report.

We have not authorized anyone to provide any information or to make any representations other than those contained or incorporated by reference in this prospectus or in any free writing prospectuses we have prepared. We take no responsibility for, and can provide no assurance as to the reliability of, any other information that others may give you. This prospectus is an offer to sell only the securities offered hereby, but only under circumstances and in jurisdictions where it is lawful to do so. The information contained in this prospectus is current only as of its date.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
<u>Available Information</u>	2
The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	4
We Are a Holding Company	4
<u>Use of Proceeds</u>	4
Our Guarantees and The Guarantee Agreement	4
Scope of This Prospectus	6
Other Certificates of Deposit	7
<u>Plan of Distribution</u>	7
Conflicts of Interest	9
Employee Retirement Income Security Act	10
<u>Validity of Our Guarantees</u>	11
<u>Experts</u>	11
Review of Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial	
Statements by Independent Registered Public Accounting	
<u>Firm</u>	11
Cautionary Statement Pursuant to the Private Securities	
<u>Litigation Reform Act of 1995</u>	11

The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.

Guarantees of Specified Certificates of Deposit of Goldman Sachs Bank USA



Goldman, Sachs & Co.



The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.

Guarantee of Notes and Deposit Notes of Goldman Sachs Bank USA

Under a General Guarantee Agreement dated December 1, 2008, The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. has guaranteed various obligations of Goldman Sachs Bank USA, our banking subsidiary, including notes and deposit notes to be issued by Goldman Sachs Bank USA at any time and from time to time. In this prospectus, we refer to these notes as the "notes" and these deposit notes as the "deposit notes". We refer to the General Guarantee Agreement, as it may be amended from time to time, as the "guarantee agreement" and to our guarantee of the notes and deposit notes under the guarantee agreement as "our guarantee".

Under our guarantee, we have guaranteed the performance of all payment obligations of Goldman Sachs Bank USA under the notes and deposit notes, on the terms set forth in the guarantee agreement. Each note or deposit note will be issued with such terms and upon such conditions as may be determined by Goldman Sachs Bank USA in the future. There is currently no limit on the amount of notes or deposit notes that may be issued by Goldman Sachs Bank USA.

Goldman Sachs Bank USA may issue and sell the notes and deposit notes to or through Goldman, Sachs & Co. and our other affiliates. All proceeds from the sale of the notes and deposit notes, net of fees, commissions or discounts, will be received by Goldman Sachs Bank USA. We will receive no proceeds or any other compensation from any person in respect of our guarantee.

Our guarantee is not a bank deposit and is not insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or any other governmental agency, nor is it the obligation of, or guaranteed by, a bank.

This prospectus relates solely to our guarantee of the notes and deposit notes. Neither this prospectus nor the registration statement of which it forms a part covers the notes or deposit notes.

Neither the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission nor any other regulatory body has approved or disapproved of our guarantee or passed upon the accuracy or adequacy of this prospectus. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

We may use this prospectus in the initial sales of notes and deposit notes covered by our guarantee. In addition, Goldman, Sachs & Co. or any of our other affiliates may use this prospectus in market-making transactions in notes and deposit notes covered by our guarantee after their initial sale.

Unless the purchaser is informed otherwise in the confirmation of sale, this prospectus is being used in a market-making transaction.

Goldman, Sachs & Co.

Prospectus dated September 19, 2011.

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. is required to file annual, quarterly and current reports, proxy statements and other information with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC"). You may read and copy any documents filed by us at the SEC's public reference room at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further information on the public reference room. Our filings with the SEC are also available to the public through the SEC's Internet site at http://www.sec.gov and through the New York Stock Exchange, 20 Broad Street, New York, New York 10005, on which our common stock is listed.

We have filed a registration statement on Form S-3 with the SEC relating to our guarantee covered by this prospectus. This prospectus is a part of the registration statement and does not contain all of the information in the registration statement. Whenever a reference is made in this prospectus to a contract or other document of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., please be aware that the reference is only a summary and that you should refer to the exhibits that are a part of the registration statement for a copy of the applicable contract or other document. You may review a copy of the registration statement at the SEC's public reference room in Washington, D.C., as well as through the SEC's Internet site.

The SEC's rules allow us to "incorporate by reference" information into this prospectus. This means that we can disclose important information to you by referring you to any of the SEC filings referenced in the list below. Any information referred to in this way in this prospectus or any prospectus supplement is considered part of this prospectus from the date we file that document. Any reports filed by us with the SEC after the date of this prospectus and before the date that the offering of our guarantee by means of this prospectus is terminated will automatically update and, where applicable, supersede any information contained in this prospectus or incorporated by reference in this prospectus.

The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. incorporates by reference into this prospectus the following documents or information filed with the SEC (other than, in each case, documents or information deemed to have been furnished and not filed in accordance with SEC rules):

- (1) Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010 (File No. 001-14965);
- (2) Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2011 (File No. 001-14965);
- (3) Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2011 (File No. 001-14965);
- (4) Current Reports on Form 8-K, dated and filed on January 11, 2011 and January 19, 2011 (Item 8.01 only) (File No. 001-14965);
- (5) Current Report on Form 8-K, dated January 26, 2011 and filed January 28, 2011 (File No. 001-14965);
- (6) Current Report on Form 8-K, dated March 16, 2011 and filed March 18, 2011 (File No. 001-14965);
- (7) Current Reports on Form 8-K dated and filed on March 18, 2011, March 21, 2011, March 22, 2011, March 23, 2011, March 24, 2011, March 25, 2011, March 28, 2011, March 30, 2011, March 31, 2011, April 1, 2011, April 6, 2011, April 8, 2011, April 11, 2011, April 12, 2011, April 13, 2011, April 14, 2011, April 15, 2011, April 19, 2011 (Item 8.01 only), April 26, 2011, April 27, 2011, April 28, 2011, April 29, 2011, May 2, 2011, May 3, 2011, May 4, 2011 and May 5, 2011 (File No. 001-14965);
- (8) Current Report on Form 8-K, dated May 6, 2011 and filed on May 10, 2011 (File No. 001-14965);

- (9) Current Reports on Form 8-K dated and filed on May 9, 2011, May 11, 2011, May 12, 2011, May 16, 2011, May 17, 2011, May 18, 2011, May 19, 2011, May 20, 2011, May 23, 2011, May 25, 2011, May 26, 2011, May 27, 2011, May 31, 2011, June 3, 2011, June 6, 2011, June 7, 2011, June 8, 2011, June 9, 2011, June 10, 2011, June 13, 2011, June 14, 2011, June 15, 2011 and June 16, 2011 (File No. 001-14965):
- (10) Current Report on Form 8-K, dated June 16, 2011 and filed on June 17, 2011 (File No. 001-14965);
- (11) Current Reports on Form 8-K dated and filed on June 17, 2011, June 21, 2011, June 22, 2011, June 23, 2011, June 28, 2011, June 29, 2011, June 30, 2011, July 1, 2011, July 5, 2011, July 7, 2011, July 8, 2011, July 12, 2011, July 18, 2011, July 19, 2011 (Acc-no: 0001193125-11-191470), July 19, 2011 (Acc-no: 0000950123-11-066365) (Item 8.01 only), July 20, 2011, July 21, 2011, July 25, 2011, July 27, 2011, July 28, 2011, July 29, 2011, August 4, 2001, August 5, 2011, August 8, 2011, August 10, 2011, August 11, 2011, August 15, 2011, August 16, 2011, August 17, 2011, August 18, 2011, August 22, 2011, August 24, 2011, August 25, 2011, August 26, 2011, August 29, 2011, August 31, 2011, September 1, 2011, September 9, 2011, September 14, 2011, September 15, 2011 and September 16, 2011 (File No. 001-14965); and
- (12) All documents filed by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. under Section 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Exchange Act") on or after the date of this prospectus and before the termination of the offering of guarantees under this prospectus.

We will provide without charge to each person, including any beneficial owner, to whom this prospectus is delivered, upon his or her written or oral request, a copy of any or all documents referred to above which have been or may be incorporated by reference into this prospectus excluding exhibits to those documents unless they are specifically incorporated by reference into those documents. You can request those documents from Investor Relations, 200 West Street, New York, New York 10282, telephone (212) 902-0300.

If you purchase a note or deposit note, you are making an investment in both a security of Goldman Sachs Bank USA — the note or deposit note — and a security of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. — our guarantee of the note or deposit note. Thus you should consider carefully the applicable offering circular relating to the note or deposit note and this prospectus relating to our guarantee.

We describe the terms of our guarantee in this prospectus. We may file one or more prospectus supplements to this prospectus, which may amend or supplement the terms described herein. If the terms described in any such prospectus supplement are inconsistent with those described herein, the terms described in such prospectus supplement are controlling.

You should carefully read in their entirety this prospectus, any prospectus supplement to this prospectus, the documents incorporated by reference into this prospectus and any offering circular relating to the notes or deposit notes that you propose to buy, especially any description of investment risks that Goldman Sachs Bank USA may include in such offering circular. In addition, because an investment in notes and deposit notes includes an investment in our guarantee, you should carefully read the description of investment risks relating to an investment in the securities of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., including our guarantee, described under "Risk Factors" in Part I, Item 1A of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010, which is incorporated by reference into this prospectus.

When we refer to "Goldman Sachs" in this prospectus, we mean The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., together with its consolidated subsidiaries and affiliates. References to "The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.", "we", "our" or "us" refer only to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and not to its consolidated subsidiaries. References to "GS Bank" mean Goldman Sachs Bank USA.

THE GOLDMAN SACHS GROUP, INC.

The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. is a leading global financial services firm providing investment banking, securities and investment management services to a substantial and diversified client base that includes corporations, financial institutions, governments and high-net-worth individuals. Founded in 1869, the firm is headquartered in New York and maintains offices in all major financial centers around the world. Our headquarters are located at 200 West Street, New York, New York 10282, telephone (212) 902-1000. The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. is a bank holding company and a financial holding company regulated by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System (the "Federal Reserve Board"). Our U.S. depository institution subsidiary, Goldman Sachs Bank USA, is a New York State-chartered bank.

WE ARE A HOLDING COMPANY

Because our assets consist principally of interests in the subsidiaries through which we conduct our businesses, our right to participate as an equity holder in any distribution of assets of any of our subsidiaries upon the subsidiary's liquidation or otherwise, and thus the ability of our security holders to benefit from the distribution, is junior to the rights of creditors of the subsidiary, except to the extent that any claims we may have as a creditor of the subsidiary are recognized. In addition, dividends, loans and advances to us from some of our subsidiaries, including Goldman, Sachs & Co., are restricted by net capital requirements under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and under rules of securities exchanges and other regulatory bodies. Dividends, loans and advances to us from our banking subsidiaries, including GS Bank, are subject to regulatory restrictions under applicable federal and state banking laws and regulations. Furthermore, because some of our subsidiaries, including Goldman, Sachs & Co., are partnerships in which we are a general partner or the sole limited partner, we may be liable for their obligations. We also guarantee many of the obligations of our subsidiaries. Any liability we may have for our subsidiaries' obligations could reduce our assets that are available to satisfy our creditors, including investors in our securities.

USE OF PROCEEDS

We will receive no proceeds or any other compensation from any person in connection with the issuance of our guarantee.

We were advised by GS Bank that it intends to use the net proceeds from the sales of the notes and deposit notes in order to provide additional funds for its operations and for other general corporate purposes.

THE NOTES AND DEPOSIT NOTES

The notes and deposit notes will be issued by GS Bank under one or more fiscal agency agreements from time to time in the future. Each note or deposit note will have such terms, including as to maturity, interest (if any) and other features, and will be offered and sold in such amount and upon such terms and conditions, as may be determined by GS Bank and described in a separate offering circular prepared by GS Bank at or before the time of issue. In general, the deposit notes will represent deposit liabilities of GS Bank and will be insured by the FDIC to the extent provided by applicable law, and the notes will be debt obligations of GS Bank and will not be insured. However, the specific terms of the notes and deposit notes, and of any FDIC insurance, may vary and you should read the applicable offering circular for a description of the actual terms of any note or deposit note and of its offering and sale. The brief references to the notes and deposit notes in this prospectus are qualified in their entirety by reference to the applicable offering circular, and if there is any inconsistency between this prospectus and the applicable offering circular with regard to the description of any note or deposit note, the latter shall control.

The notes and deposit notes will be offered and sold without registration under the Securities Act, in reliance on the exemption in Section 3(a)(2) of that Act, and will not have the protection of the Trust Indenture Act of 1939.

OUR GUARANTEE AND THE GUARANTEE AGREEMENT

Under the guarantee agreement, we unconditionally and, subject to the provisions thereof, irrevocably guarantee to each person (a "Party") to whom GS Bank may owe any Obligations (as described below) from time to time, the complete payment when due, whether by acceleration or otherwise, of all payment obligations, whether now in existence or hereafter arising (other than non-recourse payment obligations), of GS Bank, including all payment obligations (other than non-recourse payment obligations) in connection with deposits, loans and other instruments specified in the guarantee agreement (collectively, the "Obligations"). The payment obligations of GS Bank in connection with the notes and the deposit notes are Obligations for this purpose.

Thus, as and to the extent provided in the guarantee agreement, we guarantee to each Party the complete payment when due of all payment obligations of GS Bank in connection with the notes and deposit notes. With respect to any note or deposit note, the Party entitled to the benefit of our guarantee of that instrument will be the person entitled to receive payment thereon, as provided in the terms of the instrument. Generally, the person entitled to receive payment will be the person in whose name the relevant note or deposit note is registered on the books of GS Bank or its agent. In the case of any note or deposit note issued in book-entry form, the registered owner will be the depository or its nominee. You should read the applicable offering circular for information about these matters.

The guarantee agreement provides that we may amend or terminate the guarantee agreement as to one Party, all Parties or a group of specified Parties, and as to one Obligation, all Obligations or specified Obligations (including in each case with respect to the notes or deposit notes), at any time if:

- we issue a press release reported by the Dow Jones News Service, the Associated Press or a comparable national news service; or
- we provide a written notice signed by us,

in each case stating that we are so amending or terminating the guarantee agreement. Any such termination or amendment will be effective with respect to a Party on the opening of business on the fifth New York business day after the earlier of the issuance of such press release or the receipt of such written notice, as applicable. However, no such amendment or termination may adversely affect the rights of any Party relating to any Obligations incurred prior to the effectiveness of such amendment or termination. Any such amendment or termination may become effective as to one Party whether or not it becomes effective as to another Party. Our guarantee of the notes and deposit notes is subject to these termination and amendment provisions.

The guarantee agreement further provides that we will not be liable to any Party for any amount in excess of the amount which GS Bank actually owes to such Party, and that we may assert any defense to payment available to GS Bank, other than those arising in a bankruptcy or insolvency proceeding. Upon payment of all due and unpaid Obligations owing to any Party, we will be subrogated to the rights of such Party against GS Bank with respect to such Obligations, and such Party will be obligated to take at our expense such steps as we may reasonably request to implement such subrogation.

We may not assign our rights or delegate our obligations under the guarantee agreement with respect to any Party, in whole or in part, without the prior written consent of such Party. However, this prohibition on assignment or delegation is subject to an important exception. We may assign and delegate all of our rights and obligations under the guarantee agreement to any partnership, corporation, trust or other organization in any form that succeeds to all or substantially all of our assets and business and assumes such obligations by contract, operation of law or otherwise. Upon any such

delegation and assumption of obligations, we will be relieved of and fully discharged from all obligations under the guarantee agreement, whether such obligations arose before or after such delegation and assumption.

For the purposes of the guarantee agreement, references above to "GS Bank" include any banking subsidiary of ours (whether now or hereafter formed) that succeeds to the business of GS Bank. Under the guarantee agreement, therefore, "Obligations" include the Obligations of any such successor

The guarantee agreement is governed by New York law.

The guarantee agreement has not been and will not be qualified as an indenture, and there is not and will not be any trustee, qualified under the Trust Indenture Act with respect to the guarantee agreement or our guarantee of the notes and deposit notes. Therefore, the beneficiaries of our guarantee of the notes and deposit notes will not have the protection of the Trust Indenture Act with respect to our guarantee.

Our guarantee of the notes and deposit notes are governed by and subject to the guarantee agreement, and any payments we may become obligated to make in respect of our guarantee will be made on the terms and as provided in the guarantee agreement. Please note that we or our agent may require any person claiming payment under our guarantee to provide evidence reasonably satisfactory to us or our agent that such person is a Party entitled to such payment under the guarantee agreement. We have filed the guarantee agreement with the SEC as exhibit 4.78 to the registration statement of which this prospectus forms a part, and we encourage you to read it carefully.

Because we are a holding company, our ability to perform our obligations under our guarantee will depend in part on our ability to participate in distributions of assets from our subsidiaries. We discuss these matters under "We Are a Holding Company" above.

The guarantee agreement supersedes and replaces a substantially identical general guarantee agreement dated October 21, 2008. The earlier general guarantee agreement does not apply with respect to the notes and deposit notes or other obligations of GS Bank incurred after December 1, 2008.

Considerations Relating to the Guarantee of the Deposit Notes

In the event of a liquidation or other resolution of GS Bank and payment on the deposit notes by the FDIC under FDIC insurance, the FDIC will be subrogated to all rights of holders of the deposit notes against GS Bank under the deposit notes, including their rights against The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. under the guarantee agreement, to the extent of such payment.

The deposit notes will be deposit liabilities of GS Bank, unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. pursuant to our guarantee. Except to the extent FDIC insurance is available from the FDIC, no entity other than GS Bank (or its receiver or conservator, if applicable, to the extent of any available remaining assets of GS Bank) or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. will have any obligation, contingent or otherwise, to make any payments in respect of the deposit notes. Accordingly, GS Bank and The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. will be dependent on their respective assets and earnings to generate the funds necessary to meet their respective obligations with respect to the deposit notes. If GS Bank's and The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s assets and earnings are not adequate, GS Bank and The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. may be unable to make payments in respect of the deposit notes and you could lose that part of your deposit, if any, that is not covered by FDIC insurance.

Considerations Relating to the Guarantee of the Notes

The notes will be unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. pursuant to our guarantee. However, the notes will be general unsecured obligations, not deposit

liabilities, of GS Bank and will not be insured by the FDIC. In the event of a liquidation or other resolution of GS Bank, the notes, as general obligations of GS Bank, will generally be subordinated in right of payment to the claims of deposit holders. No entity other than GS Bank or The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. will have any obligation, contingent or otherwise, to make any payments in respect of the notes. Accordingly, GS Bank and The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. will be dependent on their respective assets and earnings to generate the funds necessary to meet their respective obligations with respect to the notes. If GS Bank's and The Goldman Sachs Group Inc.'s assets and earnings are not adequate, GS Bank and The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. may be unable to make payments in respect of the notes and you could lose your entire investment in your note.

SCOPE OF THIS PROSPECTUS

As indicated above, the guarantee agreement applies to a wide range of payment obligations of GS Bank. This prospectus, however, relates only to our guarantee of the notes and deposit notes and not to any other obligations of GS Bank, unless we amend or supplement this prospectus to provide otherwise.

We reserve the right to amend or terminate the guarantee agreement with respect to the notes or deposit notes, in whole or in any part (and with respect to some or all holders of the notes or deposit notes), at any time in the future as permitted in the guarantee agreement. In the event that we terminate the guarantee agreement with respect to any notes or deposit notes (or holders), this prospectus will not apply with respect to any offers or sales of those obligations made after the termination becomes effective (other than offers and sales to any holders as to whom the termination is not effective).

PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

Initial Offering and Sale of Notes and Deposit Notes with Guarantee

We have been advised by GS Bank that the notes or deposit notes, in each case together with our guarantee, may be initially offered from time to time as follows:

- · through agents;
- to dealers or initial purchasers for resale;
- directly to purchasers; or
- · through a combination of any of these methods of sale.

The notes or deposit notes, in each case together with our guarantee, which GS Bank distributes by any of these methods may be sold to the public, in one or more transactions, either:

- at a fixed price or prices, which may be changed;
- · at market prices prevailing at the time of sale;
- · at prices related to prevailing market prices; or
- at negotiated prices.

The notes or deposit notes, in each case together with our guarantee, may be offered by Goldman, Sachs & Co., any of our other affiliates or other firms, pursuant to distribution agreements signed with GS Bank and us from time to time. We refer to these firms as "agents". The notes and deposit notes will be offered for sale primarily in the United States but may also be offered outside the United States.

The agents may offer the notes or deposit notes, in each case together with our guarantee, as agents for GS Bank or may purchase them for resale as principal, either on a firm-commitment or best-efforts basis, and will be compensated by GS Bank in the form of placement fees, commissions, purchase price discounts or similar arrangements. The agents may offer the notes or deposit notes either directly or through other institutions acting as selling agents, and may reallow or otherwise pay all or some of their compensation to their selling agents, if any.

We have been advised by GS Bank that it may also solicit offers to purchase the notes or deposit notes directly from the public from time to time.

We do not expect to pay any fees or other compensation to any agent in connection with the offering of notes or deposit notes, nor do we intend to charge any fees to or receive any other compensation from GS Bank or any other person in respect of our guarantee.

Neither the notes nor the deposit notes are required to be or have been registered under the Securities Act. However, because our guarantee has been registered under the Securities Act, the agents may be deemed to be "underwriters", and some of the compensation they receive in connection with the distribution of notes and deposit notes may be deemed to be "underwriters' compensation" (as these terms are defined in the Securities Act), with respect to our guarantee.

In connection with an offering, the agents may purchase and sell notes or deposit notes, together with our guarantee, in the open market. These transactions may include short sales, stabilizing transactions and purchases to cover positions created by short sales. Short sales involve the sale by the agents of a greater number of notes or deposit notes than they are required to purchase in an offering. Stabilizing transactions consist of certain bids or purchases made for the purpose of preventing or retarding a decline in the market price of the notes or deposit notes while an offering is in progress.

The agents also may impose a penalty bid. This occurs when a particular agent repays to the agents a portion of the fees, commissions or discounts received by it because the agents have repurchased notes or deposit notes, together with our guarantee, sold by or for the account of that agent in stabilizing or short-covering transactions.

These activities by the agents may stabilize, maintain or otherwise affect the market price of the notes or deposit notes. As a result, the price of the notes or deposit notes may be higher than the price that otherwise might exist in the open market. If these activities are commenced, they may be discontinued by the agents at any time.

We have been advised by GS Bank that it may authorize the agents and their selling agents to solicit from third parties offers to purchase the notes or deposit notes providing for payment and issuance on future dates.

The agents, as well as their affiliates, may be customers of or lenders to, and may engage in transactions with and perform services (including investment banking, financial advisory and banking services) for, The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and its subsidiaries in the ordinary course of business. In connection with some of these transactions and services, these parties have in the past received, and may in the future receive, customary fees from us or our affiliates. As noted above, GS Bank expects to offer the notes and deposit notes, together with our guarantee, to or through our affiliates, as agents or selling agents. Among our affiliates, Goldman, Sachs & Co. may offer the notes and deposit notes for sale in the United States and Goldman Sachs International, Goldman Sachs (Asia) L.L.C. and Goldman Sachs (Singapore) Pte. may offer them for sale outside the United States. Our affiliates may also offer the notes and deposit notes in other markets through one or more selling agents, including one another.

Goldman, Sachs & Co. is a subsidiary of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. is the parent of Goldman, Sachs & Co. Rule 5121 of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority, Inc. (FINRA) imposes certain requirements when a member of FINRA, such as Goldman, Sachs & Co., distributes an affiliated company's securities. Goldman, Sachs & Co. has advised us that each particular offering of the notes and deposit notes in which it participates will comply with the applicable requirements of Rule 5121 or any successor FINRA rule.

We and GS Bank have agreed (or will agree) to indemnify the agents that have signed (or will sign) distribution agreements against certain liabilities, which may include liabilities arising under the Securities Act of 1933.

Market-Making Resales by Affiliates

This prospectus may be used by Goldman, Sachs & Co. and any of our other affiliates in connection with offers and sales of notes and deposit notes, together with our guarantee, in market-making transactions. In a market-making transaction, Goldman, Sachs & Co. or any such other affiliate may resell a note or deposit note that it acquires from other holders, after the original offering and sale of the note or deposit note. Resales of this kind may occur in the open market or may be privately negotiated, at prevailing market prices at the time of resale or at related or negotiated prices. In these transactions, Goldman, Sachs & Co. or such other affiliate may act as principal or agent, including as agent for the counterparty in a transaction in which the affiliate acts as principal, or as agent for both counterparties in a transaction in which the affiliate does not act as principal. Goldman, Sachs & Co. or such other affiliates may receive compensation in the form of fees, commissions and discounts, including from both counterparties in some cases. In addition to Goldman, Sachs & Co., our other affiliates who engage in transactions of this kind and may use this prospectus for this purpose include Goldman Sachs (International, Goldman Sachs (Asia) L.L.C. and Goldman Sachs (Singapore) Pte.

In the event that GS Bank, Goldman, Sachs & Co. or any other affiliate of GS Bank purchases deposit notes with our guarantee in the secondary market, these purchases may be subject to certain regulatory conditions, including, if GS Bank, Goldman, Sachs & Co. or any other affiliate of GS Bank purchases deposit notes from a holder within six days after those deposit notes are initially issued, downward adjustments to the purchase price to be paid to the holder to account for early withdrawal penalties imposed by GS Bank pursuant to Regulation D of the Federal Reserve Board. Thus, if you sell a deposit note to GS Bank or any of its affiliates shortly after you purchase and pay for it, you may receive a reduced price for your deposit note.

We do not expect to pay or receive any fees or other compensation in respect of our guarantee in market-making transactions. We do not expect Goldman, Sachs & Co. or any of our other affiliates that engages in these transactions to pay any proceeds from its market-making resales to us.

When you purchase any notes or deposit notes together with our guarantee, you may assume that you are purchasing them in a market-making transaction unless you are informed in your confirmation of sale that you are purchasing them in their original offering and sale.

Market for the Notes and Deposit Notes

There is no established trading market for the notes or deposit notes, in each case together with our guarantee, and there is no assurance that any will develop. Neither we nor GS Bank intends to list the notes, deposit notes or our guarantee on any securities exchange or trading facility. We have been advised by Goldman, Sachs & Co. that it may make a market in the notes or deposit notes and it is possible that any of our other affiliates involved in the distribution of the notes or deposit notes may also do so. Neither Goldman, Sachs & Co. nor any of our other affiliates, however, is obligated to do so and any one of them may discontinue market-making at any time without notice. No assurance can be given as to the liquidity or the trading market for the notes or deposit notes.

Conflicts of Interest

Goldman, Sachs & Co. is an affiliate of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and, as such, will have a "conflict of interest" in any offering of the notes or deposit notes within the meaning of FINRA Rule 5121. Consequently, any offering of the notes or deposit notes will be conducted in compliance with the provisions of Rule 5121. Goldman, Sachs & Co. will not be permitted to sell notes or deposit notes with our guarantees in any offering to an account over which it exercises discretionary authority without the prior specific written approval of the account holder.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT INCOME SECURITY ACT

This section is only relevant to you if you are an insurance company or the fiduciary of a pension plan or an employee benefit plan (including a governmental plan an IRA or a Keogh Plan) proposing to invest in the notes or deposit notes, in each case with our guarantee.

The U.S. Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended ("ERISA"), and the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), prohibit certain transactions ("prohibited transactions") involving the assets of an employee benefit plan that is subject to the fiduciary responsibility provisions of ERISA or Section 4975 of the Code (including individual retirement accounts, Keogh plans and other plans described in Section 4975(e)(1) of the Code) (a "Plan") and certain persons who are "parties in interest" (within the meaning of ERISA) or "disqualified persons" (within the meaning of the Code) with respect to the Plan; governmental plans may be subject to similar prohibitions unless an exemption applies to the transaction. The assets of a Plan may include assets held in the general account of an insurance company that are deemed "plan assets" under ERISA or assets of certain investment vehicles in which the Plan invests. Each of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and certain of its affiliates may be considered a "party in interest" or a "disqualified person" with respect to many Plans, and, accordingly, prohibited transactions may arise if the notes or deposit notes, in each case with our guarantee, are acquired by or on behalf of a Plan unless the notes or deposit notes are acquired and held pursuant to an available exemption. In general, available exemptions are: transactions effected on behalf of that Plan by a "qualified professional asset manager" (prohibited transaction exemption 84-14) or an "in-house asset manager" (prohibited transaction exemption 96-23), transactions involving insurance company general accounts (prohibited transaction exemption 95-60), transactions involving insurance company pooled separate accounts (prohibited transaction exemption 90-1), transactions involving bank collective investment funds (prohibited transaction exemption 91-38) and transactions with service providers under Section 408(b)(17) of ERISA and Section 4975(d)(20) of the Code where the Plan receives no less and pays no more than "adequate consideration" (within the meaning of Section 408(b)(17) of ERISA and Section 4975(f)(10) of the Code). A Plan should also consider whether its purchase, holdings and disposition of a note or deposit note is eligible to be covered under prohibited transaction exemption 81-8 (involving investments in certificates of deposit). The person making the decision on behalf of a Plan or a governmental plan shall be deemed, on behalf of itself and the plan, by purchasing and holding the notes or deposit notes, or exercising any rights related thereto, to represent that (a) the plan will receive no less and pay no more than "adequate consideration" (within the meaning of Section 408(b)(17) of ERISA and Section 4975(f)(10) of the Code) in connection with the purchase and holding of the notes or deposit notes, (b) none of the purchase, holding or disposition of the notes or deposit notes, in each case with our guarantee, or the exercise of any rights related to the notes, the deposit notes or our guarantee will result in a non-exempt prohibited transaction under ERISA or the Code (or, with respect to a governmental plan, under any similar applicable law or regulation), and (c) neither The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. nor any of its affiliates is a "fiduciary" (within the meaning of Section 3(21) of ERISA (or any regulations thereunder) or, with respect to a governmental plan, under any similar applicable law or regulation) with respect to the purchaser or holder in connection with such person's acquisition, disposition or holding of the notes or deposit notes, in each case with our guarantee, or as a result of any exercise by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. or any of its affiliates of any rights in connection with the notes, the deposit notes or our guarantee, and no advice provided by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. or any of its affiliates has formed a primary basis for any investment decision by or on behalf of such purchaser or holder in connection with the notes or deposit notes, in each case with our guarantee, and any transactions contemplated with respect to the notes or deposit notes, in each case with our guarantee.

If you are an insurance company or the fiduciary of a pension plan or an employee benefit plan (including a governmental plan an IRA or a Keogh plan) and propose to invest in the notes or deposit notes, in each case with our guarantee, described in this prospectus, you should consult your legal counsel.

VALIDITY OF OUR GUARANTEE

The validity of our guarantee has been passed upon for The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. by Sullivan & Cromwell LLP, New York, New York. The opinion of Sullivan & Cromwell LLP was based on assumptions about the absence of future changes in law or the authorization of our guarantee and about other matters that may affect the validity of our guarantee but which could not be ascertained on the date of that opinion.

Sullivan & Cromwell LLP has in the past represented and continues to represent Goldman Sachs on a regular basis and in a variety of matters, including offerings of our common stock, preferred stock and debt securities. Sullivan & Cromwell LLP also performed services for The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and GS Bank in connection with the issuance of our guarantee and the notes and deposit notes.

EXPERTS

The financial statements of Goldman Sachs incorporated in this prospectus by reference to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010 have been so incorporated in reliance on the report of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, given on the authority of said firm as experts in auditing and accounting.

The historical income statement, balance sheet and common share data set forth in "Selected Financial Data" as of or for the years ended December 31, 2010, December 31, 2009, November 28, 2008, November 30, 2007 and November 24, 2006 and for the month ended December 26, 2008 incorporated by reference in this prospectus have been so incorporated in reliance on the report of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, given on the authority of said firm as experts in auditing and accounting.

REVIEW OF UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BY INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

With respect to the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements of Goldman Sachs for (i) the three month periods ended March 31, 2011 and March 31, 2010, and (ii) the three month and six month periods ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, incorporated by reference in this prospectus, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP reported that they have applied limited procedures in accordance with professional standards for a review of such information. However, their separate reports dated (i) May 9, 2011 and (ii) August 8, 2011 incorporated by reference in this prospectus state that they did not audit and they do not express an opinion on that unaudited condensed consolidated financial information. Accordingly, the degree of reliance on their reports on such information should be restricted in light of the limited nature of the review procedures applied. PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP is not subject to the liability provisions of Section 11 of the U.S. Securities Act of 1933 for their reports on the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements because those reports are not a "report" or a "part" of the registration statements prepared or certified by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP within the meaning of Sections 7 and 11 of the Securities Act of 1933.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO THE PRIVATE SECURITIES LITIGATION REFORM ACT OF 1995

We have included or incorporated by reference in this prospectus statements that may constitute "forward-looking statements" within the meaning of the safe harbor provisions of The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These forward-looking statements are not historical facts but instead represent only our belief regarding future events, many of which, by their nature, are inherently uncertain and outside of our control. It is possible that our actual results may differ, possibly materially, from the anticipated results indicated in these forward-looking statements.

Information regarding important factors that could cause actual results to differ, perhaps materially, from those in our forward-looking statements is contained under "Risk Factors" in Part I, Item 1A of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010, which is incorporated in this prospectus by reference (and in any of our annual or quarterly reports for a subsequent fiscal period that are so incorporated). See "Available Information" above for information about how to obtain a copy of this annual report.

We have not authorized anyone to provide any information or to make any representations other than those contained or incorporated by reference in this prospectus or in any free writing prospectuses we have prepared. We take no responsibility for, and can provide no assurance as to the reliability of, any other information that others may give you. This prospectus is an offer to sell only the securities offered hereby, but only under circumstances and in jurisdictions where it is lawful to do so. The information contained in this prospectus is current only as of its date.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
<u>Available Information</u>	2
The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	4
We Are A Holding Company	4
<u>Use of Proceeds</u>	4
The Notes and Deposit Notes	4
Our Guarantee and the Guarantee Agreement	5
Scope of this Prospectus	7
<u>Plan of Distribution</u>	7
Conflicts of Interest	9
Employee Retirement Income Security Act	10
<u>Validity of Our Guarantee</u>	11
<u>Experts</u>	11
Review of Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial	
Statements by Independent Registered Public Accounting	
<u>Firm</u>	11
Cautionary Statement Pursuant to the Private Securities	
<u>Litigation Reform Act of 1995</u>	11

The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.

Guarantee of Notes and Deposit Notes of Goldman Sachs Bank USA



Goldman, Sachs & Co.

PART II

Information Not Required in Prospectus

Item 14. Other Expenses of Issuance and Distribution.

The following is a statement of the expenses (all of which are estimated other than the SEC registration fees and the FINRA fees) to be incurred by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. in connection with the distribution of the securities registered under this Registration Statement:

	Amount to be paid
SEC registration fees	\$ 2,789,481
Legal fees and expenses	700,000
Fees and expenses of qualification under state securities laws (including legal fees)	0
Accounting fees and expenses	750,000
Printing fees	165,000
Rating agency fees	2,600,000
Trustee's fees and expenses	500,000
Total	\$ 7,504,481

This Registration Statement relates to an unspecified aggregate initial offering price or number of the securities of each class identified in the fee table on the cover page of this Registration Statement. Because these aggregate amounts are not known, the estimates provided above relate to the expenses of filing this Registration Statement. This expense estimate will appear with respect to each particular offering of securities in the 424(b) filing relating to such securities.

Item 15. Indemnification of Directors and Officers.

Section 145 of the Delaware General Corporation Law provides that a corporation may indemnify directors and officers as well as other employees and individuals against expenses (including attorneys' fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred by such person in connection with any threatened, pending or completed actions, suits or proceedings in which such person is made a party by reason of such person being or having been a director, officer, employee of or agent to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. or GS Finance Corp. The statute provides that it is not exclusive of other rights to which those seeking indemnification may be entitled under any by-law, agreement, vote of stockholders or disinterested directors or otherwise. Section 6.4 of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s by-laws provides for indemnification by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. of any person who is or was a director or officer (as such term is defined in the by-laws) of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., is or was a director or officer of any of its subsidiaries, is or was a member of the Shareholders' Committee acting pursuant to the Amended and Restated Shareholders' Agreement (as described in the Annual Report on Form 10-K of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010 incorporated by reference in this Registration Statement) or, at the request of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., is or was serving as a director or officer of, or in any other capacity for, any other enterprise, to the fullest extent permitted by law. The by-laws also provide that The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. shall advance expenses to a director or officer and, if reimbursement of such expenses is demanded in advance of the final disposition of the matter with respect to which such demand is being made, upon receipt of an undertaking by or on behalf of such

director or officer to repay such amount if it is ultimately determined that the director or officer is not entitled to be indemnified by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. To the extent authorized from time to time by the board of directors of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. may provide to any one or more employees of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., one or more officers, employees and other agents of any subsidiary or one or more directors, officers, employees and other agents of any other enterprise, rights of indemnification and to receive payment or reimbursement of expenses, including attorneys' fees, that are similar to the rights conferred in the by-laws of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. on directors and officers of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. or its board of directors to provide other indemnification and expense reimbursement rights to directors, officers, employees, agents and other persons otherwise than pursuant to the by-laws. The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. has entered into agreements with certain directors, officers and employees who are asked to serve in specified capacities at subsidiaries and other entities.

The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. has entered into an agreement that provides indemnification to its directors and officers and to the directors and certain officers of the general partner of The Goldman Sachs Group, L.P. (predecessor to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.), members of its Management Committee or its Partnership Committee or the former Executive Committee of The Goldman Sachs Group, L.P. and all other persons requested or authorized by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s board of directors or the board of directors of the general partner of The Goldman Sachs Group, L.P. to take actions on behalf of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., The Goldman Sachs Group, L.P. or the general partner of The Goldman Sachs Group, L.P. in connection with the plan of incorporation and certain registration statements for all losses, damages, costs and expenses incurred by the indemnified person arising out of the relevant registration statements or the transactions contemplated by the plan of incorporation. The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. has also entered into a similar indemnification agreement with its directors, some of its officers and all other persons requested or authorized by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s board of directors or any committee thereof to take actions on behalf of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. or as an attorney-infact in connection with this Registration Statement, certain other registration statements and certain unregistered offerings of securities. These agreements are in addition to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s indemnification obligations under its by-laws.

In addition, Section 6.4 of GS Finance Corp.'s by-laws provides for indemnification by GS Finance Corp. of any director, officer or employee (as such term is defined in the by-laws) of GS Finance Corp. or, at the request of GS Finance Corp., who is or was serving as a director, officer or employee of any other enterprise, to the fullest extent permitted by law. The by-laws also provide that GS Finance Corp. shall promptly pay or reimburse expenses to a director, officer or employee upon receipt of an undertaking by or on behalf of such director, officer or employee to repay such amount if it is ultimately determined that the director, officer or employee is not entitled to be indemnified by GS Finance Corp. The by-laws do not limit the power of GS Finance Corp. or its board of directors to provide other indemnification and expense reimbursement rights to directors, officers, employees, agents and other persons otherwise than pursuant to the by-laws.

Section 102(b)(7) of the Delaware General Corporation Law permits a corporation to provide in its certificate of incorporation that a director of the corporation shall not be personally liable to the corporation or its stockholders for monetary damages for breach of fiduciary duty as a director, except for liability for (i) any breach of the director's duty of loyalty to the corporation or its stockholders, (ii) acts or omissions not in good faith or which involve intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of law, (iii) payments of unlawful dividends or unlawful stock purchases or redemptions, or (iv) any transaction from which the director derived an improper personal benefit. Both The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s restated certificate of incorporation and GS Finance Corp.'s certificate of incorporation provide for such limitation of liability.

Policies of insurance are maintained by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. under which its directors and officers and those of GS Finance Corp. are insured, within the limits and subject to the limitations of the policies, against certain expenses in connection with the defense of, and certain liabilities which might be imposed as a result of, actions, suits or proceedings to which they are parties by reason of being or having been such directors or officers.

The Amended and Restated Trust Agreements for the Issuer Trusts provide that, to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, the applicable Issuer Trust will indemnify and hold harmless each Issuer Trustee or any of their respective affiliates, any officer, director, shareholder, employee, representative or agent of any Issuer Trustee, any paying agent and any employee or agent of any Issuer Trust or its affiliates (each, an "Indemnified Person") against any liability, costs and expenses (including reasonable attorneys' fees) by reason of the creation, operation or termination of the applicable Issuer Trust or any act or omission performed or omitted by such Indemnified Person in good faith on behalf of such Issuer Trust and in a manner such Indemnified Person reasonably believed to be within the scope of authority conferred on such Indemnified Person by the Amended and Restated Trust Agreement, except for any liability arising out of negligence, bad faith or willful misconduct on the part of any such Indemnified Person or Persons.

Item 16. Exhibits.

Exhibit No.	Description	Incorporated by Reference to Filings Indicated
1.1	Form of Amended and Restated Distribution Agreement for Medium-Term Notes, Series B of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	**
1.2	Form of Amended and Restated Distribution Agreement for Medium-Term Notes, Series D of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	**
1.3	Form of Distribution Agreement for warrants of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	*
1.4	Form of Underwriting Agreement for senior debt securities of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., issued under the Indenture, dated as of May 19, 1999, between The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and The Bank of New York Mellon (formerly known as The Bank of New York), as trustee.	**
1.5	Form of Underwriting Agreement for senior debt securities of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., issued under the Senior Debt Indenture, dated as of July 16, 2008, between The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee.	**
1.6	Form of Underwriting Agreement for subordinated debt securities of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	*
1.7	Form of Underwriting Agreement for warrants of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	*
1.8	Form of Underwriting Agreement for purchase contracts of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	*
1.9	Form of Underwriting Agreement for units of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	*
1.10	Form of Underwriting Agreement for preferred stock and depositary shares of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	**
1.11	Form of Underwriting Agreement for capital securities.	*
1.12	Form of Amended and Restated Distribution Agreement for Medium-Term Notes, Series A of GS Finance Corp.	**
1.13	Form of Amended and Restated Distribution Agreement for Medium-Term Notes, Series E of GS Finance Corp.	**
1.14	Form of Distribution Agreement for warrants of GS Finance Corp.	*
1.15	Form of Underwriting Agreement for senior debt securities of GS Finance Corp., issued under the Senior Debt Indenture, dated as of December 4, 2007, among GS Finance Corp., The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., as guarantor, and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee.	*
1.16	Form of Underwriting Agreement for senior debt securities of GS Finance Corp., issued under the Senior Debt Indenture, dated as of October 10, 2008, among GS Finance Corp., The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., as guarantor, and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee.	*

Exhibit No. Description	Incorporated by Reference to Filings Indicated
1.17 Form of Underwriting Agreement for subordinated debt securities of GS Finance Corp.	*
1.18 Form of Underwriting Agreement for warrants of GS Finance Corp.	*
1.19 Form of Underwriting Agreement for units of GS Finance Corp.	*
1.20 Form of Brokerage Agreement relating to Certificates of Deposit of Goldman Sachs Bank USA (or any successor thereto or any other banking subsidiary of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.).	Exhibit 1.20 to Post-Effective Amendment No. 1 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-1541
1.21 Form of Distribution Agreement relating to Deposit Notes of Goldman Sachs Bank USA (or any successor thereto or any other banking subsidiary of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.).	
1.22 Form of Distribution Agreement relating to Notes of Goldman Sachs Bank USA (or any successor thereto or any other banking subsidiary of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.).	

2.1 Amended and Restated Plan of Incorporation of The Goldman Sachs

Reddman

Reddman

Restated Plan of Incorporation of Sachs

Reddman

Sachs

2.2 Certificate of Incorporation of GS

Group, L.P.

Finance

Exhibit 2.5 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Post-Effective Amendment No. 10 to Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-1300)

Corp.

4.1 Specimen of certificate representing The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s

common stock, par value \$0.01

per share. Exhibit 4.1 to Post-Effective Amendment No. 3 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-15417

securities of The

```
Exhibit
                                                                                           Incorporated by Reference
No. Description
                                                                                              to Filings Indicated
4.2 Restated
     Certificate of
     Incorporation
     of The
     Goldman
     Sachs
     Group, Inc.,
     including
     Certificates
     of
     Designations
     relating to
     Preferred
     Stock Series
     A, B, C, D, E
                  Exhibit 3.2 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (No. 001-14965) for the quarterly period ended March 3
     and F.
4.3 Indenture,
     dated as of
     May 19,
     1999,
     between The
     Goldman
     Sachs
     Group, Inc.
     and The
     Bank of New
     York Mellon,
     as trustee,
     with respect
     to senior
     debt
     securities of
     The
     Goldman
     Sachs
                  Exhibit 6 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form 8-A (No. 001-14965), filed on June 29, 1999.
     Group, Inc.
    Senior Debt
     Indenture.
     dated as of
     July 16,
     2008,
     between The
     Goldman
     Sachs
     Group, Inc.
     and The
     Bank of New
     York Mellon,
     as trustee,
     with respect
     to senior
     debt
     securities of
     The
     Goldman
                   Exhibit 4.82 to Post-Effective Amendment No. 11 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-130)
     Group, Inc.
4.5 Subordinated Exhibit 4.2 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K (No. 001-14965) for the fiscal year ended November 28, 2
     Debt
     Indenture,
     dated as of
     February 20,
     2004,
     between The
     Goldman
     Sachs
     Group, Inc.
     and The
     Bank of New
     York Mellon,
     as trustee.
     with respect
     to
     subordinated
     debt
```

Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.

4.6 Certificate of

Trust of Goldman Sachs

Capital II. Exhibit 4.12 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-112367), filed on January 30, 2004.

4.7 Amended

and Restated Declaration of Trust of Goldman Sachs

Capital II. Exhibit 99.5 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form 8-A (No. 001-14965), filed on May 17, 2007 (SEC Acc

Exhib No.	oit Description	Incorporated by Reference to Filings Indicated
4.8	Form of Agreement as to Expenses and Liabilities for Goldman Sachs Capital II.	Exhibit 4.19 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-112367), filed on January 30, 2004.
4.9	Guarantee Agreement for Goldman Sachs Capital II.	Exhibit 99.7 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form 8-A (No. 001-14965), filed on May 17, 2007 (SEC Acces
4.10	Certificate of Trust of Goldman Sachs Capital III.	Exhibit 4.14 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-112367), filed on January 30, 2004.
4.11	Amended and Restated Declaration of Trust of Goldman Sachs	Exhibit 99.5 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form 8-A (No. 001-14965), filed on May 17, 2007 (SEC Acces
4.12	Form of Agreement as to Expenses and Liabilities for Goldman Sachs	
4.13	Capital III. Guarantee Agreement for Goldman Sachs	Exhibit 4.20 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-112367), filed on January 30, 2004.
		Exhibit 99.7 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form 8-A (No. 001-14965), filed on May 17, 2007 (SEC Acces

Exhibit No. Description	Incorporated by Reference to Filings Indicated
4.14 Certificate of Trust of Goldman Sachs Capital IV.	Exhibit 4.16 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-112367), filed on January 30, 2004.
4.15 Form of Amended and Restated Trust Agreement for Goldman Sachs Capital IV.	Exhibit 4.9 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-112367), filed on January 30, 2004.
4.16 Trust Agreement of Goldman Sachs Capital IV.	Exhibit 4.17 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-112367), filed on January 30, 2004.
4.17 Form of Agreement as to Expenses and Liabilities for Goldman Sachs Capital IV.	Exhibit 4.21 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-112367), filed on January 30, 2004.
4.18 Form of Guarantee Agreement for Goldman Sachs Capital IV.	Exhibit 4.25 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-112367), filed on January 30, 2004.
4.19 Certificate of Trust of Goldman Sachs Capital V.	Exhibit 4.17 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-122977), filed on February 24, 2005.
4.20 Form of Amended and Restated Trust Agreement for Goldman Sachs Capital	
V.	Exhibit 4.9 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-122977), filed on February 24, 2005.

Exhib No.	oit Description	Incorporated by Reference to Filings Indicated
4.21	Trust Agreement of Goldman Sachs Capital V.	Exhibit 4.18 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-122977), filed on February 24, 2005.
4.22	Form of Agreement as to Expenses and Liabilities for Goldman Sachs Capital V.	Exhibit 4.24 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-122977), filed on February 24, 2005.
4.23	Form of Guarantee Agreement for Goldman Sachs Capital V.	Exhibit 4.29 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-122977), filed on February 24, 2005.
4.24	Certificate of Trust of Goldman Sachs Capital VI.	Exhibit 4.19 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-122977), filed on February 24, 2005.
4.25	Form of Amended and Restated Trust Agreement for Goldman Sachs Capital VI.	Exhibit 4.10 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-122977), filed on February 24, 2005.
4.26	Trust Agreement of Goldman Sachs Capital VI.	Exhibit 4.20 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-122977), filed on February 24, 2005.
4.27	Form of Agreement as to Expenses and Liabilities for Goldman Sachs Capital VI.	Exhibit 4.25 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-122977), filed on February 24, 2005.
	v 1.	1-9
		.

between The

```
Exhibit
                                                                                   Incorporated by Reference
No. Description
                                                                                       to Filings Indicated
4.28 Form of
     Guarantee
     Agreement
     for
     Goldman
     Sachs
     Capital VI.
               Exhibit 4.30 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-122977), filed on February 24, 2005.
4.29 Warrant
     Indenture,
     dated as of
     February
     14. 2006.
     between
     The
     Goldman
     Sachs
     Group, Inc.
     and The
     Bank of
     New York
     Mellon, as
     trustee,
     with
     respect to
     warrants of
     The
     Goldman
     Sachs
     Group, Inc. Exhibit 4.34 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Post-Effective Amendment No. 3 to Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-13007
4.30 Form of
     Debt
     Warrant
     Agreement
     for
     warrants of
     Goldman
     Sachs
     Group, Inc.
     sold
     attached to
     debt
     securities
     of The
     Goldman
     Sachs
     Group, Inc.
4.31 Form of
     Debt
     Warrant
     Agreement
     for
     warrants of
     The
     Goldman
     Sachs
     Group, Inc.
     sold alone.
4.32 Form of
     Warrant
     Agreement
     for
     universal
     warrants of
     The
     Goldman
     Sachs
     Group, Inc.
4.33 Deposit
                 Exhibit 5 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form 8-A (No. 001-14965), filed on October 28, 2005.
     Agreement,
     dated as of
     October 21,
     2005,
```

Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and JP Morgan Chase Bank, N.A., including form of depositary receipt.

4.34 Form of

Unit

Agreement

of The

Goldman

Sachs

Group, Inc.,

including form of unit

certificate.

4.35 Form of

Unit

Agreement

Without

Holders'

Obligation of The

Goldman

Sachs

Group, Inc.

4.36 Form of

senior debt

securities

of The

Goldman

Sachs

Group, Inc.,

issued

under the Indenture,

dated as of

May 19, 1999,

between

The

Goldman

Sachs

Group, Inc.

and The

Bank of New York

Mellon, as

trustee

(included in

Exhibit 4.3).

4.37 Form of

senior debt

securities of The

Goldman

Sachs

Group, Inc.

issued under the

Senior Debt

Indenture,

dated as of July 16, 2008,

between

The

Goldman Sachs

Group, Inc.

and The Bank of

New York

Mellon, as trustee

subordinated

```
Exhibit
                                                                                        Incorporated by Reference
No. Description
                                                                                           to Filings Indicated
4.38 Form of
     floating rate
     senior debt
     security
     issued under
     the
     Indenture.
     dated as of
     May 19,
     1999,
     between The
     Goldman
     Sachs
     Group, Inc.
     and The
     Bank of New
     York Mellon,
                  Exhibit 4.45 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-154173), filed on October 10, 2008.
     as trustee.
4.39 Form of
     floating rate
     senior debt
     security
     issued under
     the Senior
     Debt
     Indenture,
     dated as of
     July 16,
2008,
     between The
     Goldman
     Sachs
     Group, Inc.
     and The
     Bank of New
     York Mellon,
                  Exhibit 4.46 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-154173), filed on October 10, 2008.
     as trustee.
4.40 Form of
     fixed rate
     senior debt
     security
     issued under
     the
     Indenture,
     dated as of
     May 19,
     1999,
     between The
     Goldman
     Sachs
     Group, Inc.
     and The
     Bank of New
     York Mellon,
                  Exhibit 4.55 to Post-Effective Amendment No. 2 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-1300)
     as trustee.
4.41 Form of
     fixed rate
     senior debt
     security
     issued under
     the Senior
     Debt
     Indenture,
     dated as of
     July 16,
     2008,
     between The
     Goldman
     Sachs
     Group, Inc.
     and The
     Bank of New
     York Mellon,
                  Exhibit 4.91 to Post-Effective Amendment No. 11 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-130
     as trustee.
4.42 Form of
```

debt
securities of
The
Goldman
Sachs
Group, Inc.
(included in
Exhibit 4.5).

4.43 Form of
Floating
Rate
MediumTerm Note,
Series B, of
The
Goldman
Sachs
Group, Inc.

**

Exhibit 4.50 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-154173), filed on October 10, 2008.

4.44 Form of
Floating
Rate
MediumTerm Note,
Series D, of

The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.

Exhib No.	oit Description	Incorporated by Reference to Filings Indicated
4.45	Form of Fixed Rate Medium- Term Note, Series B, of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	Exhibit 4.4 to Post-Effective Amendment No. 1 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (No. 333-7532
4.46	Form of Fixed Rate Medium- Term Note, Series D, of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	Exhibit 4.85 to Post-Effective Amendment No. 11 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-13
4.47	Form of Mandatory Exchangeable Medium-Term Note, Series B, of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	Exhibit 4.5 to Post-Effective Amendment No. 1 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (No. 333-7532
4.48	Form of Mandatory Exchangeable Medium-Term Note, Series D, of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	Exhibit 4.86 to Post-Effective Amendment No. 11 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-13
4.49	Form of Exchangeable Medium-Term Note, Series B, of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	Exhibit 4.6 to Post-Effective Amendment No. 1 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (No. 333-7532

Prepaid

Table	e of Contents			
Exhibit No. Description		Incorporated by Reference to Filings Indicated		
4.50	Form of Exchangeable Medium-Term Note, Series D, of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	Exhibit 4.87 to Post-Effective Amendment No. 11 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-13)		
4.51	Form of Exchange Traded Note, Series B, of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	Exhibit 99.2 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form 8-A (File No. 001-14965), filed on June 26, 2007.		
4.52	Form of Index- Linked Medium-Term Note, Series D, of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	Exhibit 4.88 to Post-Effective Amendment No. 11 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-1).		
4.53	Specimen Master Medium-Term Note, Series B, dated September 19, 2011, of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	**		
4.54	Specimen Master Medium-Term Note, Series D, dated September 19, 2011, of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	**		
4.55	Form of put warrant of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. (included in Exhibit 4.29).			
4.56	Form of call warrant of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. (included in Exhibit 4.29).			
4.57	Form of universal warrant of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	Exhibit 4.57 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Post-Effective Amendment No. 7 to Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-130)		
	Form of Prepaid Purchase Contract of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	*		
4.59	Form of Non- Prepaid			

Purchase Contract (Issuer Sale) of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. (to be included in Exhibit 4.32).

4.60 Form of Non-Prepaid Purchase Contract (Issuer Purchase) of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. (to be included in Exhibit 4.32).

4.65 Form of Unit Agreement

```
Incorporated by Reference to Filings Indicated
Exhibit
No. Description
4.61 Form of
     Capital
     Security
     (included
     in Exhibits
    4.7, 4.11,
4.15, 4.20,
     4.25 and
     4.86).
4.62 Senior
     Debt
     Indenture,
     dated as
     of
     December
     4, 2007,
     among GS
     Finance
     Corp., The
     Goldman
Sachs
     Group,
     Inc., as
     guarantor,
     and The
     Bank of
     New York
     Mellon, as
     trustee,
     with
     respect to
     senior
     debt
     securities
     of GS
     Finance
                 Exhibit 4.69 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Post-Effective Amendment No. 10 to Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-1300)
     Corp.
4.63 Senior
     Debt
     Indenture,
     dated as
     of October
     10, 2008,
     among GS
     Finance
     Corp., The
     Goldman
     Sachs
     Group,
     Inc., as
     guarantor,
     and The
     Bank of
     New York
     Mellon, as
     trustee,
     with
     respect to
     senior
     debt
     securities
     of GS
     Finance
                 Exhibit 4.70 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-154173), filed on October 10, 2008.
     Corp.
4.64 Form of
     Unit
     Agreement
     of GS
     Finance
     Corp.,
     including
     form of
     units.
```

Holders' Obligation of GS Finance Corp. 4.66 Form of senior debt securities of GS Finance Corp., under the Senior Debt Indenture, dated as of December 4, 2007, among GS Finance Corp., The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., as guarantor, and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee (included in Exhibit 4.62). 4.67 Form of senior

Without

debt

securities

of GS Finance

Corp.,

issued

under the

Senior

Debt

Indenture,

dated as

of October

10, 2008,

among GS

Finance Corp., The

Goldman

Sachs

Group,

Inc., as guarantor,

and The

Bank of

New York Mellon, as

trustee

(included in Exhibit

4.63).

4.68 Form of

Floating Rate

Medium-

Term Note,

Series A, of GS

Finance

Corp.

Table of Conte	2
Exhibit No. Descri	ion Incorporated by Reference to Filings Indicated
4.69 Form of Floating Medium Note, So E, of GS Finance	Term ies
4.70 Form of Rate Me Term No Series A GS Fina Corp.	lium- e, of
4.71 Form of Rate Me Term No Series E GS Fina Corp.	lium- ∋, of
4.72 Form of Linked Medium Note, So A, of GS	ndex- Ferm Ies
4.73 Form of Linked Medium Note, So E, of GS	Term ies
Finance 4.74 Specime Master Medium Note, Se E, dated Septem 2011, of Finance	Term ies er 19, GS
4.75 Form of guarant issued to the Sen Debt Indentuing dated as December 2007, and GS Final Corp., The Goldman Sachs (Inc., as guarant The Barn New Yow Mellon, trustee, The Gold Sachs (Inc. of Section 100 Sachs (Inc.) of Section 100 S	der r , , of r 4, , ong ce e oup, , , and of s y man oup, nior rrities ance
4.76 Form of guarant issued the Sen Debt Indentul dated a October 2008, ar	der r , of 0,

GS Finance Corp., The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., as guarantor, and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee, by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. of senior debt securities of GS Finance Corp. (included in Exhibit 4.63).

trustee.

Exhib No.	oit Description	Incorporated by Reference to Filings Indicated
4.77	General Guarantee Agreement, dated October 21, 2008, made by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. relating to certain obligations of Goldman Sachs Bank USA.	Exhibit 4.85 to Post-Effective No. 1 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-154173), filed on C
4.78	General Guarantee Agreement, dated December 1, 2008, made by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. relating to certain obligations of Goldman Sachs Bank USA.	Exhibit 4.80 to Post-Effective No. 2 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-154173), filed on N
4.79	Form of floating rate senior debt security (TLGP) issued under the Senior Debt Indenture, dated as of July 16, 2008, between The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee.	Exhibit 4.5 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K (No. 001-14965) for the fiscal year ended November 28, 200 (No. 001-14965) for the f
4.80	Form of fixed rate senior debt security (TLGP) issued under the Senior Debt Indenture, dated as of July 16, 2008, between The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and The Bank of New York Mellon, as	Exhibit 4.6 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K (No. 001-14965) for the fiscal year ended November 28, 200 (No. 001-14965) for the f

4.81 Form of Exhibit 4.7 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K (No. 001-14965) for the fiscal year ended November 28, 200 floating rate Medium-Term Note, Series D (TLGP) issued under the Senior Debt Indenture, dated as of July 16, 2008, between The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee. 4.82 Form of fixed rate Medium-Term Note, Series D (TLGP) issued under the Senior Debt Indenture, dated as of July 16, 2008, between The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee. Exhibit 4.8 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K (No. 001-14965) for the fiscal year ended November 28, 200

Exhib No.	oit Description	Incorporated by Reference to Filings Indicated
4.83	Form of floating rate senior debt security (TLGP) issued under the Senior Debt Indenture, dated as of July 16, 2008, between The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee.	Exhibit 4.1 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K (No. 001-14965), dated November 25, 2008 and filed on Deca
4.84	Form of fixed rate senior debt security (TLGP) issued under the Senior Debt Indenture, dated as of July 16, 2008, between The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee.	Exhibit 4.2 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K (No. 001-14965), dated November 25, 2008 and filed on Deco
4.85	Certificate of Trust of Goldman Sachs Capital I.	Exhibit 4.10 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-112367), filed on January 30, 2004.
4.86	Amended and Restated Trust Agreement of Goldman Sachs	
4.87	Capital I. Agreement as to Expenses and Liabilities for Goldman	Exhibit 4.2 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (No. 001-14965) for the quarterly period ended February 2
	Sachs Capital I.	Exhibit 4.3 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (No. 001-14965) for the quarterly period ended February 2

Inc.

```
Exhibit
                                                                                          Incorporated by Reference
      Description
No.
                                                                                              to Filings Indicated
4.88 Guarantee
     Agreement
     for Goldman
     Sachs
     Capital I.
                   Exhibit 4.4 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (No. 001-14965) for the quarterly period ended Februar
4.89 Supplemental
     Indenture,
     dated as of
     February 20,
     2004,
     between The
     Goldman
     Sachs Group,
     Inc. and The
     Bank of New
     York Mellon
     (formerly
     known as
     The Bank of
     New York),
     as trustee,
     with respect
     to the junior
     subordinated
     debentures of
     The Goldman
     Sachs Group,
     Inc.
                   Exhibit 4.1 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (No. 001-14965) for the quarterly period ended Februar
4.90 Second
     Supplemental
     Indenture,
     dated as of
     May 15,
     2007,
     between The
     Goldman
     Sachs Group,
     Inc. and The
     Bank of New
     York Mellon
     (formerly
     known as
     The Bank of
     New York),
     as trustee,
     with respect
     to the junior
     subordinated
     notes of The
     Goldman
     Sachs Group,
     Inc.
                   Exhibit 99.4 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form 8-A (No. 001-14965), filed on May 17, 2007 (SEC Acc
4.91 Third
     Supplemental
     Indenture,
     dated as of
     May 15,
     2007,
     between The
     Goldman
     Sachs Group,
     Inc. and The
     Bank of New
     York Mellon
     (formerly
     known as
     The Bank of
     New York),
     as trustee,
     with respect
     to the junior
     subordinated
     notes of The
     Goldman
     Sachs Group,
```

Exhibit 99.4 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form 8-A (No. 001-14965), filed on May 17, 2007 (SEC Acc

5.1 Opinion of Richards,

Layton & Finger, P.A. as to the validity of the capital securities,

the

enforceability

of the trust agreements and the formation of the Issuer Trust with

respect to Goldman

Sachs Capital I,

Goldman

Sachs Capital II, Goldman

Sachs
Capital III,
Goldman
Sachs

Capital IV,
Goldman
Sachs
Capital V and
Goldman

Sachs Capital VI.

Sullivan & Cromwell LLP relating

Exhibit
No. Description 5.2 Opinion of Sullivan & Cromwell LLP relating to (i) debt securities, warrants, purchase contracts, units, preferred stock and depositary shares of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., and capital securities of Goldman Sachs Capital I, Goldman Sachs Capital II, Goldman Sachs Capital III, Goldman Sachs Capital IV, Goldman Sachs Capital V and Goldman Sachs Capital VI and guarantees thereof of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and (ii) debt securities, warrants and units of GS Finance Corp. and guarantees thereof of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. 5.3 Opinion of Sullivan & Cromwell LLP relating to the Guarantees by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. of specified certificates of deposit of Goldman Sachs Bank USA. 5.4 Opinion of

Incorporated by Reference to Filings Indicated

**

**

**

to the Guarantee by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. of Notes and Deposit Notes of Goldman Sachs Bank USA.

5.5 Opinion of Sidley

Austin LLP

as to the

legality of

certain debt

securities of

The

Goldman

Sachs

Group, Inc.

8.1 Tax Opinion

of Sullivan &

Cromwell LLP relating

to debt

securities,

preferred

stock and

depositary shares of

The

Goldman

Sachs

Group, Inc.,

and capital

securities of

Goldman

Sachs Capital I,

Goldman

Sachs

Capital II,

Goldman Sachs

Capital III,

Goldman

Sachs

Capital IV,

Goldman

Sachs

Capital V

and

Goldman Sachs

Capital VI

and guarantees

thereof of The

Goldman Sachs

Group, Inc.

8.2 Tax Opinion

of Sullivan &

Cromwell LLP relating

to debt

securities,

warrants and units of

GS Finance Corp. and

guarantees thereof of

The

Goldman

Sachs

Group, Inc.

**

**

of Sidley Austin LLP relating to certain debt securities, preferred stock and depositary shares of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., and capital securities of Goldman Sachs Capital I, Goldman Sachs Capital II, Goldman Sachs Capital III, Goldman Sachs Capital IV, Goldman Sachs Capital V and Goldman Sachs Capital VI and guarantees thereof of The Goldman Sachs

12.1 Statement

Computation of Ratios of

Earnings to

Group, Inc.

Fixed

Charges and Ratios

of Earnings

to Combined

Fixed

Charges

and Preferred

Stock Dividends.

Exhibit 12.1 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (No. 001-14965) for the quarterly period ended June 30

Exhibit		Incorporated by Reference
No.	Description	to Filings Indicated
15.1	Letter re Unaudited Interim Financial Information	**
23.1	Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.	**
23.2	Consent of Richards, Layton & Finger, P.A. (included in Exhibit 5.1 above).	
23.3	Consents of Sullivan & Cromwell LLP (included in Exhibits 5.2, 5.3, 5.4, 8.1 and 8.2 above).	
23.4	Consents of Sidley Austin LLP (included in Exhibits 5.5 and 8.3 above).	
24.1	Power of Attorney (included on signature pages).	**
25.1	Statement of Eligibility of senior debt trustee under the Indenture, dated as of May 19, 1999, between The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee	**
25.2	Statement of Eligibility of senior debt trustee under the Senior Debt Indenture, dated as of July 16, 2008, between The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee.	**
25.3	Statement of Eligibility of subordinated debt trustee under the Subordinated Debt Indenture, dated as of February 20, 2004, between The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee.	**
25.4	Statement of Eligibility of warrant trustee of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	**
25.5	Statement of Eligibility of The Bank of New York Mellon to act as trustee under the Amended and Restated Trust Agreement of Goldman Sachs Capital I.	**
25.6	Statement of Eligibility of The Bank of New York Mellon to act as trustee under the Amended and Restated Trust Agreement of Goldman Sachs Capital II.	**
25.7	Statement of Eligibility of The Bank of New York Mellon to act as trustee under the Amended and Restated Trust Agreement of Goldman Sachs Capital III.	**
25.8	Statement of Eligibility of The Bank of New York Mellon to act as trustee under the Amended and Restated Trust Agreement of Goldman Sachs Capital IV.	**

Exhibit No.	Description	Incorporated by Reference to Filings Indicated
25.9	Statement of Eligibility of The Bank of New York Mellon to act as trustee under the Amended and Restated Trust Agreement of Goldman Sachs Capital V.	**
25.10	Statement of Eligibility of The Bank of New York Mellon to act as trustee under the Amended and Restated Trust Agreement of Goldman Sachs Capital VI.	**
25.11	Statement of Eligibility of The Bank of New York Mellon under the Guarantee for the benefit of the holders of capital securities of Goldman Sachs Capital I.	**
25.12	Statement of Eligibility of The Bank of New York Mellon under the Guarantee for the benefit of the holders of capital securities of Goldman Sachs Capital II.	**
25.13	Statement of Eligibility of The Bank of New York Mellon under the Guarantee for the benefit of the holders of capital securities of Goldman Sachs Capital III.	**
25.14	Statement of Eligibility of The Bank of New York Mellon under the Guarantee for the benefit of the holders of capital securities of Goldman Sachs Capital IV.	**
25.15	Statement of Eligibility of The Bank of New York Mellon under the Guarantee for the benefit of the holders of capital securities of Goldman Sachs Capital V.	**
25.16	Statement of Eligibility of The Bank of New York Mellon under the Guarantee for the benefit of the holders of capital securities of Goldman Sachs Capital VI.	**
25.17	Statement of Eligibility of senior debt trustee under the Senior Debt Indenture, dated as of December 4, 2007, among GS Finance Corp., The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., as guarantor, and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee.	**
25.18	Statement of Eligibility of senior debt trustee under the Senior Debt Indenture, dated as of October 10, 2008, among GS Finance Corp., The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., as guarantor, and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee.	**

^{*} To be filed as an exhibit to a Current Report on Form 8-K, Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q or Annual Report on Form 10-K, or a Post-Effective Amendment to this Registration Statement on Form S-3 and incorporated herein by reference.

^{**} Filed herewith.

Item 17. Undertakings.

Each of the undersigned Registrants hereby undertakes:

- (1) To file, during any period in which offers or sales are being made, a post-effective amendment to this Registration Statement:
- (i) To include any prospectus required by Section 10(a)(3) of the Securities Act of 1933;
- (ii) To reflect in the prospectus any facts or events arising after the effective date of the registration statement (or the most recent post-effective amendment thereof) which, individually or in the aggregate, represent a fundamental change in the information set forth in the registration statement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any increase or decrease in volume of securities offered (if the total dollar value of securities offered would not exceed that which was registered) and any deviation from the low or high end of the estimated maximum offering range may be reflected in the form of prospectus filed with the Commission pursuant to Rule 424(b) if, in the aggregate, the changes in volume and price represent no more than a 20 percent change in the maximum aggregate offering price set forth in the "Calculation of Registration Fee" table in the effective registration statement; and
- (iii) To include any material information with respect to the plan of distribution not previously disclosed in the registration statement or any material change to such information in the registration statement;

provided, however, that paragraphs (1)(i), (1)(ii) and (1)(iii) do not apply if the information required to be included in a post-effective amendment by those paragraphs is contained in reports filed with or furnished to the Commission by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 that are incorporated by reference in the registration statement, or is contained in a form of prospectus filed pursuant to Rule 424(b) that is part of the registration statement.

- (2) That, for the purpose of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, each such post-effective amendment shall be deemed to be a new registration statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof.
- (3) To remove from registration by means of a post-effective amendment any of the securities being registered which remain unsold at the termination of the offering.
 - (4) That, for the purpose of determining liability under the Securities Act of 1933 to any purchaser:
 - (i) Each prospectus filed by a Registrant pursuant to Rule 424(b)(3) shall be deemed to be part of the registration statement as of the date the filed prospectus was deemed part of and included in the registration statement; and
 - (ii) Each prospectus required to be filed pursuant to Rule 424(b)(2), (b)(5) or (b)(7) as part of the registration statement in reliance on Rule 430B relating to an offering made pursuant to Rule 415(a)(1)(i), (vii) or (x) for the purpose of providing the information required by Section 10(a) of the Securities Act of 1933 shall be deemed to be part of and included in the registration statement as of the earlier of the date such form of prospectus is first used after effectiveness or the date of the first contract of sale of securities in the offering described in

the prospectus. As provided in Rule 430B, for liability purposes of the issuer and any person that is at that date an underwriter, such date shall be deemed to be a new effective date of the registration statement relating to the securities in the registration statement to which the prospectus relates, and the offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof. *Provided, however*, that no statement made in a registration statement or prospectus that is part of the registration statement or made in a document incorporated or deemed incorporated by reference into the registration statement or prospectus that is part of the registration statement will, as to a purchaser with a time of contract of sale prior to such effective date, supersede or modify any statement that was made in the registration statement or prospectus that was part of the registration statement or made in any such document immediately prior to such effective date

- (5) That, for the purpose of determining liability of a Registrant under the Securities Act of 1933 to any purchaser in the initial distribution of the securities, each undersigned Registrant undertakes that in a primary offering of securities of such undersigned Registrant pursuant to this Registration Statement, regardless of the underwriting method used to sell the securities to the purchaser, if the securities are offered or sold to such purchaser by means of any of the following communications, such undersigned Registrant will be a seller to the purchaser and will be considered to offer or sell such securities to such purchaser:
 - (i) Any preliminary prospectus or prospectus of such undersigned Registrant relating to the offering required to be filed pursuant to Rule 424;
 - (ii) Any free writing prospectus relating to the offering prepared by or on behalf of such undersigned Registrant or used or referred to by such undersigned Registrant;
 - (iii) The portion of any other free writing prospectus relating to the offering containing material information about such undersigned Registrant or its securities provided by or on behalf of such undersigned Registrant; and
 - (iv) Any other communication that is an offer in the offering made by such undersigned Registrant to the purchaser.
- (6) That, for purposes of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, each filing of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s annual report pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (and, where applicable, each filing of an employee benefit plan's annual report pursuant to Section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) that is incorporated by reference in the registration statement shall be deemed to be a new registration statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof.

Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act of 1933 may be permitted to directors, officers and controlling persons of a Registrant pursuant to the foregoing provisions, or otherwise, such Registrant has been advised that in the opinion of the Securities and Exchange Commission such indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act of 1933 and is, therefore, unenforceable. In the event that a claim for indemnification against such liabilities (other than the payment by a Registrant of expenses incurred or paid by a director, officer or controlling person of a Registrant in the successful defense of any action, suit or proceeding) is asserted by such director, officer or controlling person in connection with the securities being registered, such Registrant will, unless in the opinion of its counsel the matter has been settled by controlling precedent, submit to a court of appropriate jurisdiction the question whether such indemnification by it is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act of 1933 and will be governed by the final adjudication of such issue.

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. certifies that it has reasonable grounds to believe that it meets all of the requirements for filing on Form S-3 and has duly caused this Registration Statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of New York, New York, on the 19th day of September, 2011.

THE GOLDMAN SACHS GROUP, INC.

By: /s/ David A. Viniar

Name: David A. Viniar

Title: Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each of the individuals whose signature appears below constitutes and appoints Lloyd C. Blankfein, Gary D. Cohn, David A. Viniar, Gregory K. Palm, and Elizabeth E. Robinson, and each of them (so long as each such individual is an employee of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. or an affiliate of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.), his or her true and lawful attorney-in-fact and agent, with full and several power of substitution, for him or her and in his or her name, place and stead, in any and all capacities, to sign any and all amendments (including post-effective amendments) to this Registration Statement, and to file the same, with all exhibits thereto, and all documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, granting unto said attorneys-in-fact and agents, and each of them, full power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing requisite and necessary to be done in and about the premises, as fully for all intents and purposes as he or she might or could do in person, hereby ratifying and confirming all that said attorneys-in-fact and agents or any of them, or their substitutes, may lawfully do or cause to be done.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, this Registration Statement has been signed by the following persons in the capacities indicated on the 19th day of September, 2011.

Title		Signature	
Director, Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive			
Officer)	/s/	LLOYD C. BLANKFEIN	
		Lloyd C. Blankfein	
Director, President and			
Chief Operating Officer	/s/	GARY D. COHN	
		Gary D. Cohn	
Director	/s/	JOHN H. BRYAN	
		John H. Bryan	
Director	/s/	CLAES DAHLBÄCK	
		Claes Dahlbäck	
Director	/s/	STEPHEN FRIEDMAN	
		Stephen Friedman	
Director	/s/	WILLIAM W. GEORGE	
		William W. George	

Director	/s/	JAMES A. JOHNSON	
		James A. Johnson	
Director	/s/	LOIS D. JULIBER	
		Lois D. Juliber	
Director	/s/	LAKSHMI N. MITTAL	
		Lakshmi N. Mittal	
Director	/s/	JAMES J. SCHIRO	
		James J. Schiro	
Director	/s/	DEBORA L. SPAR	
		Debora L. Spar	
Principal Accounting Officer	/s/	SARAH E. SMITH	
		Sarah E. Smith	
Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial			
Officer)	/s/	DAVID A. VINIAR	
	·	David A. Viniar	

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, Goldman Sachs Capital I certifies that it has reasonable grounds to believe that it meets all of the requirements for filing on Form S-3 and has duly caused this Registration Statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of New York, State of New York, on the 19th day of September, 2011.

GOLDMAN SACHS CAPITAL I

By: The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.,

as Depositor

By: /s/ ELIZABETH E. ROBINSON

Name: Elizabeth E. Robinson

Title: Treasurer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, Goldman Sachs Capital II certifies that it has reasonable grounds to believe that it meets all of the requirements for filing on Form S-3 and has duly caused this Registration Statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of New York, State of New York, on the 19th day of September, 2011.

GOLDMAN SACHS CAPITAL II

By: The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., as Depositor

By: /s/ ELIZABETH E. ROBINSON

Name: Elizabeth E. Robinson

Title: Treasurer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, Goldman Sachs Capital III certifies that it has reasonable grounds to believe that it meets all of the requirements for filing on Form S-3 and has duly caused this Registration Statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of New York, State of New York, on the 19th day of September, 2011.

GOLDMAN SACHS CAPITAL III

By: The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., as Depositor

By: /s/ ELIZABETH E. ROBINSON

Name: Elizabeth E. Robinson

Title: Treasurer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, Goldman Sachs Capital IV certifies that it has reasonable grounds to believe that it meets all of the requirements for filing on Form S-3 and has duly caused this Registration Statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of New York, State of New York, on the 19th day of September, 2011.

GOLDMAN SACHS CAPITAL IV

By: The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., as Depositor

By: /s/ ELIZABETH E. ROBINSON

Name: Elizabeth E. Robinson

Title: Treasurer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, Goldman Sachs Capital V certifies that it has reasonable grounds to believe that it meets all of the requirements for filing on Form S-3 and has duly caused this Registration Statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of New York, State of New York, on the 19th day of September, 2011.

GOLDMAN SACHS CAPITAL V

By: The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., as Depositor

By: /s/ ELIZABETH E. ROBINSON

Name: Elizabeth E. Robinson

Title: Treasurer

II-26

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, Goldman Sachs Capital VI certifies that it has reasonable grounds to believe that it meets all of the requirements for filing on Form S-3 and has duly caused this Registration Statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of New York, State of New York, on the 19th day of September, 2011.

GOLDMAN SACHS CAPITAL VI

By: The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., as Depositor

By: /s/ ELIZABETH E. ROBINSON

Name: Elizabeth E. Robinson

Title: Treasurer

II-27

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, GS Finance Corp. certifies that it has reasonable grounds to believe that it meets all of the requirements for filing on Form S-3 and has duly caused this Registration Statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of New York, State of New York, on the 19th day of September, 2011.

GS FINANCE CORP.

By: /s/ MANDA J. D'AGATA

Name: Manda J. D'Agata

Title: President

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each of the individuals whose signature appears below constitutes and appoints Manda J. D'Agata, Steven M. Bunson and Rajashree Datta, and each of them (so long as each such individual is an employee of GS Finance Corp. or an affiliate of GS Finance Corp.), his or her true and lawful attorney-in-fact and agent, with full and several power of substitution, for him or her and in his or her name, place and stead, in any and all capacities, to sign any and all amendments (including post-effective amendments) to this Registration Statement, and to file the same, with all exhibits thereto, and all documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, granting unto said attorneys-in-fact and agents, and each of them, full power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing requisite and necessary to be done in and about the premises, as fully for all intents and purposes as he or she might or could do in person, hereby ratifying and confirming all that said attorneys-in-fact and agents or any of them, or their substitutes, may lawfully do or cause to be done.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, this Registration Statement has been signed by the following persons in the capacities indicated on the 19th day of September, 2011.

Title		Signature	
Director, President (Principal Executive Officer)	/s/	Manda J. D'Agata	
	Manda J. D'Agata		
Director	/s/	STEVEN M. BUNSON	
		Steven M. Bunson	
Director (Principal Financial Officer			
and Principal Accounting Officer)	/s/	RAJASHREE DATTA	
		Rajashree Datta	

INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Exhibit No.		Incorporated by Ref to Filings Indicated
1.1	Form of Amended and Restated Distribution Agreement for Medium-Term Notes, Series B of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	**
1.2	Form of Amended and Restated Distribution Agreement for Medium-Term Notes, Series D of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	**
1.3	Form of Distribution Agreement for warrants of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	*
1.4	Form of Underwriting Agreement for senior debt securities of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., issued under the Indenture, dated as of May 19, 1999, between The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and The Bank of New York Mellon (formerly known as The Bank of New York), as trustee.	**
1.5	Form of Underwriting Agreement for senior debt securities of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., issued under the Senior Debt Indenture, dated as of July 16, 2008, between The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee.	**
1.6	Form of Underwriting Agreement for subordinated debt securities of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	*
1.7	Form of Underwriting Agreement for warrants of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	*
1.8	Form of Underwriting Agreement for purchase contracts of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	*
1.9	Form of Underwriting Agreement for units of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	*
1.10	Form of Underwriting Agreement for preferred stock and depositary shares of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	**
1.11	Form of Underwriting Agreement for capital securities.	*
1.12	Form of Amended and Restated Distribution Agreement for Medium-Term Notes, Series A of GS Finance Corp.	**
1.13	Form of Amended and Restated Distribution Agreement for Medium-Term Notes, Series E of GS Finance Corp.	**
1.14	Form of Distribution Agreement for warrants of GS Finance Corp.	*
1.15	Form of Underwriting Agreement for senior debt securities of GS Finance Corp., issued under the Senior Debt Indenture, dated as of December 4, 2007, among GS Finance Corp., The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., as guarantor, and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee.	*

Exhibit No.	Description	Incorporated by Referer to Filings Indicated
1.16	Form of Underwriting Agreement for senior debt securities of GS Finance Corp., issued under the Senior Debt Indenture, dated as of October 10, 2008, among GS Finance Corp., The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., as guarantor, and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee.	*
1.17	Form of Underwriting Agreement for subordinated debt securities of GS Finance Corp.	*
1.18	Form of Underwriting Agreement for warrants of GS Finance Corp.	*
1.19	Form of Underwriting Agreement for units of GS Finance Corp.	*
1.20	Form of Brokerage Agreement relating to Certificates of Deposit of Goldman Sachs Bank USA (or any successor thereto or any other banking subsidiary of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.).	Exhibit 1.20 to Post- Effective Amendment No. 1 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333- 154173), filed on October 21, 2008.
1.21	Form of Distribution Agreement relating to Deposit Notes of Goldman Sachs Bank USA (or any successor thereto or any other banking subsidiary of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.).	*
1.22	Form of Distribution Agreement relating to Notes of Goldman Sachs Bank USA (or any successor thereto or any other banking subsidiary of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.).	*
2.1	Amended and Restated Plan of Incorporation of The Goldman Sachs Group, L.P.	Exhibit 2.1 to Amendment No. 2 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (No. 333- 74449), filed on April 30, 1999.
2.2	Certificate of Incorporation of GS Finance Corp.	Exhibit 2.5 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Post-Effective Amendment No. 10 to Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333- 130074), filed on December 4, 2007.

Exhibit No.	Description	Incorporated by Referer to Filings Indicated
4.1	Specimen of certificate representing The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s common stock, par value \$0.01 per share.	Exhibit 4.1 to Post- Effective Amendment No. 3 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333- 154173), filed on April 6, 2009.
4.2	Restated Certificate of Incorporation of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., including Certificates of Designations relating to Preferred Stock Series A, B, C, D, E and F.	Exhibit 3.2 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (No. 001-14965) for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2011, filed on May 9, 2011.
4.3	Indenture, dated as of May 19, 1999, between The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee, with respect to senior debt securities of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	Exhibit 6 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form 8-A (No. 001-14965), filed on June 29, 1999.
4.4	Senior Debt Indenture, dated as of July 16, 2008, between The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee, with respect to senior debt securities of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	Exhibit 4.82 to Post- Effective Amendment No. 11 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333- 130074), filed on July 17, 2008.
4.5	Subordinated Debt Indenture, dated as of February 20, 2004, between The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee, with respect to subordinated debt securities of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	Exhibit 4.2 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K (No. 001-14965) for the fiscal year ended November 28, 2003.
4.6	Certificate of Trust of Goldman Sachs Capital II.	Exhibit 4.12 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-112367), filed on January 30, 2004.

Exhibit No.	Description	Incorporated by Referento Filings Indicated
4.7	Amended and Restated Declaration of Trust of Goldman Sachs Capital II.	Exhibit 99.5 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form 8-A (No. 001-14965), filed on May 17, 2007 (SEC Accession No. 0000950123-07-007621).
4.8	Form of Agreement as to Expenses and Liabilities for Goldman Sachs Capital II.	Exhibit 4.19 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-112367), filed on January 30, 2004.
4.9	Guarantee Agreement for Goldman Sachs Capital II.	Exhibit 99.7 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form 8-A (No. 001-14965), filed on May 17, 2007 (SEC Accession No. 0000950123-07-007621).
4.10	Certificate of Trust of Goldman Sachs Capital III.	Exhibit 4.14 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-112367), filed on January 30, 2004.
4.11	Amended and Restated Declaration of Trust of Goldman Sachs Capital III.	Exhibit 99.5 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form 8-A (No. 001-14965), filed on May 17, 2007 (SEC Accession No. 0000950123-07-007622).
4.12	Form of Agreement as to Expenses and Liabilities for Goldman Sachs Capital III.	Exhibit 4.20 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-112367), filed on January 30, 2004.

Exhibit No.	Description	Incorporated by Referento Filings Indicated
4.13	Guarantee Agreement for Goldman Sachs Capital III.	Exhibit 99.7 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form 8-A (No. 001-14965), filed on May 17, 2007 (SEC Accession No. 0000950123-07-007622).
4.14	Certificate of Trust of Goldman Sachs Capital IV.	Exhibit 4.16 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-112367), filed on January 30, 2004.
4.15	Form of Amended and Restated Trust Agreement for Goldman Sachs Capital IV.	Exhibit 4.9 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-112367), filed on January 30, 2004.
4.16	Trust Agreement of Goldman Sachs Capital IV.	Exhibit 4.17 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-112367), filed on January 30, 2004.
4.17	Form of Agreement as to Expenses and Liabilities for Goldman Sachs Capital IV.	Exhibit 4.21 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-112367), filed on January 30, 2004.
4.18	Form of Guarantee Agreement for Goldman Sachs Capital IV.	Exhibit 4.25 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-112367), filed on January 30, 2004.
4.19	Certificate of Trust of Goldman Sachs Capital V.	Exhibit 4.17 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-122977), filed on February 24, 2005.

Exhibit No.	Description	Incorporated by Referer to Filings Indicated
4.20	Form of Amended and Restated Trust Agreement for Goldman Sachs Capital V.	Exhibit 4.9 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-122977), filed on February 24, 2005.
4.21	Trust Agreement of Goldman Sachs Capital V.	Exhibit 4.18 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-122977), filed on February 24, 2005.
4.22	Form of Agreement as to Expenses and Liabilities for Goldman Sachs Capital V.	Exhibit 4.24 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-122977), filed on February 24, 2005.
4.23	Form of Guarantee Agreement for Goldman Sachs Capital V.	Exhibit 4.29 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-122977), filed on February 24, 2005.
4.24	Certificate of Trust of Goldman Sachs Capital VI.	Exhibit 4.19 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-122977), filed on February 24, 2005.
4.25	Form of Amended and Restated Trust Agreement for Goldman Sachs Capital VI.	Exhibit 4.10 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-122977), filed on February 24, 2005.
4.26	Trust Agreement of Goldman Sachs Capital VI.	Exhibit 4.20 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-122977), filed on February 24, 2005.

Exhibit		Incorporated by Referei
No.	Description	to Filings Indicated
4.27	Form of Agreement as to Expenses and Liabilities for Goldman Sachs Capital VI.	Exhibit 4.25 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-122977), filed on February 24, 2005.
4.28	Form of Guarantee Agreement for Goldman Sachs Capital VI.	Exhibit 4.30 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-122977), filed on February 24, 2005.
4.29	Warrant Indenture, dated as of February 14, 2006, between The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee, with respect to warrants of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	Exhibit 4.34 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Post-Effective Amendment No. 3 to Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-130074), filed on March 1, 2006.
4.30	Form of Debt Warrant Agreement for warrants of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. sold attached to debt securities of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	*
4.31	Form of Debt Warrant Agreement for warrants of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. sold alone.	*
4.32	Form of Warrant Agreement for universal warrants of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	*
4.33	Deposit Agreement, dated as of October 21, 2005, between The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and JP Morgan Chase Bank, N.A., including form of depositary receipt.	Exhibit 5 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form 8-A (No. 001-14965), filed on October 28, 2005.
4.34	Form of Unit Agreement of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., including form of unit certificate.	*
4.35	Form of Unit Agreement Without Holders' Obligation of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	*
4.36	Form of senior debt securities of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., issued under the Indenture, dated as of May 19, 1999, between The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee (included in Exhibit 4.3).	

Exhibit No.	Description	Incorporated by Referento Filings Indicated
4.37	Form of senior debt securities of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. issued under the Senior Debt Indenture, dated as of July 16, 2008, between The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee (included in Exhibit 4.4).	
4.38	Form of floating rate senior debt security issued under the Indenture, dated as of May 19, 1999, between The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee.	Exhibit 4.45 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333- 154173), filed on October 10, 2008.
4.39	Form of floating rate senior debt security issued under the Senior Debt Indenture, dated as of July 16, 2008, between The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee.	Exhibit 4.46 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333- 154173), filed on October 10, 2008.
4.40	Form of fixed rate senior debt security issued under the Indenture, dated as of May 19, 1999, between The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee.	Exhibit 4.55 to Post- Effective Amendment No. 2 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333- 130074), filed on February 3, 2006.
4.41	Form of fixed rate senior debt security issued under the Senior Debt Indenture, dated as of July 16, 2008, between The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee.	Exhibit 4.91 to Post- Effective Amendment No. 11 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-130074), filed on July 17, 2008.
4.42	Form of subordinated debt securities of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. (included in Exhibit 4.5).	
4.43	Form of Floating Rate Medium-Term Note, Series B, of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	Exhibit 4.50 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333- 154173), filed on October 10, 2008.
4.44	Form of Floating Rate Medium-Term Note, Series D, of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	**

Exhibit No.	Description	Incorporated by Reference to Filings Indicated
4.45	Form of Fixed Rate Medium-Term Note, Series B, of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	Exhibit 4.4 to Post-Effective Amendment No. 1 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (No. 333-75321), filed on July 1, 1999.
4.46	Form of Fixed Rate Medium-Term Note, Series D, of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	Exhibit 4.85 to Post-Effective Amendment No. 11 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-130074), filed on July 17, 2008.
4.47	Form of Mandatory Exchangeable Medium-Term Note, Series B, of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	Exhibit 4.5 to Post-Effective Amendment No. 1 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (No. 333-75321), filed on July 1, 1999.
4.48	Form of Mandatory Exchangeable Medium-Term Note, Series D, of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	Exhibit 4.86 to Post-Effective Amendment No. 11 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-130074), filed on July 17, 2008.
4.49	Form of Exchangeable Medium-Term Note, Series B, of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	Exhibit 4.6 to Post-Effective Amendment No. 1 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (No. 333-75321), filed on July 1, 1999.
4.50	Form of Exchangeable Medium-Term Note, Series D, of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	Exhibit 4.87 to Post-Effective Amendment No. 11 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-130074), filed on July 17, 2008.

Exhibit No.		Incorporated by Referer to Filings Indicated
4.51	Form of Exchange Traded Note, Series B, of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	Exhibit 99.2 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form 8-A (File No. 001-14965), filed on June 26, 2007.
4.52	Form of Index-Linked Medium-Term Note, Series D, of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	Exhibit 4.88 to Post- Effective Amendment No. 11 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333- 130074), filed on July 17, 2008.
4.53	Specimen Master Medium-Term Note, Series B, dated September 19, 2011, of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	**
4.54	Specimen Master Medium-Term Note, Series D, dated September 19, 2011, of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	**
4.55	Form of put warrant of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. (included in Exhibit 4.29).	
4.56	Form of call warrant of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. (included in Exhibit 4.29).	
4.57	Form of universal warrant of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	Exhibit 4.57 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Post-Effective Amendment No. 7 to Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-130074), filed on February 20, 2007.
4.58	Form of Prepaid Purchase Contract of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	*
4.59	Form of Non-Prepaid Purchase Contract (Issuer Sale) of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. (to be included in Exhibit 4.32).	
4.60	Form of Non-Prepaid Purchase Contract (Issuer Purchase) of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. (to be included in Exhibit 4.32).	
4.61	Form of Capital Security (included in Exhibits 4.7, 4.11, 4.15, 4.20, 4.25 and 4.86).	
	II-38	

Exhibit No.	Description	Incorporated by Referer to Filings Indicated
4.62	Senior Debt Indenture, dated as of December 4, 2007, among GS Finance Corp., The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., as guarantor, and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee, with respect to senior debt securities of GS Finance Corp.	Exhibit 4.69 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Post-Effective Amendment No. 10 to Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333- 130074), filed on December 4, 2007.
4.63	Senior Debt Indenture, dated as of October 10, 2008, among GS Finance Corp., The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., as guarantor, and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee, with respect to senior debt securities of GS Finance Corp.	Exhibit 4.70 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-154173), filed on October 10, 2008.
4.64	Form of Unit Agreement of GS Finance Corp., including form of units.	*
4.65	Form of Unit Agreement Without Holders' Obligation of GS Finance Corp.	*
4.66	Form of senior debt securities of GS Finance Corp., issued under the Senior Debt Indenture, dated as of December 4, 2007, among GS Finance Corp., The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., as guarantor, and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee (included in Exhibit 4.62).	
4.67	Form of senior debt securities of GS Finance Corp., issued under the Senior Debt Indenture, dated as of October 10, 2008, among GS Finance Corp., The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., as guarantor, and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee (included in Exhibit 4.63).	
4.68	Form of Floating Rate Medium-Term Note, Series A, of GS Finance Corp.	Exhibit 4.75 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-154173), filed on October 10, 2008.
4.69	Form of Floating Rate Medium-Term Note, Series E, of GS Finance Corp.	**
4.70	Form of Fixed Rate Medium-Term Note, Series A, of GS Finance Corp.	Exhibit 4.76 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Post-Effective Amendment No. 10 to Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333- 130074), filed on December 4, 2007.

Exhibit No.	Description	Incorporated by Reference to Filings Indicated
4.71	Form of Fixed Rate Medium-Term Note, Series E, of GS Finance Corp.	Exhibit 4.78 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333- 154173), filed on October 10, 2008.
4.72	Form of Index-Linked Medium-Term Note, Series A, of GS Finance Corp.	Exhibit 4.77 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Post- Effective Amendment No. 10 to Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-130074), filed on December 4, 2007.
4.73	Form of Index-Linked Medium-Term Note, Series E, of GS Finance Corp.	Exhibit 4.80 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333- 154173), filed on October 10, 2008.
4.74	Specimen Master Medium-Term Note, Series E, dated September 19, 2011, of GS Finance Corp.	**
4.75	Form of guarantee, issued under the Senior Debt Indenture, dated as of December 4, 2007, among GS Finance Corp., The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., as guarantor, and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee, by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. of senior debt securities of GS Finance Corp. (included in Exhibit 4.62).	
4.76	Form of guarantee, issued under the Senior Debt Indenture, dated as of October 10, 2008, among GS Finance Corp., The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., as guarantor, and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee, by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. of senior debt securities of GS Finance Corp. (included in Exhibit 4.63).	
4.77	General Guarantee Agreement, dated October 21, 2008, made by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. relating to certain obligations of Goldman Sachs Bank USA.	Exhibit 4.85 to Post-Effective No. 1 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-154173), filed on October 21, 2008.
4.78	General Guarantee Agreement, dated December 1, 2008, made by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. relating to certain obligations of Goldman Sachs Bank USA.	Exhibit 4.80 to Post-Effective No. 2 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-154173), filed on March 19, 2009.

Exhibit

No. 4.79

4.79	Form of floating rate senior debt security (TLGP) issued under the Senior Debt Indenture, dated as of July 16, 2008, between The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee.	Exhibit 4.5 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K (No. 001- 14965) for the fiscal year ended November 28, 2008.
4.80	Form of fixed rate senior debt security (TLGP) issued under the Senior Debt Indenture, dated as of July 16, 2008, between The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee.	Exhibit 4.6 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K (No. 001- 14965) for the fiscal year ended November 28, 2008.
4.81	Form of floating rate Medium-Term Note, Series D (TLGP) issued under the Senior Debt Indenture, dated as of July 16, 2008, between The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee.	Exhibit 4.7 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K (No. 001- 14965) for the fiscal year ended November 28, 2008.
4.82	Form of fixed rate Medium-Term Note, Series D (TLGP) issued under the Senior Debt Indenture, dated as of July 16, 2008, between The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee.	Exhibit 4.8 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K (No. 001- 14965) for the fiscal year ended November 28, 2008.
4.83	Form of floating rate senior debt security (TLGP) issued under the Senior Debt Indenture, dated as of July 16, 2008, between The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee.	Exhibit 4.1 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K (No. 001- 14965), dated November 25, 2008 and filed on December 1, 2008.
4.84	Form of fixed rate senior debt security (TLGP) issued under the Senior Debt Indenture, dated as of July 16, 2008, between The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee.	Exhibit 4.2 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K (No. 001-14965), dated November 25, 2008 and filed on December 1, 2008.

Description

Incorporated by Referer to Filings Indicated

Exhibit No.	Description	Incorporated by Referento Filings Indicated
4.85	Certificate of Trust of Goldman Sachs Capital I.	Exhibit 4.10 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-112367), filed on January 30, 2004.
4.86	Amended and Restated Trust Agreement of Goldman Sachs Capital I.	Exhibit 4.2 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (No. 001-14965) for the quarterly period ended February 27, 2004, filed on April 6, 2004.
4.87	Agreement as to Expenses and Liabilities for Goldman Sachs Capital I.	Exhibit 4.3 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (No. 001-14965) for the quarterly period ended February 27, 2004, filed on April 6, 2004.
4.88	Guarantee Agreement for Goldman Sachs Capital I.	Exhibit 4.4 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (No. 001-14965) for the quarterly period ended February 27, 2004, filed on April 6, 2004.
4.89	Supplemental Indenture, dated as of February 20, 2004, between The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and The Bank of New York Mellon (formerly known as The Bank of New York), as trustee, with respect to the junior subordinated debentures of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	Exhibit 4.1 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (No. 001-14965) for the quarterly period ended February 27, 2004, filed on April 6, 2004.
4.90	Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of May 15, 2007, between The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and The Bank of New York Mellon (formerly known as The Bank of New York), as trustee, with respect to the junior subordinated notes of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	Exhibit 99.4 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form 8-A (No. 001-14965), filed on May 17, 2007 (SEC Accession No. 0000950123-07-007621).

End that		la como control has Butanasa
Exhibit No.	Description	Incorporated by Reference to Filings Indicated
4.91	Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as of May 15, 2007, between The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and The Bank of New York Mellon (formerly known as The Bank of New York), as trustee, with respect to the junior subordinated notes of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	Exhibit 99.4 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form 8-A (No. 001- 14965), filed on May 17, 2007 (SEC Accession No. 0000950123-07-007622).
5.1	Opinion of Richards, Layton & Finger, P.A. as to the validity of the capital securities, the enforceability of the trust agreements and the formation of the Issuer Trust with respect to Goldman Sachs Capital I, Goldman Sachs Capital II, Goldman Sachs Capital IV, Goldman Sachs Capital V and Goldman Sachs Capital VI.	**
5.2	Opinion of Sullivan & Cromwell LLP relating to (i) debt securities, warrants, purchase contracts, units, preferred stock and depositary shares of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., and capital securities of Goldman Sachs Capital I, Goldman Sachs Capital II, Goldman Sachs Capital III, Goldman Sachs Capital IV, Goldman Sachs Capital IV and Goldman Sachs Capital IV and guarantees thereof of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and (ii) debt securities, warrants and units of GS Finance Corp. and guarantees thereof of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	**
5.3	Opinion of Sullivan & Cromwell LLP relating to the Guarantees by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. of specified certificates of deposit of Goldman Sachs Bank USA.	**
5.4	Opinion of Sullivan & Cromwell LLP relating to the Guarantee by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. of Notes and Deposit Notes of Goldman Sachs Bank USA.	**
5.5	Opinion of Sidley Austin LLP as to the legality of certain debt securities of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	**
8.1	Tax Opinion of Sullivan & Cromwell LLP relating to debt securities, preferred stock and depositary shares of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., and capital securities of Goldman Sachs Capital I, Goldman Sachs Capital II, Goldman Sachs Capital IV, Goldman Sachs Capital V and Goldman Sachs Capital VI and guarantees thereof of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	**
8.2	Tax Opinion of Sullivan & Cromwell LLP relating to debt securities, warrants and units of GS Finance Corp. and guarantees thereof of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	**

Exhibit No.	Description	Incorporated by Referei to Filings Indicated
8.3	Tax Opinion of Sidley Austin LLP relating to certain debt securities, preferred stock and depositary shares of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., and capital securities of Goldman Sachs Capital I, Goldman Sachs Capital II, Goldman Sachs Capital IV, Goldman Sachs Capital V and Goldman Sachs Capital VI and guarantees thereof of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	**
12.1	Statement re: Computation of Ratios of Earnings to Fixed Charges and Ratios of Earnings to Combined Fixed Charges and Preferred Stock Dividends.	Exhibit 12.1 to The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (No. 001-14965) for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2011, filed on August 9, 2011.
15.1	Letter re Unaudited Interim Financial Information	**
23.1	Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.	**
23.2	Consent of Richards, Layton & Finger, P.A. (included in Exhibit 5.1 above).	
23.3	Consents of Sullivan & Cromwell LLP (included in Exhibits 5.2, 5.3, 5.4, 8.1 and 8.2 above).	
23.4	Consents of Sidley Austin LLP (included in Exhibits 5.5 and 8.3 above).	
24.1	Power of Attorney (included on signature pages).	**
25.1	Statement of Eligibility of senior debt trustee under the Indenture, dated as of May 19, 1999, between The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee	**
25.2	Statement of Eligibility of senior debt trustee under the Senior Debt Indenture, dated as of July 16, 2008, between The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee.	**
25.3	Statement of Eligibility of subordinated debt trustee under the Subordinated Debt Indenture, dated as of February 20, 2004, between The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee.	**
25.4	Statement of Eligibility of warrant trustee of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	**
25.5	Statement of Eligibility of The Bank of New York Mellon to act as trustee under the Amended and Restated Trust Agreement of Goldman Sachs Capital I.	**

Exhibit No.	Description	Incorporated by Ref to Filings Indicated
25.6	Statement of Eligibility of The Bank of New York Mellon to act as trustee under the Amended and Restated Trust Agreement of Goldman Sachs Capital II.	**
25.7	Statement of Eligibility of The Bank of New York Mellon to act as trustee under the Amended and Restated Trust Agreement of Goldman Sachs Capital III.	**
25.8	Statement of Eligibility of The Bank of New York Mellon to act as trustee under the Amended and Restated Trust Agreement of Goldman Sachs Capital IV.	**
25.9	Statement of Eligibility of The Bank of New York Mellon to act as trustee under the Amended and Restated Trust Agreement of Goldman Sachs Capital V.	**
25.10	Statement of Eligibility of The Bank of New York Mellon to act as trustee under the Amended and Restated Trust Agreement of Goldman Sachs Capital VI.	**
25.11	Statement of Eligibility of The Bank of New York Mellon under the Guarantee for the benefit of the holders of capital securities of Goldman Sachs Capital I.	**
25.12	Statement of Eligibility of The Bank of New York Mellon under the Guarantee for the benefit of the holders of capital securities of Goldman Sachs Capital II.	**
25.13	Statement of Eligibility of The Bank of New York Mellon under the Guarantee for the benefit of the holders of capital securities of Goldman Sachs Capital III.	**
25.14	Statement of Eligibility of The Bank of New York Mellon under the Guarantee for the benefit of the holders of capital securities of Goldman Sachs Capital IV.	**
25.15	Statement of Eligibility of The Bank of New York Mellon under the Guarantee for the benefit of the holders of capital securities of Goldman Sachs Capital V.	**
25.16	Statement of Eligibility of The Bank of New York Mellon under the Guarantee for the benefit of the holders of capital securities of Goldman Sachs Capital VI.	**
25.17	Statement of Eligibility of senior debt trustee under the Senior Debt Indenture, dated as of December 4, 2007, among GS Finance Corp., The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., as guarantor, and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee.	**
25.18	Statement of Eligibility of senior debt trustee under the Senior Debt Indenture, dated as of October 10, 2008, among GS Finance Corp., The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., as guarantor, and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee.	**

^{*} To be filed as an exhibit to a Current Report on Form 8-K, Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q or Annual Report on Form 10-K, or a Post-Effective Amendment to this Registration Statement on Form S-3 and incorporated herein by reference.

^{**} Filed herewith.